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More information in
informe2014.gruponutresa.comCold Cuts Biscuits Chocolate Coffee PastaTMLUC ProductionRetail Food DistributionIce Cream

Sales by Channel
Grupo Nutresa

Traditional (Stores and Convenience Stores)
Supermarket chains

Alternative
Institutional
Industrial

60,0%

7,0%

5,0% 4,0%

24,0%

1.054.787

12.831

Points of Sales

Vendors

Shareholder 
Composition

14.536
Shareholders

35,5%
Grupo Sura

32,7%
Other investors

16,0%

9,8%
Grupo Argos

6,0%

Source: Deceval

Market Share
 in Colombia

Source: Nielsen

Market Share 
in Chile
Source: Nielsen

Market Share 
in Mexico
Source: Nielsen

Cold Cuts

Biscuits

Chocolate Candy

Chocolate Beverages

Milk Modifiers

Nuts

Ground coffee

Soluble coffee

Ice Cream

Pasta

73,3%

55,1%

66,6%

BIF

Pasta

Coffee

63,2%

BIF 29,9%

28,8%
16,6%

63,2%

25,4%

49,3%

55,8%

41,6%

N.A.

52,3%

60,6%Distribution 
and Sales

The United States 
2014 7,0%
2013

 
7,2%

Central America
2014 7,4%
2013 6,9%

Mexico
2014 3,7%
2013 4,0%

Peru
2014 2,0%
2013 1,8%

Ecuador
2014 1,1%
2013 1,0%

Others
2014 2,0%
2013 1,6%

Chile
2014 7,9%
2013 7,6%

Venezuela
2014 2,5%
2013 8,3%

The Dominican Republic
and the Caribbean
2014 1,3%
2013 1,0%

Malaysia

Colombia
2014 65,1%
2013 60,5%

Presence and sales in our strategic region Figures 

2014 2013

Conventions

Plants: 2

Plants: 5

Plants: 1

Plants:  3

Plants: 1

Plants:  24

Plants: 1

Plants:  1

Plants:  2
.............................................................................................................................................................................

International Funds 
(136 international funds)

Colombian Funds

Grupo Nutresa 
consolidated share in 

Colombia

Total 
plants

40

14Total
number of
countries with 
distribution 
and plant 
network 

[G4-6] [G4-9]



Our long–term 
commitment

Principal risks 
of our business model

Differentiators of 
our business model

Business structure

.............................................................................................................................................................................

.............................................................................................................................................................................

International 
sales and 
distribution 
network

Cold Cuts Biscuits Chocolate Coffee PastaTMLUC Retail FoodIce Cream

Volatility in prices 
of raw materials

Our people
Human talent is one of our 
most valuable assets. The 
cultural platform is based on 
the promotion of participatory 
environments, development of 
skills of being and doing, 
recognition, building a leading 
brand, as well as a balanced 
life for people.

Our brands
Our brands are leaders in the 
markets in which we 
participate; they are recogni-
zed, loved and part of 
people’s daily life.  They are 
based on nutritional, reliable 
products with an excellent 
price–value relation.

Our distribution 
network 
Our extensive distribution 
network, with an offer 
differentiated by channels 
and segments, with teams 
of specialized staff, allows 
us to have our products 
available, at an appropriate 
frequency, and a close 
relationship with clients.

Highly competitive environment, 
including pressure from 
consumers and channels

Regulatory changes in nutrition, 
health and obesity in countries 
where we are present

Our Centennial 
strategy aims to 
double our 2013 sales 
by 2020, with 
sustained profitability 
between 12% and 
14% of the EBITDA 
margin. To achieve 
this, we offer our 
consumers foods and experiences of recognized and beloved 
brands, that nourish, generate wellness and pleasure, that are 
distinguished by the best price/value relation; widely available in 
our strategic region, managed by talented, innovative, 
committed and responsible people, who contribute to 
sustainable development.
Achieving this goal means ending 2020 with sales for COP 11.8 
Trillion (MEGA 2020) which corresponds to 5.1 times the sales 
of 2005, when we proposed our first great goal.

*This business 
unit will report 
figures beginning
in 2015

[G4-4]

The GRI indicators are indicated in the 
document in the following manner: [G4-   ] [G4-   ]

The information included in this executive summary is consistent with the 
Grupo Nutresa S. A. Integrated Report, available on the Webpage.
http://2014report.gruponutresa.com//
pdf/integrated_report_nutresa.pdf

In order to form a broader and deeper view on the actions taken and the 
results obtained by Grupo Nutresa S. A. on the economic, social and 
environmental performance, please read the Grupo Nutresa S. A. 
Integrated Report along with this publication.

The scope and results of our work are described in the assurance report 
that is published on the Webpage.
http://2014report.gruponutresa.com/pdf/verification_report.pdf

KPMG Advisory Services Ltda.

March 2015
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Sustainable
Sourcing

Corporate 
Governance

Environmental 
Sustainability

Effective 
Innovation

Responsible 
Employer and Citizen

Nutrition 
and Healthy Living

COP billion

Variation 
of energy 
consumption
 (kWh/t.p.)

Suppliers that 
comply with the 
sourcing policy

Variation 
of water 
consumption 
(m3/t.p.)

*Reduction over 2010.
Variation of the Scope 1 
and 2 emissions  (kg CO

2/t.p.)

14.048
2013: 15.442

-21,0%
2013: -15,5%

1.841 

-18,2%
2013: -14,4%

-15,5%
2013: -12,7%*

99,1%
2013: 99,1%*

37,2%

19,0%

New indicator

New indicator

47,6% 

New Indicator

Suppliers evaluated 
in sustainability

Suppliers trained 
in sustainable 
development topics

"The Issuer Recognition (IR), 
awarded by the Colombian Stock 
Exchange, is not a certification of 
the quality of the stock inscribed 
or of the solvency of the issuer."

90%

Strategic objectives for 2020 

Investment in 
environmental 
management

Use of cleaner 
energy

Innovative success 
stories per employee

Investment 
in innovation

Greenhouse – 
gas emissions

Use of resources
t.p.: ton produced
*Reduction over 2010

The second performance
evaluation of the members
of the Board of Directors 
by an independent 
external entity.

Creation of a policy
to negotiate shares

employees trained in 
the prevention of money 
laundering and financing 
of terrorism (MLFT)

69.117
2013: 68.765* 

Investment 
in social benefits

84,0%
2013: 84,1%

Organizational climate

2,62%
2013: 3,17%

Accident 
frequency rate

Employees 
(including direct, indirect 

and apprentices)

Number of references
that comply with the
Grupo Nutresa 
nutritional profile

Sales of products
reduced in 
critical nutrients

38.796
2013: 36.726

33.737
2013: 20.523

Investment 
in communities

2014
2013  20,6 %

17,7%

2014

2013 0,5%

0,5%

2014

2013 0,14

0,17 *

Sales of innovative
products

3.851 
2013: 3.272

Social investment
 in suppliers

+13.000

1.795 
2013:1.505

(only formulated 
in 2014)10.461

2013: 6.989

Number 
of volunteers

762
2013: 729

Skill 
development 
projects(Quality of life, training 

and subsidies) COP billion

COP billion

COP billion

* The year 2013 was re-expressed, to achieve comparability.

Colombia 26.425

12.371Abroad New indicator

*Calculated on the companies that have 
the Innovative Success Stories program.

[G4-9]

Learn more about the strategic objectives
http://2014report.gruponutresa.com/

strategic-objectives-for-2020/

90%
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Innovative 
Success 

Stories per 
Employee

Sales of 
Innovative 
Products

Portfolio with 
nutritional standards

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 

Remain in
the DJSI

Packaging 
Material

Water 
Consumption

Use of 
Cleaner Energy

Energy 
Consumption

Greenhouse Gas
 (GHG) Emissions

Waste
Recovery

-30%
-12%

15%

Double the portfolio that meets 
our standard of a healthy profile, 

leveraged in innovation 
and renewal

0,3

Development 
of Capacities 

with 
Communities

1.000
Projects

-25%
100%

-33% 90%



Total 
sales

Percentage of sales 
by Business

Percentage of EBITDA
by Business

Diversification 
of Raw Materials

Ebitda International 
Sales

Sales in 
Colombia

6.462
2013: 5.898

Percentage 
of total sales

Percentage 
of total sales

Percentage 
of total sales100%

Growth 
     9,5%

COP Billion COP Billion USD Billion  COP Billion

Cold Cuts

Biscuits

Chocolates

Coffee

Ice Cream

Pasta

TMLUC

2014

2013 1.911

1.694

864
2013: 833

Growth 
     3,8%

1.115
2013: 1.076

34,9%
2014 Margin 

13,4%
2013
14,1%

Growth 
     3,7%

4.204
2013: 3.872

65,1%
Growth 
     8,6%

2014

2013

9,3%

1.142

1.248

2014

2013

9,3%

983

1.074

2014

2013

-1,7%

789

776

2014

2013

 10,7%

486

537

2014

2013

Growth

Growth

3,2%

231

238

2014

2013 252

757

2014

2013

-12,0%

Margen

253

223

-11,3%

2014

2013

13,2%

13,3%

13,5%

13,8%

12,6%

15,3%

18,7%

17,0%

14,9%

16,7%

10,5%

11,1%

12,2%

16,2%

6,9%

158

169

2014

2013

 -10,1%

150

135

2014

2013

8,5%

134

145

2014

2013

-1,5%

81

80

2014

2013

-2,1%

26

25

2014

2013 41

92

2014

2013

-67,1%
308

101

2014

2013

2,7%

264

271

2014

2013

5,0%

164

172

2014

2013

-9,2%

149

135

2014

2013 56

58

2014

2013

2,3%

135

378 N.A.

N.A.

2014

2013
 11,1%

 8,8%

1.320

8,5%

8,6%

-0,8% -0,8%

5,3%

5,6% -4,5%

0,4%

5,8%

13,1%

9,9% 2,8%

1,6%

3,5% 1,7%

1,5%

-1,9%

-1,6%

-7,9%

2,4%

0,2%

2,4%

-1,0%4,7%

1.466

2014

2013 649

706

2014

2013

 7,9%

676

730

2014

2013

-1,2%

511

505

2014

2013

 11,0%

380

422

2014

2013

3,2%

231

238

7,1% volume

Volume

1,4% price

Price

% Cost of merchandise sold

*Includes direct labor, CIF and other minor raw materials.

12
,0

%

9,
2%

8,
4%

6,
6%

5,
3%

4,
5%

4,
1%

3,
8%

1,
6%

1,
9%

42
,6

%

26,2% 25,8%

   Biscuits

   Cold Cuts

19,3% 19,5%

   Chocolates16,6% 15,6%

 Coffee12,0% 16,8%

TMLUC   11,7% 10,7%

Ice Cream8,3% 9,3%

 Pasta   3,7% 2,9%

Others2,2% -0,6
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2 Grupo Nutresa

About this integrated report

Grupo Nutresa [G4-3] presents its Integrated Report 2014, 
for the period between January 1 to December 31, 2014  
[G4-28], in which we report the progress made by the Orga-
nization in material issues that matter most to its stakeholders 
and that are relevant for the sustainable growth of the Group.

The Organization has defined six strategic priorities in sustain-
ability, covering the 13 most relevant issues identified in the Ma-
teriality Matrix: Corporate Governance, Nutrition and Healthy 
Living, Environmental Sustainability, Responsible Employer and 
Citizen, Effective Innovation and Sustainable Sourcing.

This report was prepared in accordance with the comprehen-
sive option of the Global Reporting Initiative – GRI G4 – guide-
lines for preparing sustainability reports, and the supplement for 
the food sector.

The scope and coverage of the GRI indicators address the 13 
material issues of Grupo Nutresa and reflect the performance 
of the Organization in the social, economic and environmental 
dimensions. Excluded from the environmental measurement are 
the Meals de colombia plant in Armenia, and those of Setas 
Colombianas and Litoempaques in Medellín, as their production 
processes differ from those of the basic businesses; also exclud-
ed are the Ice Cream Business in the Dominican Republic and 
Costa Rica, and the Cold Cut Business in Panama.

For our operations in Venezuela, only the financial data, num-
ber of employees, accidents and training have been included. 

In order to achieve comparability, data from 2013 and 2012 
from the PR5 indicator were re–expressed, due to a change in 
the measurement scale. [G4-22]

Likewise, this report follows the Integrated Report frame-
work of the International Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC), 
from which we present a greater emphasis in creating value 
and greater connectivity of information, the business model, 
the principal risks and impacts and future prospects. (See At-
tachment: Self–Evaluation for incorporating the principles and 
elements of the integrated report). 

The non–financial information was verified by KPMG Advisory 
Services Ltda., an independent auditing firm that follows the 
guidelines of the international standard ISAE 3000, and whose 
report has indicated that there is no evidence thet the informa-
tion is not presented adequately in accordance with the GRI 
framework. Similarly, KPMG has conducted an analysis of the 

consistence between the information described in the Chapter 
“Self–Diagnosis for Incorporating the Principles and Elements of 
the Integrated Report,” the framework of Investor Relations (IR) 
and the information included in the report. [G4-32]

Also, for the sixth time, the report communicates the progress 
of Grupo Nutresa in complying with the ten principles of the 
United Nations Global Compact and reaffirms our commitment 
to it. With this report, we reiterate the conviction and will of 
the Organization to continue adhering to the Global Compact, 
since we share and live all the universally accepted principles on 
Human Rights, Work, the Environment and the Fight against 
Corruption, as part of the corporate philosophy and action.

The Organization invites all stakeholders to be part of the 
Global Compact principles to collectively and voluntarily build 
a sustainable world.

The financial information of Grupo Nutresa and its subsidiary 
companies observes generally accepted accounting principles, 
which are prescribed by law and by the respective surveillance 
and control agencies in Colombia. Notwithstanding, the group 
of companies applies accounting practices and policies adopt-
ed by the Parent Company, which – in the case of the subsid-
iary companies abroad – do not differ substantially from the 
accounting practices used in the countries of origin, and/or has 
made its approval for those that generate a significant impact 
in the consolidated financial statements. This information was 
audited by PriceWaterhouseCoopers (PWC).

The Integrated Report 2014 has been built in four ver-
sions to present information that is relevant and accessi-
ble to different stakeholders: a Webpage version found at  
2014report.gruponutresa.com, a downloadable PDF file on the 
same Website, a print version of the summary of the annual in-
tegrated report, and a pocket edition. For a better understand-
ing by the reader, iconography has been defined, which clearly 
identifies the following topics: 
•	The GRI indicators that respond to each material issue are 

found throughout the report and have been identified with:
General	 [G4-  ] 
Specific 	 [G4-  ]

To see the GRI content index, please visit: 2014report.gruponu-
tresa.com/pdf/GRI_content_index.pdf.
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Shareholders
Objective: To promote an environment of trust among shareholders, analysts and the general public through the 
transparent and timely communication of relevant, reliable information, for proper investment decision making.

Relationship mechanisms
•	 Website
•	 Quarterly newsletter
•	 Email
•	 Quarterly investor conference

•	 Integrated annual report
•	 Shareholders’ assembly
•	 Ethics Hotline
•	 Twitter

Employees
Objective: To promote harmonious relationships to increase productivity, in challenging, safe and inclusive work 
environments where collaboration is encouraged and development and progress are guaranteed.

Relationship mechanisms
•	 Surveys on organizational climate  

and commitment
•	 Intranet, printed newsletters, bulletin  

boards, email
•	 Meetings with senior management
•	 Synergy communities
•	 Primary groups
•	 Primary OHS committees

•	 Retirement interviews
•	 Family–Responsible Companies (FRC) Committee
•	 Psychosocial risk survey
•	 Strategic Human Rights committee
•	 Coexistence committees
•	 Suggestion boxes
•	 Ethics Hotline
•	 Integrated report

Customers and 
consumers

Objective: To contribute to the quality of life of consumers with products that satisfy their nutrition and  
wellness needs, through leading brands and commercial networks that allow us to be close to our clients, shop-
pers and consumers.

Relationship mechanisms
•	 Commercial figures that interact daily  

with our clients
•	 Client portal
•	 Hotlines – Interaction centers
•	 Ethics Hotline
•	 Grocers’ School
•	 Convenience Store School

•	 Measurement of services
•	 Meetings with alternative–channel entrepreneurs
•	 Webpage
•	 Consumer service lines
•	 Email
•	 Integrated report

Communities Objective: To ensure the development of skills within the related communities as a tool to achieve their sustainabili-
ty and support their wellness through the allocation of tangible and intangible resources.

Relationship mechanisms
•	 Meetings and encounters with civilians
•	 Events and meetings with NGOs
•	 Webpage, email
•	 Participatory rapid diagnosis

•	 Participation in forums and conferences
•	 Sustainability report
•	 Ethics Hotline
•	 Social investment projects

Government
Objective: To promote the establishment of public policy environments that support the business objectives of the 
organization and the particular needs of society.

Relationship mechanisms
•	 Participation in spaces where the improvement of public policies is promoted
•	 Reports and monitoring meetings
•	 Answering surveys
•	 Integrated report

Suppliers Objective: To strengthen and develop our partners in the supply chain.

Relationship mechanisms
•	 Online business portal
•	 Helpdesk
•	 Email
•	 Supplier development programs
•	 Management meetings

•	 Evaluation visits
•	 Promotion programs
•	 Webpage
•	 Integrated report

Stakeholder engagement model [G4-24] [G4-26] [G4-27]
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Materiality analysis [G4-18]

To define the content of its integrated annual report, in 2013 
Grupo Nutresa implemented a process of analyzing those as-
pects that could most affect its ability to generate value. This 
process was conducted with the assistance of an independent 
external firm and was performed by applying the definition of 
the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) G4 report framework.

In the process, 24 issues were defined that, because of their 
effect, are relevant in the management of the Organization and 
its stakeholders.

This is the result of the analysis of the opinions of the groups, 
trends in the food sector, industry peers, and assessments in 
which Grupo Nutresa participates, among others. The issues de-

fined were rated according to their financial impacts, corporate 
policies, social and cultural environment, sectorial context and 
regulatory environment.

This exercise and its results were validated by the Corporate 
Committee, the Board of Directors and representatives of the 
stakeholders: Investors, Clients, Suppliers and the Community 
(Institutions and NGOs).

In 2014, the results of this process were presented through 
the sustainability report. Socialization for the internal stakehold-
ers was conducted through exercises that explained the rele-
vance of the analysis to execute the sustainability strategy of 
Grupo Nutresa.
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Public policies

Relations with clients and distributors
Labor welfare and management of talent
Occupational health
Generation of employment
Quality of air, discharges and waste

Sustainable sourcing

Human rights

Corporate citizenship

Economic performance

Ethics, corporate governance 

and transparency

R & D + Innovation

Good labor practices

Responsible relationship 

with consumers

Nutrition, health and wellness

Market performance

Water use and conservation

Climate change

Energy

Animal welfare

Biodiversity

Strategic PrioritiesMateriality matrix

Environmental 
sustainability

Sustainable
sourcing

Responsible employer 
and citizen

Effective
innovation

Corporate 
governance

Nutrition 
and healthy living

Asuntos materiales
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Materiality analysis

Material issue Chapter where 
it is found

Global Compact 
Principle

Stakeholders that give 
greater priority to the  
material issue

Economic performance
Profitable growth,
Results of the businesses

Corporate model
Performance of  
the businesses

 
Shareholders, 
Communities, 
State, Suppliers

Corporate governance, ethics and transparency 
Principles and guidelines for action

Corporate governance Principle 10
Shareholders, 
Suppliers

R&D + Innovation
Product innovation and development
Applied research
Innovation in business and process model

Effective innovation Principle 9 Communities

Good labor practices
Equality, safe and decent work  
environment, diversity

Responsible employer 
and citizen

Principles 
1, 3, 6

Employees

Responsible relationships with consumers
Product and process quality  
and safety, client and consumer 
satisfaction, labeling

Nutrition and  
healthy living

 Clients and Consumers

Nutrition, health and wellness
Healthy lifestyles, options for  
healthy products, experiences  
that generate wellness 

Nutrition and  
healthy living
Responsible employer 
and citizen
Effective innovation

 Clients and Consumers

Sustainable sourcing
Supplier evaluation and development,  
strategic sourcing, 
inclusive businesses

Sustainable  
sourcing
Corporate  
citizenship

Principles 
1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 
6, 7, 8, 9, 10

Clients and Consumers, 
Suppliers

Market performance
Brands, networks, distribution, expansion in 
the strategic region, business management

Market growth  
and leadership

 
Shareholders,
Clients and Consumers,  
Communities

Human Rights
Child labor, forced labor, freedom of  
association and collective bargaining,  
non - discrimination

Responsible employer 
and citizen
Sustainable  
sourcing

Principles 
1, 4, 5, 6

Employees,
Suppliers

Corporate citizenship 
Skill development, nutrition,  
education and culture, volunteer work,  
inclusive businesses

Responsible employer 
and citizen

Principles 
1, 2

Employees,
State

Water use and conservation
Water risk, water use, water footprint, man-
agement of wastewater

Environmental  
sustainability

Principles 
7, 8, 9

Shareholders, Suppliers, Cli-
ents and Consumers, State

Climate change
Vulnerability, diagnosis, mitigation,  
adaptation

Environmental  
sustainability

Principles 
7, 8, 9

Shareholders, Suppliers, Cli-
ents and Consumers, State

Energy
Cleaner energies, use of thermal  
and electric energy

Environmental  
sustainability

Principles 
7, 8, 9

Shareholders, Suppliers, Cli-
ents and Consumers, State

Index of contents by material issue [G4-19] [G4-27]
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Enjoying the outdoors changes your life
Carolina Amaya, 33 years old. Plastic Artist
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Corporate 
governance
Placing good corporate governance 
as a strategic focus leads Grupo Nu-
tresa to manage the material issue 
of Governance, ethics and transpar-
ency, in order to ensure that the ac-
tions of its companies are based on 
a framework of ethical behavior and 
good conduct. This protects the fi-
nancial capital of the Group, provides 
trust to shareholders and gives guar-
antees to employees and third par-
ties on the transparency, impartiality 
and accountability of the decisions 
and directions given by the govern-
ing bodies of the Organization.

To learn more about  
the Grupo Nutresa Campaign  

“Enjoy a Healthy Life,” visit our  
Webpage www.nutresa.com
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Antonio Mario  
Celia Martínez-Aparicio 
2005*

Appointment and Retribution 
Committee
Strategic Planning Committee
Board of Directors’ Corporate Go-
vernance and Issues Committee

President, Promigas S.A.

Previous experience
Financial Vice President,  
Promigas S. A.
Manager, Terpel del Norte

Studies
Engineer, Worcester  
Polytechnic Institute
Executive education in MIT, 
Wharton and Universidad  
de Los Andes

Alberto  
Velásquez Echeverri 
2005*

Board of Directors’ Corporate Go-
vernance and Issues Committee
Appointment and Retribution 
Committee

General Manager,  
Prosantafé S. A. S.

Previous experience
Secretary General of the Presidency 
of the Republic of Colombia 2002 
– 2004
President, Heritage Minerals Ltd.
Vice President, Grupo Colpatria

Studies
Business Administrator,  
EAFIT University
Master’s in Business  
Administration, University of  
California at Los Angeles (UCLA)

Jaime Alberto  
Palacio Botero 
2005*

General Manager,  
Coldeplast S. A. S.  
and Microplast S. A. S. 

Previous experience
Deputy General Manager,  
Microplast S. A.

Studies
Business Administrator,  
EAFIT University
Training in administration  
with a focus on marketing,  
Wharton University
Advanced training in packaging 
at JICA, Japan

Mauricio  
Reina Echeverri
2007*

Finance, Audit and  
Risk Committee
Board of Directors’ Corporate  
Governance and  
Issues Committee
Strategic Planning Committee

Associate Researcher,  
Fedesarrollo

Previous experience
Deputy Director, Fedesarrollo 
Deputy Minister of Foreign Trade 
of the Republic of Colombia

Studies
Economist, Universidad  
de los Andes 
Master’s in Economics,  
Universidad de los Andes
Master’s in International  
Relations, Johns Hopkins  
University

The Board of Directors [G4-34] [G4-38]

Independent members

Non–independent members

Principals
1. Antonio Mario Celia Martínez-Aparicio
2. Alberto Velásquez Echeverri
3. Jaime Alberto Palacio Botero
4. Mauricio Reina Echeverri
5. David Emilio Bojanini García
6. Gonzalo Alberto Pérez Rojas
7. María Clara Aristizábal Restrepo

Alternates
8. Lucía Margarita González González
9. Margarita María Mesa Mesa
10. Luis Javier Zuluaga Palacio
11. Luis Eduardo Carvajal Restrepo
12. Juan David Uribe Correa
13. Juan Fernando Botero Soto
14. Marta Liliam Jaramillo Arango
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David Emilio  
Bojanini García 
2005*

Appointment and  
Retribution Committee
Board of Directors’ Corporate  
Governance and Issues  
Committee
Strategic Planning Committee

CEO, Grupo de Inversiones 
Suramericana S.A.

Previous experience
CEO, Fondo de Pensiones y 
Cesantías Protección S. A. 
Actuary Manager, Suramericana 
de Seguros S. A.

Studies
Industrial Engineer, Universidad 
de Los Andes
Master’s in Administration with 
emphasis in Actuary, University  
of Michigan

Gonzalo Alberto  
Pérez Rojas 
2005*

CEO, Suramericana S.A.

Previous experience
Vice President, Insurance and 
Capitalization, Suramericana  
de Seguros S. A.
Vice President, Corporate  
Businesses, Suramericana  
de Seguros S. A.

Studies
Attorney–at–Law, University 
of Medellín 
Specialization in Insurance, 
Swiss Re

1

1

1

4

4

2

2

8

5

4

5

9

7

510Finance, Audit and  
Risk Committee

Appointment and  
Retribution Committee

Board of Directors’ Corporate  
Governance and Issues Committee

Strategic Planning  
Committee

* The year underneath the name of 
each Director corresponds to the date 
of joining the Board of Directors

María Clara  
Aristizábal Restrepo 
2013*

Strategic Planning Committee

Manager, Corporate Strategy, 
Grupo Argos S.A.

Previous experience
Assistant to the President and  
Director of Investor Relations, 
Grupo Argos S. A.
Director of Economic Investiga-
tions, Bolsa y Renta S. A.

Studies
MBA, New York University
Specialization in Finances and Law, 
New York University
Economist, with an emphasis in 
Mathematical Economics, EAFIT 
University
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Steering Committee [G4-34] [G4-35] [G4-36]

To learn more about our management team,  
go to 2014report.gruponutresa.com

Diego Medina Leal
Presidente Cárnicos 
Vice President, Logistics

Mario Alberto Niño Torres
President, Helados Nutresa 
Vice President, Innovation 
and Nutrition

Fabián Andrés 
Restrepo Zambrano 
President, Pastas Nutresa 

Justo García Gamboa 
President, Tresmontes Lucchetti  
Vice President, Mexico and Chile 
Strategic Region

Alberto Hoyos Lopera 
President, Galletas Nutresa 
Vice President, North Strategic Region

Jorge Eusebio Arango López
President, Chocolates Nutresa  
Vice President South Strategic Region

Miguel Moreno Múnera
President, Cafés Nutresa 

Juan Chusán Andrade
President, Retail Foods

Bu
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Carlos Ignacio 
Gallego Palacio 
CEO

José Domingo  
Penagos Vásquez 
Vice President,  
Corporate Finances

Jairo González Gómez
Secretary General Vice President 
Director, Legal Assistance

C
or

po
ra
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Álvaro Arango Restrepo
President, Comercial Nutresa  
Vice President, Marketing and Sales

Sol Beatriz Arango Mesa
President, Servicios Nutresa  
Vice President, Sustainable Development  
Director General, Fundación Nutresa
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Corporate Governance

Highlights

Thanks to good management in corporate governance, Grupo Nutresa 
was invited to participate in the Working Committee for the construc-
tion of the new Country Code, led by the Office of the Financial Superin-
tendent of Colombia.

For the second time, the performance of the Board of Directors was 
assessed by an independent firm.

For the second year, Grupo Nutresa obtained IR (Investor Relations)  
Recognition.

The Company takes into account the most relevant  
global practices in corporate governance; for this  
reason, it has efficient tools with which it ensures 
transparent management.

Challenges

Grupo Empresarial Nutresa’s focus as an organization is generating value for stakeholders 
through the declaration and practice of the fundamental principles of effective governance, 
ethical behavior, transparency and integrity. 

Grupo Nutresa is committed to good corporate governance that promotes the long–term 
interests of its shareholders and maintains the trust of its stakeholders. The Organization 
recognizes that good governance positively impacts the capital and corporate reputation to 
the extent that it attracts and keeps domestic and foreign investors, allowing them to have 
sufficient, timely information to make decisions according to market conditions.

Progress

The Board of Directors is composed of 14 professionals, seven principal and seven per-
sonal alternates, with diverse backgrounds and expertise in finance, business and strat-
egy. Both the Chairman and the majority of the Board members are independents, ac-
cording to the definition found in Colombian law and the Code of Good Governance. 
[G4-34] [G4-38] 

There are four committees that support the Board (Finance, Audit and Risk; Corporate 
Governance and Issues; Strategic Planning; and Appointment and Retribution), which 
perform their functions and are presided over by independent members. 
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During 2014, 13 Board meetings were held, which were attend-
ed by the majority of its members; their support committees 
met with the frequency established in the Code of Good Gov-
ernance and the law. Also, the independent members of the 
Board met to review the remuneration, retention and resigna-
tion policies that apply to the Senior Management of Grupo 
Empresarial Nutresa to strengthen their commitment to and 
permanence in the Organization.

The Board evaluated all the members of the Steering Commit-
tee of the Organization (Presidents of each Business, President 
of Servicios Nutresa, President of Comercial Nutresa and Grupo 
Nutresa Vice Presidents), to ensure that their leadership style 
fits the philosophy of Grupo Empresarial Nutresa to achieve the 
strategic objectives.

For the second time, and with an interval of two years, an exter-
nal, independent evaluation was conducted on the performance of 
the Board. The results highlighted as strengths its focus on strategy, 
interaction among its members, 
and the timely, transparent in-
formation that is offered to the 
market; it recommended work-
ing on five aspects: developing 
an annual action plan of stra-
tegic issues to be dealt with by 
the Board, building profiles for 
future Board members, creating 
a training and updating plan 
for members, complementing 
the information prior to meet-
ings, and developing a succession plan for senior management of 
the Company. [G4-44]

The annual Self–Assessment of the Board was also performed, 
in order to assess the qualities, attributes and experience of this 
body and its support committees. This assessment focused on 
reviewing the performance and contributions of the members 
of the Board and support committees and highlighted aspects 
where improvements can be made.

The Ethics, Transparency and Conflicts of Interest Committee 
actively operated and settled ten cases of possible conflicts of 
interest, and also recommended measures to ensure the protec-
tion of the Grupo Empresarial Nutresa interests.

Grupo Nutresa has a policy to negotiate company shares, ac-
cording to which the Board must authorize its members, the Le-
gal Representative and other company administrators – in those 
cases and conditions required by law – to conduct any opera-
tion related to company shares. Furthermore, in the interests of 
transparency and especially to avoid the use of insider informa-
tion, Board members and Company executives are prohibited 
from conducting operations in general, acquiring or disposing 
of, directly or indirectly, shares issued by the Company, from the 

moment they have knowledge of the quarterly results that must 
be transmitted to the authorities, or the possible realization of 
a transaction by Grupo Empresarial Nutresa that may affect the 
price of the shares and until the information is not formally 
made public domain. [G4-41]

Grupo Nutresa maintains transparent communication with inves-
tors through the quarterly newsletter, in which the quarterly results 
and the accumulated results of all the companies and their busi-
nesses, as well as market news, new products and the behavior 
of the share, are presented. Likewise, the Company Webpage is 
constantly updated with financial information, presentations to in-
vestors, media and press releases and relevant information. As the 
integral administrator of the shares, Deceval handles the requests, 
complaints, claims and concerns of shareholders in general; the Of-
fice of Investor Services, part of the area of Corporate Finances, 
provides general information about the Company results and main-
tains ongoing communication with national and international insti-

tutional investors, stock brokers 
and appraisers.

In terms of taxes, Grupo 
Nutresa seeks to contribute to 
the development of the econ-
omies in the countries where 
it operates and is aware of the 
economic and social impact as 
a major contributor, through 
the transparent management 
of its fiscal responsibilities. In 
response to this commitment, it 

has developed a policy and strategy, which seek to make the man-
agement of its taxes visible, and it also transparently communicates 
the income, breakdown of sales and participation by country; it ex-
plains in detail the corporate model and reveals general information 
about taxes in each one of the countries where it is present.

Future vision

The Grupo Nutresa corporate governance practices allow it to 
face the challenges that will arise in the future for an organiza-
tion of its kind.

We ensure the continuous improvement of corporate gover-
nance standards, in accordance with regional and global trends. In 
this respect, the most relevant short–term challenge is implement-
ing the new Country Code, approved in 2014 by the Office of the 
Financial Superintendent in Colombia, which will become effective 
in 2016. It is important to mention that, in its meeting on Novem-
ber 28, 2014, the Board of Directors’ Corporate Governance and 
Issues Committee recommended that all the measures and rec-
ommendations contained in the new Country Code be adopted.  

The most relevant short 
– term challenge is 
implementing the new 
Country Code, which will 
become effective in 2016.
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To do this, during 2015, a comprehensive statutory reform and 
the adoption of various policies will be submitted to the Share-
holder’s Assembly for consideration; also, a reform of the Com-
pany’s Code of Good Governance will be submitted for consider-
ation by the Board of Directors.

On the other hand, in general the Board will remain attentive to 
developments on best practices in corporate governance, to update 
them together with Company policies in this area.

Likewise, we will continue to disseminate and reinforce, internally 
and externally, the values and principles that govern the actions of 
the Organization through the implementation of the Code of Good 
Governance in domestic and foreign companies, and its constant 
updating according to the guidelines of the Board of Directors.

Welcoming the recommendations of Prospecta (a consulting firm 
specialized in corporate governance) and the new Country Code, 
the Board will reform the Code of Good Governance to strengthen 
the role of the Board Chairman, assigning him new functions and 
responsibilities. Additionally, a function of the Company CEO will 
be established to prepare the annual work plan, to be approved by 
the Board, and to establish in an orderly manner, the strategic issues 
to deal with throughout the year and facilitate determining the rea-
sonable number of ordinary meetings and their estimated duration. 

The Board Secretary, in turn, will have the function of delivering to 
the Board members, on time and in the manner established, the 
information according to its guidelines and ensuring the formal le-
gality of the Board’s actions and guaranteeing that its governance 
procedures and rules are respected and regularly reviewed in accor-
dance with the provisions of the Bylaws and other internal regula-
tions of the Company.

Among its functions, the Appointment and Retribution Commit-
tee will analyze issues related to the Board, such as personal pro-
files linked to career, recognition, prestige, availability, leadership, 
group dynamics, diversity and female participation, which are most 
suitable for the Board; the tentative composition of functional pro-
files, associated with aspects such as professional knowledge and 
expertise in every circumstance that the Board needs; the time and 
dedication necessary so that the Board members can perform their 
duties properly; and the existing gaps between the profiles of the 
directors and the profiles identified as necessary for the Company.

Based on the results of the above analysis, the Committee shall 
design a training plan and formal update for the Board members 
in accordance with the needs identified. This Committee shall also 
propose to the Board of Directors the succession policy for members 
of the Board and Senior Management and other key executives.

Board of Directors, Grupo Nutresa S.A.
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Ethics and transparency

Highlights

More than 13,000 employees, temporary workers 
and contractors participated in awareness and 
training programs on preventing and controlling 
the risks associated with Money Laundering and 
the Financing of Terrorism (MLFT). These programs 
have been incorporated into the induction process 
for new employees.

The role of MLFT risk prevention and control man-
ager was implemented to support the management 
and prevention of this risk in the Grupo Nutresa 
companies. At the end of 2014, the group of man-
agers totaled 130. 

 
 
Compliance with regulations related to the MLFT 
risk in the principal platforms where Grupo Nutresa 
operates outside of Colombia was evaluated and 
diagnosed, to prioritize the implementation of the 
management system to prevent such risks. 

The existing complaint mechanisms, such as the 
Ethics Hotline and the Coexistence Committees, 
among others, were evaluated by an independent 
entity for compliance with the Guiding Principles 
for Business and Human Rights and the Colombia 
Guidelines on Human Rights; the result was a diag-
nosis and a work plan to close gaps.

Grupo Nutresa has established principles  
and guidelines that strengthen the cultural  
organization, aimed at acting and making  
decisions ethically and transparently.
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Challenges

Progress

Within the process to adopt new approaches to risk assessment, 22 risks that impact the Grupo 
Nutresa strategy were analyzed; of these 22 risks, the risk of ethical breaches or misconduct 
(fraud, corruption, MLFT) by employees and third parties was incorporated into the corporate 
matrix and visibility of the relevance of these aspects was given throughout the Organization.

The assessment of risks related to corruption is carried out in accordance with the steps con-
templated in Standard ISO 31000, version 2009: the establishment of the context, identification, 
analysis, evaluation and treatment. To this end, matrices and risk maps were constructed where 
the probability and the impact are qualified. In 2014, this assessment was performed on 58% of 
the Grupo Nutresa Businesses. [G4-SO3]

The awareness and training process to manage the prevention of the MLFT risks encompassed 
virtual and physical–attendance trainings, and deployments to the headquarters of the companies 
in Colombia, reaching 9.301 employees. The process was also carried out with 3.869 third parties, 
including temporary workers and contractors. [G4-SO4]

Additionally, the scope of the Policy to prevent money laundering and the financing of terrorism 
was extended to Fundación Nutresa, and Corporación Vidarium, the Grupo Nutresa Nutrition, 
Health and Wellness Research Center.

	 Code of Good Governance, which incorporates, among others:
•	 The anti–fraud and anti–corruption policy
•	 The policy to prevent money laundering and the financing of terrorism
•	 The Code of Conduct for Suppliers

	 Risk Management Policy
➢	 Awareness and training programs in the prevention and control of MLFT risks, 

through virtual and physical–attendance training methodologies
➢	 Assessment and evaluation of significant risks
➢	 Activation and disclosure of additional reporting mechanisms for situations  

related to MLFT
➢	 Ethics Hotline
➢	 Definition of the operating principles in the relationship of third parties with Grupo Nutresa 
➢	 Preventive and detection technological controls in the transactional applications of 

the Companies
➢	 BASC Secure Commerce Management Systems

These initiatives, policies and other strategies used allow managing the human, social and 
financial capital of the Organization and enable the development of relationships with em-
ployees, suppliers, consumers, investors and other stakeholders, through clearly established 
guidelines and action schemes to reduce the potential financial impacts on the development 
of operations.

Ethics and transparency are essential to accomplish the Grupo 
Nutresa mission; therefore, they are key elements of its corpo-
rate philosophy and performance. This material issue is crucial 
in all actions undertaken by the Organization, through its re-
lationship with the different stakeholders and it impacts the 
human, financial and social capital.

Among the most significant risks related to this topic are 
fraud, money laundering and the financing of terrorism, and 
corruption, which are managed through policies, codes, pro-
cesses, manuals, technological controls and training programs. 
Noteworthy are:



Corporate governance

Grupo Nutresa16

Ethics Hotline [G4-57] [G4 58]
In 2014, 25 reports received through the Ethics Hotline were 
attended. They were channeled to the areas responsible in each 
one of the Businesses; 52% of the reports involved employees 
and 48%, third parties. 

There were 102 incidents that threatened the anti–fraud and 
anti–corruption policy against the Grupo Nutresa companies for 
an approximate value of COP 513 million.

In these incidents, 150 persons, linked to the Grupo Nutre-
sa companies through work contracts (56%) and contracts to 

provide services (44%), were involved. In all cases, the contrac-
tual relationship was ended and the relevant legal actions were 
filed. To address the impacts of such events, the Grupo Nutre-
sa companies have insurance policies with adequate coverage. 
[G4-SO5]

The acts of corruption mentioned were reported to the Grupo 
Nutresa Finance, Audit and Risk Committee. 
 [G4-SO7]

91%	 Misappropriation of resources

4,5%	Manipulation and falsification 
of information

4,5%	Use of hallucinogenics in the 
facilities of the companies

102 cases of misappropriation  
of company resources

5 cases of information manipulation

5 cases on the use of hallucinogenics  
in the facilities of the companies.

Types of incidents

Type of relationship of the persons 
involved in the incidents

39% Third parties and contractors

56% Employees

5% Temporary workers

Future vision

The constant evolution of Grupo Nutresa and its internation-
alization process represent a challenge to consolidate the Inte-
gral Risk–Management Maturity Model in all the businesses and 
levels of the Organization. This necessitates the combination 
of the Top–Down and Bottom–Up valuation approaches with 
the critical processes of its value chain, which will allow further 
strengthening of the integral risk–management model, com-
prising those associated with ethics and transparency.

In line with the above, among the short–, medium– and long–
term plans is the gradual implementation of the Management 
System to Prevent and Control the Risk of MLFT and the disclo-
sure of the Code of Good Governance in the Grupo Nutresa 
companies in the strategic region outside Colombia.

In addition to these actions, and in order to impact the MLFT 
risks in the supply chain, in the short term new virtual–train-
ing models will be enabled that will raise awareness about the 
management of preventing and controlling these risks in related 
third parties. This will provide them with tools to manage their 
own risks, strengthening their processes toward the continuity 
of their business.

The structuring and implementation of the action plan to close 
gaps identified in the diagnosis resulting from the evaluation of 
the Grupo Nutresa complaint mechanisms will be complemented.

Servicios Nutresa employees.
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Some initiatives

Awareness and training in management to  
prevent and control the MLFT risk

As part of strengthening the management to prevent and 
control the MLFT risk, a strategy called “Reliable Businesses, 
Our Challenge” was implemented; it began to be developed 
through a virtual course consisting of four modules, according 
to the target audience, thus: 

a)	 Preparing for the challenge, the contextualization of MLFT 
management, for all employees; 

b)	 Reliable relations with suppliers and contractors, for  
employees who are negotiators, buyers and/or who  
manage suppliers;

c)	 Developing reliable businesses with our clients, for employ-
ees who manage domestic or international clients; and 

d)	 Building reliable relationships with employees, for officers 
who participate in the recruitment process. 

In addition, physical–attendance workshops were developed 
with employees who manage third parties having greater crit-
icality. We foresee that activities related to strengthening the 
culture to prevent these risks will be conducted annually with 
different stakeholders.

Participation in and Promotion  
of the Responsible, Safe Businesses 
Program of the United Nations  
Office on Drugs and Crime (UNODC) 

As part of Grupo Nutresa’s joining this program, 
activities were developed that included partici-
pation in the National Day to Prevent Money 
Laundering in Colombia, whose main objectives 
are to frame the public and private sectors in a 
joint strategy to prevent money laundering and 
source crimes, build an anti–laundering culture 
that allows a transformation of society, and join 
forces with the national strategy of each country 
in preventing this crime.

In 2014, this initiative was extended to the 
employees and key clients and suppliers of the 
Grupo Nutresa companies in Colombia.

Donations in favor of democracy and political activity 

In order to promote the healthy exercise of democracy, and understanding that political activity is a 
fundamental axis to create spaces for participation and construction for the country, Grupo Nutresa, 
through its Fundación Nutresa, makes contributions to political parties and movements to contribute to 
their objectives, according to the donation policy developed for this purpose and within the respective 
legal framework.

Contribution recipients are chosen according to their objectives of political participation, which must 
be aligned with the corporate values of Grupo Empresarial Nutresa. Also, they must be recognized for 
having a transparent political or professional practice, framed in ethical principles. These beneficiaries 
must have programs that address social inclusion, common welfare and social and environmental respon-
sibility, and, to the extent possible, they should be constituted as non–profit entities whose social purpose 
is associated with the promotion of democracy or be duly constituted political parties or movements. In 
exceptional cases, some candidates may be direct beneficiaries of the donation.

The budget for the donations is determined by the Fundación Nutresa Board of Directors; the amount 
of each donation – within the legal limits established by the National Electoral Council – is established 
according to criteria, such as the trajectory of the party or movement; experience of the candidate, 
seriousness of the political program or project; and reputation of the party or movement and the can-
didate’s staff.



Enjoying as a family changes your life
Doris Forero, 35 years old. Businesswoman
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To learn more about  
the Grupo Nutresa Campaign  

“Enjoy a Healthy Life,” visit our  
Webpage www.nutresa.com
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MISSION

The mission of our Company is creating increased 
value, achieving an outstanding return on invest-
ments, greater than the cost of capital employed.

In our food businesses, we always seek to improve con-
sumer quality of life and the progress of our people.
➢
We look for profitable growth with leading brands, 
superior service and excellent national and interna-
tional distribution.
➢
We are committed to the management of our ac-
tivities by being committed to Sustainable Develop-
ment, with the best human talent, outstanding inno-
vation and exemplary corporate behavior.

“Our Centennial strategy aims to double our 2013  
sales by 2020, with sustained profitability between  
12% and 14% of the EBITDA margin.

2 x $5,9 trillion = $11,8 trillion

To achieve this, we offer our consumers foods  
and experiences of recognized and beloved brands,  
that nourish, generate wellness and pleasure, and  
that are distinguished by the best price/value relation;  
widely available in our strategic region, managed by  
talented, innovative, committed and responsible people,  
who contribute to sustainable development.”

Strategy for our first  
century 1920 - 2020
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Differentiators of our business model

Our people
Human talent is one of our most valu-
able assets. The cultural platform is 
based on the promotion of participatory 
environments, development of skills of 
being and doing, recognition, building a 
leading brand, as well as a balanced life 
for people.

17 brands 
with sales over 

USD50million

+1.054.000
points of sale

Organizational Climate at 
a level of excellence:

84,0%.

Our brands
Our brands are leaders in the markets 
in which we participate; they are rec-
ognized, loved and part of people’s 
daily life. They are based on nutrition-
al, reliable products with an excellent 
price–value relation.

Our distribution  
network

Our extensive distribution network, 
with an offer differentiated by chan-
nels and segments, with teams of 
specialized staff, allows us to have our 
products available, at an appropriate 
frequency, and a close relationship 
with clients.

Corporate Philosophy and Performance [G4-56]

Autonomy 
with strategic 

coherence

Ethics

Good corporate 
governance

Participation 
and 

collaborative 
management

Responsible 
corporate 
citizenship

Respect

World–class 
competitiveness

Food  
safety

Development  
of our people



Grupo Nutresa22

Corporate model

Strategic objectives for 2020

90%

EFFECTIVE INNOVATION 

INCREASING 
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PROFITABLE 
GROWTH 

Innovative 
Success 

Stories per 
Employee

Sales of 
Innovative 
Products

Portfolio with 
nutritional standards

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 

Remain in
the DJSI

Packaging 
Material

Water 
Consumption

Use of 
Cleaner Energy

Energy 
Consumption

Greenhouse Gas
 (GHG) Emissions

Waste
Recovery

-30%
-12%

15%

Double the portfolio that meets 
our standard of a healthy profile, 

leveraged in innovation 
and renewal

0,3

Development 
of Capacities 

with 
Communities

1.000
Projects

-25%
100%

-33% 90%
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Increasing value generation

*During 2014 a review and adjustment of the packaging material indicator was conducted, to achieve a more accurate calculation. The establishment of the 2015 target 
is subject to the restructuring of the calculation methodology and, therefore, its final approval will occur in the first trimester of 2015.

Find more information about the indicators at
www.gruponutresa.com/es/node/59623

Environmental Dimension

Social Dimension

Double the 2013  
sales by 2020  
(COP Trillion)

Innovative success stories 
per employee

Accident  
frequency rate

Greenhouse gases 
(CO2e/t.p.)

International Sales  
(USD Billion)

Water consumption 
(m3/t.p.)

Use of cleaner  
energy

EBITDA Margin

Productivity  
(kg/Hmod)

Work climate
Development of skills with 

communities  
(Number of projects)

Energy consumption 
(kWh/t.p.)

Packiagng material*
(kg M.E./t.p.) 

Sales of innovative 
products

Level of client 
satisfaction

Waste generation Waste recovery
Environmental culture 

(environmental innovative 
success stories)

Financial Dimension

2020: -30%
2015: -22,4%
2014: -15,5%

2020: -33%
2015: -22,3%
2014: -21,0%

2020: 100%
2015: 99,1%
2014: 99,1%

2020: -12%
2015: -6,5*
2014: -5,1%

2020: -25%
2015: -18,9%
2014: -18,2%

2020: -20%
2015: -10,8%
2014: -9%

2020: 90%
2015: 88,8%
2014: 88,5%

2020:  1.000
2015:  724
2014:  698

2020: 11,8
2014:  6,5

2020: 0,3
2015: 0,17
2014: 0,17

2020: 1,7%
2015: 2,55%
2014: 2,62%

2020: +5% annual
2015: +5% annual
2014: 4,3% 

2020: 83,3%
2015: 83,2%
2014: 84,0%

2020: 1.000
2015: 772
2014: 762 

2020:	 Maintain the 
level of excellence

2014:	 Colombia 87,7%
	 Strategic region 

87,8%

2020: 2.000
2014: 1.115

2020:15%
2015: 16%
2014: 17,7%

2020: Between12%-14%
2014: 13,4%

Double the portfolio of 
products that meet the 
Grupo Nutresa profile

2020: 2.684 SKUs 
2015: 1.628 SKUs
2014: 1.795 SKUs

The 2014 results, the short–term goals for 2015 and the objectives for 2020 are presented.
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Integral risk–management and  
the main risks of the business [G4-2] [G4-14]

Integral risk–management model

In order to ensure the proper manage-
ment of risks that the development of its 
operations implies, Grupo Nutresa has an 
Integral Risk–Management Model cover-
ing all the businesses and bodies of the 
Organization, from the Board of Directors, 
through its Finance, Audit and Risk Com-
mittee, to the operational areas, through 
the integrated management systems, 
among others. Additionally, the Model in-
cludes the Integral Risk–Management Poli-
cy and Methodology, which is aligned with 
Standard ISO 31000, which facilitates the 
development of risk assessment and miti-
gation processes, according to the follow-
ing level of risk appetite:

Commercial risk: 

aggressive
Financial and operational risk:

moderate
Reputational risk: 

none
In 2014, the annual assessment of corpo-
rate risks at the Grupo Nutresa level was 
conducted, and their rating was made, 
considering the criteria of probability of 
occurrence and impact on the strategy. 
Based on this analysis, risk maps were 
updated, where the main business risks, 
which are described below, were iden-
tified, and for which the most relevant 
management and treatment measures 
are highlighted:

Key risks Mitigating factor

Volatility in the prices  
of raw materials

•	 Diversification of raw materials
•	 A clear hedging policy administered by 

a specialized committee
•	 A highly trained team dedicated to 

monitoring and negotiating these 
supplies

•	 Active search and exploitation of new 
opportunities for global sourcing

Effect on the businesses due 
to a highly competitive envi-
ronment including pressures 
from consumers and channels

•	 Large distribution capacity with a 
differentiated strategy to address the 
various segments

•	 Attractive proposals with a good price/
product relation

•	 Recognized, beloved brands
•	 Portfolio innovation and differentiation
•	 Search to enter new markets

Regulatory changes in nu-
trition, health and obesity 
in countries where we are 
present

•	 Vidarium: Nutrition Research Center
•	 Active participation with governments 

in discussion on regulations
•	 Monitoring and strict compliance of 

the regulations in each country
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Internal Context
External Context

Strategic:  
linked to the strategic formulation 
of the organization and its 
relation with the environment.

Operational: 
related to failures of 

people, internal 
processes or technology 

and management systems.

Financial: 
associated with the fluctuation 
of financial variables such as price, 
exchange and interest rates, and 
factors such as the liquidity and 
position of the counterparties.

Climatic 
and those of nature: 

caused by climatic, hydrological,
geophysical, biological and 
epidemiological conditions.

1

14
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3

15
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17

6
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19
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The process to identify and analyze corporate risks contemplated a Top–Down 
focus, considering the internal and external contexts of Grupo Nutresa, and all the 
material issues of the Organization. Thus, we identified a total of 22 risks classified 
in the different categories that are summarized below:

Effect on the businesses due to a highly competitive 
environment (consumers and channels)
Regulatory changes in nutrition,  
health and obesity
Effect on the Organization due to political changes  
in the countries where it operates
Lack of availability of human talent
Lack of opportunities to respond to changes  
in consumer preferences
Volatility in the prices of raw materials
Changes in interest and exchange rates
Counterparty risks
Adverse material effect in acquisitions
Credit and portfolio
Systemic risk or risk of contagion
Effect on the integrity or safety of employees  
in the execution of their tasks

Effect on the environment
Interruption in the supply chain
Effect on consumers through  
product contamination
Internal or external violation of human rights
Collapse of the information and communication sys-
tems and technologies
Lack of ethics or inappropriate behavior of employees 
or third parties
Loss of key information for the company
Effect on animal welfare
Effect for the use of raw materials with genetically 
modified organisms (GMOs)
Effect due to climatic and natural phenomena

1

14
2

3

15

4

16

5

17

6

18
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Corporate risks
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Distribution centers
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Economic resources
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Buildings, equipment, 
infrastructure
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Water, soil, air, biodiversity 
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Livean, Industrial chocolate
Carbon–neutral products
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the countries with

 significant 
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employees
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Training hours 
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center

16

208 Tons

Plants certified 
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DTV Project and savings
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footprint (1 scope)

Training and promotion
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Clients trained
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Fats

Sugar

Packing 
material

Sustainable sourcing / water / climate change / human rights / 
corporate citizenship / corporate governance, ethics and transparency

 

Origin and number
of suppliers in 
38 countries:
Supplier countries: The United States, Italy, 
Colombia, Germany, Chile, China, Spain, 
Mexico, Brazil, Ecuador, Canada, Costa Rica, 
Argentina, Peru, the Netherlands, the 
United Kingdom, Belgium, Malaysia, France, 
Switzerland, Turkey, Guatemala, Japan, El 
Salvador, Austria, Poland, the Dominican 
Republic, Thailand, South Korea, Armenia, 
Sweden, Australia, Nicaragua, Denmark, India, 
Panama, Vietnam, the Russian Federation

human rights / corporate citizenship 
/ corporate governance, ethics 
and transparency
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The integrated report [G4-1]  [G4-13]  [G4-32]

After nearly a year of being in front of this Organization of which 
I have been a part for 24 years, I can state without a doubt that 
we have the talent, culture and commitment to achieve the cha-
llenging Mega that we have set for 2020, when we celebrate 
100 years of existence.

With gratitude, commitment and full 
awareness of the contribution of our 
company to build a country and a better 
world, we have faced the task entrusted 
to us.

In the management of a corporation, 
transparent, timely accountability is indis-
pensable, conditions that we successfully 
meet in this management report, with 
the content that is found in the printed 
report and the supplementary information 
published on our Website. With pleasure, 
we present our integrated report, follow-
ing the framework of the International 
Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC) and in 
accordance with the comprehensive op-
tion of the Global Reporting Initiative GRI 
G4 guidelines, which means that it com-
plies with recognized global guidelines 
on developing reports, which has been 
developed based on the Grupo Nutresa 
Materiality Matrix, in order to facilitate the 
analysis of management, according to the 
topics of greatest importance for our Or-
ganization and its related parties.

In Grupo Nutresa we are committed 
to sustainability, and we understand it 
as a corporate ability to prosper, which 
is supported in the identification and in-
tegral management of the risks and op-
portunities in the economic, social and 
environmental dimensions, and that it is 
directly related to the possibility of gen-
erating value in the future. This com-
mitment has been ratified for the fourth 
consecutive year by being included in 
the Dow Jones World Sustainability In-
dex and the 2014 Emerging Markets, 
as well as receiving the distinctions as 
“Industry Mover” and “Silver Class” 
from RobecoSAM in its Sustainability 
Yearbook 2015. This places us as the 
third best company in the world in the 
food sector in terms of sustainability, 
and with the maximum score globally in 
the administration of innovation, codes 
of conduct, risks related to water, envi-
ronmental reporting, indicators of labor 
practices and human rights, and corpo-
rate citizenship.

Carlos Ignacio Gallego Palacio



Integrated report  2014 29

Corporate model

In 2014, we made two great advances in our growth strate-
gy, which provide us with clear pathways of development and 
consolidation in the strategic region in order to achieve the 
2020 vision:
•	 We consolidated a full year with Tresmontes Lucchetti 

(TMLUC), confirming the growth potential it has in mar-
kets in which it participates, thanks to its brands and ex-
cellent team.

•	 We signed an agreement to acquire Grupo El Corral, which 
continued our process of reaching consumers through a 
greater participation in the Retail Food category. Grupo El 
Corral, together with Helados BON and Helados POPS and 
our participation in Starbucks Colombia, constitutes a solid 
platform for growth in this category in the region.

In Grupo Nutresa, we are convinced that our base of develop-
ment is a competent, committed team and we work every day 
to build a more humane, competitive organization.

Progress on this front is confirmed by studies such as MERCO 
Personas, which in 2014 highlighted the organization as one 
of the three best companies to work for in Colombia, and the 
most attractive in the food sector.

In Grupo Nutresa, innovation is a key part of our strategy, 
resulting in products and experiences that satisfy the changing 
needs of our consumers, in the constant search for a business 
model tailored to the opportunities and challenges offered by 
the market and permanent questioning and creation.

Profitable growth
In 2014, Grupo Nutresa sales closed at COP 6,5 Trillion, an 

increase of 9,5% compared to the previous year. In Colombia, 
sales had an outstanding performance, as they reached COP 4,2 
Trillion, which represents 65,1% of the total, with an increase 
of 8,6% supported in a greater preference for our brands, ob-
taining a record 60,6% of the weighted market share, some 
dynamic, comprehensive coverage networks and an effective 
innovation strategy. Meanwhile, sales abroad were USD 1.115 
Million, an increase of 3,7%, which includes adjustments for 
the devaluation in the major currencies of the countries where 
we operate, and the consolidation of operations in Venezuela 
to the SICAD II rate.

In terms of profitability, the EBITDA margin of 13,4% during 
the year stands out. The EBITDA was COP 864.257 Billion, 3,8% 
higher than the previous year. This level is supported in the ex-
cellent business dynamics in Colombia, the Grupo Nutresa glob-
al sourcing strategy, a 4,3% increase in productivity, and inno-
vation sales equivalent to 17,7% of the total.

Meanwhile, the operating profit was COP 638.340 Billion, with 
an operating margin of 9,9%, a decrease of 1,8% over the pre-
vious year, which is largely explained by the amortization of the 
mercantile credit to acquire Tresmontes Lucchetti (TMLUC), a non–
recurrent accounting item that does not represent a real cash flow.

Post–operational costs for COP 94.672 Billion present a slight 
decrease of 0,4% from the previous year, which is explained, 

8,6% increase

9,5% increase

3,7% increase

Sales abroad  
represented 

34,9%
of the total sales of Grupo Nutresa

60,6%
Grupo Nutresa consolidated market 
share in Colombia

Total sales

COP6,5Trillion

International sales 
USD1.115million

Sales in 
Colombia closed 

at COP4,2 Trillion, 
boosted by greater  
volumes
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In Grupo Nutresa we promote healthy 
lifestyles with campaigns such as “Enjoy 
a healthy life,” which we lead, seeking 
to highlight the importance of sharing 
with the family, enjoying the outdoors, 
exercising and having a balanced diet. The Grupo Nutresa Campaign 

“Enjoy a healthy life”
Silvia Henao, 24 years old. Dancer
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among others, by income for an exchange difference resulting 
from the hedging strategy in exchange risks, an increase in fi-
nancing costs due to the leverage to acquire TMLUC, and a 
lower monetary correction in Venezuela.

Finally, and after considering the aspects mentioned, we end-
ed the year with a consolidated net profit of COP 377.571 Bil-
lion, slightly less than that of last year by 0,7%.

As for the balance, we see an increase of 9,0% in the as-
sets, which end the year at COP 11,5 Trillion. This increase is 
due to the natural increase in working capital due to increased 
commercial activity, a higher fixed asset, the product of expan-
sion investments in the production and distribution capacity 
that were made during the year, and to the growth in the val-
ue of our portfolio investments. In liabilities, there was a slight 
increase, closing at COP 3,3 Trillion, mainly due to the financ-
ing of expansion investments and an increased working capital 
requirement. The index of net financial debt to EBIDTA of 2,0 
times is at appropriate levels for our model and allows us to 
continue the Grupo Nutresa acquisition strategy.

The net effect of the increase in assets and liabilities increases 
equity to COP 8,2 Trillion, a growth of 10,6%.

Individual results of Grupo Nutresa S. A. 
Complying with regulations in Colombia, we report the indi-
vidual results of Grupo Nutresa S. A.: We registered operating 
income of COP 396.586 Billion, of which COP 323.884 Billion 
correspond to profit by the equity method of our investments in 
food companies and COP 52.950 Billion to dividends from the 
investment portfolio. The net profit was COP 377.453 Billion.

Acquisitions and other relevant projects
Our development model has been supported in the organ-
ic growth of our current operations in Colombia and abroad, 
as well as an objective search for investment opportunities in 
strategic markets for the Organization, especially for companies 
with a business model with a vision akin to that of Grupo Nutre-
sa, with excellent teams, leading brands and that clearly reach 
consumers through different networks.

During 2014, we managed the first full year of TMLUC, 
successfully integrating it into Grupo Nutresa from the stra-
tegic and productive levels and the information and distribu-
tion systems.

Last November, the agreement to acquire Grupo El Corral was 
announced; it is the largest restaurant company in Colombia, 
with a total of 345 points of sale, in the segments of fast casual 
in the market with its El Corral hamburgers and in casual dining 
with its restaurants El Corral Gourmet, Leños y Carbón and Leños 
Gourmet. Besides operating these chains, Grupo El Corral also 
operates leading international brands, such as Papa John’s (piz-
za), Yogen Früz (frozen yogurt) and Krispy Kreme (doughnuts). It 

is also present through franchises in Panama, Ecuador, Chile and 
the United States. The acquisition of Grupo El Corral expands Gru-
po Nutresa’s presence in the Retail Food segment and strengthens 
its strategy to actively participate in this new business line, with 
leading brands and supported in its powerful infrastructure.

After formalizing the Grupo Nutresa alliance with Starbucks 
and Alsea in 2013, the opening of the chain Coffeehouses was 
begun during the second semester of 2014, with an excellent 
balance of completing six coffeehouses in the city of Bogotá.

In February 2014, and through a strategic alliance agreement 
with Mitsubishi Corporation, a new company, denominated 
Oriental Coffee Alliance (OCA), based in Kuala Lumpur, Malay-
sia, was established, to jointly develop the marketing of coffee 
products in Asia and seek new business opportunities in the 
region in other categories in the region. 

Organic growth also included the exploration of production 
and marketing opportunities for new products in geographies 
where we already operate and in which we have extensive 
knowledge of local conditions. Supported in the current opera-
tions of Tresmontes Lucchetti, the production and marketing of 
pastas and the production of cold instant beverages was begun 
in Mexico and the production of cookies and baked snacks was 
begun in Chile. In addition, and supported in the current biscuit 
business platform in the United States, the production and mar-
keting of crackers will begin in 2015 in this market with great 
potential.

Special report of the business group
GRUPO NUTRESA S.A. is the parent company of Grupo Em-

presarial Nutresa, which, at the end of 2014, consisted of 73 
companies, which, for administrative purposes, are grouped as 
follows: i) in the eight food businesses in which we participate 
and their productive platforms in Colombia and abroad; ii) in an 
international distribution network; iii) in three national distribu-
tion companies; iv) three service companies: one for administra-
tive services, one for logistics and the other for transport, which 
provide the respective supports for Grupo Nutresa companies.

Following the same enumeration of Article 29 of Law 222 of 
1995, we report the following aspects:
1.	 The economic relations of the Parent Company with its 

subsidiaries consist primarily of charging management or 
administrative fees and receiving profits generated as div-
idends by the subsidiaries in their business. For fees, the 
Parent Company received the sum of COP 17.090 Billion; 
dividends amounted to COP 167.204 Billion.

2.	 During 2014, the Grupo Empresarial Nutresa Parent Compa-
ny endorsed financial obligations of its subsidiaries for USD 
77 million in interest. The subsidiaries, in turn, did not con-
duct operations with third parties from the influence on or 
interest by the Parent Company.
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	 In addition, we state that during 2014, Grupo Nutresa S. A. 
did not stop making decisions to attend the interest or in-
fluence any of its subsidiaries, nor did any of its subsidiaries 
stop making decisions to attend any interest or influence of 
Grupo Nutresa S. A.

	 Finally, in Note 4 of the Consolidated Financial Statements, 
which are an integral part of the complementary informa-
tion published on our Website, we report in figures the evo-
lution of the overall situation of the companies that com-
prise Grupo Nutresa.

Legal Provisions
Grupo Nutresa fully complies with all the intellectual property and 
copyright regulations. The user licenses for the software installed 
in the Company are valid and have been obtained by the subsid-
iary Servicios Nutresa S. A. S. through contracts with licensors for 
use in all the Grupo Nutre-
sa companies. Likewise, 
trademarks are registered 
with the competent au-
thorities and the necessary 
documentation to prove 
these claims is preserved.

Grupo Nutresa has no 
claims or lawsuits of con-
sideration, which means 
that there are no contin-
gent liabilities that may 
impair the consolidated 
results for accounting year 
2014. Similarly, no significant fines or sanctions were imposed on 
the Grupo Empresarial Nutresa companies for breach of laws or 
regulations related to consumer rights, unfair competition, and 
product safety, among others.

In Note 19 of the Grupo Nutresa Basic Financial Statements pub-
lished on our Website, operations with shareholders and persons 
referred to in Article 47 of Law 222 of 1995 and other related 
regulations are detailed; these operations were conducted under 
market conditions.

The Company states that it has not obstructed the free flow of 
invoices issued by Grupo Empresarial Nutresa vendors or suppliers, 
pursuant to the provisions of Law 1676 of 2013; it further certi-
fies that the financial statements and other relevant reports do not 
contain any defects, inaccuracies or errors that prevent ascertaining 
the true financial position of the Company, as set out in Article 46 
of Law 964 of 2005.

Evaluation of the performance  
of the financial information  
disclosure and control systems
The internal control system of the Company comprises, among 
other components, the resources necessary to ensure the accu-
racy and reliability of the information required to plan, manage, 
control and measure the performance of its business, as well as 
ensure the adequate disclosure of the financial information to 
its shareholders and other investors, the market and the public 
in general. These resources include integral risk management, 
accountability systems, control plans and programs, budget and 
cost tools, account plans, standardized policies and procedures, 
comprehensive information formats and systems to support the 
continuous monitoring of processes by the Administration. 

Through independent, integral assurance management, Inter-
nal Auditing ensures the compliance of the goals and objectives 

of the Company and the ad-
equate protection, utilization 
and conservation of assets in 
all processes. In turn, the Fiscal 
Auditor fulfills the responsibil-
ity of verifying and certifying 
public faith on relevant issues, 
such as the observance of le-
gal, statutory and administra-
tive regulations by the Com-
pany, the reasonableness of its 
financial statements and the 
disclosures contained therein.

The results of the continu-
ous monitoring activities by the Administration and independent 
evaluations, conducted by Internal Auditing and the Fiscal Audi-
tor, are reported in each case in a timely manner to the appropri-
ate authorities, including the Finance, Audit and Risk Committee, 
which confirms that the performance of the financial information 
disclosure and control systems of the Company and its businesses 
is appropriate. These systems ensure the adequate, timely presen-
tation of this information, which is verified through accounting, 
as it relates to the operations which – due to their nature – must 
reflect and reveal in the financial statements or in accordance 
with the expectations, projections, cash flows or budgets, wheth-
er they deal with business initiatives or projects, all within the 
constraints that, by virtue of the law, or the contracts or confiden-
tiality agreements, are imposed on the disclosure of such opera-
tions. Based on these activities, we also state that there were no 
significant deficiencies in the design and operation of the inter-

Grupo Nutresa is the third 
best company in the world,  
in the food sector,  
in sustainability.
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Corporate model

Innovation 
sales 

in 2014 equaled a 

17,7% 
of the totals

Operational profit 

COP638.340 Billion, 
with an operational margin of 

9,9%.

nal controls that would have prevented the Company from ade-
quately registering, processing, summarizing and presenting the 
financial information of the period. Also, no fraud was identified 
with an effect of the quality of this information, nor were there 
changes in its evaluation methodology.

Sustainable Nutresa
With the promulgation of Sustainable Development as a stra-

tegic objective in 2009, in Grupo Nutresa we have experienced 
constant learning that has allowed us to define and manage 
new sustainability goals. In addition to adhering to the United 
Nations Global Compact in that year, in 2012, we established 
our Human Rights policy inspired by the principles of John Rug-
gie, and in 2013 we adhered to the “CEO Water Mandate,” 
the covenant of global business leaders to adopt sustainable 
solutions related to water.

Fruit of the dialogues with related groups, we have updated 
the Materiality Matrix of our Organization, as well as the risk 
matrix, which have served as the thread in this integrated re-
port to address the most relevant issues for the future of our 
Organization.

In line with this, in the coming years we will focus on six ar-
eas that will strengthen our sustainability: Sustainable Sourcing, 
Nutrition and Healthy Living, Responsible Employer and Citizen, 
Environmental Sustainability, Corporate Governance and Effec-
tive Innovation.

For a better society
In Grupo Nutresa we continue to work for the development 
and quality of life of our employees and their families. In 2014, 
several Grupo Nutresa companies achieved certification as a 
Responsible Family Company (Empresa Familiarmente Respons-

able, EFR), and “Healthy Organizations,” convinced that seek-
ing a balance between family and personal life and helping our 
teams to incorporate healthy lifestyles contribute to the happi-
ness of employees, while having superior organizational results.

Consistent with the new challenges of an increasingly more 
demanding environment, we have updated our leadership mod-
el and we have defined the attributes and transversal capabili-
ties of the talent in Grupo Nutresa, by posing the challenge to 
become even better, based on being, knowing our consumers, 
acting without geographic limits, with a sustainable business 
vision and collaboratively. For 2015, a high percentage of the 
Grupo Nutresa leaders will be evaluated against this model and 
will have identified development plans.

The management system in human rights and the imple-
mentation of good labor practices have been working fronts 
in which we have strengthened in the last two years. In 2014, 
we formed leaders and work teams in human rights, diversi-
ty and inclusion, constructed agreements and competencies to 
work with persons with disabilities, and we incorporated the 
“Equipares” international gender–equality standard, in order to 
provide equal opportunities for men and women. We aspire to 
be a model Organization on these fronts.

Our external social management has focused on the develop-
ment of skills in communities, promoting initiatives aligned with 
the value chain of the Grupo Nutresa businesses. During 2014, 
we invested COP 33.737 Billion on this front, which benefitted 
8.950.837 people and 2.828 institutions. We have more than 
10.461 volunteers in 12 countries who donated 28.468 hours 
and COP 751 Million to support communities in matters related 
to nutrition, education and income generation.

We also established new partnerships with the Colombian 
Government to promote quality education and healthy lifestyles. 

In 2014, Grupo Nutresa  
completed the process  
to acquire Grupo  
El Corral, and its results  
will be consolidated  
beginning in March 2015. 1,8% less than 2013

Ebitda 
COP864.257Billion

3,8% higher than 2013.

In 2014, we achieved ad-
vances in the international 
expansion with the support  
of the businesses, which include 
new plants in the United States,  
Mexico and Chile.
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Corporate model

The Grupo Nutresa Campaign “Enjoy a healthy life”.
Juan Pablo Gaitán, 27 years old. Architect
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Corporate model

Noteworthy are the 20 years of management in Educational 
Quality that Fundación Nutresa has promoted, benefitting more 
than 644 institutions through its “XXI Century Leaders” (“Líde-
res Siglo XXI”) program.

We invite you to consult the chapters in this report that 
develop these important issues.

Our planet
The challenges and opportunities that the environment imposes 
today on the food sector makes Grupo Nutresa have strategies 
and initiatives aimed at managing the natural capital to have an 
increasingly minor impact on the environment. The Grupo Nu-
tresa focus of activity in this area is aimed at, but not limited to, 
three priority issues: water use and conservation, energy use and 
conservation and climate–change mitigation, which are the most 
relevant aspects for our Organization and its related groups.

During 2014, we advanced satisfactorily in the environmental 
goals for 2020. We accumulated an 18,2% reduction in our en-
ergy consumption; we decreased greenhouse–gas emissions by 
21%, and water consumption, 15,5%. All of these figures are 
against the 2010 baseline.

With our performance in various public spaces and partici-
pation in the investment in the Cuenca Verde Water Fund, we 
have generated opportunities for training and outreach, to mo-
bilize the public and private sectors toward a better manage-
ment of water resources.

The trend to consume smaller portions presented in individu-
al packages has generated a great challenge for Grupo Nutresa 
companies to achieve their goal of reducing packing material per 
ton produced by 2020. In 2014, we created an interdisciplinary 
team in charge of exploring, designing and implementing actions 
that reverse this trend in increased packaging.

It is noteworthy that 2014 was an important year in terms of 
the environmental strengthening of our operations outside of 
Colombia, given through the integration of the management 
systems and environmental metrics for all our operations in the 
strategic region. Moreover, as a reflection of suitable environ-
mental commitment and management, during 2014 we ob-
tained the ISO 14001 Certification in Environmental–Manage-
ment Systems in nine of our sites and companies, completing a 
total of 18 certified.

Detailed information on the different environmental indi-
cators and programs related to optimizing the use of re-

sources and their environmental impact are presented later on 
in this report, which we invite you to learn about in more detail.

Perspectives
The year 2015 presents new, demanding challenges, including 
lower prices for some energy and mining raw materials that are 

an important source of income for many countries and expecta-
tions of lower growth dynamics and consumption in the region.

To this we add the devaluation of our currencies in Latin America 
in relation to the US Dollar, which will increase the costs of some 
supplies, and, simultaneously, provide us competitiveness against 
the imported products of some of our competitors, while enhanc-
ing our export strategy.

As for the regulatory environment, we foresee that regulatory 
changes will continue in health and nutrition, which are a global 
trend, and we will incorporate the impacts of the recent tax reform 
in Colombia.

Nevertheless, and with the goal of our Centennial Vision, 2015 
will contribute positively to achieving our long–term goals. We 
hope that with our team of talented, committed and responsible 
employees, we will seize the opportunities offered by the fact that 
we operate as locals in 15 countries, especially those that are part 
of the Pacific Alliance, to continue to excel in such a challenging 
environment.

We will incorporate Grupo El Corral into our sustainable growth 
strategy, understanding the particularities of this type of business 
and leveraging its great capacities from its human aspects, brands, 
quality and scale to support them through the Grupo Nutresa busi-
ness vision.

Finally, we must continue to actively monitor the markets of our 
raw materials that are, somehow, related to fixed prices in Dollars, 
and that may have a slightly bullish behavior that generates some 
pressure on profit margins.
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Enjoying 
a balanced diet 

changes your life.
Silvia Henao, 24 years old. Dancer
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“Enjoy a Healthy Life,” visit our  
Webpage www.nutresa.com
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Performance of the businesses

Diego Medina Leal
[In Nutresa since 1997]

Continue streamlining the categories in which we participate.
Implement new attention models to convenience–store channels.
Maintain the high positioning of brands and products and 
have greater presence in customer refrigerators.
Research and develop innovative concepts in wellness, nutrition, 
health and food safety, to meet the needs of a more discerning,
informed consumer, thus achieving the sustainability of the business
Search constantly for novel schemes for the efficient, 
competitive sourcing of raw materials, to minimize cost volatility.
Increase efficiencies in the distribution model.

2,4%

-1,0%

1,0%

8,5%

4,7%

5,1%

2014

2013 1.320

1.466

2012 1.274

Sales in 
Colombia
COP Billions

Price Volume
2014

2013

TACC 4,8% 

101

2012

308

256

International
Sales
USD Millions

5,0%

25,0%

2014

2013 25,3%

20,4%

2012 24,8%

Innovation 

2014

2013 7,3% 6

3,0%

67 %

6,5%

2012 6,0%

Increase in 
productivity

Market share in Colombia
(%) 

(%) of sales 

Distribution 
channels

Strategic challenges 2015

Principal categories
(%) of total sales 

Colombia
Sales 86,6%
Plants: 8

Central America
Sales 4,2%
Plants: 1

Venezuela
Sales 9,2%
Plants: 1

Raw materials (RM)
(%) Production cost

 Brands with sales >USD 50 MConventions

90,5%

73,3%Cold Meats

Long Life

Others

0,6%

-0,7%

85,1%

7,5%

7,4%

TACC -26,7% 

Direct 
presence in
3 countries

76,0%24,0%

Employees
(includes direct, indirect

 and apprentices)

9.492

International

NationalDirect Employees

Variation

Institutional

Stores and 
convenience stores

Alternative

Supermarket 
chains

Margin

13,2%

13.3%

12.8%

-11,3%

10,6%

5,8%

2014

TACC -0,6%* TACC 0,3% 

2013 1.911

1.694 -12,0%

14,4%

-2,7%2012 1.727

2014

2013 253

223

2012 221

Total sales
COP Billions COP Billions

Ebitda

*

7,7%

Others 
(includes MOD, CIF and other minor RM

33,7%

Pork 

32,6%

Beef

17,7%

Chicken and turkey

8,3%

Cold cuts represents 
26,2% of the

 
Nutresa sales

Sales in Colombia 
represent 
87,0% of the total
of the business unit

International sales 
represent 13,0% 
of the total of the
business unit

84,0%

84,0%

16,0%

16,0%

This represents 25,8%
of the total Grupo
 Nutresa EBITDA

President

Production
Plants

Growth above that of the market in the 
three categories in which the Business 
participates in Colombia: cold cuts, long 
life and frozen dishes.
Continuity in the process of optimizing the 
portfolio of brands and products, which 
consolidated Zenú as leader in Colombia.
Increased coverage in the points of sale 
in Colombia, achieving 73%, the highest 
in history.
Increased efficiencies in the integral 
operation of the Business, from sourcing of raw materials to product delivery 
to clients.
Adjustment to the production and commercial processes, to be more flexible 
and adequately attend a changing market in Venezuela.
Consolidation of operations in Venezuela to the SICAD II rate.
Consolidation of the production operation in Panama City, increasing 
competitiveness, and adjustment of the portfolio of brands and products, 
which achieved a greater impact on the market.

Annual Compound Growth Rate (TACC)

total Grupo 

Sales

Packaging material

Relevant aspects 2014

Presence of our main brands 
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Performance of the businesses

Diego Medina Leal
[In Nutresa since 1997]

Continue streamlining the categories in which we participate.
Implement new attention models to convenience–store channels.
Maintain the high positioning of brands and products and 
have greater presence in customer refrigerators.
Research and develop innovative concepts in wellness, nutrition, 
health and food safety, to meet the needs of a more discerning,
informed consumer, thus achieving the sustainability of the business
Search constantly for novel schemes for the efficient, 
competitive sourcing of raw materials, to minimize cost volatility.
Increase efficiencies in the distribution model.

2,4%

-1,0%

1,0%

8,5%

4,7%

5,1%

2014

2013 1.320

1.466

2012 1.274

Sales in 
Colombia
COP Billions

Price Volume
2014

2013

TACC 4,8% 

101

2012

308

256

International
Sales
USD Millions

5,0%

25,0%

2014

2013 25,3%

20,4%

2012 24,8%

Innovation 

2014

2013 7,3% 6

3,0%

67 %

6,5%

2012 6,0%

Increase in 
productivity

Market share in Colombia
(%) 

(%) of sales 

Distribution 
channels

Strategic challenges 2015

Principal categories
(%) of total sales 

Colombia
Sales 86,6%
Plants: 8

Central America
Sales 4,2%
Plants: 1

Venezuela
Sales 9,2%
Plants: 1

Raw materials (RM)
(%) Production cost

 Brands with sales >USD 50 MConventions

90,5%

73,3%Cold Meats

Long Life

Others

0,6%

-0,7%

85,1%

7,5%

7,4%

TACC -26,7% 

Direct 
presence in
3 countries

76,0%24,0%

Employees
(includes direct, indirect

 and apprentices)

9.492

International

NationalDirect Employees

Variation

Institutional

Stores and 
convenience stores

Alternative

Supermarket 
chains

Margin

13,2%

13.3%

12.8%

-11,3%

10,6%

5,8%

2014

TACC -0,6%* TACC 0,3% 

2013 1.911

1.694 -12,0%

14,4%

-2,7%2012 1.727

2014

2013 253

223

2012 221

Total sales
COP Billions COP Billions

Ebitda

*

7,7%

Others 
(includes MOD, CIF and other minor RM

33,7%

Pork 

32,6%

Beef

17,7%

Chicken and turkey

8,3%

Cold cuts represents 
26,2% of the

 
Nutresa sales

Sales in Colombia 
represent 
87,0% of the total
of the business unit

International sales 
represent 13,0% 
of the total of the
business unit

84,0%

84,0%

16,0%

16,0%

This represents 25,8%
of the total Grupo
 Nutresa EBITDA

President

Production
Plants

Growth above that of the market in the 
three categories in which the Business 
participates in Colombia: cold cuts, long 
life and frozen dishes.
Continuity in the process of optimizing the 
portfolio of brands and products, which 
consolidated Zenú as leader in Colombia.
Increased coverage in the points of sale 
in Colombia, achieving 73%, the highest 
in history.
Increased efficiencies in the integral 
operation of the Business, from sourcing of raw materials to product delivery 
to clients.
Adjustment to the production and commercial processes, to be more flexible 
and adequately attend a changing market in Venezuela.
Consolidation of operations in Venezuela to the SICAD II rate.
Consolidation of the production operation in Panama City, increasing 
competitiveness, and adjustment of the portfolio of brands and products, 
which achieved a greater impact on the market.

Annual Compound Growth Rate (TACC)

total Grupo 

Sales

Packaging material

Relevant aspects 2014

Presence of our main brands 
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Performance of the businesses

Alberto Hoyos
Lopera
[In Nutresa since 1993]

Margin

13,5%

13,8%
10,8%

0,2%
-0,8%

6,3%

8,6%
-0,8%

3,8%

9,3%

2,1%

8,6%

2014

TACC 3,8%* TACC 11,8% 

2013 1.142

1.248 6,9%

30,6%
15,1%2012 1.117

2014

2013 158

169

2012 121

Total sales
COP Billions COP Billions

2014
2013 648

706

2012 659

Sales in 
Colombia
COP Billions

Price Volume

2014
2013

TACC 2,3% 

271

2012

264

255

International 
Sales
USD Millions

3,0%

28,0%

Ebitda

2014
2013 10,6%

12,7%

2012 11,7%

Innovation
Sales
(% of sales)

2014

2013 -1,1% 6,0%

5,0%

58,0%

3,2%

2012 3,8%

Increase in 
productivity

Market share in Colombia

(%) of sales

Distribution 
channels

Relevant aspects 2014

Strategic challenges 2015

Principal categories
(%) of total sales

United 
States
Sales 15,1%
Plants: 2

Central America
Sales 20,8%
Plants: 1

Colombia
Sales 56,5%
Plants: 4

Galletas Nutresa
Raw materials (RM)
(%) Production cost

Presence of our main brands

Brands with sale >USD 50 M

55,1%
Cookies

BiscuitsCrackers

Self–care

Others

0,9%
46,1%

37,9%

6,0%
10,0%

TACC 2,0% 

Direct 
presence in 
10 countries

70,0%30,0%

*Annual Compound Growth Rate (TACC)
Employees

(includes direct, indirect 
and apprentices)

5.534

National

Variation

Institutional Industrial

Stores and 
convenience 
stores

Alternative

Supermarket
chains

Packaging 
material

17,5%

42,6%

Others 
(includes MOD, CIF and other minor RM)

Wheat

18,6%

Sugar

9,1%

Oils and fats

12,2%

Biscuits 
represents 19,3% 
of the total Grupo
Nutresa sales

Sales in Colombia 
represent 
56,5% of the total 
of the business unit

International sales 
represent 43,5%  
the total of the
business unit

InternationalDirect Employees

33,0%67,0%

This represents 19,5%
of the total Grupo 
Nutresa EBITDA 

President

Production 
Plants

Successful launch of the Tosh brand in 
the category of healthy snacks, which 
strengthened the Wellness portfolio, 
which grew 35%.
Effective innovation in the principal 
brands of the Business, generating 
valorization in the category and 
contributing more than COP 60 Billion 
during the year. Successful brand 
management, with value increases for 
consumers, loyalty and household penetration. This allowed for greater, 
continuous participation in the market in the last two years in Colombia 
and consolidated our leadership in a highly competitive environment.  
Segmentation model of the portfolio by channel, which has improved 
the competitiveness of the brands.
Construction of the cracker–production plant in the United States, a 
high–potential market.
Efficiencies with improved profitability through the proper negotiation of 
raw materials and packaging, lower production costs and a demanding 
control of expenditures.

Continue the effective innovation strategy, which 
allowed us to maintain high growth rates in the 
nutrition and wellness portfolios.
Strengthen portfolio proposals segmented by 
channels, to ensure competitiveness and access 
to consumers.
Search permanently for improvements in productivity 
and efficiencies in production costs.
Begin operations to produce crackers in the United 
States, which will improve the competitive position 
and scale of the biscuit business in this country.
Strengthen capacities to seize market opportunities 
in Ecuador, Peru and Chile, supported in the Grupo 
Nutresa brand model and the production and 
distribution platforms.
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Performance of the businesses

Alberto Hoyos
Lopera
[In Nutresa since 1993]

Margin

13,5%

13,8%
10,8%

0,2%
-0,8%

6,3%

8,6%
-0,8%

3,8%

9,3%

2,1%

8,6%

2014

TACC 3,8%* TACC 11,8% 

2013 1.142

1.248 6,9%

30,6%
15,1%2012 1.117

2014

2013 158

169

2012 121

Total sales
COP Billions COP Billions

2014
2013 648

706

2012 659

Sales in 
Colombia
COP Billions

Price Volume

2014
2013

TACC 2,3% 

271

2012

264

255

International 
Sales
USD Millions

3,0%

28,0%

Ebitda

2014
2013 10,6%

12,7%

2012 11,7%

Innovation
Sales
(% of sales)

2014

2013 -1,1% 6,0%

5,0%

58,0%

3,2%

2012 3,8%

Increase in 
productivity

Market share in Colombia

(%) of sales

Distribution 
channels

Relevant aspects 2014

Strategic challenges 2015

Principal categories
(%) of total sales

United 
States
Sales 15,1%
Plants: 2

Central America
Sales 20,8%
Plants: 1

Colombia
Sales 56,5%
Plants: 4

Galletas Nutresa
Raw materials (RM)
(%) Production cost

Presence of our main brands

Brands with sale >USD 50 M

55,1%
Cookies

BiscuitsCrackers

Self–care

Others

0,9%
46,1%

37,9%

6,0%
10,0%

TACC 2,0% 

Direct 
presence in 
10 countries

70,0%30,0%

*Annual Compound Growth Rate (TACC)
Employees

(includes direct, indirect 
and apprentices)

5.534

National

Variation

Institutional Industrial

Stores and 
convenience 
stores

Alternative

Supermarket
chains

Packaging 
material

17,5%

42,6%

Others 
(includes MOD, CIF and other minor RM)

Wheat

18,6%

Sugar

9,1%

Oils and fats

12,2%

Biscuits 
represents 19,3% 
of the total Grupo
Nutresa sales

Sales in Colombia 
represent 
56,5% of the total 
of the business unit

International sales 
represent 43,5%  
the total of the
business unit

InternationalDirect Employees

33,0%67,0%

This represents 19,5%
of the total Grupo 
Nutresa EBITDA 

President

Production 
Plants

Successful launch of the Tosh brand in 
the category of healthy snacks, which 
strengthened the Wellness portfolio, 
which grew 35%.
Effective innovation in the principal 
brands of the Business, generating 
valorization in the category and 
contributing more than COP 60 Billion 
during the year. Successful brand 
management, with value increases for 
consumers, loyalty and household penetration. This allowed for greater, 
continuous participation in the market in the last two years in Colombia 
and consolidated our leadership in a highly competitive environment.  
Segmentation model of the portfolio by channel, which has improved 
the competitiveness of the brands.
Construction of the cracker–production plant in the United States, a 
high–potential market.
Efficiencies with improved profitability through the proper negotiation of 
raw materials and packaging, lower production costs and a demanding 
control of expenditures.

Continue the effective innovation strategy, which 
allowed us to maintain high growth rates in the 
nutrition and wellness portfolios.
Strengthen portfolio proposals segmented by 
channels, to ensure competitiveness and access 
to consumers.
Search permanently for improvements in productivity 
and efficiencies in production costs.
Begin operations to produce crackers in the United 
States, which will improve the competitive position 
and scale of the biscuit business in this country.
Strengthen capacities to seize market opportunities 
in Ecuador, Peru and Chile, supported in the Grupo 
Nutresa brand model and the production and 
distribution platforms.
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Performance of the businesses

Jorge Eusebio 
Arango López
[In Nutresa since 1991]

Margin
12,6%
15,3%
15,3%

2,4%

-4,5%

3,3%

5,3%

5,6%

1,4%

9,3%

4,5%

-0,1%

2014

TACC 4,5%* TACC -2,1%

2013 983

1.074
-10,1%

4,6%
34,8%2012 940

2014
2013 150

135

2012 144

Total sales
COP Billions COP Billions

2014

2013 676

730

2012 671

Sales in 
Colombia
COP Billions

Price Volume
2014

2013

TACC 2,8%

172

2012

164

150

International 
Sales
USD Millions

Ebitda

2014

2013 13,5%

19,0%

2012 8,8%

Innovation 
Sales
(% of sales)

2014

2013 3,4%

-0,2%

2012 -1,0%

Increase in 
productivity

Market share in Colombia

(%) of sales

Distribution
channels

Relevant aspects 2014

Strategic challenges 2015

Principal categories
(%) of total sales

Central America
Sales 4,5%
Plants:  1

Colombia
Sales 67,9%
Plants:  2

Peru
Sales 10,6%
Plants:  1

Mexico
Ventas 8,6%
Plants: 1

Chocolates Nutresa
Raw materials (RM)
(%) Production cost

34,9%

Others
(includes MOD, 
CIF and other 
minor RM) 10,0%

Sugar

5,9%

Milk

30,5%

Cocoa

4,5%

Oils and fats

Presence of our main brands

Brands with sales >USD 50 MOthers 17,2%

TACC 4,7%

56,0%44,0%

*Annual Compound Growth Rate (TACC)

4.082
National

Chocolates 
represents 
16,6% of the  
total Grupo
Nutresa sales

This represents 15,6%
of the total Grupo
Nutresa EBITDA

Sales in Colombia represent 
67,9% of the total of the 
business unit

International sales 
represent 32,1%
of the total of the
business unit

Packaging 
material

14,2%

International

66,6%Candy 0,1%

25,6% 63,2%Fine Chocolates 0,7    %

42,0%

Milk Modifiers 25,4% -2,3%9,1%

Snacks 6, % 49,3%1 1,9 %

2,0%
9,0%

17,0%

3,0%
69,0%

48,0%52,0%

Variation

President

Production 
Plants

Direct 
presence in 
11 countries

Good national and international 
dynamics, in line with the consoli-
dated growth of Grupo Nutresa.
The Snacking Portfolio, composed 
of chocolate candy, snacks and 
cereals, presented an excellent sales 
dynamics, achieving a total share of 
more than 50% of the Chocolate 
Business total sales.
The price of cocoa, with high 
volatility and increases of more 
than 40%, affect the profitability of the Business.
Consumption dynamics in Peru, Mexico and Costa Rica 
are in line with the behavior of the local economies.

Compensate the impact on profitability due to the higher cost 
of raw materials, to achieve efficiencies in the operation, 
effective innovation and strategies to adequately compete in 
the regions in which the Business is present.
Streamline the category of lower growths, with innovation in 
modern products that provide convenience and practicality.
Support the increase in per–capita consumption in the 
category of snacking products, advancing a strategy with 
differentiated value proposals and the development of 
functional, nutritional and healthy products.
Increase specialization and boost exports of the productive 
platforms abroad, to strengthen their integration and 
strategic priority within the different categories of the 
Chocolate Business.
Consolidate and strengthen the cocoa sustainability programs 
and their activities on farms and in factories.

Institutional

Alternative

Supermarket
chains

Industrial

Stores and 
convenience 
stores

Employees
(includes direct, indirect 

and apprentices)

Direct Employees
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Performance of the businesses

Jorge Eusebio 
Arango López
[In Nutresa since 1991]

Margin
12,6%
15,3%
15,3%

2,4%

-4,5%

3,3%

5,3%

5,6%

1,4%

9,3%

4,5%

-0,1%

2014

TACC 4,5%* TACC -2,1%

2013 983

1.074
-10,1%

4,6%
34,8%2012 940

2014
2013 150

135

2012 144

Total sales
COP Billions COP Billions

2014

2013 676

730

2012 671

Sales in 
Colombia
COP Billions

Price Volume
2014

2013

TACC 2,8%

172

2012

164

150

International 
Sales
USD Millions

Ebitda

2014

2013 13,5%

19,0%

2012 8,8%

Innovation 
Sales
(% of sales)

2014

2013 3,4%

-0,2%

2012 -1,0%

Increase in 
productivity

Market share in Colombia

(%) of sales

Distribution
channels

Relevant aspects 2014

Strategic challenges 2015

Principal categories
(%) of total sales

Central America
Sales 4,5%
Plants:  1

Colombia
Sales 67,9%
Plants:  2

Peru
Sales 10,6%
Plants:  1

Mexico
Ventas 8,6%
Plants: 1

Chocolates Nutresa
Raw materials (RM)
(%) Production cost

34,9%

Others
(includes MOD, 
CIF and other 
minor RM) 10,0%

Sugar

5,9%

Milk

30,5%

Cocoa

4,5%

Oils and fats

Presence of our main brands

Brands with sales >USD 50 MOthers 17,2%

TACC 4,7%

56,0%44,0%

*Annual Compound Growth Rate (TACC)

4.082
National

Chocolates 
represents 
16,6% of the  
total Grupo
Nutresa sales

This represents 15,6%
of the total Grupo
Nutresa EBITDA

Sales in Colombia represent 
67,9% of the total of the 
business unit

International sales 
represent 32,1%
of the total of the
business unit

Packaging 
material

14,2%

International

66,6%Candy 0,1%

25,6% 63,2%Fine Chocolates 0,7    %

42,0%

Milk Modifiers 25,4% -2,3%9,1%

Snacks 6, % 49,3%1 1,9 %

2,0%
9,0%

17,0%

3,0%
69,0%

48,0%52,0%

Variation

President

Production 
Plants

Direct 
presence in 
11 countries

Good national and international 
dynamics, in line with the consoli-
dated growth of Grupo Nutresa.
The Snacking Portfolio, composed 
of chocolate candy, snacks and 
cereals, presented an excellent sales 
dynamics, achieving a total share of 
more than 50% of the Chocolate 
Business total sales.
The price of cocoa, with high 
volatility and increases of more 
than 40%, affect the profitability of the Business.
Consumption dynamics in Peru, Mexico and Costa Rica 
are in line with the behavior of the local economies.

Compensate the impact on profitability due to the higher cost 
of raw materials, to achieve efficiencies in the operation, 
effective innovation and strategies to adequately compete in 
the regions in which the Business is present.
Streamline the category of lower growths, with innovation in 
modern products that provide convenience and practicality.
Support the increase in per–capita consumption in the 
category of snacking products, advancing a strategy with 
differentiated value proposals and the development of 
functional, nutritional and healthy products.
Increase specialization and boost exports of the productive 
platforms abroad, to strengthen their integration and 
strategic priority within the different categories of the 
Chocolate Business.
Consolidate and strengthen the cocoa sustainability programs 
and their activities on farms and in factories.

Institutional

Alternative

Supermarket
chains

Industrial

Stores and 
convenience 
stores

Employees
(includes direct, indirect 

and apprentices)

Direct Employees
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Performance of the businesses

Miguel 
Moreno Múnera
[In Nutresa since 2003]

Margin

18,7%

17,0%

11,0%

-1,6%

-7,9%

5,5%

0,4%

5,8%

3,6%

-2,5%

-1,9%

2014

TACC -1,4%* 
TACC 17,7% 

2013 789

776
8,5%

50,0%

32,5%
2012 810

2014

2013 134

145

2012 89

Total sales
COP Billions

COP Billions

2014

2013 511

505

2012 525

Sales in 
Colombia
COP Billions

Price Volume

2014

2013

TACC -1,3% 

135

2012

149

159

International 
Sales
USD Millions

2,0%

12,0%

Ebitda

2014

2013 14,5%

15,5%

2012 15,2%

Innovation 
Sales
(% of sales)

2014

2013 8,8% 3,0%

14,0%

69,0%

11,5%

2012 14,9%

Increase in 
productivity

Market share in Colombia

(%) of sales

Distribution
channels

Relevant aspects 2014

Strategic challenges 2015

Principal categories
(%) of total sales

Colombia
Sales 65,1%
Plants: 4

Malaysia
Plants: 1

Cafés Nutresa
Raw materials (RM)
(%) Production cost

21,3%

Others 
(includes MOD, CIF and other minor RM) 

Presence of our main brands

Brands with sales >USD 50 M

41,6%

55,8%Ground

Soluble

Others

-0,2%

0,3%

52,4%

47,3%

0,3%

TACC 0,0% 

Direct 
presence in 
10 countries

86,0%14,0%

*Annual Compound Growth Rate (TACC) Employees
(includes direct, indirect 

 and apprentices)

1.673

Variation

Coffee represents
12,0% of the 
 total Grupo 
Nutresa sales

Institutional Industrial

Stores and 
convenience 
stores

Alternative

Supermarket 
chains

Sales in Colombia 
represent  65,1%
of the total of the
 business unit

International sales 
represent  34,9%
the total of the 
business unit

Coffee

68,7%

Colcafé is sold in 52 countries.

Direct Employees

-1,7%

Packaging material

10,0%

This represents 
16,8% of the 
Grupo Nutresa 
EBITDA

National

100%

President

Production
Plants

Satisfactory recovery of the coffee 
crop in Colombia and coffee 
prices, which benefits the 
entire chain.
Promotional efforts in Colombia 
to energize the category.
The Oriental Coffee Alliance 
(OCA) begins in Kuala Lumpur 
to market, in partnership with 
Mitsubishi Corporation, our 
portfolio in Asia:  Japan, Singapore, South Korea, Thailand, Myanmar, 
Malaysia, Indonesia, China, Brunei, the Philippines, Vietnam, Laos 
and Cambodia.
High increases and volatility in the price of the raw material 
throughout the year, well administered with different hedging 
strategies.

Energize the coffee category in Colombia, increasing 
per–capita consumption through product innovation, 
consumer education in preparation and benefits, and 
institutional programs to promote coffee consumption.
Consolidate the Colcafé brand in the strategic region.
Consolidate the strategic alliances in Asia, increasing 
our presence in the region, and in the United States 
with the involvement of new business partners.
Effective, massifiable innovation for Colombia 
and abroad.
Continue the hedging strategy to counter the 
environment of high volatility in the prices of 
green coffee.
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Performance of the businesses

Miguel 
Moreno Múnera
[In Nutresa since 2003]

Margin

18,7%

17,0%

11,0%

-1,6%

-7,9%

5,5%

0,4%

5,8%

3,6%

-2,5%

-1,9%

2014

TACC -1,4%* 
TACC 17,7% 

2013 789

776
8,5%

50,0%

32,5%
2012 810

2014

2013 134

145

2012 89

Total sales
COP Billions

COP Billions

2014

2013 511

505

2012 525

Sales in 
Colombia
COP Billions

Price Volume

2014

2013

TACC -1,3% 

135

2012

149

159

International 
Sales
USD Millions

2,0%

12,0%

Ebitda

2014

2013 14,5%

15,5%

2012 15,2%

Innovation 
Sales
(% of sales)

2014

2013 8,8% 3,0%

14,0%

69,0%

11,5%

2012 14,9%

Increase in 
productivity

Market share in Colombia

(%) of sales

Distribution
channels

Relevant aspects 2014

Strategic challenges 2015

Principal categories
(%) of total sales

Colombia
Sales 65,1%
Plants: 4

Malaysia
Plants: 1

Cafés Nutresa
Raw materials (RM)
(%) Production cost

21,3%

Others 
(includes MOD, CIF and other minor RM) 

Presence of our main brands

Brands with sales >USD 50 M

41,6%

55,8%Ground

Soluble

Others

-0,2%

0,3%

52,4%

47,3%

0,3%

TACC 0,0% 

Direct 
presence in 
10 countries

86,0%14,0%

*Annual Compound Growth Rate (TACC) Employees
(includes direct, indirect 

 and apprentices)

1.673

Variation

Coffee represents
12,0% of the 
 total Grupo 
Nutresa sales

Institutional Industrial

Stores and 
convenience 
stores

Alternative

Supermarket 
chains

Sales in Colombia 
represent  65,1%
of the total of the
 business unit

International sales 
represent  34,9%
the total of the 
business unit

Coffee

68,7%

Colcafé is sold in 52 countries.

Direct Employees

-1,7%

Packaging material

10,0%

This represents 
16,8% of the 
Grupo Nutresa 
EBITDA

National

100%

President

Production
Plants

Satisfactory recovery of the coffee 
crop in Colombia and coffee 
prices, which benefits the 
entire chain.
Promotional efforts in Colombia 
to energize the category.
The Oriental Coffee Alliance 
(OCA) begins in Kuala Lumpur 
to market, in partnership with 
Mitsubishi Corporation, our 
portfolio in Asia:  Japan, Singapore, South Korea, Thailand, Myanmar, 
Malaysia, Indonesia, China, Brunei, the Philippines, Vietnam, Laos 
and Cambodia.
High increases and volatility in the price of the raw material 
throughout the year, well administered with different hedging 
strategies.

Energize the coffee category in Colombia, increasing 
per–capita consumption through product innovation, 
consumer education in preparation and benefits, and 
institutional programs to promote coffee consumption.
Consolidate the Colcafé brand in the strategic region.
Consolidate the strategic alliances in Asia, increasing 
our presence in the region, and in the United States 
with the involvement of new business partners.
Effective, massifiable innovation for Colombia 
and abroad.
Continue the hedging strategy to counter the 
environment of high volatility in the prices of 
green coffee.
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Performance of the businesses

Justo García Gamboa
[In Nutresa since 2013]

2014

2013

378

135

International 
Sales
USD Billions

58,0%

6,0% 36,0%

Market share

(%) of sales

Distribution 
channels

2014 Environment

Strategic challenges 2015

Principal categories
(%) of total sales

Mexico
Sales 17,8%
Plants: 1

Chile
Sales 67,3%
Plants: 3

Other countries
Sales 14,9%

Tresmontes Lucchetti (TMLUC)
Raw materials (RM)
(%) Production cost

53,4%

Others 
(includes MOD, 
CIF and other 
minor RM

3,0%

Sugar

9,5%

Fats 
and Oils

Presence of our main brands

Brands with sales >USD 50 M

CIB

Pasta

Coffee
Snacks
Others

39,3%

20,1%
8,0%
7,0%

25,6%

Direct 
presence in
13 countries

67,0%33,0%

Employees
(includes direct, indirect

 and apprentices)

4.839
International

Stores and 
convenience stores

Alternative
Supermarket 
chains

Margin

12,2%

16,2%

N.A.

N.A.

2014

2013* 252

756
N.A.

N.A.

2014

2013 41

92

Total sales
COP Billions

*Figures from September to December 2013

COP Billions
Ebitda

Packaging 
material

20,2%

TMLUC represents 
11,7% of the total 
Grupo Nutresa 
sales

International sales
 represent 100%  
of the total of the 
business unit

2,9%

Coffee

11,0%

Wheat

Direct Employees

100%

Variation

63,2%CIB (Ch.) -0,2%

28,8% -1,0%Pasta (Ch.)

0,5%CIB (Mx.) 29,9%
-0,2%Coffee (Ch.) 16,6%
2,8%Potato Chips (Ch.) 13,5%

This represents 10,7% 
of the total Grupo
Nutresa EBITDA

(Direct distribution in 4 of them)

President

Production
Plants

Integration of the marketing networks:  
Mexico: distribution of the Nutresa 
Mexico products since January; Costa 
Rica: Galletas Pozuelo has distributed 
TMLUC products since July; Peru:  
progress in integrating the distribution 
the TMLUC products in the group 
network.
In Mexico, a reformulation, redesign 
and launch of the complete Zuko line 
with a sugar–free product.
Advances in the project for direct attention to neighborhood stores 
in Chile.
Construction of two plants in Guadalajara, Mexico:  one to produce cold 
instant beverages; the other, pasta.  A new baked snack and biscuit plant 
in Casablanca, Chile.
Implementation of the Grupo Nutresa strategic sourcing model.
Replication in Mexico of the “Intervention in Public Schools to Prevent 
Obesity in Children” project, a model that has been successfully 
implemented in Chile for several years.

Launch the pasta category in Mexico under the Lucchetti brand, 
through a differentiated product proposal and its activation in the 
media and distribution channels.
Launch a new category in Chile, beginning in the cracker segment 
with the Kryzpo brand, through a market–innovation proposal.
Continue integrating the business operation of TMLUC Mexico, 
Central America and the Caribbean.
Pursue the project of specialized attention to neighborhood stores 
in Chile.
Positive outlook for growth in the stackable potato–chip category 
in Chile and advance in the internationalization of this category 
with the Kryzpo brand.
Continue to deepen the strategic sourcing project and the 
implementation of additional Grupo Nutresa practices in the areas 
of productivity and innovation.
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Performance of the businesses

Justo García Gamboa
[In Nutresa since 2013]

2014

2013

378

135

International 
Sales
USD Billions

58,0%

6,0% 36,0%

Market share

(%) of sales

Distribution 
channels

2014 Environment

Strategic challenges 2015

Principal categories
(%) of total sales

Mexico
Sales 17,8%
Plants: 1

Chile
Sales 67,3%
Plants: 3

Other countries
Sales 14,9%

Tresmontes Lucchetti (TMLUC)
Raw materials (RM)
(%) Production cost

53,4%

Others 
(includes MOD, 
CIF and other 
minor RM

3,0%

Sugar

9,5%

Fats 
and Oils

Presence of our main brands

Brands with sales >USD 50 M

CIB

Pasta

Coffee
Snacks
Others

39,3%

20,1%
8,0%
7,0%

25,6%

Direct 
presence in
13 countries

67,0%33,0%

Employees
(includes direct, indirect

 and apprentices)

4.839
International

Stores and 
convenience stores

Alternative
Supermarket 
chains

Margin

12,2%

16,2%

N.A.

N.A.

2014

2013* 252

756
N.A.

N.A.

2014

2013 41

92

Total sales
COP Billions

*Figures from September to December 2013

COP Billions
Ebitda

Packaging 
material

20,2%

TMLUC represents 
11,7% of the total 
Grupo Nutresa 
sales

International sales
 represent 100%  
of the total of the 
business unit

2,9%

Coffee

11,0%

Wheat

Direct Employees

100%

Variation

63,2%CIB (Ch.) -0,2%

28,8% -1,0%Pasta (Ch.)

0,5%CIB (Mx.) 29,9%
-0,2%Coffee (Ch.) 16,6%
2,8%Potato Chips (Ch.) 13,5%

This represents 10,7% 
of the total Grupo
Nutresa EBITDA

(Direct distribution in 4 of them)

President

Production
Plants

Integration of the marketing networks:  
Mexico: distribution of the Nutresa 
Mexico products since January; Costa 
Rica: Galletas Pozuelo has distributed 
TMLUC products since July; Peru:  
progress in integrating the distribution 
the TMLUC products in the group 
network.
In Mexico, a reformulation, redesign 
and launch of the complete Zuko line 
with a sugar–free product.
Advances in the project for direct attention to neighborhood stores 
in Chile.
Construction of two plants in Guadalajara, Mexico:  one to produce cold 
instant beverages; the other, pasta.  A new baked snack and biscuit plant 
in Casablanca, Chile.
Implementation of the Grupo Nutresa strategic sourcing model.
Replication in Mexico of the “Intervention in Public Schools to Prevent 
Obesity in Children” project, a model that has been successfully 
implemented in Chile for several years.

Launch the pasta category in Mexico under the Lucchetti brand, 
through a differentiated product proposal and its activation in the 
media and distribution channels.
Launch a new category in Chile, beginning in the cracker segment 
with the Kryzpo brand, through a market–innovation proposal.
Continue integrating the business operation of TMLUC Mexico, 
Central America and the Caribbean.
Pursue the project of specialized attention to neighborhood stores 
in Chile.
Positive outlook for growth in the stackable potato–chip category 
in Chile and advance in the internationalization of this category 
with the Kryzpo brand.
Continue to deepen the strategic sourcing project and the 
implementation of additional Grupo Nutresa practices in the areas 
of productivity and innovation.
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Performance of the businesses

Mario Alberto
Niño Torres 
[In Nutresa since 1991]

Good commercial dynamics of 
the Business is maintained, with 
double–digit growth for the 
fourth consecutive year.
Innovation remains an important 
growth engine.
Successful dynamic placement of 
more than 15,322 freezers during 
the year, to increase coverage and 
consolidate leadership with a total of 95,043.
Effective innovation with high levels of launching new products with 
great effectiveness.
Progress in distribution in self–service stores and large chains, 
together with Cárnicos Nutresa.
The Dominican Republic ended the year with a total of 286 BON ice 
cream parlors, with a renovation plan that has already reached 137 ice 
cream parlors and six openings. Central America ends the year with a 
total of 158 ice cream parlors, after the opening of 16 new ones.

Maintain the double–digit growth dynamics.  Continue 
advancing in our innovation models, seeking innovations with 
greater impact that contribute to the growth objectives.
Introduce freezers with better performance in terms of energy 
consumption and environmental impact.
Expand distribution synergies with Cárnicos Nutresa to 
expand coverage.
Complete the process of changing designs in our BON 
ice cream parlors and begin the process in the POPS ice 
cream parlors.

Margin

TACC 12,2%* 
TACC 9,5% 

Total sales
COP Billions

COP Billions

Sales in 
Colombia
COP Billions

 Price Volume

TACC 7,9% 

International 
Sales
USD Millions

Ebitda

Innovation 
Sales
(% of sales)

Increase
in productivity

(%) of sales

Distribution
channels

2014 Environment

Strategic challenges 2015

Principal categories
(%) of total sales

Central America
Sales 12,3%
Plants: 2

Colombia
Sales 78,5%
Plants: 3

The Dominican
Republic and
the Caribbean
Sales 9,2%
Plants: 1

Helados Nutresa
Raw materials (RM)
Production cost

51,5%

Others
(includes MOD, CIF 
and other minor RM)

5,9%
Sugar

20,3%

Milk

5,0%

Oils 
and fats

Presence of our main brands 

Brands with sales >USD 50 M

TACC 33,4% 

Direct
presence in
6 countries

51,0%49,0%

*Annual Compound Growth Rate (TACC) Employees
(includes direct, indirect 

and apprentices)

3.911
NationalInternational

36,0%64,0%

Packaging 
material

17,3%

Ice cream represents 
8,3% of the total 
Grupo Nutresa sales

Sales in Colombia 
represent 78,5% 
of the total of the
business unit

International sales 
represent 
21,5% of the total 
of the business unit

Direct Employees

10,7%2014 537

27,7%2013 486

19,2%2012 380

14,9%-1,5%2014 80

16,7%34,2%2013 81

15,9%43,9%2012 61

-1,9% 13,1%2014 422

2,8% 9,9%2013 380

6,6% 11,4%2012 336

2014 58

2013 56

2012 24

2014 30,9%

2013 37,9%

2012 34,5%

Ice cream 95,6%

Refreshing beverages 3,0%

Others 1,4%

2014 9,8%

2013 0,3%

2012 13,6%

24,0%Institutional

15,0%Alternative

8,0%Supermarket
chains

1,0%Industrial

52,0%Stores and 
convenience stores

President

This represents 9,3%
of the total Grupo
Nutresa EBITDA

Production
Plants
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Performance of the businesses

Mario Alberto
Niño Torres 
[In Nutresa since 1991]

Good commercial dynamics of 
the Business is maintained, with 
double–digit growth for the 
fourth consecutive year.
Innovation remains an important 
growth engine.
Successful dynamic placement of 
more than 15,322 freezers during 
the year, to increase coverage and 
consolidate leadership with a total of 95,043.
Effective innovation with high levels of launching new products with 
great effectiveness.
Progress in distribution in self–service stores and large chains, 
together with Cárnicos Nutresa.
The Dominican Republic ended the year with a total of 286 BON ice 
cream parlors, with a renovation plan that has already reached 137 ice 
cream parlors and six openings. Central America ends the year with a 
total of 158 ice cream parlors, after the opening of 16 new ones.

Maintain the double–digit growth dynamics.  Continue 
advancing in our innovation models, seeking innovations with 
greater impact that contribute to the growth objectives.
Introduce freezers with better performance in terms of energy 
consumption and environmental impact.
Expand distribution synergies with Cárnicos Nutresa to 
expand coverage.
Complete the process of changing designs in our BON 
ice cream parlors and begin the process in the POPS ice 
cream parlors.

Margin

TACC 12,2%* 
TACC 9,5% 

Total sales
COP Billions

COP Billions

Sales in 
Colombia
COP Billions

 Price Volume

TACC 7,9% 

International 
Sales
USD Millions

Ebitda

Innovation 
Sales
(% of sales)

Increase
in productivity

(%) of sales

Distribution
channels

2014 Environment

Strategic challenges 2015

Principal categories
(%) of total sales

Central America
Sales 12,3%
Plants: 2

Colombia
Sales 78,5%
Plants: 3

The Dominican
Republic and
the Caribbean
Sales 9,2%
Plants: 1

Helados Nutresa
Raw materials (RM)
Production cost

51,5%

Others
(includes MOD, CIF 
and other minor RM)

5,9%
Sugar

20,3%

Milk

5,0%

Oils 
and fats

Presence of our main brands 

Brands with sales >USD 50 M

TACC 33,4% 

Direct
presence in
6 countries

51,0%49,0%

*Annual Compound Growth Rate (TACC) Employees
(includes direct, indirect 

and apprentices)

3.911
NationalInternational

36,0%64,0%

Packaging 
material

17,3%

Ice cream represents 
8,3% of the total 
Grupo Nutresa sales

Sales in Colombia 
represent 78,5% 
of the total of the
business unit

International sales 
represent 
21,5% of the total 
of the business unit

Direct Employees

10,7%2014 537

27,7%2013 486

19,2%2012 380

14,9%-1,5%2014 80

16,7%34,2%2013 81

15,9%43,9%2012 61

-1,9% 13,1%2014 422

2,8% 9,9%2013 380

6,6% 11,4%2012 336

2014 58

2013 56

2012 24

2014 30,9%

2013 37,9%

2012 34,5%

Ice cream 95,6%

Refreshing beverages 3,0%

Others 1,4%

2014 9,8%

2013 0,3%

2012 13,6%

24,0%Institutional

15,0%Alternative

8,0%Supermarket
chains

1,0%Industrial

52,0%Stores and 
convenience stores

President

This represents 9,3%
of the total Grupo
Nutresa EBITDA

Production
Plants
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Performance of the businesses

Fabián Andrés
Restrepo Zambrano
[In Nutresa since 1996]

Margin

TACC -4,7% 
TACC 4,4% 

Total sales
COP Billions COP Billions

Sales in 
Colombia
COP Billions

Price Volume

TACC 4,4% 

18,0%Ebitda

Innovation 
Sales
(% of sales)

10,0%

72,0%

Increase in 
productivity

Market share in Colombia

(%) of sales

Distribution 
channels

2014 Environment

Strategic challenges 2015

Principal categories
(%) of total sales

Colombia
Sales 100%
Plants: 2

Pastas Nutresa
Raw materials (RM)
(%) Production cost

Presence of our main brands

Brands with sales >USD 50 M

52,3%Pasta

Others

1,6%95,9%

4,1%

Presence in 
one country

72,0%28,0%

*Annual Compound Growth Rate (TACC)
Employees

(includes direct, indirect 
and apprentices)

694
National

Variation

 

Others

Stores and 
convenience stores

Supermarket 
chains

26,3%

Packaging 
material

10,8%

62,9%

Wheat

Pasta represents
3,7% of the
 total Grupo 
Nutresa sales

Sales in Colombia 
represent  100%
of the total of the 
business unit

100%

Direct Employees

3,2%2014 238

5,3%2013 231

9,1%2012 209

10,5%-2,1%2014 25,1

11,1%-13,0%2013 26,0

14,1%61,3%2012 29,0

1,5% 1,6%2014 238

1,7% 3,5%2013 231

1,1% 7,9%2012 209

2014 6,5%

2013 58,4%

2012 64,3%

2014 11,6%

2013 4,3%

2012 2,0%

This represents 2,9% 
of the total Grupo
 Nutresa EBITDA

President
Others 
(includes MOD, CIF 
and other minor RM) 

Production 
Plants

A positive balance in sales and 
profitability in the midst of a 
highly competitive environment.
Market leadership is consolidated,
with a record market share 
of 52.3%.
Innovation continues to boost 
the category with the introduction 
of new flavors and developing 
consumption niches with products having greater added value.
Increased efficiencies in the production and administration of the 
Business to balance the level of profitability.
Increased storage capacity for wheat, which makes inventory 
management flexible, generates operational efficiencies and allows 
us to capitalize on price opportunities in the wheat market.

Increase the profitability of the Business in an environment 
of devaluation in Colombia, a market sensitive to price 
increases and the entry of new local competitors.
Explore the international market by leveraging the produc-
tion infrastructure we have in Colombia, Chile and Mexico.
Reorient the Doria brand strategy, based on the deep 
knowledge of the Colombian consumer, to encourage the 
use of the product in daily preparations to increase the 
frequency of consumption and penetration in the dish, and, 
thus, increase per–capita consumption.
Effectively innovate with differentiated value proposals 
within the pasta category, which have valued the Business.
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Performance of the businesses

Fabián Andrés
Restrepo Zambrano
[In Nutresa since 1996]

Margin

TACC -4,7% 
TACC 4,4% 

Total sales
COP Billions COP Billions

Sales in 
Colombia
COP Billions

Price Volume

TACC 4,4% 

18,0%Ebitda

Innovation 
Sales
(% of sales)

10,0%

72,0%

Increase in 
productivity
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Distribution 
channels
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52,3%Pasta

Others
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4,1%

Presence in 
one country

72,0%28,0%

*Annual Compound Growth Rate (TACC)
Employees

(includes direct, indirect 
and apprentices)

694
National

Variation

 

Others
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2014 6,5%
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2012 64,3%

2014 11,6%

2013 4,3%

2012 2,0%

This represents 2,9% 
of the total Grupo
 Nutresa EBITDA

President
Others 
(includes MOD, CIF 
and other minor RM) 

Production 
Plants

A positive balance in sales and 
profitability in the midst of a 
highly competitive environment.
Market leadership is consolidated,
with a record market share 
of 52.3%.
Innovation continues to boost 
the category with the introduction 
of new flavors and developing 
consumption niches with products having greater added value.
Increased efficiencies in the production and administration of the 
Business to balance the level of profitability.
Increased storage capacity for wheat, which makes inventory 
management flexible, generates operational efficiencies and allows 
us to capitalize on price opportunities in the wheat market.

Increase the profitability of the Business in an environment 
of devaluation in Colombia, a market sensitive to price 
increases and the entry of new local competitors.
Explore the international market by leveraging the produc-
tion infrastructure we have in Colombia, Chile and Mexico.
Reorient the Doria brand strategy, based on the deep 
knowledge of the Colombian consumer, to encourage the 
use of the product in daily preparations to increase the 
frequency of consumption and penetration in the dish, and, 
thus, increase per–capita consumption.
Effectively innovate with differentiated value proposals 
within the pasta category, which have valued the Business.
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Performance of the businesses

Juan Chusán 
Andrade 
[In Nutresa since 2013]

Agreement to purchase Grupo 
El Corral, the largest restaurant 
chain in Colombia, with a total
of 362 restaurants.
Leader in the fast casual segment 
in the area of hamburgers and grill 
with its brands El Corral and Leños 
y Carbón, and in casual dining with its brands El Corral Gourmet and 
Leños Gourmet.
It also operates leading international brands, such as Papa John's 
(pizza), Yogen Früz (frozen yogurt) and Krispy Kreme (doughnuts).

Launch new products and categories to increase 
consumer diversity and frequency of visits.
Remodel stores with modern, friendly environments.
Continue the focus of improving the management 
and business–management model.

Consolidate the new Retail Food business unit.
Evaluate opportunities of each one of the brands 
and properly develop their potential.
Brace the expansion plan in Grupo Nutresa 
capabilities and develop the Grupo El Corral units.

The 4.500 Grupo El Corral 
employees did not consolidate 
Grupo Nutresa figures in 2014.

Execute the opening plan.

Margin

17,4%

COP Billions

Sales in 
Colombia
COP Billions

International 
Sales
USD Millions

Ebitda

Relevant aspects 2014

Grupo El Corral:

Ice Cream Parlors

Starbucks:

Ice Cream Parlors

Starbucks

Grupo El Corral 

Perspectives 2015

Central America
Sales 13%
Restaurants: 158

The Dominican
Republic
Sales 9,0%
Restaurants: 286

Colombia
Sales 78%
Restaurants: 345

Retail Food *
Presence of our main brandsApproximately 

800
points
of sale

40%60%

Employees
(includes direct, indirect 

and apprentices)

6.103
National

23,0%77,0%

2014 523 2014 91

Total sales
COP Billions

Products and campaigns to refresh the brand and generate growth in 
transactions and average ticket value were launched.
Improvement in the business–management model at the points of 
sale to increase the number of transactions per store.
Remodeling of stores.
Positive growth in sales.
Launch of campaigns to attract consumers without deteriorating the 
average level of purchase, with a focus on value.

Opening of six stores in Bogotá in less than six months, exceeding the 
initial plan.
Great acceptance of the brand.
The coffee served in the stores is provided by the Grupo Nutresa 
Coffee Business.

2014 408 2014 57

Grupo El Corral 
international has  
17 restaurants 
abroad under the 
franchise model

Grupo El Corral 
international 
operations

Helados POPS 
operations

*The figures that appear here are illustrative, allowing the 
reader to form an idea about the new Retail Food business 
unit. The Grupo El Corral accounting information will be 
consolidated to the Grupo Nutresa S. A. figures beginning 
in March 2015, and will form part of the Retail Food 
Business, which will also include the results of our ice 
cream parlors, which were previously presented in the Ice 
Cream unit.

Miami,Fl

Costa Rica 

Nicaragua

Guatemala

Panamá

Chile

Ecuador

International

Total sales 
represents
7,6% of the total of 
the Grupo Nutresa unit

Sales in Colombia 
represent 
78% of the total of 
the business unit

International sales 
represent 
22,0% of the goal of 
the business unit

Direct Employees

This represents  9,7%
of the total Grupo 
Nutresa EBITDA

President
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Performance of the businesses

Juan Chusán 
Andrade 
[In Nutresa since 2013]
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Retail Food *
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800
points
of sale

40%60%

Employees
(includes direct, indirect 

and apprentices)

6.103
National

23,0%77,0%

2014 523 2014 91

Total sales
COP Billions

Products and campaigns to refresh the brand and generate growth in 
transactions and average ticket value were launched.
Improvement in the business–management model at the points of 
sale to increase the number of transactions per store.
Remodeling of stores.
Positive growth in sales.
Launch of campaigns to attract consumers without deteriorating the 
average level of purchase, with a focus on value.

Opening of six stores in Bogotá in less than six months, exceeding the 
initial plan.
Great acceptance of the brand.
The coffee served in the stores is provided by the Grupo Nutresa 
Coffee Business.

2014 408 2014 57

Grupo El Corral 
international has  
17 restaurants 
abroad under the 
franchise model

Grupo El Corral 
international 
operations

Helados POPS 
operations

*The figures that appear here are illustrative, allowing the 
reader to form an idea about the new Retail Food business 
unit. The Grupo El Corral accounting information will be 
consolidated to the Grupo Nutresa S. A. figures beginning 
in March 2015, and will form part of the Retail Food 
Business, which will also include the results of our ice 
cream parlors, which were previously presented in the Ice 
Cream unit.

Miami,Fl

Costa Rica 

Nicaragua

Guatemala

Panamá

Chile

Ecuador

International

Total sales 
represents
7,6% of the total of 
the Grupo Nutresa unit

Sales in Colombia 
represent 
78% of the total of 
the business unit

International sales 
represent 
22,0% of the goal of 
the business unit

Direct Employees

This represents  9,7%
of the total Grupo 
Nutresa EBITDA

President
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Performance of the businesses

Sol Beatriz 
Arango Mesa 
[In Nutresa since 1992]

Consolidation of the strategic 
sourcing process with savings of 
more than COP 72 Billion.
Creation of a shared services 
sub–center in Costa Rica.
Beginning of Nutresa Shanghai 
operations and its consolidation as 
a purchasing office in China.

Incorporate management technologies and tools that expedite 
decision making, generate productivity and bring Grupo Nutresa 
and its businesses to consumers and clients. 
Implement innovation, productivity and capacity–development 
projects for our clients.
Strengthen the international presence and coverage of high–quality 
global services, seeking additional synergies among businesses 
and geographies.
Manage competitive sourcing in new geographies and categories.
Ensure the closing of gaps in Sustainability with an international 
focus and in the new Grupo Nutresa businesses.
Strengthen leadership and commitment and maintain an adequate 
organizational climate as a platform to accomplish results.
Promote a culture of client–oriented service.

Innovation

Market intelligence

Media buying

Sustainability

Ex–pats

Fundación Nutresa

Vidarium

Human Development
Corporate Communications

Develop our commercial–management system, according to 
changes in the environment and the incorporation of 
knowledge of the shopper by segment, to accompany our 
clients in their rotation and profitability processes.

Achievements and Progress 2014
Relevant Aspects 2014

Perspectives 2015

Productivity and competitiveness

Excellence in Service

Colombia

Comercial Nutresa - Support unit Servicios Nutresa - Support unit

77,0%23,0%

Employees
(includes direct, indirect 

and apprentices)

5.303

49,0% 51,0%

Employees
(includes direct, indirect 

and apprentices)

758
Shared Services

Identification of environmental and social risks in the supply chain 
and construction of the mitigation plan.
Begin the Human Rights management system.  Update the Grupo 
Nutresa Materiality Matrix and the Risk Matrix.

External certification of the integrated management system in 
matters of quality, care of the environment, labor safety, healthy 
lifestyles, and personal, family and labor conciliation, ensuring that 
we are a world–class service provider. 
Update the portfolio and design new services, accompanied by a 
management model that contributes to improving the satisfaction
of Servicios Nutresa clients.

Álvaro Arango 
Restrepo
[In Nutresa since 2001]

4,4 %

-1,6%

6,8%

2014

TACC 0,9% 

2013 1.842

1.923

2012 1.871

Total sales*
COP Billions

Annual Compound Growth Rate (TACC)
*These figures are already included in all the businesses

0,8%

20,2%

79,0%

(%) of sales
Distribution centers in Colombia

Others Stores and 
convenience 
stores

Supermarket 
chains

Consolidation of the 
business–management 
system, in which the mega 
brand and omnichannel sales 
networks are integrated, 
supported in a profound 
understanding of the market.
Sales networks are strengthe-
ned through a focus on 
strategic brands, effective innovation and portfolio segmentation.
In the mass networks, the management in a point of sale is 
strengthened in all the channels. The modern channel grows 
through a commercial relationship characterized by collaborative 
work and joint construction.
In stores and convenience stores, we launched a massification 
model of commercial developers, which has generated a 
positive impact.
Qualification with a level of excellence against international 
standards in satisfaction and loyalty.  Recognized as the best 
mass–consumer supplier in Colombia.
In the specialized networks, Novaventa and La Recetta achieved 
excellent performance by presenting double–digit sales growth.

Market
Coverage 

Colombia

Costa Rica

China

Effectively implement value proposals that accompany the develop-
ment of the modern channel and its different formats.
Advance in consolidating the commercial–management model 
through the omnichannel strategy.
Design and implement digital platforms.

Perspectives 2015

Attention coverage

Service centers

Shanghai

San José

Medellín
Bogotá
Cali
Barranquilla

Strategic Sourcing
Infrastructure

Administrative Services

Corporate Supports

Auditing
Legal Assistance
Risks, Insurance and Safety

Risk Administration 
and Control Services

Financial Planning
Accounting
Taxes
Treasury

Financial Services

Human Services

Information 
Technology Services

Sustainability Management

2014

Direct Employees

Direct Employees

Comercial Nutresa 
represents 
29,8% of the total 
Grupo Nutresa sales

President President
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Performance of the businesses

Sol Beatriz 
Arango Mesa 
[In Nutresa since 1992]
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and construction of the mitigation plan.
Begin the Human Rights management system.  Update the Grupo 
Nutresa Materiality Matrix and the Risk Matrix.

External certification of the integrated management system in 
matters of quality, care of the environment, labor safety, healthy 
lifestyles, and personal, family and labor conciliation, ensuring that 
we are a world–class service provider. 
Update the portfolio and design new services, accompanied by a 
management model that contributes to improving the satisfaction
of Servicios Nutresa clients.

Álvaro Arango 
Restrepo
[In Nutresa since 2001]
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-1,6%

6,8%

2014

TACC 0,9% 
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(%) of sales
Distribution centers in Colombia

Others Stores and 
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stores
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chains

Consolidation of the 
business–management 
system, in which the mega 
brand and omnichannel sales 
networks are integrated, 
supported in a profound 
understanding of the market.
Sales networks are strengthe-
ned through a focus on 
strategic brands, effective innovation and portfolio segmentation.
In the mass networks, the management in a point of sale is 
strengthened in all the channels. The modern channel grows 
through a commercial relationship characterized by collaborative 
work and joint construction.
In stores and convenience stores, we launched a massification 
model of commercial developers, which has generated a 
positive impact.
Qualification with a level of excellence against international 
standards in satisfaction and loyalty.  Recognized as the best 
mass–consumer supplier in Colombia.
In the specialized networks, Novaventa and La Recetta achieved 
excellent performance by presenting double–digit sales growth.

Market
Coverage 

Colombia
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Effectively implement value proposals that accompany the develop-
ment of the modern channel and its different formats.
Advance in consolidating the commercial–management model 
through the omnichannel strategy.
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Perspectives 2015

Attention coverage

Service centers

Shanghai

San José

Medellín
Bogotá
Cali
Barranquilla

Strategic Sourcing
Infrastructure

Administrative Services

Corporate Supports

Auditing
Legal Assistance
Risks, Insurance and Safety
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Accounting
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2014

Direct Employees
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Comercial Nutresa 
represents 
29,8% of the total 
Grupo Nutresa sales

President President
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Enjoying 
the outdoors 

changes your life.
Carolina Amaya, 33 years old. Plastic artist



To learn more about  
the Grupo Nutresa Campaign  

“Enjoy a Healthy Life,” visit our  
Webpage www.nutresa.com

Market growth  
and leadership
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Market growth and leadership

Highlights

Profitable growth and international expansion

The characteristics and the constant evolution of the 
strategic region where the Grupo Nutresa markets 
are developed present the challenge of generating 
expansion and positioning strategies, which allow 
increased trade and the opening of new markets.

Grupo Nutresa  
had sales 

for COP6,5Trillion 
in 2014, a growth 

of 9,5% 
and an EBITDA margin 

of 13,4%.

Sales in Colombia were 

de COP4,2 Trillion, 
with a growth of 8,6% 
compared to 2013, of which 
7,1% corresponds to volume 
and 1,4% to price. Grupo Nutresa 
closed the year with a 60,0%  
market share in Colombia.

In the international 
market, sales for 

USD1.115Billion 
were achieved, with a growth 
of 3,7% and a participation  

of 34,9%  
of the total Grupo  
Nutresa sales.

[G4-DMA]
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Grupo Nutresa Trading System 2020
Brand management  [G4-4]
The brand management model is the guiding principle of the commercial strategy; 
it is centered on consumers, implying a market orientation to satisfy consumer 
needs with contributions to their wellness, nutrition and pleasure. It is determined 
by consumer segmentation and understanding the buyer, the value proposals and 
the flawless execution in the point of sale to ensure the preference, satisfaction, 
loyalty and, consequently, the leadership of the brands in the categories in which 
they participate. 

The overwhelming presence in the macro–categories of food, beverages and 
snacks evidence the appropriate attention to consumers. In 2014, the principal 
Grupo Nutresa brands in these macro–categories obtained growths of 16,0% in 
food, 3,5% in beverages, 20,0% in snacks and 6,6% in ice cream. The brand–ar-
chitecture strategy has as its pillar the Nutresa, Zenú, Pietrán, Festival, Tosh, Noel, 
Chocolisto, Jet, Doria, Colcafé, and Crem Helado mega brands, which, together, 
grew 14,4% in total sales (domestic plus international). The Tresmontes Lucchetti 
international brands Kryzpo and Livean grew 19,8% and 18,4%, respectively. 

In the macro–category of general food are found the catego-
ries, such as cold cuts, pasta, frozen dishes and snacks, long–
life foods, ready–to–eat cereals, food solutions, soups, creams, 
broths and sauces.

Sales for the six principal brands surpassed COP 1.268 
Billion and grew 16,0%

Sales for the eight principal brands surpassed  
COP 897 Billion and grew 20,0% In the beverage category are hot drinks, refreshing drinks, juices 

and nectars.

Sales for the six principal brands surpassed COP 770 
Billion and grew 3,5%

The snack category is comprised of biscuits, candy, 
cereals, nuts and potato chips, among others.

In the ice cream category.

Sales for the three principal brands surpassed COP 
392 Billion and grew 6,6%

C=0 M= 100 Y= 100 K=0

Pantone 1795C 
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To achieve comparability, these brands will be included beginning in 2015.



Grupo Nutresa60

Market growth and leadership

Network management
The model of reaching clients is aimed at highlighting the brands at 
the point of sale; it obtained achievement indicators of excellence 
during the year. In Colombia, the commercial network of Cárnicos 
Nutresa consolidated the distribution of the ice cream and juice 
businesses for the modern channel and independent convenience 
stores, representing an increase in sales of 23,2%, compared to 
11,8% of the business total. In the international field, thanks 
to the synergies among the Grupo Nutresa companies, we have 
deepened sales in the traditional Mexican channel, with attention 
to nearly 250.000 points of sale through the Tresmontes Lucchetti 
dealer network, as well as a 13,2% growth in the traditional chan-
nel (stores) in Chile.

Client satisfaction  [G4-PR5]
The loyalty of Grupo Nutresa clients 
was measured with a result of 87,7% 
in satisfaction and 70,4% in loyalty for 
national clients; among internation-
al clients, satisfaction was 87,8% and 
loyalty, 59%. These results, according 
to the methodology used by the Ipsos 
research agency, mean a degree of ex-
cellence in both indicators.

National clients

Satisfaction 87,7%
Loyalty 70,4%

Internationesl clients

Satisfaction 87,8%
Loyalty 59%

Grupo Nutresa brings the best value proposal to its consumers.

Effective innovation
Innovations, especially in ice cream, candy, nuts, biscuits and cold cuts, propped up the 
growth in sales, with a participation of 17,7% in 2014.
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Opportunities and strategy

Grupo Nutresa Trading System 2020

Grupo Nutresa’s commercial management is centered on the strategy of brands (mega 
brands) and sales networks (omni channel), which are based on the deep, integrated un-
derstanding of the market. This consists of the generation, transfer, appropriation and 
application of the relevant, differentiated knowledge of the major market forces.
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Challenges

risks in the competitive environment
Due to its economic dynamism, the strategic region defined by 

Grupo Nutresa represents an attraction for big players in the 
food industry that have differentiated, relevant strengths 
(global products or local products among other features), en-
abling them to reach some segments of the population with 
innovative value propositions.

This requires superior performance by Grupo Nutresa to remain 
leaders and maintain and increase the preference, satisfaction 
and loyalty of consumers, shoppers and clients.

In that sense, the Organization continues to strengthen its distri-
bution networks with a focus on strategic brands, effective 
innovation and portfolio segmentation to address the effect 
of competition focused on prices and promotions. Likewise, 
in Mexico, Guatemala, El Salvador, Costa Rica, Panama, Peru 
and Chile, we have been implementing the model of brand 
management and a deep understanding of the buyer and 
consumer, which enhances their recognition and leadership.

Moreover, in developing channels and new ways of reaching con-
sumers, we highlight the following in the environment:

•	 In the strategic region, channels and options to which 
consumers and buyers have access are increased. In this 

situation, marketing networks specialize and develop to 
continue as leaders of brands and distribution.

•	 The modern channel, in line with consumer needs and es-
pecially in the formats of convenience or proximity, is in the 
consolidation phase. For this, we generate client develop-
ment strategies in the independent and traditional chan-
nels, and the management capabilities of the modern chan-
nel are also strengthened.

•	 In this same channel, there is evidence of the evolution of ge-
neric products, which compete with low prices and wide dis-
play in the points of sale. Additionally, some client formats im-
port products of recognized brands at more affordable prices. 
Against this, Grupo Nutresa works to strengthen the capital of 
its brands and the development of differentiated portfolios. In 
turn, the basis for the model of excellence has been developed 
in prices to capture the greater value of the brands.

The international market represents a substantial part of the 
Organization’s income generation and shows high growth rates 
for the businesses. Likewise, raw materials play a key role in 
the competitiveness of the Grupo Nutresa products, such as co-
coa and coffee which presented the greatest negative impact in 
2014, unlike wheat, sugar and fats.
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Brand management
With the map of consumer brands, the Or-
ganization works on developing the port-
folio adapted to some identified segments 
of consumers, which is complemented 
with the mainstreaming and targeting of 
the mega brands. Likewise, the Organiza-
tion incorporates knowledge of the client 
buyer in the different categories and seg-
ments into the design of commercial ini-
tiatives. This is done to understand their 
purchase missions and be more assertive.

The purchase missions are understood 
as consumption occasions that generate 
a purchase attitude and the behavior that 
occurs at the point of sale.

Network management
The model to reach the market, through 
distribution networks, evolves in order to 
adapt to the new reality of clients and 
their purchasers to strengthen the display 
elements and visibility at the point of sale 
and attend the multi–channel behavior of 
consumers.

To strengthen brand visibility, there are 
nearly 177.000 commercial assets, of 
which more than 100.000 are cold and 
frozen products. Additionally, chocolate 
candy has 2.500 freezer exhibitors that 
improve the presents of the portfolio in 
warm climates.

Consumer
Person who eats Grupo  

Nutresa products

Shopper
Person who makes  

the transaction

Clients 
The Grupo

Nutresa Channel
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Consumer (Who)

Reason (Why)

Need (What)

Occasion  
(What for / When)

Product
Package
Price
Visibility
Point of Sales (P. S.)
Promotion
Furnishings / Equipment

Mission of  
purchase

Choice of the channel

Generation
of the

attitude to
purchase

Purchase
behavior

Purpose of the con-
sumption moment

Chilean shopkeeper (grocer).
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Progress

The brand–management system
To ensure the preference, satisfaction, 
loyalty and leadership in the markets in 
which Grupo Nutresa participates and to 
better understand the needs of consum-
ers, shoppers and clients, the commercial 
system that builds and strengthens the 
value propositions of brands and net-
works was consolidated.

The integral implementation of the 
brand– and network–management mod-
el obtained the results expected based on 
excellent implementation: 

	 We defined the brand architecture and the strategic role of the mega brands, 
which, thanks to their positioning and achievements, constitute icons for 
Grupo Nutresa and are projected as pillars to support the patrimony of the 
Organization and contribute to the internationalization process. 

	 In turn, their strength, ability to relate and expansion potential into new 
markets, segments or categories, allows us to: 
•	 Maximize market coverage to seize potential opportunities.
•	 Minimize the overlapping of brands to avoid having more competition 

in the same market segment.
	 Strengthening the cash equity reflects performance as a measure to deter-

mine attitudes toward the brand in the market, the level of proximity, the 
barriers to consumption and maintaining leadership in each category. 

From the deep understanding of con-
sumers, shoppers and clients, Grupo Nu-
tresa works to develop the main drivers 
of growth, to strengthen its brands and 
efficiently expand its networks. 

Mainstreaming powerful brands applied to products developed on any pro-
ductive platform has allowed Grupo Nutresa to further the consolidation of a 
portfolio in line with market needs, with the development of products accord-
ing to low disbursement currency fractions, mainly for the traditional channel, 
which allows low–income consumers to access products and brands.

The assets of platform brands and products become an opportunity and 
will continue to be a priority to progress in the markets. Initiatives, such as the 
expansion of plants in Peru, the installation of new biscuit lines in the United 
States and Chile, and the construction of the line of pastas in Mexico, prove it.

The model of reaching customers is aimed at highlighting the brands at 
the point of sale. To do this, we work on product presence and visibility, 
both in refrigerators and freezers as well as on the shelving for groceries 
and candy. Measurements show an improvement of more than eight points 
(Source: Market Team).

Long life • Prepared food 
Refrigerated and frozen food • Cold cuts

+/- =
Attitudinal Equity Market Effects Effective Equity

The ability of the brand to generate a 
desire to consume the brand or repeat 
increased consumption

To what extent are market effects worked 
to allow this wish to become consumption 
of the brand?

Effective equity is reflected in the per-
formance of the brand in the Market 
Share

Innovation

1. New categories
2. New sizes
3. New products

Implementation

1. Distribution
2. Control of depleted 

products
3. Better selection

Price Management

1. Intelligent offers 
for shoppers

2. Optimal price ma-
nagement

Maintaining leadership in each category
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Enhancing international networks  
and distribution
International expansion is a strategic priority of Gru-
po Nutresa; therefore, it relies on several fronts to 
consolidate its development. One is distribution, a 
differentiating potential in regions such as Central 
America and countries like Chile, Mexico, Peru and 
Ecuador, where last year initiatives to strengthen 
sales fundamentals (market share, numeric and 
weighted distribution, average order, active invento-
ry, number of references and percentage of depleted 
products) were secured, both quantitatively as well 
as the quality of the product reaching the different 
channels. The extension of the numeric distribution, 
the consolidation of the portfolios distributed and 
the development of strategic brands were key to im-
prove this objective.

Grupo Nutresa maintains its presence in 71 coun-
tries, 14 of which have their own production plants 
or distribution. According to the potential and deep-
ening in each market, a specific plan has been de-
fined for the commercial development of the territo-
ries to strengthen the positioning of the brands and 
increase participation in each category.

The synergies that Grupo Nutresa has developed 
are concentrated in the use of platforms for new 
Grupo Nutresa categories, the consolidation of the 
distribution networks, knowledge of consumers and 
shoppers and multi–category promotional activities, 
among others. This offers greater speed in commer-
cial development since, if we have powerful and 
complementary portfolios, we can penetrate mar-
kets with greater force.

Commercial development in the Southeast Asian 
market continues to be one of the objectives of 
sustainable growth, mainly in the coffee category. 
Aligned with this goal, we have strengthened stra-
tegic alliances with global players, with whom we 
develop activities of market knowledge, implemen-
tation of marketing models and creation of supply 
and production networks that leverage the growth 
targets.

The implementation of these synergies has al-
lowed the commercial growth of Grupo Nutresa 
and has also improved the level of the knowledge 
of globalization and the mentality of its companies 
and employees, which promotes and facilitates the 
achievement of long–term, sustainable goals.

Leveraging platforms 
One of the strengths of the Organization in the re-

gion is the strategic location of its productive platforms and their capabil-
ities, both in their marketing vehicles and production plants.

Countries such as Costa Rica, Peru and Mexico have strengthened 
their distribution with the Tresmontes Lucchetti portfolio, making it fea-
sible to reach new grocer channels and deepen the modern and tradi-
tional channels.

The new portfolios reinforce the presence of the brands and support 
synergies in promotional and distribution activities that allow faster prog-
ress in commercial development.

On the other hand, such diverse capabilities of these productive plat-
forms complement the inter–company portfolios, allowing an exchange 
of products, giving Grupo Nutresa competitiveness and flexibility and ex-
panding its portfolio options in the different markets. 

Our internationalization model
Since 2000, the international–market development has been part of the 
Grupo Nutresa strategic plan as a key to sustainable, profitable growth.

For this, we ensure the transfer of knowledge and good practices among 
the platforms through the Multi–Latina Agenda, which allows optimizing 
resources, capitalizing on experiences, creating joint activities, unifying cri-
teria and developing a team that values cultural differences with the ability 
to act locally with a global vision, with openness to face challenges.

During 2014, we progressed in consolidating our internationalization 
model, adjusted to the needs of each market and each category. Thus, we 
incorporated the distribution–matrix tool into the Multi–Latina Agenda, 
to accompany and monitor key sales and distribution of the international 
operations.

Client satisfaction and loyalty are the Organization’s priority.
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Chile
Others
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Through the continuous evaluation of variables, such as market share, numeric and weighted 
distribution, average order, active inventory, number of references and percentage of depleted 
products, we seek to lead international operations to continuous optimization, making compari-
sons with a consolidated operation like that of Colombia.

Sales in emerging countries COP billions

Summary of sales in emerging countries
% Sales in emerging countries
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2000 2002 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Colombia Colombia Costa Rica

Creation Joint Venture 

Colombia Colombia Nicaragua

Panama

Costa Rica Mexico Colombia Panama Costa Rica Chile Malaysia 

Puerto Rico Costa Rica Peru Panama USA ColombiaMalaysia Colombia

Merger Acquisition 

Nestlé 
Biscuit 

Chocolate 
Nestlé 

Panama

Colombia

Colombia

®

The 
Dominican 
Republic

Evolution of Grupo Nutresa’s 
International Presence [G4-8]

Evolution of Grupo Nutresa’s [G4-9]
Acquisitions / Mergers

Export destination

Own distribution

Grupo Nutresa presence



Integrated report  2014 67

Market growth and leadership

How has Grupo Nutresa internationalization occurred?

Vision
•	 Market expansion in the strategic region 

– diversification of destinations
•	 Long–term objectives
•	 Autonomy and strategic coherence

Internationalization strategies
•	 Our own international distribution
•	 Creation of the brand
•	 Acquisitions–productive platforms

Our own model–
Autochthonous

Consistency in implementation
Persistence in the face  
of difficulties

Humility and an attitude 
to learn

Suitable teams.
Human quality and basic competencies
Development of people in specific competencies.

Innovation in the business model 
Innovation is key for Grupo Nutresa’s international develop-

ment. The markets in the strategic region present dynamics that 
demand being agile and effective in the innovation that is taken 
to the market; for this reason, the brand–management model 
consolidates this development.

From a clear understanding of the consumer, while managing 
innovation and accompanying the communication and position-
ing of new products, we become more effective in the market.

The prioritized, targeted allocation of investment resources in 
the leading brands has also permitted strengthening their pres-
ence in international markets with increases in participation, im-

Cocoa in Costa Rica 

63,9% share

Integration of the sustainability  
strategy in the operations in the  
strategic region
In order to advance in the consolidation of the Gru-
po Nutresa sustainability strategy, during 2014 we 
advanced in understanding operations outside of Co-
lombia; noteworthy is the disclosure of the Materiality 
Matrix, which allows companies to focus their man-
agement on the material issues of Grupo Nutresa. 
Likewise, we deepened the sustainability strategy in 
the strategic objectives of the Organization, as well as 
the internalization of the sustainability goals for 2020; 
we also established the work plans with each one of 
the operations to close the gaps in sustainability.

Biscuits in Costa Rica 62,2% share

Cold instant beverages in Chile 

63,2% share

Soluble coffee and mixes in Panama 

45,9% share (volume)

provements in the value for consumers, loyalty and household 
penetration, which maintains the leadership in biscuits in Costa 
Rica (a 62,2% share), cold instant beverages in Chile (63,2%), 
soluble coffee and mixes in Panama (a share of nearly 50% by 
volume), and cocoas in Peru and Costa Rica (shares of 27,8% 
and 63,9%, respectively).

A work model was developed to achieve high standards of op-
eration in the ice cream parlors and to empower the basis of the 
operation of the franchise system. Today we have Point of Sale 
(POS) in the majority of the ice cream parlors in the Dominican 
Republic, which allows a better reading of sales and know what 
our consumers buy every day and at every hour in the stores. 

Leadership in:
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Future vision 

One of the principal challenges is the cultural evolution toward 
micro–segmentation. Noteworthy are the following aspects:
•	 Structural changes in the population in terms of demo-

graphics (more adult, productive populations) and geo-
graphics (from rural to urban), among other changes.

•	 Social mobility and improved quality of life (by 2025, it is 
expected that the middle class will represent 75% of Lat-
in America). This transforms the framework of decisions, 
which pass from restriction to economic availability and the 
large range of options.

•	 The effect of technology on the new consumer and buyer.
•	 The growing awareness of nutrition in health, wellness, and 

the new requirements that this implies.

Generalities about today’s consumer
•	 Faced with the need to achieve a modern standard 

of living, consumers are looking for value proposi-
tions that are tuned to this cause.

•	 The consumer has understood that innovation, 
above all, has allowed him to gain access to other 
perceived high–value assets, such as mobile phones, 
televisions, and energy, among others.

International market growth [G4-8]
To reach the Mega 2020, which seeks a level of sales double the 2013 
sales and an EBITDA margin between 12% and 14%, market share outside 
Colombia is critical; we expect that 45% of the total 2020 sales will come 
from markets outside Colombia.

That’s why the growth strategy in the region is aimed at seeking new 
business opportunities that help the minimum growth of 11% annually 
in each country with a Grupo Nutresa focus. Also, an integrated vision 
of a country with leveraged businesses, which promotes a cross–opening 
to incorporate a competitive portfolio and better business practices, will 
continue.

The focus will be on developing more productive export platforms, both 
inter–company as well as toward other markets, and in capturing opportu-
nities in high–potential markets.

To be more competitive, we will continue working on the knowledge 
of buyers and consumers, to offer them products that meet their expec-
tations, through a broad portfolio that satisfies their needs of wellness, 
pleasure and nutrition.

In the United States, under the scheme of multi–channel distribution, we 
will continue to increase attention to the Anglo and Hispanic markets with 
our brands, as well as develop high–potential clients in private and indus-
trial brands for the Chocolate, Biscuit and Coffee Businesses. 
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Some initiatives

Focusing on the strategic definition of brand architecture
The Grupo Nutresa mega brand model permitted a growth of 14,4% between 
2013 and 2014.

C=0 M= 100 Y= 100 K=0

Pantone 1795C 

Marketer Model / 
Cold Cut Business

The Cold Cut Business implemented a 
marketer model that works like a mirror 
of the attention scheme for the direct 
traditional channel, and allows taking the 
commercial, logistics and administrative 
practices of the Business to 45 Market-
ers, ensuring an economically sustainable 
model over time for both parties. Note-
worthy are: Compliance of the 2014 
budget: 105,4% with growth of 12,2%; 
160.000 effective clients monthly, equal 
to 12.000 more than at the beginning 
of the project; numeric distribution of 
73%, five points above the beginning of 
the project, as measured by Nielsen; and 
1.650 direct employees in the marketers.

22,3%

17,0%

19,6%

25,0%

10,1%

0,8%

45,4%

8,3%

10,0%

5,9%

Growth of the mega brands

Cold Cuts Business logistics employees at the Ibague distribution center.
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The architecture of the Grupo Nutresa sales and distribu-
tion networks is comprised of massive, specialized and 
international networks. In this sense, the initiatives to 
highlight are the following:

Massive networks
The marketer model 
The Grupo Nutresa arrival model seeks to maximize 
the presence of our brands in clients, which ensures 
the delivery of a unique value proposition. For some 
types of clients or geographies, we have developed 
the marketer model with exclusive sales networks to 
complement distribution, consistent with the point–
of–sale management model.

Nearly 60 businessmen, with a sales force of more 
than 1.250 vendors, are accompanied in the integral 
development of their business by defining the man-
agement and administrative parameters with them, 
while Grupo Nutresa conserves the control of the terri-
tory, the client and his information. This has been a key 
element to efficiently increase the numeric distribution 
of the categories, which is evidenced, for example, in 
Chocolate Candy, + 3 points; Nuts: + 7 points; and 
Pasta: + 3 points.

The massification strategy
This is a model that seeks to develop clients as the differentiating element of the 
value proposal that has a specialized commercial figure in its point of sale. This 
commercial developer guides the redesign of the businesses to maximize their 
market opportunities and keep them valid over time. The integral advice offered 
focuses on the work of the categories and, additionally, on the universe of the 
store or convenience store. 

Specialized networks
Entrepreneur mothers 
This is a direct sale through an inclusive 
business proposal, the sales of which grew 
25,1% with a network of 98.700 Entrepre-
neur Mothers, who reach 1.500.000 Colom-
bian households every three weeks, with a 
portfolio classified by categories according to 
consumer needs.

Each product offered in the catalogue 
seeks to generate greater value and client 
service to bring the best quality products and 
leading brands of not only food but also a 
comprehensive supplementary portfolio to 
their homes. Novaventa finances the business 
of the Entrepreneur Mothers, with the possi-
bility of building a credit history that serves as 
a commercial reference.

This model has impacted more than 

3.500 clients 
and has generated additional  
growth for the Organization  

of 31% above the average.

Grupo Nutresa Networks
Massive Specialized Network of 

international 
sales and distri-

bution

Business Mother visiting the Novaventa operations center in Carmen de Viboral.

Architecture of the distribution networks
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International networks
Empowerment of international platforms  
and networks 
During 2014, work began on the mounting, expan-
sion and remodeling of productive capacities in dif-
ferent countries and operations:
•	 The project to manufacture crackers in Texas, 

in the United States, will offer the possibility 
of competing in a high–potential market, with 
growth exceeding the total of the category 
and a temporary shortage situation by current 
manufacturers. 

•	 The Tresmontes Lucchetti baked snack line in 
Chile was culminated, allowing it to begin partic-
ipating in new categories in the Chilean market. 
Likewise, the production project in Mexico for 
pastas and Cold Instant Beverages (CIB), led by 
Tresmontes Lucchetti, will endow competitive capabilities and proximity to a high–
consumption market. 

•	 Helados POPS and Helados BON had representative advances in terms of remodel-
ing and opening new stores in the Dominican Republic and Central America. More 
than 300 points of sale were remodeled and 22 additional ice cream parlors were 
created. The purchasing experience and visibility in the store improved, which was 
reflected in an increase in the consumer base, the frequency of visit and the aver-
age value of the purchase in each ice cream parlor.                 

BON ice cream shop in Santo Domingo, 
Dominican Republic.

Zuko brand sales promoter in a supermarket in Santiago de Chile.

Commercial synergies among platforms 
Learnings in innovation, development and activation of channels and brand 
building have allowed synergies to transcend commercial aspects and impact 
the understanding of the markets and channels where Grupo Nutresa compa-
nies participate. The entrance into the channel in local market places in Peru, 
supported by Zuko, allows products – such as Chocolisto, Cocoa Winter’s, Col-
café Familiar and Ducales – to participate with presence in this type of client.

The distribution achieved through Tresmontes Lucchetti in Mexico 
strengthens the presence of the brands in the Chocolate platform in this 
country (Nutresa México), to further sales in the traditional channel with 
attention to nearly 250.000 stores through the Tresmontes Lucchetti dis-
tributor network, as well as strengthen the performance in the wholesale 
grocer and supermarket channel.

Development of international industrial channels 
The Chocolate and Coffee Businesses achieved outstanding advances in 
the international development of the industrial channel, consolidating and 
strengthening attention to relevant international companies. The proximity 
and joint work between client and supplier permitted innovating and de-
veloping specialized products for each one, to deliver products that meet 
the technical specifications required, accompanied by a supply network 
with a high level of service.



Enjoying a balanced diet changes your life.
Silvia Henao, 24 years old. Dancer
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Innovation in Grupo Nutresa seeks to 
transversally strengthen the imple-
mentation of the strategic objectives 
of the Organization throughout the 
value chain. 
Through innovation, there is a bet-
ter reading of the environment; new 
business models are made possible; 
the commitment of the team of em-
ployee rises to identify or improve 
processes, ways of working and prod-
ucts; and the different capitals of 
the company are improved or trans-
formed, through the implementation 
of ideas that generate better results.

To learn more about  
the Grupo Nutresa Campaign  

“Enjoy a Healthy Life,” visit our  
Webpage www.nutresa.com[G4-DMA]

Effective  
innovation
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of sales invested 
in innovation

0,5%

$10.000

258

Resources

Billion make up a 
venture–capital fund

2.743
Culture

people exclusively dedicated 
to R & D + I Action 

framework

Innovative Success 
Stories

Innovation 
Promoters

Processes
Seven processes support effective innovation:

Development of new products or services

Research

Prospective

Strategic (competitive and technological) surveillance

Open innovation

Intellectual property

Knowledge management

283

Innovation strategy and governability 
model, portfolio management, metrics 
and management indicators
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Highlights

Innovation sales reached a 17,7%  
share of total sales.

The goal of having 1.795 products  
under the Grupo Nutresa nutritional 
profile was achieved.

We achieved 0,17 Innovative Success 
Stories per employee. 

The innovation system was strengthened through:

•	 Redefining the innovation strategy and defining 
the governance model.

•	 Launching the technological surveillance process.
•	 Conducting three prospective exercises.

Grupo Nutresa established itself as the sector leader 
in innovation, according to the DJSI.

Challenges

For Grupo Nutresa, innovation is one of the key 
elements of future success, as it drives chang-
es and is considered a factor of differentiation. 
Therefore, it maintains the momentum and 
motivation of its programs, improves the un-
derstanding of innovation in all the processes of 
the Organization, enhances intra–entrepreneur-
ship, focuses efforts on innovation, develops a 
network of flexible operations allowing regional 
results, and mitigates the risk due to the concen-
tration of results in one type of business through 
the development of new business models that 
represent the most relevant opportunities.

Similarly, Grupo Nutresa contemplates a series 
of risks, before which it acts preventively. These 
are: little opportunity to identify changes in the 
environment, dismantling of the (internal and 
external) innovation networks, a slower response 
than the demand of the environment, loss of 
sensitive information, brain drain or low ability to 
attract them.

Indicator 2020 Goal 2014 Results

Innovation  
sales 15,0% 17,7% 

Innovative success 
stories / employee 0,3 0,17*

*Calculated on the companies 
that have the Innovative Success 
Stories program.



Grupo Nutresa

Effective innovation

76

Progress 

Third annual Synergy Communities meeting in Medellín.

Research: In Grupo Nutresa, research as a component of the 
innovation model is conducted in the research centers of the 
Businesses and in Vidarium. The latter aims to generate and 
manage knowledge in nutrition, healthy eating and wellness, 
by conducting basic and applied scientific research, training 
human resources, generating new–knowledge products, stra-
tegic surveillance, and contributing to the social appropriation 
of science, technology and innovation.

Since beginning its operation, Vidarium has developed 13 
research projects and has generated new knowledge through 
15 scientific articles and books. It has also participated in 44 
national and international events and has contributed to the 
formation of 12 under–graduate students, young researchers, 
and Masters and Doctoral students.

These results have been obtained in the development of its 
three lines of investigation, framed in cardiovascular health, 
gastrointestinal health and obesity: antioxidants, dietary mod-
ulators of the microbiota, and food components.

Knowledge management: As part of the 
innovation model, knowledge management 
is aimed at the development of organiza-
tional learning, through collaborative work. 
In 2014, we designed our own model to 
measure the level of maturity of knowledge 
management in four dimensions: strategy, culture, processes 
and appropriation of information technologies to manage 
knowledge. With this model, a diagnosis was made in all the 
companies in Colombia – and some abroad – and served as 
input to build the framework for action in knowledge man-
agement toward the Grupo Nutresa Mega 2020. 

In 2014, the synergy communities continued to be corner-
stones for the joint construction of knowledge. As another tool 
for its dynamics, the Campus Nutresa corporate social network 
was implemented in all the Grupo Nutresa companies through 
a strategy of open culture, to provide spaces for participation 
and collaboration to facilitate the creation, preservation and 
transfer of knowledge among employees.

Noteworthy this year is also the Third Annual Encounter of 
Synergy Communities – Sinergia Da Vinci – to share achieve-
ments during 2014, discuss the challenges for 2015 and dis-
cuss issues to be resolved regarding the Grupo Nutresa strat-
egies. Noteworthy also is the consolidation of the corporate 
social network, with 2.500 users and more than 200 virtual 
communities. We expect to reach 4.000 users in Campus Nu-
tresa in 2015.
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Vidarium strives to be a recognized actor in 
the National Science, Technology and Innova-
tion System, and it participates in the recogni-
tion and classification process that Colciencias 
carries out for this purpose.

During 2014, Vidarium participated in national 
and international academic events and, as a re-
sult, was honored with three important awards:
•	 First Place in the ACTA/Acufanud Food and 

Nutrition Category. XII International Congress 
of Food Science and Technology – CONACTA 
– with the work “Chronic coffee consumption 
improves the antioxidant capacity of plasma 
without affecting the lipid profile and vascular 
function. A clinical test.” 

•	 Second Place in the Category “Best Institu-
tional Work”. The XXV Colombian Congress 
of Cardiology and Cardiovascular Surgery. 
“The chronic consumption of filtered coffee 
with the contribution of antioxidants im-
proves the antioxidant capability of plasma 
without affecting the lipid profile in healthy 
adults. A clinical test.” 

•	 Second Place, José Félix Patiño Research 
Award in Metabolism and Nutritional Sup-
port. XXVIII Annual Congress: Advances in 
Metabolism and Nutritional Support, with 
the work “The consumption of filtered cof-
fee with the contribution of antioxidants im-
proves the antioxidant capability of plasma 
without affecting the lipid profile in healthy 
adults. A clinical test.”

Vidarium was also selected in the Colciencias 
Summons 617 to support Young Researchers 
and Innovators, by granting scholarships–intern-
ships. Thanks to this summons, during 2014 and 
until the first quarter of 2015, Nutritionist–Di-
etitian Natalia Zuluaga Arroyave and Biologist 
Juan Jacobo de la Cuesta are working on two 
Vidarium research projects. Similarly, Vidarium 
achieved co–financing for research projects in 
the Science, Technology and Innovation in Health 
Summons 657 and Engineering Research and 
Development Projects Summons 669, as well 
as a summons for specialized training through 
partial scholarships from the Argentine–Brazil-
ian Center for Biotechnology (CABBIO); all these 
summons were from Colciencias. 

Three of the acknowledgements obtained by Vidarium in 2014 
are derived from research made around coffee consumption.
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Exemplary Practices: In 2014, this program to recognize management experiences and projects 
with superior, replicable results, recognized six initiatives: 1) Project ROMA; 2) Prospects for in-
novation management; 3) The marketer as a profitable, sustainable entrepreneur over time; 4) 
Integral management of fixed assets; 5) La Tuerca Johnny’s Skate Tournament; and 6) Sessions of 
prospective innovation.

Exemplary Practice of the Cold Cuts 
Business, second semester of 2014.

Presentation of Innovative Success Stories at Servicios Nutresa.

Innovative Solutions: In 2014, seven challenges were 
launched that generated 126 projects, including: 1) 
Design of an instrument or cooking equipment that 
facilitates the correct preparation of roasted, ground 
coffee simply and economically; 2) Definition of a 
strategy to eliminate unsafe behaviors; and 3) Im-
provement in the culture to identify and communicate 
risk for Grupo Nutresa. Innovative Solutions seeks to 
leverage the extended capabilities in innovation to 
find effective solutions and achieve better results in 
specific situations. To this end, it invites and encour-
ages employees in the different businesses to present 
solution projects. 

Innovative Success Stories: Program to 
participate in the formulation and imple-
mentation of ideas achieved 2.743 Suc-
cess Stories; that is, about 0,17 ideas per 
employee.
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Out of the Box: In 2014, the winning teams of the radical innovation projects 
began to implement their business plans and received the first disburse-
ments from the fund established for this purpose. Due to the nature of the 
projects, the information related to the development of these projects will 
be kept confidential.

An Innovation Culture for Sustainability: During the 2014 Annual Sus-
tainability Event, the Sustainable Nutresa Award was launched in recog-
nition of the Innovative Success Stories that have had a positive impact in 
economic, environmental or social dimensions, and that have the potential 
to be replicated in other Grupo Nutresa businesses. Ten innovations were 
recognized to offer healthier products to consumers, use natural resourc-
es more efficiently, create better labor and work environments, and work 
hand in hand with communities of influence to generate shared value.

In addition, the Grupo Nutresa Exemplary Supplier program was launched 
to recognize the most outstanding suppliers according to criteria of logis-
tics service, productivity, sustainability and innovation and closing gaps in 
the value chain.

Ice Cream Business Innovation Promoters.

Grupo Nutresa Innovation Promoters.

Grupo Nutresa has 

283 innovation 
promoters. 

Innovation Promoters: Grupo Nutresa has 283 inno-
vation promoters who have been trained in innovation 
techniques, such as Design Thinking, magazine cover, 
DTV and SCAMPER, among others.

Innovation–Management Processes: There have 
been three prospective exercises for the Chocolate, 
Ice Cream and Cold Cut Businesses.
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Future vision

Grupo Nutresa's future vision contem-
plates the evolution of consumer be-
havior and legislation in the countries in 
which it operates, in order to maintain 
leadership in the region and be prepared 
to face the challenges of the market.

Therefore, in 2014 Grupo Nutresa cre-
ated a new innovation strategy that will 
be implemented in 2015, under which it 
will innovate new segments, new catego-
ries, new geographies and new client–at-
tention models, all focused on social and 
environmental sustainability. To imple-
ment it, intra– and extra–entrepreneur-
ship will be incorporated as catalysts for 
innovation management.

To manage the portfolio of products in 
the short, medium and long term, we will 
strengthen the mechanisms to identify 
high–potential ideas that deeply under-
stand clients, shoppers and consumers, 
and we will generate convenient solu-
tions for consumers with new lifestyles, 
who demand products that are easy to 
prepare, indulgent and healthy. The in-
novation–management system will be 
aimed at satisfying clients and consum-
ers, with value propositions that supply 
their aspirations and needs.

In addition to innovation in new seg-
ments and the management of the 
portfolio of products, innovation will be 
aimed toward technological alternatives 
to reduce dependence on raw materials 
with high–fluctuation prices in the mar-
ket and that impact the profitability of 
the businesses.

Some initiatives

• Redefining the innovation strategy and governance: In 2014, we developed a proj-
ect to redefine the strategy and establish the governance model for innovation in 
Grupo Nutresa, in order to make it an enabler to achieve the 2020 goals. As a result, 
we defined the innovation objectives, the skills to be developed, the competitive 
areas, and new ways to innovate.

The exercise was conducted with the participation of Grupo Nutresa’s senior man-
agement and the different business units.

The strategy, which will be implemented in 2015, will be based on developing a ro-
bust capacity for innovation and on impacting the Grupo Nutresa strategic objectives.

• Strengthening capacities for innovation management: Grupo Nutresa achieved a 
significant evolution in innovation strategies, technological management, network-
ing, and R&D metrics and indicators and structures, thanks to the development of 
the project in which representatives from the businesses participated and who were 
accompanied by two expert organizations in innovation, one national and the other, 
international. In 2014, we incorporated new innovation tools, such as prospective and 
technological surveillance, and we strengthened aspects related to the development 
of solutions and research.

Exemplary Practices awarding event on the 
second semester of 2014.



Integrated report  2014

Effective innovation

81

• Implementation of the Technological Surveillance 
model: With a focus on innovation, we created a Grupo 

Nutresa Directorate for Technological Surveillance, from which 
guidelines and directives are constructed and which facilitates the 
conceptual, practical and methodological tools for application 
in all the businesses. In order to assure the governance, appro-
priation, massification and sustainability of the process, 38 em-
ployees of the different companies were trained, including the 
definition of specific Watchers (Vigías) and Local Brains (Cerebros 

Locales). Thus, the process offers a systematic, structured service 
to observe and monitor the Grupo Nutresa technological environ-
ment, allowing it to identify, interpret and analyze signals, trends 
and scenarios, useful in the present or future strategy.

Since its creation, the technological surveillance process has 
generated more than 50 deliverables of a different nature that 
have been socialized with the different work teams in the busi-
nesses through the technological tools available to Grupo Nutresa.

Diseñar

• Recognition in DJSI: The progress and 
consolidation of innovation within Grupo 
Nutresa is mainly evidenced in the results 
of each of the pillars of its model. Obtain-
ing recognition in DJSI is the confirmation 
of the appropriate management of incor-
porating innovation within the entire Or-
ganization. In 2014, Grupo Nutresa, for 
the fourth year, was recognized as one 
of the nine leading companies in corpo-
rate sustainability in the sector of food 
producers and was included in the Dow 
Jones Sustainability World Index (DJSI), 
obtaining the best score of the sector in 
the chapter on innovation.

• Inauguration of the Ruta N Laboratory: 
Vidarium currently has a laboratory that 
has the optimal conditions of space and 
provision of equipment to develop activ-
ities related to its research projects. To 
complement its capabilities, Grupo Nu-
tresa signed a special cooperation agree-
ment with Corporación Ruta N Medellín 
to locate Vidarium within the Medel-
linnovation District. This 225 m2–space 
is located on the third floor of Torre B in 
the premises of the Ruta Complex (Com-
plejo Ruta), and will allow Vidarium to 
conduct experimental activities related 
to the preparation, conditioning, analy-
sis and conservation of in vivo, in vitro 
and ex vitro biological samples, through 
a general test area and an area for bio-
logical tests. 

Vidarium Lab in the Route N corporation in Medellin.

Innovation

Nutresa Best Industry Average
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• Strengthening Intellectual Property (IP): The management of 
intellectual property in Grupo Nutresa is a strategic process that 
supports innovation, since it permits protecting and preserving 
the knowledge generated, identifying key technological trends in 
the planning and prospective exercises and reducing the risk of 
infringement of third–party holders, since its surveillance allows 
us to establish the frontiers of competitor knowledge. Intellectual 
property allows maintaining competitive advantages; it is increas-
ingly relevant within the Imagix innovation model. In 2014, the 
foundations were laid to effectively administer this process.

Type of protection No.
Patents granted

Patents being applied for

Industrial designs

Industrial designs being
applied for

Documented industrial 
secrets

4

8

6

2

11

6

2.090Brands

As part of the Grupo Nutresa innovation work, the definition of nutritional profiles for some of its products is highlighted.

• Definition of the Grupo Nutresa nutritional profile: In or-
der to provide a more effective response to the lifestyles of 
consumers, innovation management has led Grupo Nutresa 
to evolve the nutritional aspects of its products. Thus, by 
2020, we will double the portfolio adjusted to the energy 
criteria and nutrients of interest for the occasion of product 
consumption. For this, we originated an initiative to adjust 
the profiles in the portfolios, with the participation of all the 
businesses, to achieve the goal established. In 2014, 290 
references were adjusted to the nutritional profile defined 
by Grupo Nutresa.

This adjustment began in 2012 and is focused on the 
most relevant aspects for consumers, such as reduced so-
dium, saturated fats, trans fats, sugar and the use of natu-
ral dyes. This result has been possible from the application 
of innovation processes, among which are: 1) The devel-
opment of new products; 2) Technological Surveillance, 
which identifies new technologies; 3) Applied research, 
conducted with various universities and suppliers; and 4) 
Open innovation.
For Grupo Nutresa, innovation is a priority, and we have also 
advanced in the commitment of keeping consumers bet-
ter informed about the nutritional content of its products 
through the implementation of the Guideline Daily Amount 
(GDA) capsules on the packaging of 2.905 of its products.
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Product innovations

Pastas

Doria Stuffed Pasta
To promote new consumption moments 
and innovate the category, Doria launched 
three new flavors of stuffed pasta: Ravioli 
with Ham, Ravioli with Cheese and Spin-
ach, and Tortellini with Vegetables. These 
new references became an excellent al-
ternative for Colombian families seeking 
to accompany special moments.

Doria Kids with the  
image of the Rio 2 movie
In line with the objective of increasing per–capita consumption of pasta in Colom-
bia, and from childhood, Doria Kids was renewed; to do this, it brought all the joy 
and fun of the characters in the Rio 2 movie. Doria Kids recreates the form of the 
characters in the movie and, together with macaroni and cheese, became an ideal 
food choice for children.

Tortellini with Prosciutto 
and Ricotta–Spinach
The Monticello brand continued to 
expand its portfolio with the new 
presentation of tortellonis, one of its 
stuffed–pasta references. The Monti-
cello tortelloni has twice the content 
and size of other similar products in 
the market, and, for this reason, it 
has a more intense flavor and a more 
attractive presentation for Colombi-
an consumers.

Doria instant macaroni 
and cheese
Doria instant macaroni and 
cheese is prepared in just three 
minutes, in the microwave or 
boiled in water, and is “saucy” for 
Colombian consumer taste. It is a 
convenient alternative to develop 
new moments of consumption, 
since it allows consumers to take 
their Pastas Doria everywhere.

Monticello Fettuccine  
500 grams
Monticello’s 500–gram Fettuccini 
reached the Colombian market to 
complement the portfolio of long 
pasta. Fettuccine is one of the figures 
preferred by consumers, since its flat 
shape gives a special presentation 
and flavor to dishes. It is made with 
100% Durum wheat in bronze molds 
that give it a particular texture for 
greater adherence of the sauce.
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Lil´ Dutch Maid Crackers
The Lil’ Dutch Maid brand launched a new reference of packaged crackers 
to enrich the portfolio that it offers in the so–called “dollar stores” in the 
United States, where it has a strong presence. These crackers, which are 
currently produced in Colombia, will soon be manufactured in the new 
AbiMar Foods (formerly Fehr Foods) plant in Abilene, Texas.

Tosh Snacks
Interested in promoting a balanced lifestyle among Colombians, the Tosh 
brand entered the segment of healthy snacks with Tosh Snacks, a highly 
indulgent line, having the benefits of wellness, nutrition and pleasure for 
consumers. They are salty, crunchy whole–grain rice triangles and rectan-
gles in three flavors: Sea Salt, Wild Rice, and Dried Tomatoes and Parmesan. 
All are made from natural whole grains; they are low in saturated fats, have 
no artificial flavors and contain no gluten, trans fat or cholesterol.

Festival Chokomix
Noel and Compañía Nacional de Chocolates (CNCH) 
Peru developed Festival Chokomix – chocolate cook-
ies with chocolate frosting and colored sprinkles – to 
maintain the leadership in the segment of children’s 
cookies and participate in the increasingly important 
sub–segment of COP 200 in Colombian stores, reach-
ing new consumers with lower purchasing power.

Pozuelo Wheat and Corn  
Soda Crackers
In Costa Rica, Pozuelo presented its 
Wheat and Corn Soda Crackers, a salty 
cracker that combines the benefits of 
wheat with the flavor of corn, ideal to 
enjoy at home. This product comes to 
the market in a presentation of nine in-
dividual packages, perfect to take any-
where, and in the family presentation of 
420 grams.

Biscuits
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Cold Cuts

Practicarne Zenú
Zenú successfully launched in Colombia a new meat 
solution that is practical and nutritional: Practicarne. 
An innovative, differentiated product that comes to 
appropriate the most important moment of con-
sumption of the day: lunch. Practicarne saves time 
because it is precooked; it does not require additional 
spices, oil, or salt and allows countless preparations 
with great flavor, texture and aroma.

Pietrán Chicken Ham
For Colombians who seek healthy food alternatives, and under the promise of “Tak-
ing care of you is a pleasure,” Pietrán launched its new Chicken Ham, an innovative, 
unique product on the market, made from 100% chicken breast; it is 96% fat free 
and 25% reduced sodium.

Ranchera Premium Chorizo
Ranchera launched its Premium Chorizo, made from 
pork, with the exclusive smoky flavor of Ranchera, 
with a high meat content and a spicy touch. The 
Ranchera Premium Chorizo comes in two presen-
tations: a unipack chorizo for the Traditional Chan-
nel (stores) and the package of eight units for large 
chains (supermarkets).

Lemon Vienna Sausage
Zenú launched, as a special edition, the lemon–flavored Vienna Sausage, to refresh 
the category of canned sausages through an option of intense, surprising flavor. The 
product, in 150g presentations (6 sausages), and with the backing of the Zenú brand 
quality and flavor, was available on the market for three months, surpassing the pro-
jected sales budgets.
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Chocolates

La Especial Peanut Kraks
Compañía Nacional de Chocolates, with its La Especial brand, continued to 
surprise with its innovation. This time it did so with the new, Japanese–type 
Peanut Kraks. With a price of COP 500, Colombian consumers can enjoy a 
delicious, coated and roasted peanut, the perfect blend of sweet and salty 
and between mild and crisp.

Jumbo Flow
Seeking to increase and strengthen the 
participation of Jumbo as a brand in the 
Candy Bar segment, Compañía Nacional 
de Chocolates launched in Colombia Jum-
bo Flow, with two delicious presentations: 
a nougat bar with peanuts and caramel 
covered with chocolate, and white choco-
late. The aim of Jumbo Flow is to become 
the best option for consumers in the COP 
1,000 range.

Chocolisto 50% less sugar
In May, Compañía Nacional de Choc-
olates launched Chocolisto 50% less 
sugar, with the delicious chocolate flavor 
that Colombian children love; it has the 
vitamins and minerals as always and is 
sweetened with Stevia, a natural sweet-
ener. Chocolisto 50% less sugar responds 
to current trends in health, wellness and 
a balanced diet.

Corona Pancakes
Compañía Nacional de Chocolates launched Corona 
Pancakes, the easiest way to enjoy a different break-
fast, since its mix comes in individual bags, separated 
into portions, for greater convenience in preparation. 
Corona Pancakes is available in two presentations: 
bags of 320 g and 630 g. It also includes a portion of 
chocolate chips to add to taste.

Jet Cookies and Cream
Jet presented in Colombia its Jet 
Cookies and Cream, a combination 
of white Jet chocolate with pieces 
of chocolate cookies that became a 
new experience for chocolate lovers. 
In addition to the 50–gram bar, a line 
reference, two limited editions were 
presented: a Bubble filled with vanilla 
and pieces of chocolate cookies, and 
the traditional Wafer, with a chocolate 
cookie covered in white chocolate.
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Ice Cream

Mini Polet
For those who want to enjoy Polet more often and in smaller amounts, the Ice 
Cream Business launched in Colombia the new Mini Polet, an ideal product 
that delivers maximum pleasure with its creaminess and content, in an idea 
serving size. Mini Polet is available in the flavors of vanilla–almond, Berries, 
and Cookies & Cream.

100% Country Hill Juices:  
Apple and Grape
Country Hill launched its new image and 
presentation, together with two new 
flavors that seek to bring consumers to 
the 100% natural, fresh apple and grape 
juices, without the addition of sugar or 
sweeteners, and with only the natural 
sweetness of the fruit.

Bananito
Crem Helado launched Bananito 
in Colombia, the only popsicle 
that can be peeled and eaten 
like a banana, a new, different 
proposal that generated new 
sensory and emotional experi-
ences. With a banana–flavored 
gelatin coating and vanilla ice 
cream in the center, Bananito 
generated surprise and a lot of 
fun among consumers.

Goleador Sundae
To be present during the World Cup season, in 
the Dominican Republic Helados BON presented 
the market with these sundaes in four collectible 
cups, with which consumers had the chance to 
build fun, thematic balls.

Chocodipped Popsicles
Since the second quarter of 2014, the POPS Ice Cream Parlors in 
Central America have offered its consumers a new experience 
to create their own popsicle, combining irresistible chocolate 
coating and delicious toppings to taste.
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TMLUC

Kryzpo Air Crunch:  
Unique in the World
Tresmontes Lucchetti launched in 
the Chilean market the Kryzpo Air 
Crunch potato chips, the result of 
work with a prestigious Italian suppli-
er, which permitted creating a unique 
product in the world. Kryzpo Air 
Crunch offers a “mesh–” or “grid–” 
cut potato, with a unique, distinctive 
texture, which gives them a crunchy, 
unmatched flavor. In their two vari-
eties – original and cheese – Kryzpo 
Air Crunch came to revolutionize the 
Chilean snack market.

Gold Temptations  
Coffee: Crème Caramel 
Light and Crème  
Caramel Decaffeinated
To give greater warmth to the 
cold Chilean winter, Tresmon-
tes launched two new flavors of 
Gold Temptations Coffee: Crème 
Caramel Light and Crème Cara-
mel Decaffeinated, free of sug-
ar and caffeine, and which are 
creamier and healthier. Consum-
ers could not resist enjoying win-
ter in the company of the best 
tasting caramel coffee.

Flan Livean: Passion  
Fruit and Caramel
Passion Fruit and Caramel were the exquisite 
flavors that Flan Livean brought to Chilean 
consumers seeking the perfect balance be-
tween a rich desert and feeling good. Hav-
ing 0% sugar, consumers can enjoy all the 
creaminess and smoothness that the best 
flan offers in a healthier manner.

Monterrey Coffee  
with Milk
With an exquisite creaminess 
and flavor, Tresmontes Lucchetti 
launched Monterrey Coffee 
with Milk in the Chilean mar-
ket. This line comes in a practi-
cal display of eight packets; it is 
very simple to prepare, as it just 
needs water. It is ideal as a treat 
with all the flavor and tradition 
of Monterrey.

Pasta Salad
Pasta Salad, introduced in the Chilean market, has a decorative 
shape of violets and daisies, that make it perfect to accompa-
ny salads; it has carrots, beetroot and spinach, which give it 
a characteristic color. This new alternative from Lucchetti has 
the Proslow Seal, which guarantees its preparation from Durum 
semolina wheat, providing low–glycemic carbohydrates.
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Coffee

New image of Colcafé 
Cappuccino
Colcafé launched the new im-
age of Colcafé Cappuccino in 
the market; it is an instant mix 
with the characteristics of flavor, 
texture, foam and aroma of tra-
ditional cappuccino. This change 
was made to renew the image of 
one of the products most valued 
by Colombian coffee consumers, 
and thus brings it closer to their 
tastes and needs. The new, mod-
ern and elegant image highlights 
the product attributes, especially 
its palatability.

Colcafé 250g Granulated  
for alternative channels
Seeking to maximize Colcafé Granulated sales 
through the Grupo Nutresa commercial networks, 
Colcafé developed an exclusive presentation of Col-
café 250g Granulated, for the direct–sales channel. 
Launched in March 2014, this reference has been 
very successful since its introduction.



Responsible employer 
and citizen

To learn more about 
the Grupo Nutresa Campaign 

“Enjoy a Healthy Life,” 
visit our Webpage www.nutresa.com

Grupo Nutresa promotes the integral devel-
opment of its people, seeking to have com-
petent, committed employees in permanent 
improvement. This is why it supports training 
and wellness programs to enhance the qual-
ity of life and skills of its human capital, so 
that it can adequately meet the challenges 
of productivity and competitiveness found 
in the food sector. Likewise, it maintains 
collective–labor relations in a framework of 
respect for and observance of human rights 
and the regulations of the countries where 
the Organization operates. 
As a corporate citizen, Grupo Nutresa 
strengthens the competencies of the com-
munities with which it interacts to promote 
their opportunities and enable their growth 
and development. Thus, the Organization 
promotes social capital, improving its inter-
action with stakeholders.
In this strategic priority, Grupo Nutresa ex-
plains the progress and management of 
three material issues: Good labor practices, 
Human rights and Corporate citizenship.
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Enjoying the outdoors changes your life
Carolina Amaya, 33 years old. Plastic Artist.
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Responsible employer and citizen

Grupo Nutresa has established itself as an attractive organization to 
work, promoting the professional development of employees in a worthy, 
equal environment that generates commitment to the achievement of 
the strategic objectives.

Good labor practices

Highlights

We defined the diversity and inclusion policy and 
began a program to train leaders and work teams 
in the matter. We also strengthened the inclusion 
program for people with disabilities and incorporat-
ed the “Equipares” gender–equality regulations in 
one of the businesses.

We developed a working agenda with the unions 
to incorporate issues of common interest, as well 
as with collective–bargaining leaders and workers’ 
representatives, promoting participation in the 
analysis and solution of labor situations of com-
mon interest.

The leadership and transversal skills model was 
updated for all Grupo Nutresa employees.

Six Grupo Nutresa companies were certified as 
Family–Responsible Companies (FRC) and Healthy 
Organizations.

Grupo Nutresa obtained recognition in Colombia 
as the best company to work in the food sector, 
in which its ability to attract and retain talent was 
highlighted, thus consolidating the potential of the 
brand as an employer.

[G4-DMA]
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Responsible employer and citizen

We began implementing a new information and talent–management system, 
through which greater sophistication will be achieved in the planning and mea-
surement of employee performance to achieve results.

We began a process of teamwork with contractors and third parties in the man-
agement of best labor practices. 

We updated the ex–pat and internship policies for Grupo Nutresa professionals.

Challenges

The development of human talent is part of the Grupo Nutre-
sa strategic objectives and translates into the value proposition 
that it makes to its employees, focusing its work on the imple-
mentation of policies, practices and investments that improve 
the quality of life; promote safe, healthy work environments; 
and encourages the development of skills and leadership to 
strengthen a culture that appreciates diversity and inclusion.

The main risks identified in talent management are related to 
the ability to attract and retain current and new employees, the 
development of safe operations, the management of contrac-
tors to ensure compliance with labor standards in all operations, 
and the development of leaders who contribute to creating a 
results–oriented labor environment, with sensitivity to people 
and awareness of the importance of respect for human rights 
and good labor practices.

To minimize the risks mentioned above, we have a talent–
management model that also involves contractors, to which 
is added a certification plan for all the businesses, in 2020, in 
Healthy Organizations, Family–Responsible Companies, OHSAS 
18001 and labor standards.

Since one of the principal labor risks is the violation of the 
right to freedom of association and collective bargaining and 
the non–compliance of labor standards by contractors, we be-
gan a program to train leaders, unions and workers’ represen-
tatives, on the construction of effective agreements and conver-
sations and we programmed social audits for contractors with 
the greatest risk. In 2014, 216 people attended the training pro-
grams. The goal in 2020 is that the positions with the greatest 
vulnerability in this risk will attend training programs.

The risks mentioned pose great work opportunities for us. For 
this reason, national and international platforms will intervene 
in the 2020 strategy through tactical plans.

Servicios Nutresa was one of the six Group companies 
certified as a Healthy Organization.
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Responsible employer and citizen

Progress 

The year 2014 was one in which we con-
tinued advancing and strengthening the 
management of good labor practices.

Organizational climate 
Grupo Nutresa was once again highlighted 
in 2014 as one of the best organizations to 
work in Colombia, according to the MERCO 
PERSONAS study. Likewise, some of the na-
tional and international businesses received 
recognition for their excellent management 
of organizational climate by CINCEL, the 
Organizational Behavior Research Center.

The results in organizational climate con-
tinue to place Grupo Nutresa at a level of 
excellence; in 2014, it achieved an indicator 
of 84.0%. This indicator places the Organi-
zation well below the rotation indicators in 
the food sector. The variables most appre-
ciated by employees were quality of lead-
ership, organizational clarity and coherence 
and collective values. In salaries, Grupo Nu-
tresa is also located on a competitive scale, 
allowing employees to achieve satisfactory 
levels of quality of life. Thus, 100% of the 
employees are above the legal minimum 
wage defined by each country where we 
have significant operations.

Employment generation
Job stability and job creation are variables well perceived by the Grupo Nutresa 
related groups. For this reason, and as a result of the diversity and inclusion policy, 
we have been working on the “equality of opportunities for all.” In 2014, we went 
from 36.726 to 38.796 employees, through direct– and indirect–hiring systems 
and we have been working to incorporate the gender–equality regulation, which 
has allowed us to identify opportunities to generate labor practices that satisfy the 
needs of men and women irrespective of gender. We have also updated the selec-
tion policy, which clearly expresses the possibility of men and women participating 
in equal opportunities in the selection processes. Likewise, the salary assessment 
policy and system do not consider gender as a variable to assign points, nor are 
quotas used as a mechanism to ensure gender equality to avoid negative discrimi-
nation. Conversely, we actively use the diversity and inclusion policy, the selection 

policy and the training policy 
to ensure an authentic atti-
tude of opportunities for all. 
Currently, 151 people with 
disabilities work in some of 
the Grupo Nutresa opera-
tions.

Chocolate Business employees in Peru.

Wellness activity with the Cold Cuts 
Business employees in Santa Marta.
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Responsible employer and citizen

Cols Cuts Business marketing employees in Medellin.
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Geographic distribution of direct employment  [G4-10]

THE UNITED STATES 1,90%*

MEXICO 6,08%* NICARAGUA 0,74%*

GUATEMALA 1,63%* THE DOMINICAN REPUBLIC 0,92%*

EL SALVADOR 0,19%* PUERTO RICO 0,01%*

ECUADOR 0,90%* COSTA RICA 8,90%*

COLOMBIA 58,94%* PANAMA 2,22%*

PERU 3,24%* VENEZUELA 3,61%*

CHILE 10,85%* OTHER COUNTRIES 0,01%*
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Health and safety at work 
 
In 2014, all the safety, health and well-
ness strategies were integrated at work 
through the EFR 1000–1 “Family–Re-
sponsible Companies,” “Healthy Orga-
nizations” and OHSAS 18001 standards, 
with which we had a greater impact on 
results. This was how we obtained cer-
tification for six of the Grupo Nutresa 
companies and achieved a positive evo-
lution in the accident indicators, from an 
indicator of 3,17 in 2013 to 2,62 in 2014, 
which places Grupo Nutresa well below 
the accident rate in the food sector. These 
indicators have also been evolving with 
contractors, who achieved an accident 
rate of 5,39. During 2014, there were no 
employee or contractor deaths.

 2011 2012 2013 2014

Accident rate
Number of accidents per total  
employees

3,22 3,45 3,17 2,62

LTIFR 
Number of injuries with lost time for 
every one million hours worked

13,46 14,57 13,39 10,97

Number of days lost for 
work accidents

8.298 9.567 9.195 8.153

Annual average of direct–hire  
workers exposed

17.156 18.627 18.425 23.326

OIFR
Number of cases of work illness for 
every one million hours worked

NA* NA* NA* 0,012

*Not available

Wellness activity for Servicios Nutresa employees in Cali.
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Another strategy that reinforces Grupo Nutresa’s 
commitment to health and safety at work is the im-
plementation of a standardized methodology to as-
sess the future economic impact of absenteeism due 
to occupational diseases. With this tool we are mak-
ing new technological investments viable, aimed at 
preventing significant labor risks. This supports the 
productivity goal of the Mega 2020, by which we 
expect a 5% year–over–year increase in the volume 
produced per hour of direct labor (Kg/Hmod).

During 2014, we achieved an average increase of 
4,3% in the 29 plants that participate in the mea-
surement of this indicator; they have begun to im-
plement their projects. To achieve this goal, we have 
determined an intervention plan for each plant, so 
that by 2020, they are more competitive thanks to 
their increased productivity, lower absenteeism and 
lower occupational risks.

Within the system of safety management and oc-
cupational health, the ProHealth (ProSalud) Commit-
tees, the Primary Committees in Occupational Safety 
and Health, the Health and Emergency Brigades, 
and the Human Rights Committees have played an 
important role, and we have identified high–impact 
risks and formulated joint work plans with unions 
and experts. One hundred percent (100%) of the 
direct employees serve on one or more committees, 
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while an investment of COP 20.820 Billion has been made in training pro-
grams and allocation of resources for their effective functioning [G4-EC8]

The investment in quality–of–life and occupational safety and health pro-
grams amounted to COP 711 Million and were focused on preventing and 
promoting safe and healthy lifestyles, preventing cardiovascular disease, 
having smoke–free spaces, a balanced diet, and sports, among others. 
Also, we have continued with the home ownership plan and sponsored 
the training of employees and their families through subsidies granted.

Integrated quality analysts- Biscuits 
Business quality lab in Medellin.

The investment 
in quality–of–life and 
occupational safety and 
health programs amount-
ed to

COP711
Million, 
impacting 

22.426
employees
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Training and Leadership 
Investment in training programs, the development of 
skills and leadership was COP 8.195 Billion and was 
aimed at improving specific skills in the corporate 
business and transversal units, including innovation, 
digital marketing, leadership 2.0, diversity and inclu-
sion and brand management, among others. These 
programs were complemented with development 
programs of being, such as the Interior Traveler, Live 
with Sense and Managing Yourself. A total of 1.066 
leaders took part in the training programs in leader-
ship, innovation, strategy, finances and marketing in 
renowned universities abroad. Likewise, we contin-
ued with retirement–preparation programs for em-
ployees who were near retirement.

Convinced of the importance of managing em-
ployee performance to ensure their progress and 
contribute to achieving results, in 2014 we began 
the implementation of a new human–talent infor-
mation system with a more sophisticated perfor-
mance module that will allow us to locate employ-
ees in the competencies vs. performance matrix, 
as well as identify the performance curve in which 
they are found. For 2014, 8,008 direct employ-
ees were given “feedback” by their leaders about 
their performance.

In order to respond to the challenges of Grupo Nu-
tresa’s internationalization, we updated the ex–pat 
and internship policy, to promote the development 
of global and multicultural capabilities in the profes-
sionals in the different companies. In each region, 
we continue to stimulate the work of local profes-
sionals to complement the rotation of employees in 

Closing of the “Fulfilled Adulthood” program in Medellin, from the Cold Cuts Business.

Novaventa employees’ coaching and development scenarios.

other regions through the different platforms. In 2014, 21 employees were 
in internship programs and 34 had ex–pat status. With this strategy, we 
hope to achieve greater diversity and complement the local and regional 
capacities of the Grupo Nutresa professionals.

Strengthening leadership attributes has been a permanent job in the 
Company because through leaders, we build culture and achieve results. 
For this reason, we updated the leadership model in accordance with new 
market trends; the transversal skills of all employees were defined. A col-
lective sense, innovation and change, development of oneself and others, 
passion for clients and consumers, thought without borders, sustainable 
vision and inspiration to achieve will be capacities on which Grupo Nutresa 
will focus aspects related to training and selection programs. All the mem-
bers of the Grupo Nutresa Steering Committee were evaluated in these 
competencies with the challenge of continuing to strengthen their leader-
ship through development plans.
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Future vision 

Looking ahead, strategies will be focused on different fronts.
We will maintain management to attract and retain the best 
talent, strengthening a culture that appreciates diversity and 
inclusion in all its forms. For this purpose, we will develop 
training programs for leaders and work teams and we will 
support diversity practices as well as inclusion for people with 
disabilities, the hiring of people of different nationalities and 
the promotion of open summons to fill vacancies in all plat-
forms in which we operate.
We will work to incorporate the gender–equality regulation, 
strengthening labor practices that favor equal opportuni-
ties for men and women. By 2015, one of the Grupo Nu-
tresa businesses will be certified in the Gender Equality Seal 
awarded by the Colombian Ministry of Labor and in 2020, all 
the companies will perform their respective diagnoses and 
plans for closing gaps.
Continuity will be given to teamwork with unions and col-
lective–bargaining leaders, achieving greater alignment be-
tween the needs of employees and the possibilities for com-
panies to ensure the sustainability of the agreements.

We will strengthen the management and prevention of occu-
pational disease and the development of skills in labor relo-
cation, seeking that employees complete their work cycle in 
dignified conditions and without deterioration in their quality 
of life. [G4-LA10]

We will continue managing contractors and marketers to 
minimize the risk of non–compliance of labor standards, and 
the indicators of accidents will be improved, betting on achiev-
ing an indicator of zero accidents and zero fatalities.

We aim to have all the Grupo Nutresa Companies certified 
as Healthy Organizations by 2020.

Also, we will advance in developing a leadership that de-
mands results and that accompanies the growth and perfor-
mance of people. Similarly, we will assure transversal skills for 
the Grupo Nutresa leader in the selection process, as well as in 
management evaluation and employee performance.

Likewise, the focus will be on developing business capabili-
ties through training programs and in preparing new organiza-
tional relays through internship programs and the transfer of 
professionals among the businesses.

Novaventa employees enjoying spaces designed for their wellness.
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Some initiatives 

The diversity and inclusion policy
Incorporation of the Diversity and Inclusion 
policy and programs, achieving greater sen-
sitivity in leaders and employees about the 
importance of generating inclusive work 
scenarios based on respect for differences.

Incorporation of the “Equipares” gender–
equality regulation in one of the Grupo Nu-
tresa businesses and the identification of work 
opportunities aimed at strengthening equal 
opportunities for men and women.

Strengthening of the inclusion program 
for people with disabilities, renewing the 
alliance of the Pact for Productivity through 
foundations that are expert in the matter. In 
this topic, 26 people were trained through 
an investment of COP 97 Million. 

Managing occupational  
health and safety in contractors
Through a contractor–management system, we defined the health and safety indi-
cators at work and implemented an assurance process and defined goals in terms 
of accidents, absenteeism and prevention of occupational disease.

Certification in healthy organizationss
Six Grupo Nutresa companies achieved certification as Healthy Organizations and 
Family–Responsible Companies, which shows their interest in promoting work en-
vironments that contribute to the quality of life of employees and their families.

Updating the leadership model
We updated the Grupo Nutresa leadership model, incorporating leader capabilities 
aligned with the new challenges of the business. Also, we defined the transversal 
competencies common to all Grupo Nutresa employees.

Family–Friendly Company Certifications.

Servicios Nutresa Health Day.Active pauses in the Ice Cream Business.
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The Organization has a human rights framework and 
management established according to the “Guiding Principles 
on Business and Human Rights” by John Ruggie, which 
consolidates the relationship with its various stakeholders 
through respect and promotion thereof. 

Human Rights

Highlights

Greater awareness and knowledge by leaders and 
work teams about the importance of managing 
human rights through practical daily actions.

Increased coverage in human rights training to 
employees and contractors.

Revision of the effectiveness of the mechanisms for 
human rights complaints.

Consolidation of the Human Rights Tactical and 
Strategic Committees.

Implementation of labor practices where oppor-
tunities have been identified in accordance with 
conversations with employees. Adjustment to the 
policy to hire relatives, regulation of the hiring 
systems, and adjustment to the summons policy, 
among others.

[G4-DMA]
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Strengthening of diversity and inclusion practices: hiring people with disabilities 
and incorporating the gender–equality regulation.

Updating of the Grupo Nutresa human–rights risk matrix.

Challenges

The commitment to protect human rights is important to the 
success of organizations in their role as global corporate citi-
zens, as it directly affects the relationship with its stakeholders 
and particularly contributes to the motivation and commitment 
of its human capital with the Organization. 

For Grupo Nutresa, human rights was consolidated as a man-
agement system, after identifying three major risks associated 
with operations:
1.	 Violation of human rights by Grupo Nutresa companies, 

contractors, and their suppliers and marketers.
2.	 Violation of the right of freedom of association and collec-

tive bargaining.
3.	 Increase in occupational disease due to the lack of prevent-

ing health and safety at work.

For each of these risks, we have built a plan to the year 
2020, which commits each one of the teams responsible for 
its influence in the materialization of these risks.

To ensure the protection of human rights by contractors 
and third parties, we have strengthened the knowledge of the 
policy through massive deployments, training and accompani-
ment audits.

With regard to freedom of association and collective bar-
gaining, we have conducted workshops on the construction 
of agreements with union leaders, worker representatives and 
bosses, in order to continue forge relationships of trust that 
allow the collective agreements and conventions to be sus-
tainable over time and ensure the employability and profitable 
growth of our businesses. 

Progress 

The management of human rights has 
evolved into a practical, functional sys-
tem. Among the principal achievements 
is the understanding of the matter by 
managers, administrators and work 
teams on how each right contributes to 
promotion, respect and remediation.

8.337

33,5%

During 2014 

hours were spent 
on human – rights 
training for managers 
and employees.

Percentage 
of employees 
trained:

Respect for the right of freedom of association and collective bargaining [G4-HR4] [G4-11]
To minimize the risk of violating the right of freedom of association and collective bargaining, we held 10 
training workshops on the construction of agreements and effective conversations for leaders and negotiation 
teams with 216 employees from the different companies. We also strengthened scenarios for discussion and 
participation to promote the identification and management of labor practices that are consistent with human 
rights. The functioning of the Coexistence Committees was strengthened and conversations were consolidat-
ed with union leaders and representatives of collective agreements, led by the Office of the Grupo Nutresa 
CEO, where a balance of the 2014 work plans was made and new job opportunities in 2015 were identified. 
A total of 16 conversations (conversatorios) were held, all with very positive results. During these meetings, 
“feedback” on the policy was received, monitoring was done on prior discussions and progress was made in 
managing human rights.

The Human Rights Tactical Committee received four complaints from union leaders, which were analyzed 
and given their due diligence. None was considered a violation of human rights.

[G4-HR2]	
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Similarly, in 2014 no Grupo Nutresa workplaces 
were identified where freedom of association and 
the right to collective bargaining could be violat-
ed or threatened. In the different Grupo Nutresa 
companies, the rights of freedom of association, 
collective bargaining and strikes are respected and 
all of the companies work with their leaders not to 
engage in practices that undermine these guaran-
tees. In this respect, we can cite the establishment 
of a protocol for collective relations, training in the 
construction of agreements and the human rights 
policy, among others.

We have identified significant potential risks in 
suppliers of dairy products, fresh fruits and veg-
etables and assembly services. In the cases men-
tioned, we established the evaluation of the exis-
tence of freedom of association, unions, collective 
agreements and mechanisms to ensure freedom 
of association as control measures. In addition, we 
explored the means to ensure non–discrimination. 
Finally suppliers conduct self–evaluations on the 
ten principles of the Global Compact, which in-
clude this risk.

The evaluation among suppliers was carried out only 
in Colombia. In the rest of the countries where Grupo 
Nutresa operates, we have not yet implemented the 
study and the classification of risks by category.

Employees with disabilities in the Coffee Business.

Extension of our human rights practices to third parties 
A total of 784 contractors and marketers (88 in person and 696 virtual connections) attended the 
deployment and training in the human–rights management system and policy, enabling us to ex-
tend the Grupo Nutresa work philosophy and commit its allies to its promotion and management.

Since 2012, we have enabled the portal www.gruponutresaenlinea.com with a self–assessment 
tool in the ten principles of the Global Compact, with which our suppliers are doing a self–diag-
nosis as a starting point to identify opportunities for improvement. To date, 215 self–evaluations 
have been registered through the portal. Additionally, an interactive training module on human 
rights was designed, which is gradually being enabled for all suppliers.

In 2014, clauses were included in contracts with third parties and marketers, in which the com-
mitment to promote and respect human rights – in line with the policy and management defined 
by Grupo Nutresa and built together with its supply chain – is clearly expressed.

Likewise, during 2014 Fundación Nutresa held training workshops for 18 rural associations in 
Quindío, Montes de María and Chocó, to promote respect for human rights by small farmers who 
supply Grupo Nutresa with raw materials, such as cocoa, coffee, cashew and sesame.

18,6%
of employees  
belong to  
unions.

59,2%
of employees  
belong to collective  
agreements.
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The right to work in a safe,  
healthy environment.
Since occupational disease is another of the high–impact risks for the busi-
nesses, we have progressed in prevention and relocation plans. In partner-
ship with the directors of operations in the businesses, we are advancing in 
an investment plan in technology and work conditions that minimizes the 
incidence of disease. 

For more information, see the chapter 
Good Labor Practices.

Future vision 

Management of Human Rights will remain a chal-
lenge in the medium and long term, so the work 
plan is foreseen through 2020 and considers the in-
ternal management of the businesses, and the man-
agement of contractors, suppliers and marketers.

For 2015, we will implement the audits on la-
bor standards and compliance of human rights in 
third parties and accompany the closing of gaps 
to those who present opportunities. Likewise, we 
plan to continue ensuring that all the businesses 
manage the risks in line with the priorities of Gru-
po Nutresa.

Regarding the management of the right of 
freedom of association and collective bargaining, 
the Organization will continue working together 
with union leaders and worker representatives to 
promote dialogue and inclusion, and identify al-
ternatives to continue contributing to the quality 
of life of employees and the sustainability of the 
businesses, with mutually beneficial agreements. 
Similarly, we will continue forming and develop-
ing skills in leaders to understand and manage the 
relationship with the different groups, based on 
trust and dialogue. [G4-HR4]

Reinforcing the dissemination that encourages us-
ing the most effective mechanisms to scale claims, 
concerns and complaints about possible violations of 
human rights will be the work in 2015.

Another important challenge is the construction 
of the risk matrix in international operations and the 
implementation of the management system, conver-
sations and meetings of the Strategic Committee with 
these operations.

Human rights training to Grupo Nutresa suppliers.
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Some initiatives

Human rights training for internal staff,  
contractors, suppliers and marketers
Achieving a greater practical understanding in this matter and 
commitment to its management is added to the identification 
of risks to be managed in the short, medium and long term.

During 2014, we worked on incorporating 784 contractors, 
suppliers and marketers into the human rights strategy, making 
them aware of and training them in the subject and defining a 
participatory work plan for 2015, aimed at managing the risks. 

Review of human–rights grievance  
mechanisms [G4-HR12] 
During 2014, we advanced in reviewing the effectiveness of the 
instruments to consult and report possible violations in human 
rights, and we identified those that are most effective, acces-
sible, objective, transparent and confidential, to disclose them 
and position them in the future among the different stakehold-
ers for proper use.

Development of a joint working agenda with 
unions and worker representatives
As a team, developing knowledge on diversity and inclusion, 
constructing agreements and effective conversations, which 
achieved closeness, trust and a common purpose. We conduct-
ed ten workshops with the participation of 216 people and an 
investment of COP 147 Million. [G4-HR4]

Human rights training session for the Coffee Business employees.

Human rights training session for the Cold Cuts Business sales force.
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The Organization recognizes that capacity building, education and 
solving the nutritional needs of the low – income population are the best 
ways to fight poverty and create skills that promote their sustainability, 
transformation and quality of life. 

Corporate citizenship

Highlights

The XXI Century Leaders” (“Líderes Siglo XXI”) 
program consolidated 20 years of impact in the 
education sector in Colombia, where nearly 1.200 
institutions have been benefitted, training more 
than 4.000 directors and teachers and committing 
260 companies to volunteer work. 

We accompanied the identification and management 
to close gaps in good manufacturing practices in 19 
food banks affiliated with the Colombian Network of 
Food Banks and in the definition of improvement plans 
for food banks in Costa Rica, Mexico, Ecuador, Peru, the 
Dominican Republic, the United States and Chile.

The strategy of healthy lifestyles was aimed at creating 
educational processes in the school, family and com-
munity context, which directly benefitted 36 educa-
tional institutions in Colombia, Chile and Mexico. 

We executed the alliance on Healthy Lifestyles, 
signed in 2013, with the Colombian Ministry of 
Education. 

Girls from the Belencito 
Corazón Community, 
Medellin, Colombia.

[G4-DMA]
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The Nutresa Volunteer Network expanded its im-
pact in two international companies. In 2014, the 
Dominican Republic and Chile joined the 10.461 
Grupo Nutresa employee volunteers.

Strengthening suppliers was extended to 40 black-
berry–producing families in the Quindío region of 
Colombia. The total investment in the Line of In-
come–Generation and Entrepreneurship amounted 
to COP 17.282 Billion. In 2014, Fundación Nutresa 
supported the rural development of more than 
2.400 farmers in the Departments (States) of Bolívar, 
Sucre, Córdoba, Quindío, Valle del Cauca, Antioquia 
and Chocó. 

Challenges

Through its Fundación Nutresa, Grupo 
Nutresa is committed to developing lo-
cal capabilities in the communities with 
which it interacts, strengthening the 
work and promoting programs and proj-
ects that benefit society.

Under the management lines of Nutri-
tion, Education, Income Generation and 
Entrepreneurship and Support for the 
Arts and Culture, we seek to improve 
the socio–economic conditions of the 
stakeholders and the sustainability of 
the companies. 

Fundación Nutresa concentrates its ac-
tivities primarily in regions in situations 
of undernourishment and malnutrition, 
working to help eradicate hunger and 
create opportunities for nutrition and 
healthy lifestyles in low–income popula-
tions. As a social–innovation strategy to 
reduce food waste and the recovery and 
availability thereof, Fundación Nutresa 
supports the Food Bank Networks in its 
strategic region and implements an inter-
nal process of reverse logistics, through 
which, in 2014, 886 tons of food were 
destined to feed the poor.

Education projects impacted compet-
itiveness, the economic development of 
the region and the improvement of the 
capability of public educational institu-
tions in Colombia. This is a long–term 
strategy which, in 2014, achieved that, 
of 52.000 student beneficiaries, 44,6% 
entered higher education and 23,5% en-
tered the labor market, thus promoting 
the employability of more qualified, com-
petent people in the region where Grupo 
Nutresa operates.

The income–generation strategy seeks 
the economic and social strengthening of 
the value chain, the increase in the quali-
ty of raw materials and risk diversification 
through local sourcing. In turn, this strat-
egy benefits small suppliers and/or social 
entities with low organizational and com-
munity capacities.

Inclusive businesses became the route 
to approach the base of the pyramid. 
This initiative, adopted by Grupo Nutre-
sa, contributes to overcoming poverty 
and identifying alternative businesses 

that attend the increase in consumption 
in emerging economies, while permitting 
more knowledge of consumers and find-
ing opportunities to develop innovative 
products and services.

With these strategies, the social and 
economic capital of the Organization is 
consolidated, contributing to future sus-
tainability. Additionally, it also strength-
ens the human capital, as it trains peo-
ple and generates their motivation and 
commitment.

Children from the Escipión Jaramillo school in Caloto, Cauca, 
which benefited from the Fundación Nutresa education projects.
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Progress 

During 2014 Fundación Nutresa, together with the Grupo Nutresa companies and 
its employees, generated social and economic benefits for the communities with 
which it interacts, beginning with the strengthening of projects and its expansion 
in America. 

Mega 2020 Management line Measurement 
indicators Results 2013 Results 2014

1,
00

0 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 t

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
sk

ill
s

Nutrition •	 Implementation of good 
manufacturing practices  
in food banks and  
community kitchens. 

•	 Adoption of healthy  
lifestyles.

18 25

Education •	 Implementation of educa-
tional quality practices in 
institutions.

•	 Assimilation and applica-
tion of technological tools 
in the teaching / learning 
process.

680 703

Income  
generation and 

entrepreneurship

•	 Institutional autonomy for 
base organizations.

•	 Improvement of the orga-
nizational capacity indices.

•	 Increase of income 
through leveraged  
productive projects.

•	 New inclusive projects 
linked to the Grupo  
Nutresa Businesses.

29 33

Support for the arts 
and culture

•	 Training to appreciate and 
value cultural diversity.

•	 Participation in cultural 
and artistic activities by the 
low–income population.

2 1

 Total projects to develop skills 729 762

Roadmap to 2020 goals
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Investment in the Community 2014

“With the accompaniment of Nutresa, 
our community has been integrated, 
we have meetings, we talk about our 
work in the field and together we solve 
the difficulties to improve. Investing 
in social aspects strengthens the 
confidence of the communities and of 
the people who make them up. Today,  
I am a better leader and can accompany 
the needs of the association and  
my family.” 

Félix Santos Mena
Aprocamalosan, Cocoa Producing Association
Chocó, Colombia

Management Line Institutions Persons 2013 
COP Billions

2014 
COP Billions

Nutrition 1.856 7.984.514 7.169 9.797

Education 827 758.061 6.452 3.688

Income Generation 
and Entrepreneurship

67 2.305 5.017 17.282

Support for the 
Arts and Culture

22 184.535 1.565 1.618

Other social projects 56 21.422 320 1.352

Total 2.828 8.950.837 20.523 33.737
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Nutrition
Fundación Nutresa prioritizes projects to eradicate 
hunger and generate opportunities for nutrition and 
healthy lifestyles in the low–income population.

To do this 

886 tons of food were delivered 
and we accompanied the improvement 
plans of 26 Food Banks in Colombia, 
Costa Rica, Mexico, Ecuador, Peru, the 
Dominican Republic, the United States 
and Chile, which benefitted more than 
372.667 people.

Management with food banks in the strategic region has reduced 
the loss and waste of food, impacting the local availability of food 
and creating a solidarity economy, in which low–income popula-
tions can access high–quality products. This work is accompanied 
by a training, monitoring and evaluation process in good manu-
facturing practices by volunteers from specialized companies in 
the topic.

Fundación Nutresa and the Grupo Nutresa companies con-
tinue to work in line with the corporate philosophy of pro-
moting strategies that foster healthy lifestyles and nutrition. 
Therefore, together with the Colombian Ministry of Education, 
UNICEF, the World Food Programme, the University of Chile’s 
National Institute of Food Technology, the Mexican National 
Institute of Public Health and the Mexican National Institution 
of Pediatrics, we have consolidated the school–management 
route that seeks to adopt educational projects around food 
and the care of life as a way to prevent or reduce health prob-
lems and the consequences of undernourishment or poor nu-
trition in school–age children.

In Colombia, a working model was built that will involve 
various public and private participants to advance healthy life-
styles at the school level, a key step for an inclusive interven-
tion in the country.

This initiative allows our companies to target their portfolios 
according to the availability of relevant products and with the 
nutrition and malnutrition needs of the population.

Tresmontes Lucchetti develops the Healthy Space program 
at different schools in Chile since 2001.
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Education
The contribution in education centered its 
efforts on developing capabilities of future 
generations through the improvement of 
educational systems and the qualification 
of teachers. More than COP 3.600 Billion 
was destined for this purpose.

Programas propios en Educación

COP350Million COP662Million COP418Million

Conducting the first introductory course on 
quality in education. We began with:

Expanding the coverage in Bogotá, D. C. 
and beginning implementation in Medellín

Groups Schools Companies Cities

1 23 10 1

Groups Schools Companies Cities

5 50 25 2

Conducting the I National Congress on 
Education in Bogotá.

Program execution begins 
in Bucaramanga, Ibagué and Pereira.

1994 2001

1997 2006

Oriéntate el mundo a un Clic and Proyecto Líderes Siglo XXI
With the support of the Colombian Ministry of Education and 
companies from the private sector, human, economic and con-
ceptual efforts have been aimed at improving the educational–
development strategies in ten departments in Colombia. The 
main results of these programs have been: 
•	 Strengthening the administrative and academic structure of 

644 educational institutions, promoting the updating of the 
curricula in the face of modern, relevant education. 

•	 Accompaniment for 685 teachers and directors through 
administrative, educational, community and financial 
components. 

•	 Implementation of the monitoring systems on sustainability 
indicators: promotion, retention, coverage, permanence in 
the classroom, alumni and national test scores 

•	 Qualification of 685 teachers and community leaders in 
technological trends in education.

The “Nutresa Loves Children” (“Nutresa Quiere a los Niños”) 
program has approached communities in low socio–econom-
ic conditions, through the delivery of school kits to more than 
5.600 children.

In 2014, the “Nutresa Loves Children – City Version” (“Nutresa 
Quiere a los Niños Ciudad”) was created, an initiative that the 
company promotes, extended to families in sectors of Colom-
bia with the greatest problems of security, offering a recreational 
space to strengthen values, family unity and self–care. The pro-
gram has benefitted 6.138 children and adults in Antioquia, Bar-
ranquilla and Bogotá. Likewise, there has been recognition from 
Grupo Nutresa companies, reducing the risks of distribution.
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Groups Schools Companies Cities

20 189 107 5

Groups Schools Companies Cities

49 528 72 10

The first School Management Quality Prize 
was awarded.

Fundación Nutresa and the Colombian Ministry of Edu-
cation signed an alliance for the comprehensive man-
agement of education through the Ministry’s program 
“Everyone Learning” (“Todos Aprender”) and Fundación 
Nutresa’s program “XXI Century Leaders” (“Líderes Siglo 
XXI”). This alliance, which seeks to articulate the initiatives 
of educational quality and provide tools that allow trans-
formation in the institutions that present the greatest chal-
lenges in the country, will be implemented in 80 schools 
located in the Departments of Bolívar, Norte de Santander, 
Antioquia, Cundinamarca, Risaralda and Valle del Cauca. 

2012

2009
2014

In 2014, Nutresa Quiere a los Niños 
Ciudad was created, an initiative 
that the company promotes to offer 
recreational space, to strengthen 
values, family unity and self–care to 
6.138 children and adults in Antioquia, 
Barranquilla and Bogotá, Colombia.
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Sesame Producers Network, Montes de María, Colombia.

Income generation and entrepreneurship
Sustainable sourcing is a source of generating value offers, not 
only for the company and suppliers, but also for the final con-
sumers of the Grupo Nutresa products. Within this strategy, 
developed in 2014, we enhanced the work with more than 
2.400 cashew, cocoa, blackberry, sesame and coffee producers 
in different regions of Colombia.

Seeking to manage the control of risks associated with the 
businesses, such as fair wages, child labor and forced labor, 
we developed workshops on human rights with 18 producing 
organizations associated to the value chain in the municipal-
ities of Belén de Bajirá, Acandí, Unguía, Córdoba, Chinú and 

Belén de Umbría. For more details, refer to the chapter 
Human Rights.
In the search for effectiveness in accompanying the pro-

ducer organizations, Fundación Nutresa collaboratively applies 
the Organizational Capacity Index, an instrument that mea-
sures the productive and administrative performance of the en-
tities. Below we present the advances made in the communities 
supported. 

Index of  
organizational 
capacity

Democratic  
and participatory 
management

Economic and  
financial  
situation

Managerial, 
administrative 
and management 
capacity

Services  
offered

Skills and  
capacities in 
human  
development

Benefits for
Nutresa

Creation of value 
ties with suppliers 
who respond 
positively to the 
processes agreed 
upon in a partici-
patory manner.

Constant supply 
of raw material 
adjusted to the 
standards of quality 
required by Grupo 
Nutresa

Shared growth and 
strengthening of 
their value chain.
Generation of trust 
and more efficient 
purchase processes.

Alliances with social 
and/or State organi-
zations that provide 
suitable conditions 
for their members 
and their families.

Mitigation of asso-
ciated risks, such as 
unfair salaries, child 
and forced labor.

Benefits for
the Organization

Strengthening its 
internal structure 
for ascertained 
administration.

Financial auto-
nomy and stability 
that facilitates the 
management of the 
business.
Better availability of 
and access to tech-
nical assistance.

Generation of trust.
Greater recognition 
of the organization.
Incidence in price 
agreements.

Generation of value 
together with its 
social base.
Mitigation of risks 
to Grupo Nutresa.

Empowerment of 
suppliers and the 
community with ac-
tions that generate 
development.

COP17.282 Billion 
was invested to strengthen the income –  
generation and entrepreneurship line.
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Support for the arts and culture
The promotion to appreciate and value 
cultural diversity plays an important role 
in the development of countries. There-
fore, during 2014 Fundación Nutresa 
generated opportunities so that 184.535 
people could participate in and enjoy ar-
tistic and musical events.

Christmas Show of Compañía de Galletas Noel, which takes place at no cost to the 
public in Medellin, Colombia, since 1988.

2014 Cartagena Music Festival.

Volunteering
Fundación Nutresa seeks to foster and 
strengthen the professional and person-
al skills of employees who integrate the 
Grupo Nutresa companies through out-
reach and awareness of social, economic 
and environmental problems that impact 
the countries where it operates.

17.000 
volunteer actions 

28.468 
hours of volunteer work 

1.170 
organizations benefited

12 countries

The United States

37 volunteers
AbiMar Foods

Mexico

327 volunteers
Nutresa

Costa Rica

824 volunteers

Pozuelo

Helados POPS

Compañía Nacional
de Chocolates.

The Dominican Republic

83 volunteers
Helados BON

Chile

1.211 volunteers
Tresmontes Lucchetti

Ecuador

101
Cordialsa

Nicaragua

90 volunteers

Comercial Pozuelo
Nicaragua

El Salvador

30 volunteers

Comercial Pozuelo
El Salvador

Peru

23 volunteers

Compañía Nacional
de Chocolates Peru

Colombia
Grupo Nutresa 
Companies in Colombia
7.659 volunteers

Guatemala
Comercial Pozuelo
Guatemala
31 volunteers

Panama
Comercial Pozuelo
Panama
45 volunteers
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Aula, leading the development of my community 
This program, developed in partnership with the United States Government, during 2.198 hours trained volun-
teers from the companies in social innovation, communication skills and conflict resolution. This initiative seeks to 
improve the impact on community interventions through the qualification of their leaders. In 2014, more than 20 
entities in cities such as Cali, Barranquilla and Antioquia, all in Colombia, were benefitted. 

The power of one thousand [G4-EC7], [G4-SO1]
Each year, nine countries in America come togeth-
er to celebrate International Volunteer Day, through 
social and environmental actions that support the 
country where it operates. This year 1.192 volun-
teers joined the initiative. 

AbiMar Foods, The United States.

Compañía Nacional de Chocolates, Peru.

El Retiro, Antioquia, Colombia.

Helados BON, Costa Rica.

Cordialsa, Ecuador.

Pozuelo, Compañía Nacional de Chocolates, 
Helados POPS, Costa Rica.

Mosquera, Cundinamarca, Colombia. Nutresa, Mexico.

El Santuario, Antioquia, Colombia.

Tresmontes Lucchetti, Chile.

El Santuario, Antioquia, Colombia. Barranquilla, Colombia.

El Retiro, Antioquia, Colombia.
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Some initiativesFuture vision

In 2015, mechanisms to measure 
the impact of social programs will be 
strengthened to generate action plans 
aimed at mitigating potential deteri-
oration. Through diagnostics, adjust-
ments and frames will also be imple-
mented with existing projects, always 
connected with the Company’s Risk 
Matrix and with the territorial needs 
of the communities. Environmental 
indicators will also be included in the 
management.

In the medium term, alliances that 
foster and leverage the improvement 
in the quality of life, the organization-
al capacity of the value chain and the 
qualification of future generations will 
be promoted. Likewise, we will work 
for greater coverage, more satisfied 
communities and the optimization of 
resources among allies to continue 
generating territorial development.

In the long term, we will help chil-
dren and families to develop capaci-
ties that allow them to choose healthy 
lifestyles and we will strengthen ed-
ucational communities with tools to 
undertake healthy actions.

We will work on mitigating risks in 
the value chain, promoting sustain-
able practices and we will incorporate 
the methodology of inclusive busi-
nesses in the supply chain.

Consequently, it is expected that, 
by 2020, besides having launched 
the short– and medium–term plans 
mentioned, Fundación Nutresa will be 
able to accompany new relevant pro-
ductive projects to supply the Grupo 
Nutresa businesses, promote healthy 
lifestyles, qualify future generations, 
and achieve the goal of participating 
in 1.000 capacity–development proj-
ects with communities.

Executives from 
Tresmontes Lucchetti 
inaugurate the facilities 
of the reconstruction 
of Centro Deportivo 
11 Estrellas in Cerro 
La Cruz, Valparaiso.

Support for the social and environmental emergency in Valparaíso, Chile
After the tragic fire which occurred in Valparaíso, Chile, in April 2014, Tresmontes 
Lucchetti inaugurated the 11 Estrellas Sports Complex, located in Cerro La Cruz in 
barrio El Vergel.

The reopening of this space, which will benefit more than 3.000 people who can 
return to their sports and community life, was made possible through donations made 
by Grupo Nutresa employees and companies, amounting to USD 103.544.

The project had the support of Governmental entities in Valparaíso and was devel-
oped together with sports leaders.

Inclusive businesses
Novaventa and Fundación Nutresa, together with the Colombian Business Council 
for Sustainable Development (Consejo Empresarial Colombiano para el Desarrollo 
Sostenible, CECoDeS), developed the systematization and recognition of Entrepreneur 
Mothers as a strategy to reduce poverty, which maximizes the social and economic 
value of both parties.

Four workshops were held with senior management in Colombia, Peru and Mexico 
to sensitize and identify 36 inclusive business ideas with clients, supply chains and 
proposals to design and manufacture products.

Promoting healthy lifestyles in Chile, Colombia and Mexico 
Implementation of healthy lifestyle strategies in Chile, Mexico and Colombia, aimed at 
generating educational processes in the school, family and community context to build 
healthy lifestyles, achieving, among others:
•	 The incorporation of interventions in nutritional food education, physical activity, in-

volvement of the school environment and modification of the environment through 
a healthy kiosk, in 19 schools in Chile and Mexico. 

•	 The study of more than 1.900 school–age children to identify the effectiveness of 
the “Healthy Space” program that provided evidence on effective interventions to 
build public policies in Chile. 

•	 Co–construction of an educational strategy to promote healthy lifestyles in Colom-
bian schools. 

•	 Creation of a roadmap for stores and physical–activity scenarios, consistent with 
healthy lifestyles. 
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Enjoying 
a balanced diet 

changes your life
Silvia Henao, 24 years old. Dancer.



Grupo Nutresa has consumers and 
their quality of life at the center of 
its strategy, and for this, it offers 
portfolios of products with alterna-
tives that satisfy their aspirations for 
nutrition, health and wellness.  This 
strategic priority includes, among 
other matters, the global challeng-
es of obesity and malnutrition; for 
this reason, it has incorporated in its 
2020 strategy, doubling the portfoli-
os with a healthy profile and becom-
ing a more active corporate citizen in 
the manner of relating to consumers 
and transforming human and social 
capital to generate healthy habits 
and healthier lifestyles.
In this strategic focus, the Organi-
zation describes the progress and 
management of two material issues:  
Nutrition, health and wellness, and 
Responsible relationships with con-
sumers.

Para conocer más sobre 
la campaña de Grupo Nutresa
“Disfruta una vida saludable”,

visita la página www.nutresa.com
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Nutrition and 
healthy living

[G4-DMA]
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Grupo Nutresa is committed to the quality of life of its consumers; for 
this reason it works permanently in the reformulation of its portfolio and 
the innovation of new, healthier products that satisfy expectations for 
nutrition, health and wellness.

Nutrition, health and wellness

Highlights

Grupo Nutresa made reformulations in 248 refer-
ences to reduce sodium, 140 to reduce trans fats, 
99 to reduce sugar and 71 to reduce saturated fat. 

It included nutritional information on the front of 
71% of the products in its portfolio. 

It designed the strategy to promote healthy  
lifestyles.

During 2014, four Grupo Nutresa companies re-
ceived certification as Healthy Organizations.

[G4-DMA]
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Challenges

For the different target audiences, it is a condition 
that foods that are offered be quality guaranteed 
and that they also satisfy consumer needs including 
nutrition, health and wellness. Grupo Nutresa man-
ages these issues through the upgrading, control and 
compliance of corporate quality and nutrition poli-
cies, in line with the recommendations of the World 
Health Organization (WHO) and regulating agencies. 
These corporate policies are extended to employees, 
to whom access is provided to information on health 
education and disease prevention. For this reason, 
we work on making the companies Healthy Organi-
zations that promote cardiovascular health through 
the diagnosis of risks and action plans. 

From the evolution of findings in public health, 
we have identified risks related to relevant changes 
in the controls and regulations that affect the op-
eration of the Organization’s supply chain, covering 
safety criteria; organoleptic, physicochemical and 
microbiological characteristics and product labeling; 
as well as advertising, promotion and tax matters.

In considering the foregoing, it can be established 
that these risks would affect the financial and so-
cial capital of the Organization, since no attention 
to new demands may represent restrictions on the 
commercial operation, as well as additional charges 
that, by not being absorbed, may impact Grupo Nu-
tresa sales.

Non–communicable chronic diseases, including 
cardiac and respiratory diseases, cancer and diabe-
tes, are considered the leading causes of mortality 
worldwide, accounting for 63% of the deaths. These 
pathologies are largely preventable and for this, not 
only are individual actions related to attaining a 
healthy lifestyle relevant, but also the commitment 
of public and private stakeholders. Specifically, the 
food industry can play an important role in promot-
ing healthy eating, by reducing the content of fat, 
sugar and sodium in products; ensuring the devel-
opment of affordable, safe and nutritious food; and 
proving consumers with adequate, understandable 
information about products and nutrition.

Progress 

Grupo Nutresa advances in the implementation of the strategies outlined 
in its nutrition policy: provide quality of life to consumers with product al-
ternatives that satisfy their aspirations for nutrition, health and wellness, 
and promote strategies that foster healthy lifestyles and a balanced diet, 
as well as make informed decisions, and the 2020 goals. The latter, cou-
pled with the investigative effort led by Corporación Vidarium – Nutrition, 
Health and Wellness Research Center – contribute to improving the quali-
ty of life of people and communities. Also noteworthy is the participation 
of Grupo Nutresa in the sector strategies that, from the Food Chamber 
of the Colombian Association of Businessmen (Asociación National de 
Empresarios de Colombia, ANDI), seeks to create awareness on food and 
physical activity.

Among the causes of non–communicable chronic diseases are over-
weight and obesity, which are a major public–health issue worldwide. For 
this reason, Grupo Nutresa decided to act and assume the leadership as 
a transformer of people and communities and as an active promoter of 
healthy lifestyles.

Consistent with its importance, monitoring the progress of the pro-
grams associated with the nutritional strategy was included permanently 
in the meetings of the Grupo Nutresa Steering Committee, a space that 
brings together the Presidents of the Grupo Nutresa Businesses. During 
the year, we monitored the goals and reviewed regulatory projects in the 
strategic region, associated with health concerns, to assess their impact 
on the operation.
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Healthy lifestyles
During 2014, Grupo Nutresa deepened its understanding of healthy 
lifestyles and designed the Nutresa–brand strategy that teaches and 
accompanies consumers in adopting a healthy lifestyle. This strategy 
consists of four pillars: physical activity, a balanced diet, sharing with 
the family and going outdoors, reinforcing the corporate message of 
“enjoying life nourishes you.”

During 2015, in mass media Grupo Nutresa will communicate the 
new Nutresa–brand campaign “Enjoy a healthy life,” which aims to 
promote the adoption of healthy lifestyles through real–life stories and 
implement memorable education and awareness activities with some 
relevant, simple, positive and proactive messages.

This campaign joins the augmented–reality strategy, launched in 2013, 
which seeks to strengthen informed decision making by consumers.

As a fundamental part of this new campaign, on the corporate Web-
page www.nutresa.com, users can consult articles and research on 
each one of the pillars: physical activity, a balanced diet, sharing with 
the family and going outdoors, thus seeking a better understanding of 
the benefits that each one contributes to a healthy lifestyle. From each 
user’s record and considering his or her consultations and navigation 
route on the page, Grupo Nutresa will have a consumer profiling that 
will allow it to offer increasingly segmented, focused content, both 
in the perception of lifestyle and in consumer tastes and interests to 
achieve greater interaction.
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Nutrition management [G4-FP6] [G4-FP7]
In line with the objective of providing quality of life to consumers, Grupo 
Nutresa has advanced in the 2020 goal to double the products that comply 
with an adequate nutritional profile for the consumption occasion.

In 2014 
290 references were 
added that comply with the 
nutritional profile established 
for the occasion of consump-
tion, bringing the total to 

1.795

During 2014, we reformulated:

248 references to reduce the sodium content, 

99 in sugar, 

71 in saturated fat and 

140 in trans fat, nutrients of interest in public health, 
and on which it has been recommended to take action

The goals to reduce the Gru-
po Nutresa portfolio of prod-
ucts are linked to the nutri-
tional profile developed by 
the company.

The TMLUC products have still not been included 
in the Grupo Nutresa nutritional profile.

Reduced in
critical nutrients

Increased in 
nutritional components

Total percentage of products sold 
that were modified in one or several 

nutrients in 2014 19% 8%

Reduced in
critical nutrients

Increased in 
nutritional components

Total percentage of products sold 
that were modified in one or several 

nutrients in 2014 19% 4%

One of the goals of the Grupo Nutresa nutritional strategy is 
to provide consumers with the tools to acquire proper eating 
habits and be well informed about their food. The voluntary, 
front–panel–labeling system helps to fulfill this objective, 
since it allows consumers to make better food choices and 
evaluate their nutritional quality.

During 2014, Grupo Nutresa had 2,905 references with the 
labeling implemented, following the guidelines of the Guideline 
Daily Amount (GDA) and complying with the plan established.

The advertising of the different Grupo Nutresa brands 
complies with the principles of responsibility, honesty, truth-
fulness and fair competition, and with the policies and action 
framework for advertising self–regulation, advertising to chil-
dren and labeling information. 

Within the Grupo Nutresa strategy to promote health 
and healthy lifestyles, we have defined a working front for  

employees that integrates practices and investments in well-
ness and occupational safety and health. In 2014, five of the 
Grupo Nutresa companies incorporated the ISO 10001 “Fam-
ily–Responsible Company” and “Healthy Organizations” 
standard, obtaining certification that recognized them for 
working on prevention plans and managing healthy habits 
through a balanced diet, sports and smoke–free spaces. This, 
in order to minimize cardiovascular risk and contribute to the 
conditions of a healthy life that contribute to the quality of 
life of employees. By 2020, all the Grupo Nutresa compa-
nies will be certified and will have quality–of–life programs 
aimed at closing the gaps identified in the health screenings 
conducted on employees, with improvement indicators to re-
duce obesity, the consumption of cigarettes and alcohol and 
increased physical activity.
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Future vision

Grupo Nutresa is aware that being part 
of the food sector means operating in 
a dynamic regulatory framework, with 
an overview of increasingly shorter life 
cycles for products and technologies, 
which imply economic and social im-
pacts that can be mitigated from the 
timely adoption of trends. Likewise, the 
Organization recognizes that consumers 
are becoming more aware of their eating 
habits, which has increased the demand 
for food with higher nutritional density, 
but with less caloric intake.

Grupo Nutresa will continue working 
to develop new products low in calories, 
fat, sugar and sodium, as well as in refor-
mulating products that are currently avail-
able in the market. Also, it will continue 
to conduct surveillance and monitoring 
to identify emerging issues related to the 
effect of diet on the health and nutrition 
of people, to dimension their impact on 
the operation of the Grupo Nutresa busi-
nesses and take the mitigation measures 
required to handle them. Studies will be 
focused on reviewing sources of informa-
tion on aspects of health and nutrition of 
the populations in the strategic region, as 
well as the ingredients and processes that 
emerge as new technologies.

To continue developing the guidelines 
established by the nutrition policy, for 
2015 Grupo Nutresa aims to have 100% 
of its products with front–label nutritional 
information – attending Grupo Nutresa’s 
internal guideline – or with the informa-
tion established by the regulations of the 
specific market in which it participates. By 
2020, Grupo Nutresa will have all its com-
panies certified as Healthy Organizations; it 
will continue with the reformulation of crit-
ical public–health nutrients – sodium, sug-
ar, saturated fat and trans fat – and it will 
maintain compliance of the framework for 
action in advertising and marketing.

Some initiatives

Design research to attend the needs of reformulation
The ingredients of interest in public health, in addition to nutritional function, have 
technological and sensory functions in the food matrix. Therefore, research projects 
were formulated to evaluate suitable replacements for these ingredients. We have re-
sults for the partial substitution of sodium, sugar and fat, which support the strategy 
of the portfolios. Work continues to obtain greater reductions. Among the plans of 
the research and development units, not only new products are included; there are 
also specific projects to adjust nutritional profiles. Among the achievements in 2014, 
noteworthy is the 15% reduction in sodium in crackers and a 20% reduction in sat-
urated fat in the Tosh products, which, coupled with reductions obtained in previous 
years in biscuits, cold cuts, chocolates, ice cream and coffee, materialize the strategy 
to reformulate products to attend the needs of public health.

Promotion of healthy lifestyles
Improving the quality of life is a personal decision that requires knowledge, so we 
developed the “Healthy Organizations” program for the Grupo Nutresa internal com-
munity and the “Enjoy a Healthy Life” campaign for the general public. Regarding the 
former, noteworthy is the achievement of having four companies certified at the end 
of 2014 in the “Healthy Heart” program, which has had the support of the Colombian 
Heart Foundation. 

Generation of knowledge in obesity
The Vidarium Research Center’s Food Modulators in the Microbiota research line stud-
ies the relationship of the intestinal microbiota and obesity; in 2014, it developed 
fieldwork of an investigation that seeks, among others, to characterize the intestinal 
microbiota in Colombian adults with different body mass indexes.

Hearts Festival in the Coffee Business, in Medellin, to promote healthy lifestyles.
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Grupo Nutresa and its subsidiaries share the same principles of responsibility, honesty, 
truthfulness and fair competition. In order to fulfill them, we have established a 
management system for food safety, analysis and monitoring of raw materials, 
products in process and finished products.

Highlights

Grupo Nutresa developed and implemented a new 
supplier evaluation, qualification and monitoring 
system, which includes requirements to prevent 
and minimize risks that may affect the quality and 
safety of products, the environment, people, infra-
structure and information.

We developed and launched the Promotional Item 
Policy and Protocol, which aims to define the con-
trols to be implemented for articles or other objects 
that accompany the Grupo Nutresa products. 

Progress was made in implementing the guidelines 
established in the Genetically Modified Organisms 
(GMO) Policy, to comply with the legislation in 
different countries and take into account cultural 
differences, perceptions and preferences of con-
sumers regarding the use of genetically modified 
ingredients. 

Responsible relations with consumers [G4-DMA]
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We began implementing the Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Points (HACCP) 
System in all Grupo Nutresa factories, to prevent hazards that may affect the safety 
of the foods that Grupo Nutresa produces.

For the sixth consecutive year, Grupo Nutresa ranked third in the list of com-
panies with the best reputation in Colombia, in the MERCO Empresas ranking, 
results that confirmed the first–place ranking of Grupo Nutresa within the Food 
and Beverage sector.

Challenges

Effective management of the relationship with consum-
ers is vital to be preferred when satisfying their needs 
for wellness, nutrition and pleasure. Therefore, orga-
nizations must implement processes that meet regula-
tions on the quality, advertising and fair competition of 
their brands while maintaining satisfaction.

The use of social networks as a way to express dissat-
isfaction regarding the quality and safety of products 
and the emergence of increasingly more demanding 
consumers who are more knowledgeable about nu-
trition and health has led Grupo Nutresa to innovate 
with differentiating products and services that satisfy 
these expectations.

Changes in legislation related to consumer protec-
tion have promoted a trend to increase reporting of 
complaints from consumers, thus allowing companies 
to identify opportunities for improvement and take 
the steps necessary to seek continual improvement in 
the processes.

Moreover, in the Organization’s strategic region, the 
confluence of tradition, modernity and being at the 
forefront are currently evidenced, which is changing the 
meaning of attitudes, interests, opinions and behavior 
of consumers.

As a result of this reality and its understanding, to-
day’s consumers demand greater quality in their life; 
they are willing to accept new proposals for healthier 
lifestyles, they crave experiences that get them out of 
their daily routine, they live a diversity of roles simultaneously and reward their efforts through 
consumption. Therefore, we have permanently connected consumers who establish a more direct 
relationship with their preferred brands to express their opinions and receive immediate responses, 
looking to have a real effect in their communities.

These elements generate a greater demand towards brands and involve a greater commitment by 
Grupo Nutresa to place consumers at the center of its corporate Vision and Mission and place them 
as a primary stakeholder, while maintaining permanent interaction with them to identify their needs, 
expectations, behaviors and habits. Through the management of reputational risks and strength-
ening the positioning of its brands and products, Grupo Nutresa promotes the creation of financial 
capital for the Organization.

Biscuits Business production auxiliary in Medellin.
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Progress

Integrated management system
Committed to its clients and consumers, for more than ten 
years Grupo Nutresa has implemented an Integrated Manage-
ment System in each of its Businesses and in each one of the 
countries in which it is present. This Integrated Management 
System (IMS) (Sistema Integrado de Gestión, SIG) includes man-
agement systems for quality, food safety, environmental man-
agement, occupational health and safety management, control 
and security (security in the supply chain), management of the 
risk of cardiovascular diseases and other communicable chronic 
diseases (Healthy Organizations) and the management model 
of reconciliation and equality (Family Responsible Companies, 
FRC). All of these management systems are based on minimiz-
ing risks that may affect the different stakeholders.
To implement this Integrated Management System, each of 
the Grupo Nutresa companies has an Integrated Quality Policy, 
aligned with the Grupo Nutresa strategic objectives, where pro-
grams and projects are created for their compliance. Additional-
ly, verification of the continuous compliance and improvement 
of the Integrated Management System is conducted through 
internal and external audits by certification bodies and clients.

Certification Number of certified ope-
ration centers [G4-SO1]

ISO 9001:2008 17
ISO 14001:2004 18
OHSAS18001:2007 8
HACCP 10
Certificación (GAP) 
(Good Agricultural Practices) 1

Certifications
To strengthen the Integrated Management System, in 2014 
Grupo Nutresa maintained current certifications and obtained 
the following achievements with the support and transfer of 
good practices by the Businesses, which today have mature 
management systems.

BON ice cream shop employees in Santo Domingo, Dominican Republic.
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Monitoring and measurement
To measure the effectiveness of food–safety 
management, the Grupo Nutresa companies 
have monitoring indicators, including Public 
Health Services (PHS) Hygienic Sanitary Inspec-
tions of the plants, Process and Product Compli-
ance, Complaints, and the Evaluation of Client 
and Consumer Satisfaction.

Presentation and delivery  
of information on Grupo  
Nutresa products
With the current trend of consumers who in-
creasingly want to know more about the ingre-
dients contained in products and the amount of 
components that are present therein, Grupo Nu-
tresa reports its ingredients and nutritional con-
tent on the packaging of its products, as well as 
stating the recommendations for consumption 
and how to dispose of the packaging. This is 
based on the guidelines present in national and 
international legislation and the technocal regu-
lations on nutritional labeling that must be met 
by packaged foods for human consumption.

Mechanism to manage unsuitable 
products in some markets
To prevent the sale of banned or challenged 
products, legal monitoring is conducted on 
regulations in Colombia and abroad, and their 
application is reviewed from stages of develop-
ment to product sales.

The Businesses continue to apply the policy 
of self–regulation, advertising and marketing, 
to comply with the principles of transparency, 
truthfulness and fair competition. Additionally, 
through the Client Attention Center, we respond 
to the questions and concerns about the portfolio 
of products.

Best practices for storage and distribution
During 2014, progress was made in promoting and updating the Best Practices 
for Storage and Distribution in Commercial Networks, to maintain conditions 
for the quality and safety of products and ensure that they are delivered to 
clients in optimal conditions. For this, we make visits that include the evaluation 
of marketer warehouses in Colombia, in order to identify opportunities for im-
provement and establish action plans to avoid the materialization of risks that 
could affect product quality and safety. Additionally, during these visit we pro-
vide staff training on best storage practices and integrated pest management. 

Grupo Nutresa 

ranked third in the 
list of companies with the best re-
putation in Colombia, in the MERCO 
Empresas ranking.

Assistant in the Biscuit Business Distribution Center in Medellín.
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Reputation and crisis management
As a measure of responsibility and building trust with consumers 
and as a fundamental part of managing business continuity and 
the Organization’s reputation, the Grupo Nutresa companies 
have an approved risk– and crisis–management process to en-
sure a timely, effective response to crisis events arising from the 
occurrence of risks that can compromise related third parties. 
This process includes a functional structure, periodic training 
plans and protocols for the different segments of employees.

As part of the risk– and crisis–management consolidation 
process, in 2014, teams in five businesses were trained; we 
held spokesperson workshops in three units (the Office of the 
Grupo Nutresa CEO and two businesses) and we approved and 
internally disclosed the Social Network Policy, which provides 
criteria to manage communications in digital media to attend 
crisis events.

Noteworthy is that, for the sixth consecutive year, Grupo Nu-
tresa ranked third in the list of companies with the best repu-
tation in Colombia, in the MERCO Empresas ranking. However, 
the results last year showed a novelty, the growth – compared 
to 2013 – which marked the surpassing, for the first time, of 
the barrier of 9.000 points (out of the 10.000 obtained by the  

leader). These results confirmed Grupo Nutresa’s first–place 
ranking in the Food and Beverage sector. MERCO Empresas 
evaluates Colombian companies according to their economic 
and financial results, quality of the commercial offer, internal 
reputation, corporate ethics and responsibility, international di-
mension and innovation.

Additionally, results were presented from the VI Opinion Panel 
2014, conducted by the firm Cifras y Conceptos, which showed 
an increase of two positions by Grupo Nutresa within the group 
of companies most admired by opinion leaders, including the 
media, the private sector, academia, the public sector and so-
cial organizations. Thus, the organization ranked seventh within 
this study.

Better understanding of consumers
To support compliance of the Grupo Nutresa strategic objectives, 
the Market Intelligence Unit was consolidated; it was created to 
generate and transfer relevant, differentiated knowledge on the 
principal market forces (Consumers, Buyers, Clients/Channels) to 
support the decision–making process, identify and minimize risks 
and discover and/or boost opportunities. This, in order to be clos-
er to consumers and find better ways to satisfy their needs.
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Future vision 

To further strengthen the corporate principle of re-
sponsibility to consumers, in 2015 we will continue 
with the implementation, in all the Grupo Nutresa 
Companies, of the Food Defense Program, an initia-
tive that emerged in the United States to protect foods 
from intentional contamination, which will strengthen 
risk management and facilitate the adoption of the In-
tegral Food–Protection model.

Additionally, during 2015 we will continue strength-
ening the Integrated Management System (Quality, 
Environmental, Occupational Safety and Health, Safe-
ty in the Supply Chain, Healthy Organizations and 
Family–Responsible Companies), through the adop-
tion and standardization of transversal practices and 
tools in the different management systems, through 
synergies conducted among the Grupo Nutresa Busi-
nesses. With this, we intend that the Companies are 
increasingly more preventive in the timely identifica-
tion of risks that may affect people, the environment, 
products, information and the infrastructure.

Some initiatives 

Protocol requirements for suppliers 
During 2014, we constructed protocol requirements for suppliers to respond to legislative requirements asso-
ciated with materials in direct contact with food, Genetically Modified Organisms (GMOs) and Contaminants 
in Foods. These protocols have been communicated to all suppliers and we are monitoring their response.

Protocol of promotional items 
Promotion items are articles or other objects that accompany products and may be in direct or indirect 
contact with food. Committed to the safety, health and integrity of its consumers, Grupo Nutresa has 
defined and implemented a Policy and a Protocol with which it seeks to implement controls from design, 

Cold Cuts consumption moments in Panama.

Part of the Grupo Nutresa philosophy consists of 
providing safe foods that satisfy consumer needs for 
wellness, nutrition and pleasure. This is why, in 2015, 
we will advance in the Hazard Analysis and Critical 
Control Points (HACCP) System in all the factories of 
the Businesses.

Clients are the basis of growth in Grupo Nutresa 
and its full attention forms the path to being better 
every day. Thus, the basic objectives of client service 
is to listen to consumer complaints and suggestions, 
properly answer all their doubts and questions, ensure 
compliance of their rights and achieve their full satis-
faction. We propose strengthening the attention mod-
el for consumers who prefer to use social networks 
as a means to express their news and continue with 
attention by phone for consumers who choose it as a 
means to contact Grupo Nutresa.
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supplier selection and the purchase and 
receipt of promotional items, to ensure 
compliance with current legislation and 
avoid inherent risks. This protocol was so-
cialized in the Grupo Nutresa Businesses; 
as of 2014, we have progressed 66% in 
its implementation.

Evaluation of suppliers
We adopted a new model to evaluate 
suppliers which includes topics related 
to Sustainable Development and safety 
in the supply chain, to ensure the proper 
handling and disposal of non–conform-
ing packages that may affect brand im-
age. This initiative has been implemented 
since May 2014 and had a 97% compli-
ance rate for all the suppliers that were 
programmed during the year. 

Cocoa crop at the Yaringuíes farm in Santander.

Social Network Policies
In the pursuit of putting the digital universe 
at the service of meeting the Grupo Nutre-
sa strategic objectives, and in particular its 
Mega 2020, in 2014 the Organization pre-
sented its Social Network Policies, a set of 
basic management and coexistence rules in 
Grupo Nutresa Social Networks and those of 
its businesses. The purpose of these policies 
is to encourage healthy, effective communi-
cation in the Social Networks in which Gru-
po Nutresa participates, founded on a con-
structive, transparent, respectful dialogue. 
This, to avoid situations that endanger the 
Grupo Nutresa reputation, its businesses 
and its brands and maximize the opportuni-
ties presented to strengthen them.

In 2014 this document served as a guide 
to attend three potential crisis situations in-
side the businesses.

Chocolatina Jet 
Facebook Page.



To learn more about 
the Grupo Nutresa Campaign 

“Enjoy a Healthy Life,” 
visit our Webpage www.nutresa.com

Complementing the management of the 
supply chain through the incorporation 
of socio–environmental variables allows 
Grupo Nutresa to administer the impacts 
that occur outside its control, as part of a 
strategy to capitalize on opportunities and 
manage potential operational, financial or 
reputational risks. The management of this 
material issue creates financial and social 
capital for the Organization, by mitigat-
ing financial risks, generating efficiencies 
and building long–term relationships with 
farmers and other suppliers who depend, to 
varying degrees, on the purchases made by 
the Organization.

Sustainable  
sourcing

132

[G4-DMA]



Enjoying as a family changes your life
Doris Forero, 35 years old. Businesswoman.
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Highlights

We continued to implement 
the strategic–sourcing model 
in international platforms, with 
which we saved COP 6.913 
Billion. 

The strategic–sourcing model 
was taken to the Tresmontes 
Lucchetti Business. The 
savings in purchases during 
2014 was COP 338 Million. 

Negative impacts in the coffee, 
cocoa and meat markets 
were reduced by capturing 
opportunities in the total 
Grupo Nutresa basket of raw 
materials. 

The operation and 
development of the purchase 
representation office in 
Shanghai, China, was 
consolidated, with which we 
saved COP 2.568 Billion. 

We conducted an analysis 
in sustainability risks on 124 
purchasing categories. 

We disclosed the Human 
Rights Policy to nearly 900 
suppliers of goods and 
services. 

Coffee crops in Aguadas, Caldas, which belong to communities 
supported by Fundación Nutresa and the Coffee Business.
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Challenges

Managing impacts on and responsibility to society and the environment in an increasingly more 
globalized corporate environment requires organizations to transcend their own operation.

Grupo Nutresa is committed to mitigating the indirect impacts of its activities, and, thus, has 
promoted strategies to manage risks and opportunities associated with the supply of goods and 
contracting of services with its suppliers. It has established policies and manuals that provide a 
framework for action and direction in our own operations and those of third parties, including 
policies on selecting suppliers, Hedges, Human Rights and Genetically Modified Organisms, and 
a manual for contractors, among others. Likewise, we have established public objectives and 
goals associated with the sustainability of the sourcing processes, such as a 12% reduction in the 
consumption of packing material, projected to 2020.

Social and economic development 
with inclusion for farmers and 
small suppliers

Productivity and competitiveness
in the value chain

Decrease of the environmental 
impact in our operations

Development of suppliers

Progress  

For Grupo Nutresa, management through-
out the entire supply chain is a key part of 
its operation; within it is the management 
of supplying goods made by its suppliers, 
strategic partners in its operations.

During the last update of the Materi-
ality Matrix (2013), sustainable sourcing 
was considered a material issue by stake-
holders, due to the relevance and impact 
that suppliers have in the three dimen-
sions of sustainability.

To meet the different needs and op-
portunities associated with sustainable 
sourcing, Grupo Nutresa has undertaken 
projects in the different dimensions of 
sustainability, seeking a balance in each.
[G4-EN33],  [G4-LA15],  [G4-SO10]

Strategic sourcing
In 2014, we continued the initiative of strategic sourcing begun 
in 2012, which seeks to achieve savings in the negotiation cate-
gories for goods and services in Grupo Nutresa, as an indispens-
able component in the competitiveness of the businesses. This 
initiative has been developed through different leveragers in sup-
ply management. The savings goal proposed in 2014 was COP 

58.710 Billion, which had a fulfillment of 124%, equal to COP 
72.722 Billion. Through the management of raw materials, we 
were able to reduce the negative impacts of the coffee, cocoa 
and meat markets, by capturing opportunities in the total Grupo 
Nutresa basket of raw materials. 

Sustainable sourcing
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Human rights training to Grupo Nutresa suppliers.

Human Rights
We disclosed the Human Rights policy to suppliers 
of goods and services, explaining the management 
system of this policy. The launch took place at the 
premises of Services Nutresa, where around 150 sup-
pliers attended, in addition to 750 more via stream-
ing. Also, the guidelines were extended to contrac-
tors and marketers. We have identified potential 
human–rights risks, such as child labor, freedom of 
association and collective bargaining, social impact 
and forced labor, in suppliers. 

For more details on the Human Rights policy 
and management in the supply chain, go to 

“Human Rights Material Issue.”

Developing capabilities in our 
value chain [G4-EC8]
During 2014, we conducted 199 training 
sessions for suppliers of raw materials, 
packing materials and services in differ-
ent topics associated to the management 
systems in the Grupo Nutresa Businesses. 
In the training sessions, topics – such as 
sustainable development, occupational 
safety and health, legal updates, contrac-
tor manuals, management systems, money 
laundering and the financing of terrorism, 
issues associated with human manage-
ment, the supplier portal and the devel-
opment of being – were presented. A total 
of 1.425 hours were invested in trainings, 
with 1.841 participants.

Grupo Nutresa has a program for the 
development of direct–material suppliers 
through which it promotes the appropria-
tion of best practices in the different inte-
grated quality–management systems, com-
pliance of requirements and regulations 
and the generation and application of sus-
tainable practices.

The Organization also favors local suppli-
ers, provided they comply with the Code of 
Conduct for Suppliers in the requirements 
of quality, price and supply conditions es-
tablished by the different companies. Local 
supply has positive environmental impacts 
related to the transport of raw materials and 
materials to the factories. 

Derived from the supplier development and evaluation programs, in 2014 sup-
pliers implemented 996 actions to improve their productive and administrative 
processes, related to improvements in the quality–, environmental– and food–
safety management systems; practices in human management; impacting loca-
tional conditions; personnel practices; and environmental and safety programs, 
to improve their ability to produce and provide products and services with high 
standards. New direct–material suppliers are included in the annual supplier–eval-
uation program and, according to the results of this evaluation and the level of 
control assigned to the supplier, the frequency of reevaluation in time is defined.

From the second quarter of 2014, new sustainability elements were integrated 
into the supplier–evaluation program, derived from the potential risks identified 
in the consultation made with the BSD Consulting firm. Some of these elements 
are child labor, freedom of association and collective bargaining, social impact and 
forced labor. These variables are analyzed and evaluated during the evaluation 

Evaluation of suppliers 2014

74 Service suppliers evaluated

53 Packaging suppliers evaluated

165 Raw materials suppliers evaluated
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and/or audit processes on suppliers. Since the inclusion of these new variables, 123 raw–material and pack-
ing–material suppliers have been evaluated.

In order to increase the capabilities and knowledge in sustainability issues of the negotiating and pro-
curement teams, training with experts in the field from the University of Barcelona, Spain, was conducted. 
Among the topics discussed were materiality analysis, risks in sustainability, and the management of these 
risks in the Grupo Nutresa processes.

Managing Inclusive Businesses, income  
generation and entrepreneurship [G4-EC8] 
Grupo Nutresa and its Fundación Nutresa generated synergies 
in the development of capabilities of more then 30 local cocoa, 
cashew, sesame, blackberry and coffee suppliers. With the im-
plementation of formal–education and digital–literacy projects, 
we were able to benefit more than 2.400 community leaders, 
who improved their income through the sale of supplies and/or 

the management of alliances. Collaborative work was reflected 
in the development of 18 initiatives in food safety and 29 inte-
gral business–improvement plans, leveraging the growth of the 
organizations through scale–economy models and the estab-
lishment of 17 public–private partnerships. Through encounters 
with producers, the social– and technical–management net-
works, the implementation and replication of best practices, 
and knowledge transfer were strengthened.

Chocó
(Cocoa)

Caldas
(Coffee)

Number of farmers: 777
Number of associations: 11
Total cocoa purchase from the business: 304 tons

Quindío
(Blackberry)

Number of farmers: 40
Number of associations: 2
Total blackberry purchase from the business: 107 tons 

Number of farmers: 750
Number of associations: 1
Total coffee purchase from the business: 210 tons

Montes de María

Number of farmers: 285 
Number of associations: 13
Total sesame purchase from the business: 33 tons

(Cashew)

Number of farmers: 119
Number of associations: 2
Total sesame purchase from the business: 4 tons

(Cocoa)

Number of farmers: 459
Number of associations: 4
Total cocoa purchase from the business: 23 tons

(Sesame)
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Promoting cocoa  [G4-EC8] 
In partnership with the Technology Center of Antioquia (Centro de Tec-
nología de Antioquia, CTA), Servicios Nutresa and Compañía Nacional de 
Chocolates Colombia began a project to develop ten cocoa suppliers locat-
ed in northeast Antioquia, to strengthen producers in aspects of business 
management, quality, and productivity, among others, and thus increase the 
level of competitiveness of cocoa producers. During 2014, workshops were 
conducted to identify losses and opportunities, baseline assessment, and pri-
oritization of gaps, and early improvement actions were implemented.

Through Inclusive Businesses, we supported cocoa–producer projects 
totaling 21.983 hectares, which benefitted nearly 10.000 families in 12 
departments and 85 municipalities in the country. In these projects, farmers 
received technical, social and business advice in the development of their 
crops and the strengthening of their organizations. 
•	 In the Research and Technological Transfer Plan, we conducted 146 

training sessions and technical tours, which were attended by 2.897 
technicians and farmers. 

•	 The Cocoa–Producer Mass Disclosure Program sent 139.329 text messag-
es to 2.818 farmers with information related to cocoa crops. 

•	 Investment in these programs (Inclusive Businesses, Technological Research 
and Transfer) amounted to COP 1.609 Billion in 2014.

•	 In 2014, 969 hectares were planted by 55 farmers in nine municipali-
ties. The 2014 investment amounted to COP 7.643 Billion, for a cumu-
lative total of COP 21.816 Billion.

•	 The Company purchased 183 tons of cocoa with Organic and Fair Trade 
Certifications that generated quality bonuses for COP 88 Million. Addi-
tionally, it purchased 77 tons of Origin cocoa, for which it paid bonuses 
for COP 32 Million. 

•	 The farm in Barrancabermeja generated 78 direct jobs, received 367 visi-
tors for training, produced 65.800 plants of hybrid cocoa and 18.931 tim-
ber plants for third parties and received, from the Colombian Institute of 
Technical Regulations and Certification (Instituto Colombiano de Normas 
Técnicas y Certificación, ICONTEC) , certifications in Best Agricultural Prac-
tices in cocoa and the Forestry Compensation Program (carbon fixation).
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Cocoa from producer communities in Montes de Maria, Bolivar.
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Fair Trade in coffee  
[G4-EC8] 
Colcafé continues to generate bene-
fits to coffee–producing communities 
certified under the Fair Trade Seal, a 
program based on cooperation be-
tween coffee producers and market-
ers. Through partnerships and negoti-
ations with international clients, since 
the beginning of the program the 
Company has transferred resources 
for more than COP 19,918 Billions.

The social bonus transferred is 
mainly used in initiatives aimed at pro-
ductivity and quality of the crop, en-
vironmental projects, social services, 
education and other projects covered 
by this certification.

In the last five years, not only has 
the value of the bonuses transferred 
increased, but also the number of 
communities benefitted, located in 
the different coffee regions of the 
country.

Fair Trade

Animal welfare
Of the 94 pig farms that supply the business, 96.8% are certified in best livestock and 
safety practices. Besides seeking the best conditions for animal care and welfare, we 
have made adjustments in order to improve water quality and, thus, positively impact 
the health of the animals. We have set up three treatment plants for consumption and 
washing. Investments amounted to COP 273 Million.
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Coffee growers in Aguadas, Caldas.
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Replenishment practices
During 2014, six vendors were trained and qualified in continuous replenishment services through the 
portal www.gruponutresaenlinea.com for the collaborative inventory management of high–turnover ref-
erences, optimizing the inventory levels in the client–supplier chain and the working capital in the client 
and the supplier.

Cold Cuts 

1.215
695 693 491 274 151

547

4.036

30% 17% 16% 12% 7% 4% 14%
Biscuits Chocolates Coffee Pasta Others 

TOTAL

Ice Cream 

Purchases from suppliers in 2014
Grupo Nutresa annually purchases around COP 4 Trillion,  
with a greater participation of raw materials. [G4-12]

Note: This does not include the TMLUC values. Expense values correspond to companies in SAP.

Annual Purchases by Business (COP Billion)

Annual Purchases by Country [G4-EC9]
(COP Billion)

The United States

Mexico

Costa Rica

Peru

Grupo Nutresa Average

Colombia

The Dominican Republic

Panama

Imported Local

17%
83%

26%
74%

34%
66%

1%
99%

12%
88%

0%
100%

7%
93%

19%
81%

*Commodities, MP, ME, MRO  
and Services (estimated values)

Nota: Local suppliers are those located in each 
country in which there are significant operations 
(transformation operations)
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Packaging material
One of the commitments outlined in the sustainability 
strategies for 2020 is associated with the consump-
tion of packaging material, on which a goal has been 
established for a 12% reduction (Kg/t.p.), 2010 base-
line year. To date, the level of progress in this indicator 
is a reduction of 5,1%. 

Currently, and in order to address the negative 
environmental impacts in the supply chain, we are 
working on initiatives that decrease the consumption 
of packaging materials through the application of the 
Design To Value (DTV) methodology, which identifies 
improvement opportunities through the exhaustive 
analysis of all the components that form part of a 
product or process, beginning with the understand-
ing of the attributes that truly generate value for con-
sumers. During 2014, we reduced the consumption 
of packaging material by 207,9 tons through the DTV 
methodology and we identified significant opportunities for optimization thanks to the teamwork of the DTV 
Leaders Network in all the Grupo Nutresa companies. Noteworthy are other initiatives, such as the reduction in 
the calibre of flexible and folding material, the optimization of the area consumed, standardization in corrugat-
ed boxes, elimination of some components of low perceived value, the decrease in inks and the substitution of 
materials for others that are more environmentally friendly. 

Flexible

Corrugated boxes

Folding

Others

68%24%

1%
7%

Savings distribution in tons  
per category of packaging material

Future vision

Understanding that a significant portion of the risks and opportunities that 
sustainability presents for a company in the food sector is found in its supply 
chain, Grupo Nutresa has proposed programs and projects that will attend 
these risks and capitalize on opportunities for economic savings, eco–effi-
ciency and growth of alliances for joint benefit. 

Among the short– and medium–term plans are the construction of actions 
to align the supply chain with the challenges of sustainability and mitigate 
or remediate the impacts. The plan to close gaps will include actions on the 
most relevant risks associated with the ten main raw materials purchased by 
Grupo Nutresa: sugar; fats; coffee; cocoa; wheat; beef, pork and chicken; 
milk; and concentrates derived from corn and soy.

We will study possible alliances with specialized agencies, in order to miti-
gate risks and potential impacts.

We will continue to develop actions focused on fulfilling the Mega 2020 
in sustainability, which are related to the use of and reduction in waste gen-
eration and the reduced use of packing material per ton produced. This, 
through programs to buy and manage supplies that, throughout its value 
chain, can be reduced, reused or recycled.

In order to impact the risks associated with money laundering and the 
financing of terrorism (MLFT) in the value chain, in 2015 we will enable vir-
tual–training modules that will sensitize related third parties in the manage-
ment to prevent MLFT.

Cocoa.
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In raw materials, we will deepen management strate-
gies in more categories of supplies, or whose price in-
ductor is one of these, and cover more areas in which 
Grupo Nutresa operates.

In late 2014, we launched the supplier–recogni-
tion program called Exemplary Suppliers, which will 
have its first awards ceremony in the first semester of 
2015. The program aims to annually recognize those 
suppliers (small and large industries) in different cat-
egories of goods and services that stand out for their 
contribution to achieving the Grupo Nutresa objec-
tives through the supply chain, and for their effort to 
improve every day in changing environments. 

We will continue expanding the base of suppliers 
trained in MLFT risks, and who – in turn – know the 
Human Rights policy, who have adhered to the Code 
of Conduct for Suppliers and who know the ten prin-
ciples of the United Nations Global Compact for all 
the companies belonging to Grupo Nutresa.

During 2015, with support from the Cuenca Verde Water Fund, we will 
explore the possibility of developing programs to control and mitigate wa-
ter pollution that could be generated by the pig–production farms located 
in the areas of influence of the watersheds that supply the Riogrande and  
La Fe reservoirs, the main water supplies for the city of Medellín, in Colombia.

Cocoa drying in the north area of Chocó.
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Some initiatives

Analysis of sustainability risks 
for the supply chain 
This project was carried out with the 
support of expert consultations and was 
aimed to update the social and environ-
mental risks of the supply chain, applying 
the Grupo Nutresa methodology for the 
risk–management process. It analyzed 
124 categories of purchases; the risks an-
alyzed included some related to human 
rights, the environment, and occupation-
al labor and safety, among others. As a 
result of this work, we updated the inter-
vention and mitigation plans of the sus-
tainability risks, beginning in 2015 with 
the categories that present a high risk in 
first–level suppliers.

Atlas Strategic–Sourcing  
Project 
During 2014, the operation and devel-
opment of the purchase representation 
office in Shanghai, China, was consoli-
dated, which was established to leverage 
the competitiveness of the Grupo Nutre-
sa purchases and take advantage of new 
global–sourcing opportunities through a 
team made up of Colombians and Chi-
nese nationals. The savings initiatives in 
2014 reached COP 2.568 Billion. 

Migration of the strategic– 
sourcing model to platforms 
The migration of the strategic–sourc-
ing model was begun in Tresmontes 
Lucchetti to increase the competencies 
of the negotiating teams and seek im-
provements in the competitiveness of 
the negotiation and purchasing process-
es. During 2014, savings for COP 337 
Million were achieved. 

Supplier recognition program 
In late 2014, we launched the supplier–recognition program called Exemplary Suppliers, 
which will have its first awards ceremony in the first semester of 2015. The program 
aims to annually recognize those suppliers in different categories of goods and services 
that stand out for their contribution to achieving the Grupo Nutresa objectives through 
the supply chain, and for their effort to improve every day in changing environments. 

Twenty (20) recognitions will be awarded in the following purchasing categories: 
agriculture and agribusiness, livestock, industrial raw materials, packaging materials, 
indirect supplies for administrative and plant use, and continuous and discontinuous 
services. These prizes will be awarded among large, medium and small companies, ac-
cording to their performance in four aspects: innovation, productivity, environmental 
and social sustainability, and level of logistics service. 

The program will give a special award to those suppliers whose practices in innova-
tion and sustainable development are outstanding. Likewise, the Nutresa Exemplary 
Supplier will be elected, which best stands out in all the dimensions evaluated.



To learn more about  
the Grupo Nutresa Campaign  

“Enjoy a Healthy Life,” visit our  
Webpage www.nutresa.com

The Grupo Nutresa corporate philoso-
phy makes environmental performance – 
framed in rigorous legal compliance, con-
tinuous improvement and the responsible 
transformation of natural capital – allow 
its permanence over time and generates 
competitiveness through the opening of 
markets and the construction of long–term 
commercial relationships. 
The efforts made around this strategic pri-
ority consider the proper administration of 
three material issues for the Organization: 
Climate change, Energy, and Water use 
and conservation. Grupo Nutresa’s work on 
these issues is supported in the certifica-
tion of its operations under regulations that 
ensure proper management, the result of 
which, during the year in question, was that 
nine sites and production plants obtained 
their certification in environmental man-
agement under standard ISO 14001:2004, 
to reach a total of 18 certified Grupo Nutre-
sa sites and companies.
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Enjoying the outdoors changes your life
Carolina Amaya, 33 years old. Plastic artist
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Management of water resources is essential to ensure the sustainability 
of the Organization and the communities with which it lives and relates. 
This is why Grupo Nutresa emphasizes proper water management, 
identifying the related risks, promoting efficiency and mitigating the 
impacts on the resource.

Water use and conservation

Highlights

A cumulative reduction of water consumption per 
ton produced (counting surface water, ground 
water, aqueducts and rainfall) of 15,5% was 
achieved for the period 2010–2014 in Colombia.

Efficient use of water in the operations in Colombia 
improved 3,23% over 2013.

The search for alternatives for reuse and the 
continuity of projects begun in the Pasta, Cold Cuts 
and Coffee Businesses made it possible to increase 
the proportion of reused water by 21,9%, reaching 
4,93% of the total water used in all the operations 
in Colombia.

[G4-DMA]
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Challenges

The availability of water quantity and quality is necessary for all 
life on the planet. With the increasing world population and in-
creased demand for products and services that require large vol-
umes to obtain them, its availability has become an increasingly 
urgent concern.

Grupo Nutresa is aware that its performance against the inte-
gral management of this resource is vital to obtain raw materials 
from its suppliers and efficiency in industrial operations.

All human activities depend entirely on the availability of water 
resources, both in terms of quality and quantity.

Of all the fresh water used in the world, 68% is consumed by 
agriculture and 11% in industrial activities. Border conflicts over 
water are increasingly accentuated, and regulations on consump-
tion and the quality of liquid discharges are increased.

The increase in or shortage of water is one of the effects fac-
ing the planet from climate change, which will bring problems 
in physical infrastructure and transport. As for the raw materials 
that Grupo Nutresa uses, they may be negatively affected by cli-
matic uncertainty that can damage crops, either by an excess or 
shortage of water.

Additionally, in areas where shortages are already present, 
competition for water will mark social relations and define in 
which areas productive activities cannot be established due to in-
creasing water scarcity and the growing demand for the resource 
by communities.

This, added to the fact that for countries in the strategic region 
– such as Chile, Mexico and the Dominican Republic – most of 
their territories have been classified as high or very high water 
risks, which has led Grupo Nutresa to incorporate the sustainable 
use of water throughout its value chain as a strategic issue for its 
future success.

Thus, under the framework of strategic action, the Environ-
mental Commitment and the guidelines of the Corporate Envi-

ronmental Policy, we have developed a Water Resource Policy to 
establish Grupo Nutresa’s performance against the risks and op-
portunities arising from its use.

Within its strategic objectives, we have proposed a goal of re-
ducing the water–consumption indicator (m3/t.p.) in industrial 
operations by 30% by 2020.

This policy seeks to regulate actions against the integral man-
agement of a vital resource to obtain raw materials by suppli-
ers of the Organization and against the intensity of water use in 
industrial operations, thus reducing consumption and improving 
the quality of water used.

Progress

Grupo Nutresa advances in the Environmental Commitment to improve efficiency in water use 
and conservation. 

Optimization of water consumption
With the implementation of practices for the efficient management of cooling towers, the stan-
dardization of activities to wash equipment and facilities, and condensate recovery in heating sys-
tems (boilers), as important foci of work, we have advanced in reducing water consumption per ton 
produced by 3,2% compared to 2013, which contributes to the cumulative reduction of 15,5% 
against the 2010 indicator.

The activities to optimize processes and recuperate water currents in productive processes permit 
maintaining a level of water reuse of 4,93% of the total water used in all operations in Colombia, 
equivalent to 74.599 m3/year.

 

The goal for 2020 is a 

30% 
reduction in the  

water consumption  
indicator (m3/t.p.)  

in industrial operations.
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We highlight:

	 The project to reuse water in the Pasta Business in its Mos-
quera, Cundinamarca, plant, which advanced in its third 
stage and permitted the use of treated industrial wastewa-
ter in indirect cooling processes, which reduced the con-
sumption of potable water.

	
	 The continuity of the Coffee Business in the project to re-

cover condensates from steam and from distillates in the 
evaporation process. 

	 The Cold Cuts Business, with the continuity of recovery and 
reuse of autoclave waters.

	
	 The Ice Cream Business, at its plant in Bogotá, implement-

ed an improvement process to reuse water in pasteurization 
equipment, recovering the liquid that is used to sterilize the 
equipment, to then store it and use it to manufacture mix-
tures. The recovery of water at high temperatures allows re-
ducing the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) load, with 
savings of 240 m3/year.

As for the use of water in service activities, the practices de-
veloped have been focused on optimizing washing activities in 
the physical installations, to ensure maintaining the conditions 
of hygiene and Best Manufacturing Practices (BMP), but being 
rational with water use.

In the Biscuit Business, at its plant in Medellín, the installation 
of 77 modern sanitary units and the use of water–saving devices 
will reduce water consumption by 50%, compared to former 
levels, posting a savings of 5.492 m3/year.

Direct water catchment, that which comes from surface wa-
ter, ground water and rainfall sources, remains at a level of less 
than 16% of the total water collected, where municipal aque-
duct systems supply 84% of the water used for industrial oper-
ations. All water catchments not supplied by aqueduct systems 
meet the requirements of environmental authorities as to the 
amounts that may be extracted from each source. In this sense, 
the Organization does not significantly affect any sources from 
which it is served.

Colombia 2012 2013 2014

Aqueduct (thousands of m3) 1.290,5 1.307,4 1.267,2

Superficial (thousands of m3) 77,0 94,6 99,4

Subterranean (thousands of m3) 85,7 69,9 145,9

Rainwater (thousands of m3) 0,2 0,2 0,0

Total (thousands of m3) 1.453,4 1.472,1 1.512,4
* This does not include Litoempaques, Setas Colombianas, Meals Armenia.

Companies in other countries 2012 2013 2014

Aqueduct (thousands of m3) 100,4 93,9 224,0

Superficial (thousands of m3)  0 0 0 

Subterranean (thousands of m3) 2,3 2,1 551,8

Rainwater (thousands of m3) 0 0 0 

Total (thousands of m3) 102,7 96,0 775,8
*2012 and 2013: Mexico, Peru and Costa Rica; Biscuits, Costa Rica
**2014: Eight plants abroad: Chocolates Mexico, Peru and Costa Rica; Bis-
cuits Costa Rica; TMLUC Chile (four plants)

Colombia 2012 2013 2014

Total catchment (thousands of m3) 1.453,4 1.472,1 1.512,4

Reused and/or recycled water (thousands of m3) 62,6 59,5 74,6

%  of reused and/or recycled water 4,31 4,04 4,93

Percentage and total volume of recycled and reused water [G4-EN10]

*This does not include Lito-
empaques, Setas Colombi-
anas or Meals Armenia.
**Reused and/or recycled 
water in countries other 
than Colombia has not 
been recorded.

Residual water treatment plant in the Pasta Business at Mosquera, Cundinamarca.

Total water catchment according to the source [G4-EN8]
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Wastewater treatment
Additionally, there is continued investment in treatment systems of indus-
trial wastewater to improve the quality of the dumpings. Thus, in some of 
the production centers, projects to optimize the operation of Wastewater 
Treatment Plants (WWTP) are carried out, while in others, plants were built, 
including the Ice Cream Business in Manizales, the Pasta Business in Bar-
ranquilla and the Coffee Business in Santa Marta. Noteworthy is the WWTP 
construction process at the Cold Cut Business in Bogotá, which required 
an investment of COP 1.485 Billion, which is projected to comply with the 
parameters of Decree 3930 of 2010. 

Commitment to water–resource 
management and promoting  
responsible use
One of the elements of Grupo Nutresa’s Water 
Resources Policy is to promote active participa-
tion in management programs of watersheds 
that are related to operations. This motivated 
Grupo Nutresa to participate as a founding part-
ner in the creation of the Corporación Cuenca 
Verde (Green Basin Corporation) Water Fund, 
focused on preserving environmental services 
in the supply basins of the reservoirs that pro-
vide water to municipalities in the Aburrá Valley. 
These reservoirs provide 90% of the water for 
the 3,5 million inhabitants of the valley where 
Medellín is located. During 2014, we continued 
to support the activities of Cuenca Verde by 
promoting opportunities for training and dis-
seminating best practices with companies from 
different sectors.

Additional value of water to drive  
water–efficiency projects 
During 2014, Grupo Nutresa developed a proposed model to incorporate 
additional value to the price that is paid to water suppliers for the use of 
the resource. This value will be used internally by the Organization and will 
be added to the amount by which water is valued today in the technolog-
ical–updating projects of production operations, to increase the financial 
return on the evaluation of their economic viability. This will increase the 
likelihood of approving these water–savings projects in response to the low 
economic return presented by them in the past.

Boiler operator at the Cold Cuts Business plant in Bello, Antioquia.



Grupo Nutresa

Environmental sustainability

150

Future vision

The main challenge for companies in the food sector on water 
management is to minimize the impact of their operations on this 
vital resource and, given that the water footprint means only 2% 
of the total water footprint of the Organization, we must work in 
the extended chain with supplier practices and impacts.

That is why Grupo Nutresa has set short–, medium– and long–
term plans seeking to have sustainable water management to ad-
dress shortages, contamination and governance of the resource 
as fundamental pillars of work.

During 2015, we will explore the possibility of implementing 
actions to mitigate the contamination that pig–production farms 
can generate on watersheds. The possibility of conducting this 
work is being studied together with the Cuenca Verde Water 
Fund to be developed in the areas of influence of the basins that 
supply the Riogrande and La Fe reservoirs, the principal water 
supplies for the city of Medellín, in Colombia.

Likewise, we will begin the diagnosis of corporate water effi-
ciency to focus work plans where they are needed, according to 
situations of risk and water stress and conditions of consumption.

Currently, we are evaluating accompaniment alternatives by 
suppliers and experts in the field of water, in order to assess ini-
tiatives and new proposals to be implemented by the businesses 
in the coming years, to achieve the 2020 target set of decreas-
ing water consumption by 30%. Some of these water–efficiency 
projects have been incorporated for investments in 2015 and it is 
projected that their viability be assessed to implement them from 
now until 2020. To this end, in 2015 we will implement the in-
corporation of an additional value of water consumed within the 
economic–feasibility study of water–saving projects.

Some initiatives

Stage III water reuse
The Pasta Business plant in Mosquera advanced in the third 
stage of the project to reuse industrial water, by using treat-
ed industrial wastewater to feed the processes of indirect 
cooling, reducing the direct consumption of potable water. 
The water–reuse system is divided into three main parts:
•	 Treatment: This passes through a filtration system, ion-

ic–exchange units, ultrafiltration and, finally, through 
reverse–osmosis equipment.

•	 Storage: The system has a softened–water storage tank 
that works as a reserve for treated water to be used in 
the system to distribute technical services.

•	 Pumping: The softened water stored in the tank by a 
pump sends the liquid to the osmosis equipment that 
will be used later on in the technical services.

•	 The implementation of the third stage of water reuse 
increased the reuse of treated wastewater and de-
creased the total dumping by 30%. Total potable water 
consumption in the company was reduced by 11%. In 
2014, 4.908 m3/year were reused.

Public management  
of the water–resource commitment
During 2014, Grupo Nutresa participated as an active mem-
ber of the CEO Water Mandate Steering Committee and 
actively worked to involve new signatories to this commit-
ment. Likewise, during 2014, the Organization supported 
the launch of the CEO Water Mandate in Colombia and 
participated as a panelist in the disclosure event. It also led 
the celebration of the III Encounter for Water in partnership 
with The Nature Conservancy, and published its commit-
ment and practices, and promoted the progress of compa-
nies from other sectors towards the strategic management 
of the resource. 

Continuity of the Corporate 
Water Footprint study
In 2012, the first corporate water footprint exercise was 
performed for all Grupo Nutresa industrial plants. Each year, 
we evaluate the water footprint of the businesses, since the 
modifications made in the production plants through proj-
ects to save, reuse water and treat wastewater alter the 
standards of operation and, in turn, the final value of the 
footprint. This study has served as a guideline to focus proj-
ects on the value chain.

Residual water treatment plant operator in the Coffee Business, Medellin.
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Establishing the long – term goals 
to mitigate and adapt to climate 
change leads Grupo Nutresa 
to implement actions aimed 
at reducing the effect that its 
operations has thereon, and to 
permanently monitor exposure to 
risk, supported in administration 
strategies throughout its 
operation centers.

Climate change

Highlights

We achieved a cumulative reduction of 
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions per ton 
produced (Scopes 1 and 2) of 21,0% for the 
period 2010–2014.

The efficiency of GHG emissions generated per 
ton produced improved 6,50% compared to 
2013, mainly due to improvements in the use of 
thermal energy that impacted the indicator of 
Scope 1 emissions, to achieve a 10,6% reduction 
compared to 2013.

In line with the Grupo Nutresa environmental 
commitment, we continued to advance in 
processes to reduce and mitigate GHG emissions 
through the implementation of various schemes 
to neutralize and offset carbon emissions for 
products and production processes in the 
Biscuits, Chocolate and Coffee Businesses.

Forest in the Novaventa premises at Carmen de Viboral, Antioquia.

[G4-DMA]
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Challenges

Climate change poses threats to the economic development of companies. The sus-
tained increase in the global temperature and the consequences on the frequency 
and intensity of meteorological phenomena affect the availability of resources, in turn 
motivating governments to respond with laws that regulate their use.

The vulnerability analysis in key aspects, such as availability of energy sources, and 
availability/scarcity of raw materials, are key elements to feed the risk–management 
plan and determine to what extent changes in climatic parameters, physical chang-
es and changes in society require measures to adapt the value chain in which the  

businesses are developed. As a 2020 strategy, we have defined some corporate goals 
to minimize the impact of activities on climate change. We seek to reduce energy 
consumption (kWh/t.p.) by 25%, advance in the use of cleaner energy sources (which 
represent 100% of the energy basket), and reduce specific GHG emissions (tons of 
CO2e/t.p.) by 33% (Scopes 1 and 2).

But beyond mitigating the impact on climate change, Grupo Nutresa works to re-
duce vulnerability and be prepared to adapt to future changes. This, through a perma-
nent process of strategic surveillance and monitoring to maintain the risk matrix valid 
for the entire strategic region and be prepared with the design of strategies to adapt 
to climate change.

Grupo Nutresa has focused its management 
on the search for greater energy efficiency and 
the use of cleaner technologies, that lead to a 
reduction of GHG emissions in the production 
processes and then move to offset those 
emissions that cannot be reduced for technical 
or financial reasons.

By 2020, we seek to  
reduce energy  

consumption (kWh/t.p.) by 

25% 
and advance in the use  

of cleaner energy sources. 

Progress

Grupo Nutresa advances in its Environmental Commitment to meet 
the challenges that climate change generates in the value chain. 

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Inventory
In the management to control and reduce GHG emissions, for 
four years we have measured the GHG gases generated by 20 
production plants in Colombia. For three years, we have mea-
sured four plants located in the strategic region (Mexico, Costa 
Rica and Peru) and for two years, we have conducted emission 
measurements in the primary– and secondary–distribution pro-
cess in Colombia.

This measurement has allowed implementing strategies to re-
duce emissions by substituting fuels, best operating practices, 
implementation of energy–efficiency programs and the reconver-
sion of technologies with less impact on the atmosphere.

There is progress in broadening the base of the carbon foot-
print analysis of processes and products, which has served as a 
guide to determine which parts of the processes are more effi-
cient and make changes to reduce emissions. In some processes, 
including the manufacture of TOSH biscuits, industrial chocolate 
and roasted and ground coffee, we have already adopted these 
practices and energy performance – especially in the efficient use 
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of thermal energy through investment 
in latest combustion–technology equip-
ment, utilization of waste heat streams, 
modification of production standards, 
and reduction of eco–design packaging 
materials, among others – has reduced 
emissions associated with energy con-
sumption. This has permitted the imple-
mentation of mitigation and emission–
compensation programs in the Biscuits, 
Coffee and Chocolate Businesses.

For 2014, noteworthy was the advance 
in the goals proposed for 2020:

GHG emissions (kg CO
2
e/t.p.) 

We achieved a cumulative reduction of 21,0% in the GHG (Scopes 1 and 2) Emission 
indicator for the 2010–2014 period, significantly advancing against the goal estab-
lished to reduce emissions by 33% by 2020.

Tresmontes Lucchetti Business Industrial Complex in Casablanca, Chile.

Direct and indirect emissions for the purchase of electricity (Scopes 1 and 2) 
[G4-EN15]  [G4-EN16]  [G4-EN18]

Other indirect greenhouse–gas emissions 
(Scope 3) [G4-EN17]

Colombia 2012 2013 2014

Scope 1 emissions tCO2e 78.689,8 69.008,8 65.483,4

Scope 1 carbon intensity 
(kgCO2e/t.p.) 110,19 93,50 83,57

Scope 2 emissions (tCO2e) 17.894,6 28.683,1 31.487,6

Scope 2 carbon intensity 
(kgCO2e/t.p.) 25,06 38,86 40,18

Scopes 1 and 2 carbon 
intensity (kgCO2e/t.p.) 135,25 132,36 123,75

Companies in 
other countries 2012 2013 2014

Scope 1 emissions tCO2e 12.055,4 11.691,0 19.454,4

Scope 1 carbon intensity 
(kgCO2e/t.p.) 178,91 171,35 94,76 

Scope 2 emissions (tCO2e) 4.861,9 3.368,0 18.233,2

Scope 2 carbon intensity 
(kgCO2e/t.p.) 72,15 49,36 88,81 

Scopes 1 and 2 carbon 
intensity (kgCO2e/t.p.) 251,06 220,71 183,57

*2012 and 2013: Mexico, Peru and Costa Rica; Biscuits, Costa Rica
**2014: Eight plants abroad: Chocolates Mexico, Peru and Costa Rica; Bis-
cuits Costa Rica; TMLUC Chile (four plants)

Content of  
the Indicator

Employee air  
travel (tCO2e)

Distribution 
(tCO2e)

Total greenhouse–gas emis-
sions (Scope 3) (tCO2e)

2014 2.334 68.158 70.492
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Efficiency in emissions generated per 
ton produced improved by 6,87% com-
pared to 2013, from 132,4 to 123,8 kg  
CO2eq./t.p. [EN18]

The use of biomass represents 14% of 
the energy basket and means some car-
bon–neutral emissions of 25.075 tons of 
CO2e. If coffee grounds were not used as 
fuel, we would require the use of a fossil 
fuel, such as natural gas.

We continued (for the second con-
secutive year) the GHG inventory in the 
distribution process for operations in 
Colombia, in order to build a solid re-
porting basis to establish reduction plans 
in late 2015.

Emissions associated with the finished product logistics 
and distribution operation

Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
(GHG) in tCO2e

2012 2013 2014

Primary transport 17.360 24.519 30.157

Secondary transport 61.727 49.097 47.523

Total 79.086 73.615 77.680

Carbon neutral
Noteworthy is the continuous effort that has been 
made for the last six years when we began the first 
GHG inventories to determine the impact of in-
dustrial operations on global warming and climate 
change. After taking measurements for more than 
three years and conducting studies in the carbon 
footprint, some businesses headed in the design 
of specific programs to reduce, mitigate and offset 
those carbon emissions that cannot be eliminated 
in the productive stage. This year, we can speak of 
three initiatives in particular: 
1.	 We achieved carbon–footprint certification from 
ICONTEC for the TOSH Biscuit line manufactured in 
the Noel plant in 2013, complying with the require-
ments and the Publicly Available Specification (PAS) 

2050 methodology, which represents an important advance in developing the 
“Tosh Brand Carbon Neutral” project. For 2015, we expect to complete the com-
pensation phase of some 8.000 tons of CO

2e to achieve a Carbon Neutral brand.
2.	 The Coffee Business achieved Carbon Neutral certification from ICONTEC for 

CO2e emissions for the roasted– and ground–coffee process in its plants in Me-
dellín, Bogotá and Santa Marta (the plant in Ibagué only produces soluble coffee), 
through the purchase of bonds for the “Incorporation of Biodiversity in the Coffee 
Sector in Colombia” project, led by the Colombian Federation of Coffee–Growers 
and verified by ICONTEC.

3.	 The Chocolate Business obtained carbon neutrality, awarded by ICONTEC, for the 
specific process of manufacturing industrial chocolate. This certification includes 
the emissions from all processes, from the reception of raw materials – cacao – to 
obtaining the end product in the Chocolate Business factory in Rionegro. Emissions 
are neutralized through the execution of compensation activities in the forestry 
sector, equivalent to 144 tons of CO2e in 2014.

Coffee Business packing operators, Medellin.
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The internal carbon–pricing project 
During 2014, Grupo Nutresa developed a proposed model to incorporate a value on carbon 
emissions within the economic–feasibility studies for projects that are aimed at, or that arise in, 
the reduction of GHG emissions. This will permit directing technological updating to a low–car-
bon industrial development. The inclusion of a carbon price for the internal assessment of CapEx 
projects will be launched during 2015.

Future vision 

In 2015, Grupo Nutresa will advance in the risk analysis of Cli-
mate Change and Corporate Water Risk to identify the areas 
that, due to effects of climate change and water scarcity, may 
directly affect operations.

Likewise, we constructed an improvement plan with the op-
erations in the strategic region, in terms of sustainability. Spe-
cifically, for climate change, we decided to start with the mea-
surement of basic indicators (fuel and electricity consumption) 
for those international companies that do not have indicators, 
which will permit having an adequate baseline to monitor im-
provements and have a GHG inventory in 2016.

Also, we will carry out a work plan with Grupo Nutresa’s ten 
most relevant agricultural supplies, aimed at mitigating the risks 

of climate change that some of them present, and reducing the 
impact in the value chain.

In line with the goals established to reduce the indicator of 
GHG emissions, the businesses have established plans for 2020 
to reduce energy consumption through projects in technolog-
ical reconversion, equipment updating and energy audits that 
permit reducing dependency on thermal energy from non–re-
newable sources (gas and fossil fuels), increase the share of al-
ternative energies (biomass and Photovoltaic–PV–solar energy) 
and, consequently, reduce GHG emissions.

The Chocolate, Biscuits and Coffee Businesses will continue 
with their emission–neutralization programs – including mea-
surement, activities for reduction, mitigation and compensation 

Artificial lake in the Novaventa premises, Carmen de Viboral, Antioquia.
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– for specific products and processes, with the idea of advancing in the environmental performance of 
the products.

As a strategy to reduce GHG emissions and gases that affect the ozone layer (current gases affect the 
ozone layer and have global–warming potential), the Ice Cream Business determined the progressive mi-
gration of the current R–134a ecological–equipment park for R290–Hydrocarbons ecological equipment. By 
2015, we project the first mass acquisition of this type of equipment for more than 4.500 units, reducing the 
CO2e by approximately 86.000 kg per year. Additionally, the Ice Cream Business will be a pioneer in Colom-
bia in compliance with the Kyoto Protocol in the use of hydrocarbons, thus hoping to contribute to reducing 
the problem of climate change.

Some initiatives

Carbon sequestration in the Yariguíes Farm
The Yariguíes Research Farm located in the Magdalena Medio 
(in Colombia), belonging to the Chocolate Business, has estab-
lished an agroforestry–production system of 59 hectares which 
combines planting cocoa trees with timber species, such as 
spanned (abarco), walnut, cedar and Gmelina arborea (Melina). 
This association was certified by ICONTEC in 2014 as a forest-
ry–compensation program. The cumulative sequestration of car-
bon was estimated at 3.700 tons of CO2e for a period of three 
years, with an annual average of 900 tons CO2e, an amount 
that will be used to compensate the GHG emissions from differ-
ent industrial processes.

Certification of Best Agricultural Practices 
in the Yariguíes Farm
The Yariguíes Experimental Farm is a space for research and 
technological transfer for farmers, technicians and profession-
als in the Colombian agricultural sector; it has several functions 
within the Business. One is the dissemination of Best Agricul-
tural Practices (BAPs) in relation to the cultivation of cocoa to all 
the interested community. The BAPs are a set of principles, reg-
ulations and technical standards applicable to food production, 
processing and transport, aimed at protecting human health and 
the environment, and improving the living conditions of work-
ers and their families. The implementation of the BAPs allows 
agricultural systems to obtain healthy, quality food, generating 
added value to products and, thus, access markets in the best 
way possible. The BPA certification awarded by ICONTEC to the 
Experimental Farm allows it to be a model of development and 
responsible production. This is the first certification awarded 
nationally for cocoa crops, which will permit implementing and 
disclosing a socially sustainable, environmental–cultural model, 
ensuring cocoa production of the highest quality.

Ice cream freezers that use refrigerants  
with less impact on climate change
Seeking the sustainability of its assets, the Ice Cream Business 
purchased more than 200 freezers with new developments in 
refrigeration systems, supported by fully environmentally friend-
ly refrigerants (R–290–hydrocarbon–based refrigerant gas), thus 
improving the efficiency in energy consumption and offering an 
added value to our clients, while reducing the risk of emissions 
associated with leakage of refrigerant gases (Scope 1).

Cooling systems with lower impact on climate change.
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The Organization manages and plans the efficient use of energy, 
implementing programs that allow mitigating the impacts from the use 
of the resources, as well as the potential risks associated with shortages 
and the volatility of energy prices.

Highlights

We achieved a cumulative reduction of energy 
consumption kWh per ton produced (thermal from 
non–renewable sources and electricity) of 18,2% 
for the period 2010–2014, and an improvement in 
energy efficiency of 4,4% compared to 2013.

The generation of energy using biomass represents 
14% of the total energy basket, using coffee 
grounds as fuel in the Coffee Business, in the plants 
in Medellín and Ibagué. THE TMLUC Business in 
Chile uses a mixture of coffee grounds and tea 
and wood chips as biomass to generate steam, 

which represents 40% of the energy basket of the 
production plants of this Business.

The use of biomass, natural gas and electric energy 
represent 99,1% of the energy basket; the remaining 
0,9% comes from the use of diesel, coal, Liquefied 
Petroleum Gas (LPG), gasoline and crude oil.

A pilot alternative–energy project with Photovoltaic 
(PV) solar–energy panels, which directly feed the 
electricity network in the Coffee Business facilities (the 
Coffee Business plant in Medellín) was developed.

Energy [G4-DMA]
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Challenges

The Organization may be exposed to fi-
nancial and reputational risks given by 
fluctuating energy prices worldwide, 
the possible conditions of temporary or 
permanent scarcity of some fossil fuels, 
climatic phenomena that temporarily 
threaten the safety of hydroelectric–ener-
gy supply, and the growing trend toward 
cleaner energy.

Grupo Nutresa is directed toward the 
search for greater efficiency and ener-
gy independence, as well as the use of 
cleaner technologies that also lead to the 
reduction of GHG gases and a more effi-
cient use of water, energy and raw mate-
rials in its processes and products.

Progress

Energy consumption
The reduction in energy consumption (thermal and electric) per ton produced 
for Colombia was 4,4% compared to 2013, with a cumulative reduction of 
18,2% for the period 2010–2014, which represents a significant advance 
toward the goal of a 25% reduction by 2020.

Within the consolidation of energy sources in the industrial operations, 
85,8% of the energy corresponds to the use of natural gas and electricity, 
with a 3,7% improvement over 2013. The use of other fuels (coal, crude oil, 
LPG, diesel, gasoline) was reduced by 1,5%; the sum of these fossil fuels 
continues to represent 0,9% of all energy sources.

The use of biomass and alternative energies (solar thermal and photovolta-
ic–PV– energy) in the Coffee Business represents 14% of the Grupo Nutresa 
total energy sources. The use of biomass was reduced 13,9% compared to 
2013. 

In summary, 99,1% of the energy consumed by Grupo Nutresa in Co-
lombia comes from sources considered cleaner (natural gas is considered a 
“cleaner” fuel). The total energy used was reduced by 2,07%, from 564,94 
to 540,56 GWh. 

Biscuits Business ovens in Medellin.
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99,1% 
of the energy consumed 
by Grupo Nutresa comes 
from sources considered 
to be cleaner.

Electric energy 
The electric–energy consumption indicator (kWh/t.p.) had a 
reduction of 0,74% compared to 2013; for the period 2010–
2014, the reduction was 7,7%.

The most noteworthy projects that positively impacted the 
consumption of electric energy in 2014 were:

In the Chocolate Business, in the Rionegro plant, the air–con-
ditioning system has been progressively modified by installing 
industrial centrifuges, which permit implementing chilled–water 
systems for cooling. The use of the centrifuge has eliminated 
the use of commercial air–conditioning equipment, reduced 
the use of refrigerants and improved energy efficiency for cold 
air. The implementation of the centrifuge for the peanut area 
allows an estimated savings of 230.000 kWh/month. Since its 
implementation in July 2014, a savings of 1.150.000 kWh/year 
has been obtained.

In the Pasta Business, in 
the Mosquera plant, a con-
trolled, intelligent system was 
installed for air compressors, 
which permits measuring the 
demand for compressed air 
and consuming only the ener-
gy necessary to satisfy the de-
mand of the production plant. 
This project has reduced the 
electric energy used by the 
compressors in 2014 by 18% 
compared to previous years, 
which represents a savings of 
159.688 kWh/year, equivalent 
to a savings of COP 34 Million.

In the Ice Cream Business, in 
the Manizales plant, a lighting 
system in the production area 
had four sectors that had to 
be lighted 24 hours a day, six 
days a week. Using the same 
lamps installed, the system 
was redesigned and divided 

into 11 sectors that may be turned on according to the lines 
that are working and the common areas for pedestrians.

In the Biscuits Business, in the Medellín plant, the substitu-
tion of lighting for LED lighting allowed a savings of 226.385 
kWh/year.

Additionally, the plants have implemented best operating 
practices and small projects to improve energy efficiency, such 
as: programming the productive processes (coordination be-
tween the Services and Production areas) to avoid lower con-
sumptions in the startups of large motors; installation of savings 
devices in the different systems of compressed–air generation; 
implementation of speed–control devices in motors; improve-
ments in lighting systems using a combination of LED lamps, 
inductive lighting, translucent tiles and intelligent (zoning) con-
trol of lighting.

Biscuits Business packing line operator in Medellin.
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Thermal energy
As for thermal energy from non–renewable sources, we 

have carried out reconversion and technological–updating 
processes, process standardization, calibration of burners 
and substitution of fuels, which, in short, are a set of best 
practices adopted and shared by all the plants, which has 
permitted a reduction of 6,17% in the thermal–energy con-
sumption indicator (kWh/t.p.), compared to 2013. For the 
period 2010–2014, the cumulative reduction is 22,7%.

The most noteworthy projects that positively impacted the 
consumption of electric energy in 2014 were:

In the Pasta Business, in the Mosquera plant, the burners 
that had a mechanical–regulation system were replaced by 
an automatic–electronic system that controls the air / fuel ra-
tio by monitoring the actuators that control air and fuel flows 
to the burner to maintain the optimal combustion ratio. This 
has generated improvements in emissions to the atmosphere 
and improvements in the energy efficiency of the system, by 
reducing natural gas consumption by 5% compared to 2013, 
achieving a savings of 54.598 m3/year of natural gas.

In the Chocolate Business, in the Bogotá plant, a schedule 
was established according to the real needs of cocoa–liquor 
consumption in the Production Plant. In moments of low 
occupancy of the production lines, Zone A works a single 
shift. The personnel from the other shift are used for personal 
training, achieving a reduction in the natural gas consump-
tion equivalent to 1.022.019 kWh/year.

Energy from renewable sources
In exploring alternative–energy options, we continue using bio-
mass as an energy source. Such is the case in using coffee grounds 
in the Coffee Business in Colombia and the use of coffee grounds, 
tea and barley in the TMLUC Business in Chile. Additionally, two 
photovoltaic (PV) solar–energy pilot projects were carried out, one 
using the bridge that communicates the Coffee production plant 
in Medellín with the warehouses; the other, to generate the ener-
gy necessary to light an area of the Biscuits plant in Medellín, as 
well as the implementation of solar panels in two POPS ice cream 
parlors in Costa Rica.

Energy efficiency in the value chain  
[G4-EN3]  [G4-EN5] 
During 2014, Comercial Nutresa acquired two 100% electric 
vehicles that operate in the distribution of snacks in the cities 
of Bogotá and Medellín. Also begun was a pilot project with a 
hybrid vehicle (electric/internal combustion) and we incorporat-
ed six automatic–transmission vehicles, which help to reduce 
consumption during driving, into the primary–transport fleet.

Moreover, the Ice Cream Business in Colombia launched a 
pilot program for freezers that work with solar energy, as part 

of the strategy to use alternative energies that reduce energy 
consumption and the impact on the ozone layer.

A pilot test was carried out with freezers that operate with 
solar panels and photovoltaic (PV) batteries; currently, four units 
are installed in the coastal regions and the center of the country 
(in a commercial test). The aim is to achieve energy savings of 
between 25% and 50% and generate monetary savings in the 
electric bill of clients.

Colombia 2012 2013 2014

Total energy consumption 554,40 GWh
1.995,15 TJ

546,94 GWh
1.968, 36 TJ

540,56 GWh 
1.946,00 TJ

Energy intensity in  
production kWh/t.p.

776,30 741,05 689,85 

Energy intensity in  
production MJ/t.p.

2,79 2,67 2,48

* This does not include Litoempaques, Setas Colombianas, Meals Armenia.

Companies in 
other countries 2012 2013 2014

Companies in other  
countries

62,21 GWh
223,95 TJ

62,68 GWh 
225,65 TJ

206,09 GWh
741,91 TJ

Total energy consumption 923,18 918,68 1.003,77 

Energy intensity in  
production kWh/t.p.

3,32 3,31 3,61

Energy intensity in production MJ/t.p.

Biscuits Business production line operator in Medellin, Antioquia.
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Future vision 

The Organization’s response to energy chal-
lenges is supported in the establishment of 
challenging goals for 2020, such as a 25% re-
duction of energy consumption per ton pro-
duced and the objective of achieving 100% 
of energy supply from cleaner energies.

In line with the goals established to reduce 
the GHG–emissions indicator, the businesses 
have established plans for 2020 to reduce 
energy consumption through technological 
reconversion, equipment updating and en-
ergy audits that permit reducing dependen-
cy on thermal energy from non–renewable 
sources (gas and fossil fuels), increase the 
share of alternative energies (biomass and 
Photovoltaic–PV–solar energy) and, conse-
quently, reduce GHG emissions.

Likewise, we will continue permeating the 
value chain with principles of energy effi-
ciency in the logistics processes, incorporat-
ing low–energy–consumption technologies 
in new distribution centers and – under de-
velopment – continue with the exploration 
of more efficient transport projects via incor-
poration, into the transport fleet, of more ef-
ficient vehicles or that are fed cleaner energy 
and training in proper driving, supported in 
recognitions awarded to the best drivers. In 
particular, we have defined that in the future 
any new vehicle acquired to be integrated 
into the primary–transport fleet must have 
automatic transmission, allowing significant 
savings in fuel.

For 2015, we will conduct a diagnosis of 
energy efficiency in the productive plants 
in Colombia, to identify the processes with 
the greatest opportunities to reduce con-
sumption. In turn, we will advance in raising 
basic environmental indicators, in establish-
ing plans for savings and the efficient use 
of energy in the POPS, BON and Alimentos 
Cárnicos Panamá companies, as well as the 
approval of these indicators in the TMLUC 
operations and other companies located in 
our strategic region.

Some initiatives 

Use of hydrogen in cargo transport 
In one of the cargo–transport vehicles of the Chocolate Business, we installed equip-
ment that generated hydrogen from an electro–chemical process. The hydrogen 
obtained enriches the fuel mixture, making it more efficient in terms of consump-
tion and reduction of gas emissions. This implementation led to a validation process 
on the use of the hydrogen equipment, to prove its efficiency in transporting heavy 
loads. A reduction in fuel consumption of 7,7% annually (COP 8,3 Million) and an 
87,5% decrease in emissions, with a reduction of 11,8 t/year in CO2 emissions, was 
obtained. This practice can be replicated to other Grupo Nutresa businesses.

In 2014, Comercial Nutresa undertook the distribution using electrically-powered vehicles.

7,7% anual  
reduction in fuel consumption

87,5% decrease in emissions 

11,8 t/year reduction in CO
2
 emissions
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la campaña de Grupo Nutresa
“Disfruta una vida saludable”
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The notes to the Financial Statements  
may be consulted at 

2014report.gruponutresa.com/notes-to-the-consolidated- 
financial-statements/

and at 2014report.gruponutresa.com/financial-statements- 
notes-basic/

Financial 
statements
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Grupo Nutresa S. A. 
Shareholders’ Assembly 
February 26, 2015

I have audited the Consolidated Balance Sheets of Grupo Nutresa S. A. and its subsidiaries as of Decem-
ber 31, 2014 and 2013, and the corresponding Statements of Profits and Losses, Changes in Sharehol-
ders’ Equity, Changes in the Financial Situation, and Cash Flows for the years ended on these dates and 
the summary of the principal accounting policies indicated in Note 2 and other explanatory notes.  

Management is responsible for the proper preparation and presentation of these financial statements 
pursuant to the accounting principles generally accepted in Colombia and provisions issued by the 
Colombian Financial Superintendent.  This responsibility includes designing, implementing and main-
taining relevant internal control so that these financial statements are free of relatively important errors 
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, as well as establishing 
the accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

My responsibility consists of expressing an opinion on these financial statements based on my audits.  
I have obtained the information necessary to perform my fiscal–auditing duties and I conducted my 
work in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in Colombia.  These principles 
require that I plan and conduct an audit to obtain reasonable certainty that the financial statements 
are free of relatively important errors.

The financial–statement audit includes, among other things, conducting procedures to obtain auditing 
evidence on the values and disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s discretion, including the assessment of the risk of relatively important errors in the finan-
cial statements.  In assessing these risks, the fiscal auditor considers the entity’s relevant internal control 
to prepare and reasonably present the financial statements, in order to design auditing procedures that 
are appropriate under the circumstances.  

An audit also includes assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and of the ac-
counting estimations made by the entity’s management, as well as assessing the presentation of the 
financial statements as a whole.  I consider that the auditing evidence that I have obtained provides a 
reasonable basis for me to support the opinion that I state below.

In my opinion, the above–mentioned financial statements that I have audited, which were faithfully 
taken from the consolidation ledgers, reasonably present, in all significant aspects, the financial situa-
tion of Grupo Nutresa S. A. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and its operating 
results, the changes in its financial situation and its cash flows for the year ended on these dates, 
pursuant to accounting principles generally accepted in Colombia and the provisions issued by the 
Financial Superintendent, which were applied on a uniform basis with that of the previous year.

Fiscal auditor’s report

Bibiana Moreno Vásquez
Fiscal Auditor
Professional Card No. 167200–T
Member of PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltda.



CONSOLIDATED Financial statements

165 Integrated report 2014

Certification of the Financial Statements

The undersigned legal representative and the general accountant of Grupo Nutresa S. A.

CERTIFY:

February 26, 2015

That we have previously verified the statements contained in the Consolidated Financial State-
ments, as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, pursuant to regulations, and they have been faithfully 
taken from the financial statements of the Parent Company and its duly certified and audited 
subsidiary companies.

In accordance with the above, regarding the above–mentioned financial statements, we state the 
following:

1.	 The assets and liabilities do exist and the transactions recorded were made during the correspon-
ding years.

2.	 All economic transactions that were made have been acknowledged.

3.	 The assets represent the rights obtained by the companies; the liabilities represent the obligations 
obtained or that are the responsibilities of the companies.

4.	 All elements have been acknowledged in the appropriate amounts, in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles.

5.	 The economic transactions that affect the companies have been correctly classified, described 
and disclosed.

6.	 The financial statements and their notes do not contain defects, errors or material inaccuracies that 
affect the financial situation, shareholders’ equity and operations of the companies.  Likewise, ade-
quate procedures and financial information disclosure and control systems have been established 
and maintained, for the adequate presentation to third–party users of such information.

Carlos Ignacio Gallego Palacio	  	  		  Jaime León Montoya Vásquez
CEO     					      General Accountant - Professional Card  45056-T



Grupo Nutresa S. A. 
Shareholders
Medellín

The undersigned Legal Representative of Grupo Nutresa S. A.

CERTIFIES:

February 26, 2015

That the consolidated financial statements and operations of the Parent Company and its subsidiary companies as 
of December 31, 2014 and 2013, do not contain defects, inaccuracies or errors that prevent knowing their true 
financial situation.

This is stated to comply with Article 46 of Law 964 of 2005. 

As evidence, this is signed on the 26th day of the month of February, 2015.

Certification of the Financial statements Law 964 of 2005

Carlos Ignacio Gallego Palacio
CEO	
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Jaime León Montoya Vásquez
General Accountant - Professional Card No. 45056-T

(See attached certification)

Bibiana Moreno Vásquez 
Fiscal Auditor - Professional Card No. 167200-T

Member of PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltda.

Carlos Ignacio Gallego Palacio
President

(See attached certification)

As of December 31
(Values expressed in COP Million)Consolidated balance sheet

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

NOTES 2014 2013
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (6) $        374.060 $        415.478 
Net debtor accounts (7) 909.123 829.822 
Net inventory (8) 865.567 725.323 
Deferred assets and other assets (9) 37.520 47.694 
Total current assets 2.186.270 2.018.317 
Non-current assets
Net permanent investments (10) 380.790 357.830 
Debtor accounts (7) 30.858 27.477 
Net property, plant and equipment (11) 1.625.659 1.456.074 
Net tangible assets (12) 2.054.699 2.038.332 
Deferred assets and other assets (9) 64.866 70.031 
Valuations (22) 5.187.750 4.612.437 
Total non-current assets 9.344.622 8.562.181 
TOTAL ASSETS $      11.530.892 $      10.580.498 
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Financial obligations (14) $        450.795 $        407.588 
Suppliers (15) 298.022 299.136 
Accounts payable (16) 393.665 339.570 
Taxes, levies and rates (17) 128.889 159.523 
Labor obligations (18) 124.526 131.144 
Estimated liabilities and allowance (19) 9.516 8.241 
Deferred charges and other liabilities (20) 4.249 3.159 
Total current liabilities 1.409.662 1.348.361 
Non-current liabilities
Financial obligations (14) 1.672.214 1.589.149 
Accounts payable (16) 167 167 
Labor obligations (18) 7.091 7.234 
Estimated liabilities and allowances (19) 47.907 45.943 
Deferred charges and other liabilities (20) 171.346 159.573 
Total non-current liabilities  1.898.725  1.802.066 
TOTAL LIABILITIES $            3.308.387 $        3.150.427 
MINORITY STAKE $23.731 $19.209 
EQUITY
Company stock 2.301 2.301 
Capital surplus 546.831 546.831 
Reserve (21) 1.464.035 1.282.573 
Revaluation of assets (21) 815.898 761.782 
Financial statement conversion effect (5)  (193.586)  (173.546)
Fiscal period results 377.571 380.235 
Valuation surplus (22) 5.185.724 4.610.686 
Total equity $       8.198.774 $7.410.862 
TOTAL LIABILITIES + EQUITY + MINORITY STAKE $        11.530.892 $      10.580.498 
Memorandum accounts
Debtor memorandum accounts (13) $      (5.891.718) $      (4.981.064)
Credit memorandum accounts (13)  1.690.590  1.921.088 
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Jaime León Montoya Vásquez
General Accountant - Professional Card No. 45056-T

(See attached certification)

Bibiana Moreno Vásquez 
Fiscal Auditor - Professional Card No. 167200-T

Member of PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltda.

Carlos Ignacio Gallego Palacio
President

(See attached certification)

From January 1 to December 31 
(Values expressed in COP Million)Consolidated profit and loss statement

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

NOTAS 2014 2013

Operating income (23) $      6.461.752 $      5.898.466
Sales cost (3.591.978) (3.260.968)
Gross profit 2.869.774 2.637.498 

Operating expenses for:
Administration (24) (408.021) (347.578)
Sales (25) (1.703.834) (1.505.166)
Production (26) (119.579) (134.527)
Operating profit 638.340 650.227 

Net other income (other outlays)

     Income from dividends and financial income (27) 136.488 81.465 
     Financial expenses (28) (202.635) (121.689)
     Net other income and outlays (29) (28.525) (54.865)
Total non-operating other income (outlays) (94.672) (95.089)

Profit before allowance for income 
tax and minority stake 543.668 555.138 

Allowance for income tax and CREE: (17)
     Current (119.636) (124.231)
     CREE (32.467) (35.569)
     Deferred (11.583) (14.687)
Profit before minority stake 379.982 380.651 

Minority stake (2.411) (416)

Net profit $          377.571 $         380.235 
Net profit per share (in COP)  820,59  826,38 
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From January 1 to December 31 
(Values expressed in COP Million)

Jaime León Montoya Vásquez
General Accountant - Professional Card No. 45056-T

(See attached certification)

Bibiana Moreno Vásquez 
Fiscal Auditor - Professional Card No. 167200-T

Member of PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltda.

Carlos Ignacio Gallego Palacio
President

(See attached certification)

Consolidated statement 
of changes in shareholders’ equity

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Balances as of Decem-
ber 31, 2012 2.301 546.831 206.034 823.822 1.029.856 795.117 (162.791) 345.507 4.852.137 7.408.958 

Dividends decreed (Note 
33) 0  (182.617)  (182.617)

Transfer to profits and 
reserves 6.446 156.444 162.890  (162.890) 0

Adjustment for valuation 
and other concepts 89.827 89.827 (33.335)  (228.924)  (172.432)

Minority stake 0  (12.527)  (12.527)

Adjustment for conversion 
of financial statements 0  (10.755)  (10.755)

Net profit in 2013
0  380.235  380.235 

Balances as of Decem-
ber 31, 2013 2.301 546.831 212.480 1.070.093 1.282.573 761.782 (173.546)  380.235  4.610.686  7.410.862 

Dividends decreed (Note 
33) 0  (198.773)  (198.773)

Transfer to profits and 
reserves 4.028 177.434 181.462  (181.462) 0

Adjustment for valuation 
and other concepts 0 54.116  574.763  628.879 

Minority stake 0  275  275 

Adjustment for conversion 
of financial statements 0  (20.040)  (20.040)

Net profit in 2014 0  377.571  377.571 

Balances as of Decem-
ber 31, 2014 2.301 546.831 216.508 1.247.527 1.464.035 815.898 (193.586) 377.571 5.185.724 8.198.774
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Jaime León Montoya Vásquez
General Accountant - Professional Card No. 45056-T

(See attached certification)

Bibiana Moreno Vásquez 
Fiscal Auditor - Professional Card No. 167200-T

Member of PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltda.

Carlos Ignacio Gallego Palacio
President

(See attached certification)

From January 1 to December 31 
(Values expressed in COP Million)Consolidated statement of changes 

in the financial situation

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

NOTES 2014 2013
FINANCIAL RESOURCES PROVIDED FROM:
NET PROFIT $        377.571 $        380.235
Plus (minus) debits (credits) to operations that do not affect  
the working capital:
Depreciations (30)  130.308  113.107 

Amortization of intangible assets, deferred assets  
and other assets

(31)  95.609  69.492 

(Recuperation) Amortization of retirement pensions  (465)  (469)
Provision for property, plant and equipment, intangible assets 
and other assets

(11)  2.589  4.359 

Net profit in sales and withdrawal of investments and property, 
plant and equipment

(34)  (449)  (14.606)

Income due to change in investments  (3.864)  (500)
Minority stake  2.411  416 
Adjustment for inflation in Venezuela  5.407  39.586 

FINANCIAL RESOURCES PROVIDED FROM OPERATIONS 609.117 591.620
Plus:
Income obtained from disposal of property, plant  
and equipment

(34) 13.353 19.499

Increase in financial obligations and other long-term credits 83.065 927.029
Increase in long-term accounts payable 0 1
Increase in estimated liabilities and allowances 2.429 1.852
Increase in deferred liabilities and other liabilities 11.773 15.014
Increase in minority stake 4.522 2.915

FINANCIAL RESOURCES PROVIDED BY SOURCES OTHER 
THAN OPERATIONS

115.142 966.310

TOTAL FINANCIAL RESOURCES PROVIDED FROM 724.259 1.557.930

FINANCIAL RESOURCES USED IN:
Dividends declared (33)  198.773  182.617 
Equity from the acquisition of companies (3) 0  163.420 
Effect from conversion and changes in equity  34.431  55.190 
Acquisition of permanent investments  23.197  27.557 
Goodwill acquired (3)  183  972.146 
Acquisition of intangible assets and deferred assets  7.731  1.338 
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and other assets (32)  349.768  191.496 
Decrease in long-term financial obligations 143  296 
Decrease in taxes levies and rates 0  18.988 
Increase in long-term debtor accounts 3.381 2.908
TOTAL FINANCIAL RESOURCES USED 617.607 1.615.956

Working capital received through acquisition  
of new companies 

(3) 0 (52.041)

INCREASE (REDUCTION) IN WORKING CAPITAL $        106.652 $       (110.067)
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Jaime León Montoya Vásquez
General Accountant - Professional Card No. 45056-T

(See attached certification)

Bibiana Moreno Vásquez 
Fiscal Auditor - Professional Card No. 167200-T

Member of PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltda.

Carlos Ignacio Gallego Palacio
President

(See attached certification)

From January 1 to December 31 
(Values expressed in COP Million)Consolidated analysis of the changes in 

working capital (continued)

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

FINANCIAL RESOURCES WERE PROVIDED BY: 2014 2013

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ (41.418) 123.666
Debtor accounts 79.301 171.950
Inventories 140.244 169.527
Deferred and other assets (10.174) 15.479
INCREASE IN CURRENT ASSETS $ 167.953 480.622

(INCREASE) DECREASE IN CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial obligations (43.207) (310.926)
Suppliers 1.114 (128.488)
Accounts payable (54.095) (80.114)
Taxes, levies and rates 30.634 (40.308)
Labor obligations 6.618 (28.773)
Estimated liabilities and allowances (1.275) (2.682)
Deferred liabilities and other liabilities (1.090) 602
INCREASE IN CURRENT LIABILITIES $ (61.301) (590.689)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN WORKING CAPITAL $ 106.652 (110.067)
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Fiscal Auditor - Professional Card No. 167200-T

Member of PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltda.
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From January 1 to December 31 
(Values expressed in COP Million)Consolidated cash-flow statement

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

NOTES 2014 2013
CASH FLOW PROVIDED FROM OPERATIONS
NET PROFIT $        377.571 $        380.235 
Plus (minus) debits (credits) due to operations  
that do not affect cash:
Depreciations (30)  130.308  113.107 
Amortization of intangible assets, deferred assets and other assets (31)  95.609  69.492 
(Recovery) Amortization of retirement pensions  (465)  (469)
Allowance property, plant and equipment (11)  2.589  4.359 
Net profit on sales and withdrawal of investments and property, plant and equip-
ment

(34)  (449)  (14.606)

Allowance and/or sanctions of net debtor accounts  7.049  7.261 
(Recuperation) allowance of inventories  (1.096)  2.144 
Difference in change of investments in shares  (3.864)  (500)
Adjustments for inflation in Venezuela  5.407  39.586 
Minority stake  2.411  416 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Debtor accounts  (89.731)  (11.183)
Inventories  (139.148)  (41.497)
Deferred assets and other assets  3.619  (18.923)
Suppliers and accounts payable  52.981  126.245 
Taxes, levies and rates  (11.646)  36.487 
Payment of Equity tax (18.988) (19.006)
Labor obligations  (6.761)  25.990 
Estimated liabilities and allowances  3.704  (40.433)
Deferred liabilities and other liabilities  12.863  14.412 
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATIONS  421.963  673.117 

CASH FLOW PROVIDED FRO INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES:
Equity from the acquisition of companies 0  (163.420)
Effect for conversion and changes in equity  (44.745)  (53.779)
Acquisition of permanent investments  (23.197)  (27.557)
Goodwill acquired (3)  (183)  (972.146)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and other assets (32)  (349.768)  (191.496)
Decrease (acquisition) of intangible assets  (1.176)  5.344 
Income obtained from disposal of property,  
plant and equipment (34) 13.353 19.499

NET CASH USED IN INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES  (405.716)  (1.383.555)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Dividends paid (33)  (194.062)  (177.201)
Increase in financial obligations  126.272  996.866 
Increase in minority stake  4.522  2.915 
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES  (63.268)  822.580 

(Decrease) net increase in cash and cash equivalents  (47.021) 112.142
Effect of changes in the type of exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents  5.603  (1.411)
Cash and cash equivalents received in acquisitions (3) 0  12.935 
Cash and cash equivalents at year opening  415.478  291.812 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT YEAR CLOSE $        374.060 $        415.478 
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Years ended as of December 31, 2014 and 2013
(Values expressed in COP Million, except for values in USD, the exchange rate and the number of shares).

NOTE 1 Consolidation Bases

Grupo Nutresa S. A. Parent Company
Grupo Nutresa S. A. is a Colombian stock company (Socie-
dad Anónima, S. A.) incorporated on April 12, 1920, with 
its main domicile in the city of Medellín; its term expires on 
April 12, 2050.

The Parent Company’s business purpose consists of 
investing in or applying resources or funds to companies 
organized in any form provided by law, either at home or 
abroad, and whose business purpose is aimed at the ex-
ploitation of any legal economic activity, or in tangible or 
intangible assets for the purpose of safeguarding its capital.

In relation to the subsidiary companies, below is the 
name, nationality, date of incorporation, term, main domi-
cile and business purpose of each one:

Alimentos Cárnicos S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on August 20, 
1968, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock 
Company on March 17, 2009.  It has an indefinite term and 
its main domicile is in Yumbo, Valle del Cauca.

Its business purpose is to exploit the food industry in 
general and/or the substances used as ingredients for food 
and, in particular, meat and/or farm livestock and produ-
ce, including the processing and utilization of animal and 
agricultural by–products to prepare food; to exploit farm 
produce and large and small livestock and the businesses 
directly related to these activities, particularly by cattle bre-
eding, raising, fattening and their later slaughtering or live 
disposal; the purchase, sale, transport, distribution, import, 
export and trade in general of its own food and that of 
other manufacturers.  In addition, it may invest in or apply 
resources or have holdings under any associative form au-
thorized by law, the purpose of which is the exploitation of 
any legal economic activity, even if it is not directly related 
to food production or marketing, and to conduct any other 
legal economic activity in Colombia and abroad.

Alimentos Cárnicos Zona Franca Santafé S. A. S. 
This Colombian company was incorporated on October 10, 
2008, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock 
Company on March 16, 2009.  It has an indefinite term and 
its main domicile is in Cota, Cundinamarca.

The company is an industrial user of free–trade zone 
goods and services; its business purpose is, primarily, to 
develop the following activities in the free–trade zone:  to 
process, manufacture, purchase and sell food products and 

sell by–products and waste derived from the manufactu-
ring processes; to provide manufacturing services of food 
products to third parties; to provide management services 
to purchase supplies and raw materials used in the food 
manufacturing industry; to provide services to reprocess, 
repack, assemble, label, pack, assemble for third parties, 
classify, control quality, inspect, reclassify, clean, freeze and 
thaw the mentioned articles.  It may also execute coordi-
nation and logistics control services of food product inven-
tories and raw materials for third parties, classify food pro-
ducts and raw materials, load, unload and pick the products 
and raw materials indicated.  It may contract third–party 
transportation services for itself and for others, as well as 
provide invoicing and food–product dispatch services, and 
conduct any other legal economic activity.

Alimentos Cárnicos de Panamá S. A. 
This company was incorporated on January 18, 1970; its 
term is perpetual.  It is a Panamanian company and its main 
domicile is in Panama City, Panama.

Its business purpose is the extensive exercise of the 
manufacturing, mercantile or financial industry, as well as 
purchase, or by other means, acquire, hold, sell, dispose of 
and, on a commission basis or in another manner, products, 
objects, merchandise and materials of any kind and descrip-
tion, whether known now or that are described or invented 
in the future.

On June 30, 2011, the minutes of the Extraordinary 
Shareholders Meeting was formalized, which approved 
the amendment of the corporate name of the company to 
that of Alimentos Cárnicos de Panama. S. A. and approved 
the merger agreement through which Alimentos Cárnicos 
de Panama S. A. (formerly Blue Ribbon Products S. A.) ab-
sorbed Ernesto Berard S. A.  Under Panamanian laws, this 
merger was complete don October 3, 2011.

American Franchising Corp. (AFC)
A Panamanian company with its main domicile in Panama 
City, Panama; it was incorporated on October 17, 1974, 
and its term is perpetual.

Its business purpose consists of establishing, managing 
and conducting in general the business of financing, invest-
ments and brokerage in all their branches, and organize, 
conduct or undertake any business.

AFC develops its activity through 15 subordinates com-
panies, which are described next:

Industrias Lácteas de Costa Rica S.A.
Incorporated on March 10, 1982, it has a term of 99 years.  
Its corporate domicile is in San José, Costa Rica.

Its business purpose consists of developing industry, li-

1.1 ENTITY AND BUSINESS PURPOSE OF THE PARENT 
COMPANY AND THE SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
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vestock and agriculture in general, and especially the elabo-
ration and commercialization of all kinds of dairy products.

Compañía Americana de Helados S.A. (American Ice 
Cream Company, Incorporated)
A company incorporated on February 22, 1968, with a term 
until 2018.  Its corporate domicile is in San José, Costa Rica.

Its business purpose consists of developing the indus-
try and commerce in general, and especially the production 
and sale of ice cream and similar products.

Fransouno S.A.
Incorporated on January 6, 2000, its corporate domicile is 
in San José, Costa Rica.  It has a term until January 6, 2099.

Its business purpose is commerce, industry and agricul-
ture in general.

Helados H D S.A.
A company incorporated on May 25, 2000; it has a term of 
99 years.  Its corporate domicile is in San José, Costa Rica, 
and its business purpose is dedicated to commerce, industry 
and agriculture in general.

Americana de Alimentos Ameral S.A.
A Costa Rican company incorporated on April 10, 1966, its 
term is until April 10, 2095.

Its domicile is in San José, Costa Rica, and its business 
purpose consists of commerce and industry, and the repre-
sentation of foreign products and companies.

Inmobiliaria Nevada S.A.
Incorporated on October 6, 1994, it has a term of 99 years; 
its corporate domicile is in San José, Costa Rica.

Its business purpose consists of the extensive exercise of 
commerce, industry, the representation of foreign products and 
companies in any branch, livestock and agriculture in general.

Heladera Guatemalteca S.A.
This company was incorporated on April 6, 1972 for a pe-
riod of 99 years.  Its corporate domicile is in the Department 
of Guatemala, Guatemala.

Its business purpose consists of manufacturing creamy 
and not–creamy ice creams, through its POPS brand.

Distribuidora POPS S.A.
This company was incorporated on September 18, 1973 for 
a period of 99 years.  Its corporate domicile is in the Depart-
ment of Guatemala, Guatemala.

Its business purpose consists of manufacturing creamy 
and not–creamy ice creams, mainly through the POPS brand.

Nevada Guatemalteca S.A.
Incorporated on December 16, 2003, it has an indefinite 
term; its corporate domicile is in the Department of Guate-
mala, Guatemala.

Its business purpose consists of the purchase and sale 
and rental of real estate, making all kinds of civil and com-
mercial operations that are directly related to, arising or re-
sulting from past activities.

Guate-Pops S.A.
It was incorporated on March 22, 1979; its corporate domi-
cile is in the Department of Guatemala, Guatemala.

Its principal business purpose is providing personnel services.

Industrias Lácteas Nicaragua S.A.
Incorporated on October 21, 1994, it has a term until 2093; 
its domicile is in Managua, the Department of Managua, 
the Republic of Nicaragua.

Its business purpose consists of importing and selling 
dairy food products and their derivatives.

Americana de Alimentos S.A. de C.V.
This company was incorporated on January 25, 2006.  It has 
an indefinite term and its main domicile is in San Salvador, 
El Salvador.

Its business purpose is the development of any type of 
legal activity, and especially the exercise of trade through 
the sale and purchase, distribution, export or import of all 
kinds of goods.

POPS One LLC
This company was incorporated on July 29, 2010; its main 
domicile is in Miami, Florida U. S. A.

Its business purpose is the operation of ice cream parlors.

POPS Two LLC
This company was incorporated on June 1, 2011; its main 
domicile is in Miami, Florida U. S. A.

Its business purpose is the operation of ice cream parlors.

Costa Rica’s Creamery, LLC
This company was incorporated on November 6, 2009; its 
main domicile is in Miami, Florida U. S. A.

Its business purpose is the operation of ice cream parlors.

Compañía de Galletas Noel S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on August 13, 
1998, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock 
Company on March 17, 2009.  It has an indefinite term and 
its main domicile is in Medellín, Antioquia.

Its business purpose is to exploit food industry activities 
in general and, especially the production or manufacture 
of those foods for human consumption and the substances 
used as ingredients in food, such as prepared cereals, flours, 
starches, tea, coffee, sago, chocolate, sugar, salt, honey, 
bakery products, cookie and cracker products and pastry 
products.  It may also distribute, sell and trade in general 
the products mentioned in the previous sentence produ-
ced by the company or other manufacturers, and the raw 
materials, materials or supplies used in the food produc-
tion industry, as well as distribute, sell and trade in general 
products for popular consumption susceptible to being dis-
tributed through the same channels.  It may also invest in 
or apply resources or have holdings under any associative 
forms authorized by law and conduct any other legal eco-
nomic activity.
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Compañía de Galletas Pozuelo DCR, S. A.
This Costa Rican company was incorporated on October 18, 
2004; its term is until October 18, 2103.  Its main domicile is 
in San José, Costa Rica.

Its business purpose includes the extensive exercise of 
industry, agriculture, trade, livestock, construction and tou-
rism in general; it is especially dedicated to the exploitation 
of the biscuit industry.

Compañía de Galletas Pozuelo 
de la República Dominicana S. R. L.
This Dominican Republic company was incorporated on 
June 22, 2000.  It has an indefinite term and Its main domi-
cile is in Santo Domingo, the Dominican Republic.

Its business purpose includes the overall establishment, 
management and implementation of investment, brokera-
ge, guarantee and consulting businesses and, in general, 
conducting any other legal trade, business or activity.

Comercial Pozuelo Panamá S. A.
 (formerly Compañía de Galletas 
Pozuelo de Panamá S. A.)
This Panamanian company was incorporated on May 17, 
2002; it has a perpetual term.  Its main domicile is in Pana-
ma City, Panama.

Its business purpose includes the manufacture and dis-
tribution of mass consumer foods, such as biscuits, baked 
goods, canned goods and others; establishing, arranging 
and conducting business in an investment company an-
ywhere in the world; purchasing, selling and trading all 
kinds of food products, capital stock, all kinds of securities; 
engaging in any type of legal business that is not forbidden 
to a corporation.

Compañía Nacional de Chocolates S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on October 8, 
2002, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock 
Company on March 18, 2009.  It has an indefinite term and 
its main domicile is in Medellín.

Its business purpose is to exploit food industry activities 
in general, and, in particular, to produce chocolate and its 
derivatives, as well as to conduct business related to the-
se industries; to distribute, sell and market the products 
described above, produced by the company and by other 
manufacturers, and the raw materials, materials or supplies 
utilized in the food production industry and in the produc-
tion of popular consumption foods susceptible to being dis-
tributed through the same channels.  The business purpose 
also includes investing in or applying resources or having 
holdings under any associative form authorized by law, and 
carrying out any other legal activity.

Compañía Nacional de Chocolates DCR, S. A.
This Costa Rican company was incorporated on June 29, 
2004; its term is until June 29, 2103.  Its main domicile is in 
San José, Costa Rica.

Its business purpose includes the extensive exercise of 
industry, agriculture, trade, livestock, construction and tou-

rism in general.  It is especially dedicated to the exploitation 
of the industry of chocolate and its derivatives.

Compañía Nacional de Chocolates de Perú S. A. 
This Peruvian company was incorporated on November 13, 
2006; it has an indefinite term.  Its main domicile is in Lima, Peru.

The business purpose of the company is the industrial 
and agricultural activity to manufacture and market all 
kinds of beverages and foods, as well as all kinds of farm 
exploitation.  It may also engage in selling, marketing, dis-
tributing, exporting and importing activities for goods in 
general.  It is especially dedicated to the industry of biscuits, 
chocolates and other sweets.

On December 1, 2010, the short fusion was effected 
whereby Compañía Nacional de Chocolates de Perú S. A. 
absorbed Compañía de Cacao del Perú S. A. C.

Cordialsa Boricua Empaque, Inc.
This Puerto Rican company was incorporated on January 
1, 2004, for an indefinite term.  Its main domicile is in San 
Juan, Puerto Rico.

Its business purpose includes the marketing of food products.

Comercial Nutresa S. A. S. 
This Colombian company was incorporated through a pri-
vate document on February 12, 2010; it was registered in 
the Medellín Chamber of Commerce on February 17, 2010.  
It has an indefinite term and its main domicile is in Medellín.

Its business purpose is to conduct any legal activity.
On March 31, 2011, the minutes, through which the 

corporate name of the company was changed from Cor-
dialsa Colombia S. A. S. to that of Comercial Nutresa S. A. 
S., were registered in the Medellín Chamber of Commerce.

Cordialsa Costa Rica S. A.
This Costa Rican company was incorporated on June 29, 
2004; its term is valid until June 29, 2103.  Its main domicile 
is in San José, Costa Rica.

Its business purpose is the extensive exercise of industry, 
agriculture, trade, livestock, construction and tourism in gene-
ral; it is especially dedicated to the marketing of food products.

The company was liquidated on July 1, 2014; the liqui-
dation was formalized through Public Deed 186–16, dated 
September 26, 2014.

Comercial Pozuelo El Salvador S. A. de C. V. 
This Salvadorian company was incorporated in November 
25, 2004; it has an indefinite term.  Its main domicile is in 
San Salvador, El Salvador.

Its business purpose includes the distribution and com-
mercialization of food products.

Comercial Pozuelo Nicaragua S. A.
This Nicaraguan company was incorporated on November 
18, 1992; it is valid until November 18, 2091.  Its main do-
micile is in Managua, Nicaragua.

Its business purpose includes the distribution and com-
mercialization of biscuits and, in general, the purchase and 
sale, export, import, packaging, industrialization and mar-
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keting of all kinds of food products; the export and import 
of all kinds of goods and any legal business property; and 
enter into all kinds of contracts and contract obligations, 
execute any legal act or contract that is not prohibited.

Cordialsa USA, Inc.
This United States company was incorporated on March 22, 
2004; it has an indefinite term and its main domicile is in 
the State of Texas, the United States of America.

Its business purpose includes the exploitation of any le-
gal activity other than banking and trust activities or the 
practice of a profession that may be incorporated by the 
Corporation Code of Texas.  In particular, it is dedicated to 
the commercialization of food products.

Cordialsa Noel de Venezuela S. A. 
This Venezuelan company was incorporated on November 
15, 1995; its term is until November 15, 2094.  Its main 
domicile is in Caracas, Venezuela.

Its business purpose includes the exploitation of the 
food industry in general, including manufacture, sale, dis-
tribution, import and export.  Likewise, it may participate in 
investments or the application of resources or have holdings 
under any associative form authorized by law.

Corporación Distribuidora 
de Alimentos S. A., Cordialsa
This Ecuadorian company was incorporated on February 3, 1995; 
its term is until 2045.  Its main domicile is in Quito, Ecuador.

Its business purpose includes the exploitation, distribu-
tion and commercialization of the food industry in general.

Comercial Pozuelo Guatemala S. A. 
This Guatemalan company was incorporated on November 
18, 2004; it has an indefinite term.  Its main domicile is in 
the Department of Guatemala, Guatemala.

Its business purpose includes the distribution and com-
mercialization of food products and any other industrial, 
commercial or service activity related to this distribution and 
commercialization.

(AbiMar Foods, Inc.) (Formerly Fehr Foods, Inc.)
This United States company was incorporated on February 
13, 1992; it has a perpetual term.  Its main domicile is in 
Abilene, Texas, the United States of America.

Its business purpose includes carrying out any legal acti-
vity under the laws of Texas and especially in the production 
and commercialization of bakery products.

On June 29, 2011, documents, through which the mer-
ger by absorption was approved in which Fehr Foods, Inc. 
absorbed Fehr Holdings, LLC; Oktex Baking, GP, LLC; and 
Oktex Baking, LP, were registered before the Office of the 
Secretary of State of the State of Texas.

On July 29, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Com-
pany decided to change the corporate name to that of Abi-
Mar Foods, Inc.  The minutes from the Board were registe-
red before the Secretary of State on August 5, 2014.

Gestión Cargo Zona Franca S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on October 10, 
2008, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock 
Company on March 16, 2009.  It has an indefinite term and 
its main domicile is in Cartagena, Bolívar.

The company is an industrial user of free–trade zone 
goods and services; its business purpose is, primarily, to de-
velop the following activities in the free–trade zone:  pro-
vide management services to purchase, import and export 
food products and raw materials used in the food industry 
in general, for third parties.  Likewise, it may reprocess, 
repack, assemble, label, pack, assemble for third parties, 
classify, control quality, inspect, reclassify, clean, freeze and 
thaw the mentioned articles.  It may also provide coordi-
nation and logistics control services of imported products 
and raw materials for third parties, classify food and raw 
material products, control inventories and customs proces-
ses, along with loading, unloading and picking the products 
and raw materials indicated.  It may do laboratory tests and 
analyses on food products and raw materials for food, as 
well as interpret their results.

Helados BON S.A.
This Dominican Republic company was incorporated on Au-
gust 26, 1974; it has an indefinite term.  Its main domicile is 
in Santo Domingo Oeste, the Dominican Republic.

Its business purpose includes the manufacture, packa-
ging, distribution, sale and franchise of ice cream and pro-
ducts of this kind, throughout the country and abroad.

Industrias Aliadas S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on September 
21, 1988, through Public Deed Number 4349, granted in the 
Office of the Second Notary Public of Ibagué.  Its term is until 
September 21, 2038, and its main domicile is in Ibagué.

Its business purpose is to purchase, sell, dry, sort and ex-
port coffee.  In general, the company conducts all activities 
related to the coffee industry.

Industrias Alimenticias Hermo de Venezuela S. A.
This Venezuelan company was incorporated on December 
12, 1995; its term is until December 12, 2094.  Its main 
domicile is in Caracas, Venezuela.

Its business purpose includes the production, import, 
export and commercialization of food and products in ge-
neral.  Likewise, it may invest resources or have holdings 
under any associative form authorized by law.

Industria Colombiana de Café S. A. S. (Colcafé)
This Colombian company was incorporated on June 1, 
1950, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock 
Company on March 18, 2009.  It has an indefinite term and 
its main domicile is in Medellín, Antioquia.

Its business purpose is to assemble and exploit coffee 
industry and food industry activities in general, and those 
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of directly related businesses, as well as conduct any other 
legal economic activity.

Industria de Alimentos Zenú S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on August 20, 
2002, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock 
Company on March 17, 2009.  It has an indefinite term and 
its main domicile is in Medellín, Antioquia.

Its business purpose is to conduct food industry activities 
in general, as well as for those substances used as ingredients 
in foods and, in particular, meat, including the processing and 
utilization of by–products from beef, pork, sheep, fish and 
other animal species; the slaughter and preparation of large 
or small livestock and the purchase, sale, transport, distribu-
tion, import and export of meat.  It may also process meat 
and prepare sausages, soups, extracts, fats, canned meat, 
spices, condiments, dairy products, cottage cheese, eggs and 
food substances for animals; the distribution, sale, import, 
export and marketing in general of the elements mentioned 
above in their natural state or industrially prepared by the 
company or by others.  In addition, it may distribute, sell and 
trade in general products for popular consumption suscepti-
ble to being distributed through the same channels.  It may 
also invest in or apply resources or have holdings under any 
associative forms authorized by law and conduct any other 
legal economic activity.

La Recetta Soluciones Gastronómicas 
Integradas S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on April 11, 2008, 
as a stock company and unanimously transformed by the As-
sembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock Company 
on March 25, 2010.  The company term will expire on Decem-
ber 31, 2050, and its main domicile is in Cota, Cundinamarca.

Its business purpose is to distribute products of any na-
ture through the institutional channel on its own behalf or 
for third parties; these products include mass–consumption 
foods and products, with its own brands or with third–party 
brands, as well as packaging and packing the products.

Litoempaques S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on March 16, 
1995, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock 
Company on March 18, 2009.  It has an indefinite term and 
its main domicile is in Medellín, Antioquia.

Its business purpose is to exploit metallurgical and 
packing industry activities in general and, in particular, to 
produce or manufacture and/or assemble, and/or market 
bottles, lids and packaging made of any material and for 
any use.  It may also do lithography work in metal or in 
any other material for all kinds of industries; to sell, distri-
bute, import, export and trade all of the above elements 
in general, whether produced by the company or by other 
manufacturers, as well as the raw materials or supplies used 
in the metallurgical industry and packing industry.  It may 
also conduct any other legal economic activity.

Meals Mercadeo de Alimentos de Colombia S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on January 29, 
1964, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock 
Company on March 17, 2009.  It has an indefinite term and 
its main domicile is in Bogotá, Cundinamarca.

Its business purpose is to exploit the food industry in 
general and, in particular, ice cream, dairy beverages, des-
serts, yoghurts, juices, refreshments, and fruit–based pre-
pared food; to conduct business activities directly related 
to this industry.  In general, it may distribute, sell and trade 
the products mentioned above, produced by the company 
or by other manufacturers, as well as the raw materials, ma-
terials or supplies used in the industry to produce food, as 
well as distribute, sell and trade in general popular products 
that are susceptible to being distributed through the same 
channels.  It may also invest in or apply resources or have 
holdings under any of the associative forms authorized by 
law, and conduct any other legal economic activity.

Molinos Santa Marta S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on April 18, 
1980, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock 
Company on March 18, 2009.  It has an indefinite term and 
its main domicile is in Medellín, Antioquia.

Its business purpose is to mill grain, as well as develop the 
businesses and activities that are directly related to the milling 
industry and conduct any other legal economic activity.

Novaventa S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on October 3, 
2000, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock 
Company on March 17, 2009.  It has an indefinite term and 
its main domicile is in Medellín, Antioquia.

Its business purpose is to commercialize and distribute 
food products, raw materials and elements used in the food 
industries and manage specialized channels to commercia-
lize these products and other articles that are susceptible 
to being distributed through the same channels.  It may 
also provide maintenance services for equipment used to 
commercialize the items mentioned above, and conduct 
any other legal economic activity.

Nutresa de Chile S.A.
This Chilean company was incorporated on August 5, 2013; it 
has an unlimited term, and its domicile is in Santiago de Chile.

Its business purpose is to invest in all kinds of movea-
ble and immovable, tangible and intangible property, shares, 
bonds, securities, debentures, rights or other business effects 
in general, being able to manage and receive their fruits.

Nutresa S. A. de C. V.
This Mexican company was incorporated on May 8, 1981, 
with a term of 99 years.  Its main domicile is in the State 
of Mexico.
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Its business purpose is the manufacture and purchase and 
sale of all kinds of food and nutritional products, food, nu-
tritional beverages and dietary products.  It may also as-
semble all the products elaborated and semi–elaborated 
by third parties, using its own machinery or that of others, 
among others, and all the activities necessary to fulfill the 
business purpose.

Opperar Colombia S. A. S.
A Colombian company domiciled in Medellín, it was incor-
porated on June 18, 2014, with an indefinite term.

Its business purpose is the provision of cargo–transport 
services, under any modality, with its own equipment or that 
of third parties, both nationally and internationally, and con-
ducting logistics operations in general and its related activities.

Pastas Comarrico S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on November 
30, 2004, as a stock company and unanimously transfor-
med by the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint 
Stock Company on March 18, 2009.  It has an indefinite 
term and its main domicile is in Barranquilla, Atlántico.

Its business purpose is to conduct food industry acti-
vities in general and, in particular, to manufacture and/or 
commercialize flours, pasta, prepared food made from ce-
reals and their derivatives, as well as conduct business ac-
tivities directly related to this industry, and to conduct any 
other legal economic activity.

Productos Alimenticios Doria S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on November 
18, 1966, as a stock company and unanimously transfor-
med by the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint 
Stock Company on March 13, 2009.  It has an indefinite 
term and its main domicile is in Mosquera, Cundinamarca.

Its business purpose is to exploit food industry activi-
ties in general and, in particular, flours and prepared foods 
made from cereals and their derivatives, pastas among 
others, and conduct businesses directly related to this in-
dustry.  It may also distribute and, in general, market food 
products, raw materials and elements used in the food 
industry, and the manufacture of flours and preparations 
made from cereals and their derivatives.  It may also invest 
in or apply resources or have holdings under any legal asso-
ciative form, and conduct any other legal economic activity.

Serer S. A. de C. V.
This Mexican company was incorporated on October 31, 
1972, with a term of 99 years.  Its main domicile is in the 
State of Mexico.

Its business purpose is the manufacture and purchase 
and sale of all kinds of food products, as well as their ela-
boration by assembly and all the activities necessary to fulfill 
the business purpose.

Servicios Nutresa S. A. S. 
This Colombian company was incorporated on April 21, 
2006, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock 

Company on March 17, 2009.  It has an indefinite term and 
its main domicile is in Medellín, Antioquia.

Its business purpose is to provide in Colombia and/or 
abroad specialized business services in areas such as risk 
management and insurance; legal, auditing and control 
assistance, accounting, taxes, negotiation in purchases, 
financial planning, human–resource support and develop-
ment processes, administrative services, informational te-
chnology, treasury matters and any other service that can 
create value for its clients.  In addition, it may invest in or 
apply resources or have holdings under any of the associa-
tive forms authorized by law, and conduct any other legal 
economic activity.

Setas Colombianas S. A.
This Colombian company was incorporated on December 
16, 1991.  Its term is until December 16, 2041, and its main 
domicile is in Medellín, Antioquia.

Its business purpose is to exploit, cultivate, produce, 
process, distribute and commercialize mushrooms and, in 
general, food industry products for human consumption 
and food for animals, and conduct business activities di-
rectly related to the food industry.  It may also invest in 
livestock, farming and industrial units or businesses to pro-
cess, exploit or distribute products for human consumption 
and food for animals.

Tropical Coffee Company S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on March 31, 
1950, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock 
Company on March 18, 2009.  It has an indefinite term and 
its main domicile is in Medellín, Antioquia.

Its business purpose is to assemble and exploit coffee 
industry and food industry activities in general, and to con-
duct directly related business activities.  In addition, it can 
conduct any other legal economic activity.

Tresmontes Lucchetti S. A.
This Chilean company was incorporated on February 9, 
2004; it has an unlimited term, and its domicile is in San-
tiago de Chile.

Its business purpose is to provide administration, ma-
nagement, managerial, accounting, auditing, supply, dis-
tribution, transport, personnel, computer programming, 
methods and system services.  It may also participate in all 
kinds of civil or commercial companies, whether they be co-
llective, stock corporations, share, limited liability or limited, 
the latter may participate as a managing or limited partner.

On March 31, 2014, the company was split and part of 
its patrimony passed to Tresmontes Lucchetti Dos S. A.  ON 
October 30, 2014, Tresmontes Lucchetti S. A. absorbed the 
company Tresmontes Lucchetti Internacional S. A.

Tresmontes Lucchetti S. A. develops its activity through 
17 subordinates companies, which are described next:

Tresmontes Lucchetti Agroindustrial S. A.
This Chilean company was incorporated on August 7, 2003; it 
has an unlimited term, and its domicile is in Santiago de Chile.
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Its business purpose is the farming and agricultural exploi-
tation and the elaboration, manufacturing, packaging and 
transformation of fresh, frozen or preserved food products 
from farming and the sea in all its forms, and the com-
mercialization and distribution throughout the country or 
abroad, on its own account or that of others.

Tresmontes Lucchetti Internacional S. A.
This Chilean company was incorporated on April 25, 1989; it 
has an unlimited term, and its domicile is in Santiago de Chile.

Its business purpose is the distribution, commercializa-
tion and sale of food products and mass consumer goods.

Tresmontes Lucchetti Servicios S. A.
This Chilean company was incorporated on October 16, 1989; 
it has an unlimited term, and its domicile is in Santiago de Chile.

Its business purpose is investment, either through the 
acquisition and transfer of any title of shares, bonds, securi-
ties, commercial effects and financial instruments, as well as 
through its participation in commercial or civil companies, 
acquiring rights or shares in them.

Tresmontes S. A.
This Chilean company was incorporated on July 1, 2014 and 
inscribed in the Office of the Curator of Real Estate on Oc-
tober 16, 2014.  Its domicile is in Valparaíso, Chile.

Its business purpose is the elaboration, production, 
commercialization, promotion, distribution, import and ex-
port of food products in general; the representation and 
commercialization of all kings of goods that are directly or 
indirectly related to the gastronomic area, as well as partici-
pating in all types of civil or commercial companies, whether 
they are collective, in commandite, being able to attend as 
a commandite partner or manager in the latter, anonymous 
or limited responsibility companies, whatever their purpose.

Modifications:On September 1, 2014, the company split and 
part of its patrimony passed to four new companies:  Tresmontes 
Lucchetti Internacional S .A., Inmobiliaria Tresmontes Lucchetti S. 
A., Lucchetti Chile S. A. and Inversiones Agroindustrial S. A.

The company absorbed the company Tresmontes S. A. 
on December 31, 2014.

Deshidratados S. A.
This Chilean company was incorporated on August 1, 2005; it 
has an unlimited term, and its domicile is in Santiago de Chile.

Its business purpose is the production and commerciali-
zation of dehydrated soups and broths.

This company was dissolved on December 30, 2014.

Envasadora de Aceites S. A.
This Chilean company was incorporated on July 19, 2004; it 
has an unlimited term, and its domicile is in Santiago de Chile.

Its business purpose is bottle, commercialize and export 
all kinds of food products produced by third parties.

This company was dissolved on December 30, 2014.

Inmobiliaria Tresmontes Lucchetti S. A.
This Chilean company is domiciled in Santiago de Chile, 
Chile.  It was incorporated on September 1, 2014.  It was 

inscribed in the Curator of Real Estate on October 16, 2014.
Its business purpose is to invest in real or personal, tan-

gible or intangible real estate for itself or for others.  The 
purchase, sale, exchange, lease, acquisition or transfer, in 
any form, of tangible or intangible, movable or immova-
ble property, as well as the exploitation and administration 
thereof, whether it is their own or that of others; and the 
participation in all kinds of civil or commercial companies, 
whether they are collective, anonymous, limited responsibi-
lity or in commandite, being able to attend as a commandi-
te partner or manager in the latter.

This company absorbed the company Inmobiliaria Tres-
montes Lucchetti S. A. on December 31, 2014.

Inversiones Agroindustrial Ltda.
This Chilean company was incorporated on August 9, 2010; 
it had an initial term of five (5) years, after which it is auto-
matically and successively renewed for five (5) year periods 
each, unless one of the partners manifests its intention to 
terminate it.  Its domicile is in Santiago de Chile.

Its business purpose is the investment in all kinds of tan-
gible or intangible property, including the rights and shares in 
all types of companies, communities and associations, wha-
tever their civil or commercial, national or foreign purpose 
may be, and all kinds of securities with the sole purpose of 
obtaining the income that these investments generate.

The company was dissolved on October 30, 2014, 
for having met all the corporate rights under Inversiones 
Agroindustrial S. A., which was its legal successor.

Inversiones Agroindustrial S. A. was dissolved on De-
cember 11, 2014, for having met all the actions under Nu-
tresa de Chile S. A. (absorbing company).

Inversiones y Servicios Tresmontes Ltda.
This Chilean company was incorporated on March 16, 
2004; it had an initial term of ten (10) years, after which it 
is automatically and successively renewed for five (5) year 
periods each, unless one of the partners manifests its in-
tention to terminate it.  Its domicile is in Santiago de Chile.

Its business purpose is the investment, in any capacity, 
in any kind of tangible or intangible property, real estate 
or furniture, as well as the exploitation and administration 
thereof, whether it is their own or that of others, for its 
own account or than of others, and the participation in all 
kinds of companies.

The company was dissolved on October 30, 2014, for 
having met all the corporate rights in the hands of Lucchetti 
Chile, S. A. (absorbing company).

Lucchetti Chile S. A.
This Chilean company was incorporated on September 1, 
2014.  It was inscribed in the Curator of Real Estate on 
October 16, 2014.

Its business purpose is the exploitation of the milling in-
dustry for cereals, the manufacture and commercialization 
of pastas, flours, cereal derivatives and all kinds of food 
products and goods suitable for human and animal con-
sumption, as well as providing services related to food for 
persons or animals.
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This company absorbed the company Lucchetti Chile S. A. 
on December 31, 2014.

Novaceites S. A.
This Chilean company was incorporated on May 27, 2007; it 
has an unlimited term, and its domicile is in Santiago de Chile.

Its business purpose is the import, distribution, commer-
cialization, purchase and sale, for its own account or that of 
others, of vegetable oils for human consumption.

Promociones y Publicidad Las Américas S. A.
This Panamanian company was incorporated on August 
31, 1998; it has a perpetual term, but it may be dissolved 
beforehand in accordance with the law.  Its domicile is in 
Panama City, Panama.

Its business purpose is to carry out activities related to 
the advertising and promotion of all types of goods and 
services; establish, manage and conduct the business of a 
financial and investment company; purchase, sell and nego-
tiate all types of goods for consumption, shares, bonds and 
securities of all kinds, among others.

Servicios Tresmontes Lucchetti S. A. de C. V.
This Mexican company was incorporated on December 1, 
2009; it has a term of 99 years, and its domicile is in the 
Distrito Federal.

Its business purpose is to promote, establish, organize, ex-
ploit and take interest in the capital and patrimony of all types 
of mercantile or civil companies; industrial, commercial, service 
associations or companies or of any type, both domestic and 
foreign, as well as participate in their administration and liquida-
tion, acquisition, disposal and, in general, the negotiation of all 
types of shares, stock and any security permitted by law.  It may 
also provide and contract management, managerial, consulting, 
consultancy services and the operation of companies and, in ge-
neral, provide professional services and assistance to companies 
and/or individuals, in whatever manner this is presented.

Sociedad Colectiva Civil Inmobiliaria 
y Rentas Tresmontes Lucchetti
This Chilean company was incorporated on October 26, 
2010; it had an initial term of five (5) years, after which it 
is automatically and successively renewed for one (1) year 
periods each, unless one of the partners manifests its in-
tention to terminate it.  Its domicile is in Santiago de Chile.

Its business purpose is the investment in securities and 
real estate, for which it may acquire all types of tangible 
and intangible, moveable and immovable property, admi-
nister those properties, give them and take them on lease 
and receive their income, in Chile or abroad.

Comercializadora TMLUC S. A. de C. V.
This Mexican company was incorporated on October 2, 
2008; it has a term of 99 years, and its domicile is in the 
Distrito Federal.

Its business purpose is the manufacture, distribution, 
sale and purchase, import, export and commercialization 

of products for human consumption permitted by law, in-
cluding – but not limited to – all types of non–alcoholic 
beverages, foods, food supplements and nutritional com-
plements.  It may establish agencies or branch offices in the 
Mexican States and/or abroad, and provide technical, pro-
fessional, administrative and consulting services related to 
the business purpose, as well as hire workers, technicians, 
distributors and administrative personnel.

Tresmontes Lucchetti México S. A. de C. V.
This Mexican company was incorporated on September 22, 
2005; it has a term of 99 years, and its domicile is in the 
Distrito Federal.

Its business purpose is the manufacture, distribution, 
sale and purchase, import and commercialization of pro-
ducts for human consumption permitted by law, including 
– but not limited to – all types of non–alcoholic beverages, 
foods, food supplements and nutritional complements.  It 
may establish agencies or branch offices in the Mexican Sta-
tes and/or abroad, and provide technical, professional, ad-
ministrative and consulting services related to the business 
purpose, as well as hire workers, technicians, distributors 
and administrative personnel.

Tresmontes Lucchetti Servicios S. A. de C.V.
This Mexican company, domiciled in Mexico City, Mexico, 
was incorporated on March 20, 2014, and inscribed in the 
Directorate General of Public Registry of Property and Com-
merce on March 28, 2014.

Its business purpose is the manufacture and commercia-
lization of products for human consumption; providing and 
contracting professional and assistance services to compa-
nies and/or persons; and establishing agencies or branch 
offices, among others.

TMLUC Perú S. A. C.
This Peruvian company was incorporated on April 7, 1997; 
its domicile is in Lima, Peru.

Its business purpose is the sale and purchase, exchange, 
import, export, consignment, distribution and commercia-
lization of food products in general, as well as goods, raw 
materials, machinery and accessories related to the food in-
dustry; the extraction, transformation, production and ela-
boration of juices, soft drinks, instant beverages and food 
products in general, and the exercise of all types of manda-
tes, representations, agencies, commissions, consignments, 
business management and administration in general.

TMLUC Argentina S. A.
This Argentinian company was incorporated on February 1, 
2010; it has a term of 99 years, and its domicile is in Buenos Aires.

Its business purpose is the manufacture, extraction, 
transformation, elaboration, division, production, represen-
tation and agency, promotion, distribution and wholesale 
and retail commercialization, import and export, purchase, 
sale, transfer and consignment of all kinds of food products 
for human consumption.
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NOTE 2 bases of preparation

For the preparation of the financial statements and the accoun-
ting records, the Parent Company and its subsidiary companies 
observed generally accepted accounting principles, which are 
prescribed by law and by the respective supervision and con-
trol entities in Colombia.  Notwithstanding these principles, the 
group of companies applies accounting practices and policies 
adopted by the Parent Company, which, in the case of the subsi-
diary companies located abroad, do not substantially differ from 
the accounting practices used in the countries of origin and/or 
that have been approved for those that generate a significant 
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

2.1 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on 
the historical cost basis, except for the valuation of a reasona-
ble value of certain financial instruments as described in the 
policies described further on.

2.2 FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY AND CURRENCY 
OF PRESENTATION
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Colom-
bian Pesos (COP), the functional currency of Grupo Nutresa S. A.

NOTE 3 Acquisitions

In 2014, no new companies were acquired.

ACQUISITIONS IN 2013
Tresmontes Lucchetti (TMLUC)
On July 18, 2013, Grupo Nutresa S. A. signed an agreement 
to acquire 100% of the shares in the Chilean company Tres-
montes Lucchetti S. A.  In accordance with the agreement, 
the value to be paid for the company was USD 758 million, 
equivalent to 12,6 times the EBITDA of this company as of 
December 31, 2012.

After the adjustments agreed upon, product of the con-
firmatory due diligence, a final Enterprise Value (EV) of USD 
739.3 million was reached; this is equivalent to an EV / EBIT-
DA multiple of 12,3.  In discounting the TMLUC financial 
debt of USD 126 million, the value paid was USD 605.3 
million, subject to final adjustments for working capital and 
financial debt after the close.

Tresmontes Lucchetti is a Chilean food company with 120 
years of tradition.  In Chile, it participates in the categories of 
cold instant beverages, tea, juices, coffee, pastas, snacks, edi-
ble oils, soups and desserts.  Additionally, its cold instant beve-
rage business has significant international presence in Mexico, 
the United States, Central America and South America.

In its country, Tresmontes Lucchetti is the leader in the cold 
instant beverage category with the brands Zuko and Livean.  It 
is second in the pasta category (Lucchetti and Talliani) and co-
ffee (Gold and Monterrey), and an important player in snacks 
(Kryzpo), edible oils (Miraflores), juices (Yuz and Livean), soups 
(Naturezza), desserts (Livean) and tea (Zuko and Livean).

Its presence is highlighted throughout the Mexican terri-
tory, where it has a wide distribution network, which has 
positioned it as the second player in the category of cold 
instant beverages.

The transaction included the following companies:
1.	 Tresmontes Lucchetti S. A.
2.	 Tresmontes Lucchetti Agroindustrial S. A.
3.	 Tresmontes Lucchetti Internacional S. A.
4.	 Tresmontes Lucchetti Servicios S. A.
5.	 Tresmontes S. A.
6.	 Deshidratados S. A.
7.	 Inmobiliaria Tresmontes Lucchetti S. A.
8.	 Inversiones Agroindustrial Ltda.
9.	 Inversiones y Servicios Tresmontes Ltda.
10.	Lucchetti Chile S. A.
11.	�Sociedad Colectiva Civil Inmobiliaria y Rentas 

Tresmontes Lucchetti
12.	 Envasadora de Aceites S. A.

13.	  Novaceites S. A.
14.	  Comercializadora TMLUC S. A. de C. V.
15.	  Servicios Tresmontes Lucchetti S. A. de C. V.
16.	  Tresmontes Lucchetti México S. A. de C. V.
17.	  TMLUC Perú S. A. C.
18.	  Promociones y Publicidad Las Américas S. A.
19.	  TMLUC Argentina S. A.
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Dan Kaffe (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. (“DKM”)
On December 11, 2012, Grupo Nutresa S. A., through its 

subsidiary industry Colombiana de Café S. A. S. (Colcafé), ente-
red into an agreement by which it acquired a 44% stake of the 
Malaysian company Dan Kaffe (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. (“DKM”).  
The other shareholders of this company are:  Mitsubishi Corpo-
ration, the Japanese multinational company and one of the lar-
gest and most recognized conglomerates of this country, with a 
30% stake; and Takasago International Corporation, one of the 
world leaders in flavors and aromas, with a 26% stake.

Founded in 1994, DKM is one of the largest Malaysian com-
panies dedicated to the production of soluble coffee and co-

ffee extracts.  Its plant is located in Johor Bahru, 25 kilometers 
from the port of Singapore, the business hub of Southeast 
Asia.  This company is an important platform to do business, 
since it has access to competitive raw materials, good inter-
national–commerce logistics chains, qualified labor, political 
stability and an attractive judicial system to do business.

The agreement mention was perfected on February 15, 
2013, the date on which the payment of USD 14,4 million 
and the respective transfer of shares were made.

We now detail the assets and liabilities assumed on the 
date of acquisition of the companies:

NOTE 4 Summary of significant accounting policies

4.1 BASES OF CONSOLIDATION
4.1.1 FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts 
of the Parent Company and its subsidiary companies.  All 
significant intra–company balances and transactions were 
eliminated in the consolidation and the unrealized profits 
or losses have also been eliminated.

The accounting policies and practices are uniformly applied 
by the Parent Company and its subsidiary companies and/or 

approvals are made for those companies that generate a signi-
ficant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Below is the consolidated participation of the Parent Com-
pany in the equity of its subsidiary companies and their financial 
information.  The figures presented were taken from the finan-
cial statements of the subsidiary companies as of December 31, 
certified and audited subject to the current legal regulations.

2013

Acquisitions TMLUC

Current assets $          317.283 

Non – current assets 340.098

Total assets $          657.381 

Current liabilities 369.324

Non-current liabilities 108.530

Total liabilities $          477.854 

Minority stake 16.107

Equity $          163.420 

Results before the acquisition ($ 4.478)

Cash received 12.935

Working capital  (52.041)

Financial obligations received 309.445

Goodwill acquired (1) 966.730

Value paid $         1.130.150
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YEAR 2014 YEAR 2013

Company Consolidated 
share Assets Liabili-

ties EQUITY Profit 
(loss)

Consoli-
dated share Assets Liabili-

ties EQUITY Profit 
(loss)

Alimentos Cárnicos S.A.S. 100,00%  1.517.160  987.467  529.693  49.459 100,00%  1.364.261  910.820  453.441  68.978 

Alimentos Cárnicos Zona 
Franca Santafé S.A.S. 100,00%  65.904  60.347  5.557  57 100,00%  66.548  61.048  5.500  (594)

Alimentos Carnicos de 
Panamá (1) 100,00%  140.951  77.316  63.635  1.051 100,00%  114.958  64.720  50.238  (6.225)

Compañía de Galletas 
Noel S.A.S. 100,00%  1.419.844  430.094  989.750  93.806 100,00%  1.379.606  428.671  950.935  70.032 

Compañía de Galletas 
Pozuelo DCR, S.A. (1) 100,00%  604.363  67.592  536.771  24.804 100,00%  497.743  57.944  439.799  54.077 

Comercial Pozuelo 
Panamá S.A. (1) 100,00%  38.947  24.597  14.350  (1.497) 100,00%  36.278  23.279  12.999  (258)

Compañía Nacional de 
Chocolates de  
DCR, S.A. (1) 100,00%  39.748  4.591  35.157  1.205 100,00%  33.551  4.313  29.238  1.701 

Compañía Nacional de 
Chocolates de Perú S.A. 100,00%  368.712  59.467  309.246  7.520 100,00%  307.773  48.791  258.982  7.501 

Compañía Nacional de 
Chocolates S.A.S. 100,00%  1.305.048  429.552  875.496  38.128 100,00%  1.144.327  349.247  795.080  66.701 

Cordialsa Boricua 
Empaque Inc. (1) 100,00%  4.881  0  4.881  (421) 100,00%  5.157  821  4.336  (334)

Cordialsa Costa Rica 
S.A. (1) 100,00%  0  0  0  0 100,00%  534  0  534  9 

Comercial Pozuelo El 
Salvador S.A. (1) 100,00%  9.052  8.718  334  (366) 100,00%  5.340  4.719  621  (481)

Cordialsa USA Inc. (1) 100,00%  14.387  11.289  3.098  (274) 100,00%  7.474  4.714  2.760  (130)

Cordialsa Noel de Vene-
zuela S.A. (1) 100,00%  14.694  4.336  10.358  956 100,00%  46.838  10.914  35.924  3.251 

Comercial Pozuelo Nicara-
gua S.A. (1) 100,00%  6.415  6.332  83  (1.501) 100,00%  5.723  7.981  (2.258)  (2.189)

Gestión Cargo Zona 
Franca S.A.S. 100,00%  201.527  166.474  35.053  8.344 100,00%  47.769  21.064  26.705  8.711 

Grupo Nutresa S.A. 100,00%  8.285.171  71.276  8.213.895  377.453 100,00%  7.507.098  83.554  7.423.544  379.896 

Industria Colombiana de 
Café S.A.S. Colcafé 100,00%  981.404  397.383  584.021  61.913 100,00%  878.398  326.609  551.789  62.124 

Industria de Alimentos 
Zenú S.A.S. 100,00%  440.586  184.088  256.498  13.394 100,00%  485.710  191.061  294.649  (2.877)
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YEAR 2014 YEAR 2013

Company Consolidated 
share Assets Liabili-

ties EQUITY Profit 
(loss)

Consoli-
dated share Assets Liabili-

ties EQUITY Profit 
(loss)

Industrias Alimenticias 
Hermo de  
Venezuela S.A. (1) 100,00%  140.756  40.923  99.833  13.613 100,00%  307.725  87.972  219.753  (8.544)

La Recetta Soluciones 
Gastronómicas  
Integradas S.A. 70,00%  43.963  40.810  3.153  49 70,00%  41.059  37.830  3.229  (1.568)

Litoempaques S.A.S. 100,00%  27.405  3.573  23.832  1.081 100,00%  24.531  1.993  22.538  (73)

Meals Mercadeo  
de Alimentos de  
Colombia S.A.S. 100,00%  554.065  235.317  318.748  17.130 100,00%  507.808  228.356  279.452  23.584 

Molinos Santa Marta S.A. S. 100,00%  109.838  18.800  91.038  1.840 100,00%  99.748  16.864  82.884  5.839 

Novaventa S.A S 100,00%  147.093  53.443  93.650  23.759 100,00%  111.652  55.085  56.567  10.812 

Nutresa S.A. de C.V. (1) 100,00%  106.266  29.864  76.402  6.098 100,00%  69.259  20.144  49.115  7.668 

Pastas Comarrico S.A.S. 100,00%  30.584  2.002  28.582  1.931 100,00%  27.626  1.432  26.194  1.356 

Productos Alimenticios 
Doria S.A.S. 100,00%  201.710  51.746  149.964  12.695 100,00%  183.123  48.752  134.371  12.933 

Serer S.A. de C.V. (1) 100,00%  13.240  6.708  6.532  1.191 100,00%  9.763  5.893  3.870  643 

Servicios Nutresa S.A.S. 100,00%  656.313  654.616  1.697  402 100,00%  431.451  430.156  1.295  486 

Setas Colombiana S.A. 99,48%  66.592  5.911  60.681  4.522 99,31%  63.419  6.429  56.990  5.150 

Comercial Nutresa S.A.S. 100,00%  212.193  169.358  42.835  (707) 100,00%  204.786  161.222  43.564  5.979 

Industrias Aliadas S.A.S. 100,00%  81.656  4.300  77.356  5.061 100,00%  76.381  5.827  70.554  9.228 

Tropical Coffe  
Company S.A.S. 100,00%  27.856  3.035  24.821  (828) 100,00%  30.417  2.624  27.792  208 

Corporación Distribuidora 
de Alimentos S.A. (1) 100,00%  36.788  28.221  8.567  1.616 100,00%  24.900  19.557  5.343  1.177 

Comercial Pozuelo  
Guatemala S.A.  (1) 100,00%  18.788  13.587  5.201  1.982 100,00%  13.661  11.485  2.176  (435)

Helados Bon S.A. (1) 81,18%  27.823  14.478  13.345  2.445 81,18%  21.461  12.314  9.147  1.941 

Abimar Foods ( antes   
Fehr Foods Inc). (1) (2) 100,00%  147.310  68.212  79.098  14.598 100,00%  72.842  23.562  49.280  9.775 

American Franchising 
Corp.(1) 100,00%  51.247  0  51.247  991 100,00%  30.917  31  30.886  1.121 

Americana de Alimentos 
Ameral S.A. (1) 100,00%  459  22  437  115 100,00%  538  278  260  162 

Americana de  
Alimentos S.A. de C.V. (1) 100,00%  166  132  34  12 100,00%  92  78  14  (67)

Compañía Americana  
de Helados S.A.  
(American Ice C) (1) 100,00%  19.141  5.516  13.625  2.132 100,00%  13.749  4.135  9.614  2.587 

Distribuidora Pops S. A.( 1) 100,00%  6.684  6.267  417  (838) 100,00%  4.423  3.302  1.121  (612)

Fransouno S.A. (1) 100,00%  689  218  471  (23) 100,00%  595  163  432  10 

Guate-Pops S. A. (1) 100,00%  1.680  1.133  547  120 100,00%  1.399  1.053  346  193 

Heladera Guatemalteca 
S.A.(1) 100,00%  1.666  238  1.428  (140) 100,00%  1.525  278  1.247  (150)

Helados H D S. A. (1) 100,00%  1.976  301  1.675  209 100,00%  1.453  217  1.236  269 

Industrias Lácteas de  
Costa Rica S.A. (1) 100,00%  21.432  2.142  19.290  3.673 100,00%  15.771  2.834  12.937  3.341 
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(1)	 As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Parent Company had no direct investment in these companies.  However, it has a majority share through 
the subordinated companies.

(2)	 As of December 31, 2014,  a corporate restructuring was carried out in TMLUC.

YEAR 2014 YEAR 2013

Company Consolidated 
share Assets Liabili-

ties EQUITY Profit 
(loss)

Consoli-
dated share Assets Liabili-

ties EQUITY Profit 
(loss)

Industrias Lácteas Nicara-
gua S.A. (1) 100,00%  919  247  672  124 100,00%  649  204  445  108 

Inmobiliaria Nevada 
S.A. (1) 100,00%  7.439  123  7.316  957 100,00%  5.500  144  5.356  971 

Nevada Guatemalteca 
S.A. (1) 100,00%  2.024  11  2.013  153 100,00%  1.447  10  1.437  135 

Pops One LLC (1) 98,00%  8  1  7  (327) 98,00%  272  29  243  (166)

Pops Two LLC (1) 98,00%  26  1  25  (283) 98,00%  256  8  248  (200)

Opperar Colombia S.A.S. 100,00%  712  7  705  5  0  0  0  0  0 

Nutresa Chile S. A. (1) 100,00%  1.302.504  49.564  1.252.940  5.736 100,00%  1.210.879  55.333  1.155.546  22.290 

Tresmontes Lucchetti 
S.A.(1) 100,00%  466.939  348.895  118.044  9.123 100,00%  749.649  538.841  210.808  18.609 

Tresmontes Lucchetti 
Agroindustrial S.A. (1) 100,00%  78.358  456  77.902  10.680 100,00%  62.438  1.160  61.278  1.226 

Tresmontes Lucchetti 
Internacional S.A. (1) 100,00%  80.587  53.817  26.770  (6.541) 100,00%  74.898  43.065  31.833  (196)

Tresmontes Lucchetti 
Servicios S.A. (1) 100,00%  93.371  19.300  74.071  4.032 100,00%  85.540  22.557  62.983  2.479 

Tresmontes S.A. (1) (2) 100,00%  1.130.427  578.191  552.236  136.456 100,00%  575.477  496.339  79.138  (4.347)

Deshidratados S.A. (1) (2) 100,00%  0  0  0  0 100,00%  7.200  1.356  5.844  37 

Inmobiliaria Tresmontes 
Lucchetti S.A. (1) (2) 100,00%  208.830  27.858  180.972  11.310 100,00%  121.444  33.494  87.950  681 

Inversiones Agroindustrial 
Ltda. (1) (2) 100,00%  0  0  0  0 100,00%  186.977  34.832  152.145  8.705 

Inversiones y Servicios 
Tresmontes Ltda. (1) (2) 100,00%  0  0  0  0 100,00%  168.490  126  168.364  (1.637)

Lucchetti Chile S.A. (1) (2) 100,00%  632.487  118.766  513.721  51.550 100,00%  192.648  114.412  78.236  (2.319)

Sociedad Colectiva Civil 
Inmobiliaria y Rentas 
Tresmontes Lucchetti (1) 100,00%  101.967 0  101.967 0 100,00%  95.062 0  95.062 0

Envasadora de Aceites 
S.A. (1)(2) 100,00%  0  0  0  0 100,00%  19.537  842  18.695  524 

Novaceites S.A. (1) 50,00%  61.814  22.124  39.690  3.899 50,00%  54.909  22.676  32.233  985 

Comercializadora TMLUC 
S.A. de C.V. (1) 100,00%  158 0  158  (3) 100,00%  146 0  146 0

Servicios Tresmontes 
Lucchetti S.A. de C.V. (1) 100,00%  3.161  3.710  (549)  142 100,00%  2.768  3.395  (627)  433 

Tresmontes Lucchetti 
México S.A. de C.V. (1) 100,00%  205.055  116.318  88.737  (640) 100,00%  70.844  22.218  48.626  1.182 

TMLUC Perú S.A.C. (1) 100,00%  3.979  2.071  1.908  (346) 100,00%  5.139  3.113  2.026  60 

Promociones y Publicidad 
Las Américas S.A. (1) 100,00%  3.911  13.929  (10.018)  8.449 100,00%  2.977  19.182  (16.205)  204 

TMLUC Argentina S.A. (1) 100,00%  2.349  2.909  (559)  (11.451) 100,00%  10.884  13.709  (2.825)  (1.776)

TMLUC Servicios 
Industriales, S.A. de C.V. 
(1) (2) 100,00%  370  355  14  6  0  0  0  0  0 
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4.1.2 CONSOLIDATION METHODOLOGY
The consolidation method used to prepare the consolidated fi-

nancial statements is the so–called “Global Integration Method.”
Using this methodology, all the assets, liabilities, equity and 

results of the subordinated companies are incorporated into 
the financial statements of the parent or controlling company, 
after the parent or controlling company has eliminated the 
investments it has made in the equity of its subordinated com-
panies and the investments that the subordinated companies 
have made among each other, as well as the reciprocal ope-
rations and balances that existed on the cut–off date of the 
consolidated financial statements.

The procedure stated below was followed to prepare the 
consolidated financial statements.
a)	 Determine the Parent Company and the subordinated 

companies to be consolidated, pursuant to the existing 
economic relationship and current legal provisions.

b)	 Obtain the financial statements of the Parent Company 
and of the companies to be consolidated.

c)	 Verify the uniformity of the accounting bases used by the 
companies to be consolidated and adjust them in the mate-
rial aspects to the accounting principles generally accepted 
in Colombia.

d)	 Convert the financial statements of the subordinated com-
panies abroad into Colombian Pesos before starting the 
consolidation process, using some of the guidelines esta-
blished in NIC 29 as a base.  For those companies that be-
long to countries whose economy is no longer considered 
hyperinflationary, we take the figures expressed in the cu-
rrent measurement unit at year end, adjusted for inflation.

e)	 The monetary conversion adjustment of the subordinated 
companies abroad is recorded in the Shareholders’ Equity. 

f)	 Verify that the reciprocal balances match.  If there are diffe-
rences, they are reconciled and adjusted.

g)	 Prepare a worksheet for the consolidation.
h)	 Determine the minority stake in the shareholders’ equity 

and the profits and losses of the subordinated companies.
i)	 Eliminate the intra–company balances and transactions.
j)	 Prepare the consolidated financial statements with their co-

rresponding notes.

4.1.3 EFFECT OF THE CONSOLIDATION
The effect of the consolidation on the assets, liabilities, pro-
fits and equity of Grupo Nutresa S. A. (Parent Company) is 
the following:
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Reconciliation of Assets 2014 2013

Parent Company’s assets $  8.285.171 $  7.507.098 
Subordinate Companies’ assets  14.316.397  12.526.094 
Subtotal  22.601.568  20.033.192 
Eliminations and reclassifications due to the effect of the consolidation:
Debtor accounts  (2.468.149)  (2.046.950)
Inventories  (22.585)  4.882 
Investments (Cost plus valuations)  (8.262.435)  (7.366.639)
Property, plant and equipment (Cost plus valuation)  (95.737)  (61.285)
Intangible assets and other assets  (221.770)  17.298 

Total eliminations and reclassifications  (11.070.676)  (9.452.694)

TOTAL CONSOLIDATED ASSETS $  11.530.892 $  10.580.498 

Reconciliation of Liabilities 2014 2013

Parent Company’s liabilities $  71.276 $  83.554 
Subordinate Companies’ liabilities  5.739.162  5.133.625 
Subtotal  5.810.438  5.217.179 
Eliminations and reclassifications due to the effect of the consolidation:
Commercial checking accounts, supplier accounts and accounts payable  (2.457.679)  (2.028.305)
Deferred liabilities and other liabilities  (44.372)  (38.447)

Total eliminations and reclassifications  (2.502.051)  (2.066.752)

TOTAL CONSOLIDATED LIABILITIES $  3.308.387 $  3.150.427 

Reconciliation of Profits 2014 2013

Parent Company’s profit $  377.453 $  379.896 
Subordinate Companies’ profit  634.343  466.523 
Subtotal $  1.011.796 $  846.419 
Adjustments and eliminations due to the effect of the consolidation:
Profit from holding method  (387.912)  (428.235)
Minority stake  (2.411)  (416)
Homologation NIIF Chile  (176.678)
Loss (profit) before acquisition of companies  -  4.478 
Net result generated from operations among the companies and other companies  (67.224)  (42.011)

Total eliminations and reclassifications $  (634.225) $  (466.184)

TOTAL CONSOLIDATED NET PROFIT $  377.571 $  380.235 

Reconciliation of Equity 2014 2013

Parent Company’s equity  8.213.895  7.423.544 
Subordinate Companies’ equity  8.577.236  7.392.468 
Subtotal $  16.791.131 $  14.816.012 
Eliminations due to the effect of the consolidation:
Company stock  (3.650.820)  (2.966.378)
Capital surplus  (2.275.534)  (2.030.287)
Reserves  (1.622.163)  (1.434.939)
Equity revaluation  (338.821)  (352.123)
Effect of the conversion of the financial statements  (193.586)  (173.546)
 Valuation surplus  (35.454)  (64.003)
Fiscal period profit (*)  (475.979)  (383.874)

Total eliminations and reclassifications  (8.592.357)  (7.405.150)

TOTAL CONSOLIDATED EQUITY $  8.198.774 $  7.410.862 

(1) Includes profits from the holding method.
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4.1.4 MINORITY INTEREST TRANSACTIONS
The Company applies the policy of considering transactions 
with a minority interest as transactions with shareholders of 
the Company.  When minority interest acquisitions are carried 
out, the difference between the consideration paid and the 
participation acquired on the book value of the net assets of 
the subsidiary are recognized as equity transactions; from the 
foregoing, goodwill, which is the product of these acquisi-
tions, is not recognized. 

4.1.5 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 
Business combinations are registered through the acqui-
sition method, which consists of recognizing the conside-
ration transferred for the figures disclosed in the financial 
statements of the subsidiary, taken as a basis at the time in 
which they were acquired, for their incorporation into the 
consolidated financial statements.

Costs related to the acquisition are recognized in the in-
come statement as incurred.  The Company recognizes any 
minority participation and recognized goodwill when the 
consideration transferred, including the value of any minority 
participation in the entity acquired, exceeds the value of the 
equity reflected in the financial statements, taken as a basis on 
the date of acquisition.

4.2 SUMMARY OF THE PRINCIPLE ACCOUNTING 
PRACTICES AND POLICIES
4.2.1 ADJUSTMENT FOR INFLATION
Through Decree 1536, dated May 7, 2007, the National Go-
vernment of Colombia retroactively eliminated, as of January 
1, 2007, the accounting effects of the inflation–adjustment 
system; these effects were also eliminated for tax effects 
through Law 1111 of 2006.  Inflation adjustments accrued 
in the non–monetary assets and liabilities until December 
31, 2006, will form part of the balance in their respective 
accounts for all accounting effects until they are cancelled, 
depreciated or amortized.  

To acknowledge the adjustment for inflation in the financial 
statements of the companies located in other countries, the 
guidelines in NIC 29 were followed.  This standard establishes 
the practices to be followed in preparing the accounting infor-
mation for a hyperinflationary economy.  In the case of Gru-
po Nutresa S. A., as of 2009, Industrias Alimenticias Hermo de 
Venezuela S. A. and Cordialsa Venezuela S. A., both located 
in Venezuela, have been considered as operating in a hyperin-
flationary economy; therefore, these companies have complied 
with this regulation.

4.2.2 FOREIGN–EXCHANGE ACCOUNTS
Transactions made in a currency other than the functional 
currency of the Company are converted using the valid ex-
change rate on the date of the transaction.  The mone-
tary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currency are 
converted using the types of exchange at the end of the 
fiscal year, which is taken from the information published 
by the official entity in charge of certifying this informa-
tion.  The differences that arise from the conversion of the 
transactions in foreign currency are recognized in the Profit 
and Loss Statement.  In relation to the balances receiva-

ble in other currencies (in terms of the functional curren-
cy), the exchange differences are entered in the Profit and 
Loss Statement as financial income.  For accounts payable, 
only the exchange differences that are not attributable to 
asset acquisition costs are recorded in the Profit and Loss 
Statement.  The exchange differences occurring while such 
assets are under construction or installation or until they 
are ready for use are attributable to asset acquisition costs.

Pursuant to Regulatory Decree 4918, dated December 26, 
2007, the exchange difference from variable–income invest-
ments in subordinated companies abroad must be restated in 
the functional currency, using the valid exchange rate certified 
by the Colombian Financial Superintendent.

The rights and obligations in financial derivatives made for 
the purpose of hedging assets or liabilities in foreign currency 
are posted in the Balance–Sheet accounts and are adjusted 
at the representative market rate with a credit or debit to the 
Profit and Loss Statement.  Option contracts and futures con-
tract bonuses or discounts are debited or credited to the fiscal 
period Profit and Loss Statement, as the case may be.

4.2.3 CONVERSION OF FOREIGN COMPANIES
The financial statements of the Company’s entities are me-
asured using the functional currency where the entity ope-
rates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in 
Colombian Pesos (COP), since this corresponds to the currency 
of presentation of the Company.  The financial situation and 
the Profit and Loss Statement of the entities whose functional 
currency is different from the currency of presentation of the 
Company, and whose economy is not classified as hyperinfla-
tionary, are converted as indicated next:
•	 Assets and liabilities are converted to the exchange rate at 

the close of the fiscal period.
•	 Income and expenses are converted to the average exchan-

ge rate.
•	 Exchange differences resulting from the conversion are re-

cognized in the equity in a separate ledger account denomi-
nated Adjustments for Conversion of Financial Statements.

4.2.4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and other highly li-
quid, short–term investments with an original maturity of less 
than three (3) months or because there is the intention or abi-
lity to do so before that period.  These items are recorded at 
their historical cost, which does not differ significantly from 
their fair value.

4.2.5 DEBTOR ACCOUNTS
Accounts receivable from domestic clients are recorded at his-
torical costs; those abroad are updated with the exchange rate 
at the close of the fiscal period.
 
4.2.6 BAD–DEBT ALLOWANCE
The estimate for doubtful accounts or deterioration represents 
the estimate of the losses that could arise from the failure of 
clients to make payments on the due date.  These estimates 
are based on the due dates of client balances, in the specific 
circumstances of the credit and the historical experience of the 
Company in doubtful accounts.  This is reviewed and updated 
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at the end of each fiscal period, based on the analysis of the 
age of the balances and assessment of the collectability of the 
individual accounts, made by the Administration.  Periodically, 
amounts that are considered uncollectible or of doubtful co-
llection are posted to the Profit and Loss Statements.

4.2.7 INVENTORIES  
Inventories are valued at cost or the net cost of the transaction, 
whichever is less.  Cost is determined using the method of ave-
rage costs.  The net value of the transaction is the estimated sale 
price of the inventory within the normal course of operations, 
decreasing the cost and variable sales expenses applicable.  The 
cost of finished goods and work in progress includes the raw 
materials, direct labor, other direct costs and indirect manufac-
turing expenses.  The inventory cost in the case of wheat raw 
material includes any profit or loss derived from the compre-
hensive result, for the hedges of raw–material procurement.  If 
necessary, at the close of each fiscal period, a provision is made 
for obsolete and slow–moving inventories.

4.2.8 NEGOTIABLE AND PERMANENT INVESTMENTS  
The provisions of the Colombian Financial Superintendent, 
according to External Circular No. 11 of 1998, requires that 
all investments held by the Company be classified according 
to the intention of their implementation by management 
as tradable investments, if it intends to keep them for less 
than three (3) years, and permanent investments, if it in-
tends to keep them for more than three (3) years.  They are 
also classified in accordance with the returns they generate 
in fixed–income investments and variable–income invest-
ments.  Once classified, the investments are recorded and 
they appreciate as follows:

Fixed–income investments (debt rights), regardless of their 
classification as tradable or permanent, are initially recorded 
at their acquisition cost and are appreciated monthly at their 
realization value.  The resulting adjustment is reflected in the 
Profit and Loss Statement.

Variable–income investments in shares or capital holdings, 
in entities that are not controlled by the Company, are recor-
ded at cost and appreciate at their realization value.  For per-
manent investments, the resulting adjustment, whether it is 
positive or negative, is recorded in the item valuation in the 
assets account with a credit or debit to the valuation surplus 
in Changes in the Shareholders’ Equity Statement, as the case 
may be.  For tradable investments, the resulting adjustment, 
whether it is positive or negative, affects the last cost recor-
ded for the investment; the income or expense generated is 
registered in the Profit and Loss Statement.  Market value is 
determined by the shares traded in the stock exchange, thus: 
for high marketability shares, based on the average of the last 
ten (10) days of quotations; for average marketability shares, 
based on the average of the last ninety (90) days of quota-
tions; and for low marketability shares or shares that are not 
listed in the stock market, on their intrinsic value.

4.2.9 DEFERRED ASSETS
Deferred assets include:
Expenses paid in advance, such as interest and insurance, 
which are amortized as the services are received.

Deferred charges represent the goods or services received 
from which it is expected that future economic benefits will 
be obtained.  These deferred charges include costs and ex-
penses incurred in the development of projects, computing 
programs, and promotion and publicity expenses.  They are 
amortized in periods that range from 12 to 60 months.

4.2.10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT; DEPRE-
CIATION, VALUATIONS AND ALLOWANCES
Property, plant and equipment are assessed at their acquisi-
tion cost, minus their accumulated depreciation, including 
additions, improvements and capitalization due to exchan-
ge differences, financial expenses and expenses that are di-
rectly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Disbursements after the acquisition, including major impro-
vements, are capitalized and included in the value in the asset 
books or are recognized as a separate element, when it is pro-
bable that future economic benefits will be obtained.

Repairs and maintenance are posted in the fiscal year Profit 
and Loss Statement.  Sales and withdrawals are recorded at 
the adjusted net cost, recording the difference between this 
and the sale price in the Profit and Loss Statement.

Major improvements are depreciated over the remaining use-
ful life of the related asset.  Land is not subject to depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight–line method 
on cost, based on the probable useful life of the respective 
assets, at the annual rates permitted by the tax law in the co-
rresponding country, for each group of assets.  For the Parent 
Company and its subordinated companies in Colombia, the 
annual rates used are 5% for buildings, 10% for machinery 
and office equipment and 20% for transportation equipment 
and computer equipment.

Accelerated depreciation is applied to some production 
equipment; it is equal to 25% of the normal rate for each ad-
ditional work shift.  For other equipment, a depreciation rate 
based on the hours of work was used, considering the tech-
nical specifications of the equipment provided by the supplier 
and depending on the applicable legislation.

Excesses of net cost over the realization value, which are de-
termined based on technical appraisals, are recorded in the va-
luation account; its counterpart is the valuation surplus item.  
When the net cost is greater than the technical appraisals, an 
allowance is set up for the differences, which are posted in the 
Profit and Loss Statement.

Property, plant and equipment appraisals and the appraisal for 
art and culture of other assets were prepared pursuant to the 
respective regulations valid in each country; for companies do-
miciled in Colombia, in accordance with Decree 2649 of 1993.

Companies adequately protect their assets; to do so, they 
take out insurance policies to cover them against different ris-
ks, such as fire, earthquake, theft, robbery and damages to 
third parties.

4.2.11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS  
Goodwill
Pursuant to Joint Circulars 006 and 11 of 2005, issued by 
the Colombian Superintendent of Societies and the Finan-
cial Superintendent, respectively, the additional amount 
paid over the book value during stock acquisitions in com-
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panies over which the Parent Company has or acquires 
control is recorded as goodwill, pursuant to the provisions 
established in Articles 260 and 261 of the Commerce Code.  
For Colombia, goodwill acquired must be amortized in the 
same period in which it is expected that the investment will 
be recovered, which may not exceed twenty (20) years.  Pur-
suant to the same regulations, when a price is paid which 
is less than the intrinsic value, it is not subject to accoun-
ting acknowledgement as goodwill.  For the consolidated 
financial statements, negative goodwill is recognized in the 
equity, through the valuation surplus of the assets acquired 
in the subordinated company from which it stemmed; said 
acknowledgement is not made when it is goodwill formed.

Annually, management reviews the goodwill to evaluate its 
origin and if it is concluded that the goodwill does not generate 
economic benefits or if the economic benefit has already been 
obtained, it is amortized in the corresponding fiscal period.

Brands and Rights
Intangible assets include the direct costs incurred in the acqui-
sition of commercial brands, as well as the distribution rights 
acknowledged based on a technical study prepared by com-
pany personnel.  These costs are amortized in the lesser period 
of time between the estimated exploitation and the duration 
of its legal or contractual term.

Based on the update of the technical study made by an inde-
pendent investment bank, such intangible assets have a useful 
life of 99 years.

 
Leasing Agreements with a Purchase Option
For subordinated companies in Colombia, assets acquired 
through financial leasing agreements with a purchase option 
are recorded in the asset account and liability account for the 
agreed–upon current rental value and purchase options, cal-
culated as of the beginning date of the lease, based on the 
internal rate of return of the respective agreement.

These rights are amortized and posted in the Profit and Loss 
Statement using the straight–line method at a rate of 10% 
for rights in equipment leasing agreements and 20% for ve-
hicles and computer equipment.  The rentals paid during the 
agreement are posted in liabilities in the part calculated for the 
payment of capital and to the Profit and Loss Statement of the 
fiscal period under financial expenses.

Research and Development
Research and development expenses are acknowledged in the 
Profit and Loss Statement when they are incurred.

Expenditures for development activities are recognized as 
intangible assets when these costs may be reliably estimated, 
when the product or process is technically and commercially 
feasible, when potential future economic benefits are obtai-
ned and the Company intends and possesses sufficient resour-
ces to complete the development and use or sell the asset.  
Amortization is recognized in the Profit and Loss Statement 
based on the straight–line method during the estimated useful 
life of the asset.

Development expenditures that do not qualify for capitali-
zation are recognized in the Profit and Loss Statement when 
they are incurred.

4.2.12 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
In the normal course of business, companies do operations 
with derivative financial instruments, with the sole purpose of 
reducing their exposure to fluctuations in the exchange rate 
and interest rates on obligations in foreign currencies.  These 
instruments include, among others, fixed–rate cross–currency 
swap and forward hedging contracts.

While Colombian accounting regulations do not foresee 
specific treatment for this type of transaction, as of 2007 com-
panies have adopted a policy of calculating the amount of the 
income or expenses that is the result of comparing the repre-
sentative market rate at the close of the year with the rate 
agreed upon in each contract, reduced to its present value on 
the date of valuation, and the resulting adjustment is posted 
in the Profit and Loss Statement during the period in which 
the contracts were entered into, so as to adequately compen-
sate the income or expenses generated by the variations in the 
exchange rates and interest rates of the hedged items, as the 
case may be.

4.2.13 TAXES, LEVIES AND RATES
This heading includes the value of the mandatory, general–na-
ture taxation in favor of the State, for which companies are 
responsible, for the concept of private liquidations that are 
determined on the taxable bases for the fiscal period.

Income tax is determined based on estimations.  The 
allowance for income tax is posted in the Profit and Loss Sta-
tement and includes, in addition to the taxable income of the 
fiscal period, the taxable effect applicable to the temporary 
differences between the accounting items and the fiscal items 
used to calculate the income tax.  The tax value on such diffe-
rences is recorded in a deferred–income tax account.

4.2.14 FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AND LOANS
This corresponds to the obligations contracted through obtai-
ning resources from credit institutions or other financial institu-
tions in the country or abroad.  Interest and other financial ex-
penses that do not increase the capital are recorded separately.

4.2.15 LABOR OBLIGATIONS
Labor obligations are adjusted at the end of each fiscal period, 
based on the work contracts and on current legal regulations.

The amount of the retirement pensions is determined based 
on actuarial studies.  Subordinated companies with their do-
micile in Colombia, Ecuador, Mexico and Peru are subject to 
actuarial liabilities by law.

Payments made to retired personnel are posted in the Profit 
and Loss Statement of the fiscal period.

4.2.16 DEBTOR MEMORANDUM ACCOUNTS AND 
CREDITOR MEMORANDUM ACCOUNTS
Debtor Memorandum Accounts
Events or circumstances from which rights can be generated 
that affect the financial structure of the companies and ac-
counts for the effects of internal control of assets are recorded 
in Debtor Memorandum Accounts.  This item also includes 
accounts used to reconcile differences between active accoun-
ting records and tax returns.
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Creditor Memorandum Accounts
Commitments or contracts related to possible obligations 
that can affect the financial structure of the companies are 
recorded in Creditor Memorandum Accounts.  This item also 
includes accounts used for the effects of internal control of lia-
bilities and equity, as well as to reconcile differences between 
the credit accounting records and tax returns.

4.2.17 ALLOWANCES
Allowances are recognized when, as a consequence of a past 
event, the Company has a current, legal or implicit obligation, 
the liquidation of which requires an outflow of resources that 
it considers probable and that can be estimated with certainty.

4.2.18 CAPITAL
This represents the contributions made to the economic entity, 
in cash, in industry or in kind, with the aim of providing re-
sources to the business activity which, also, serves as collateral 
for creditors.

4.2.19 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF REVENUES, COSTS 
AND EXPENSES 
Revenue from sales is acknowledged when the product is dis-
patched; revenue from leasing is acknowledged in the month 
in which it is accrued; and revenue from services, when they 
are provided.  Costs and expenses are reflected in the Profit 
and Loss Statement using the accrual system.

4.2.20 PRODUCTION EXPENSES
Indirect costs that have not contributed to bringing invento-
ries to their current condition and location and that are not 
necessary for production process are posted in production–
cost accounts.

4.2.21 NET PROFIT PER SHARE
The net profit per share is calculated on 460.123.458 outs-
tanding shares of the Parent Company at the close of 2014 
and 2013.

4.2.22 RELATIVE IMPORTANCE 
OR MATERIAL SIGNIFICANCE 
The consolidated financial statements and the notes to the 
financial statements disclose in an integral manner the eco-
nomic events that, in the years that ended on December 31, 
2014 and 2013, affected the financial situation of the com-

panies, their profits and losses and cash flows, as well as the 
changes in their financial position and their shareholders’ 
equity.  There are no undisclosed events of that nature that 
could significantly alter the economic decisions of the users of 
the information mentioned.

For the purpose of disclosure, relative importance was deter-
mined, using a base of 5% of current assets and non–current 
assets, current liabilities and non–current liabilities, equity, the 
results of the fiscal period and each general–ledger account, 
on an individual basis.

4.2.23 CONVERGENCE TO THE INTERNATIONAL 
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)
In accordance with the provisions of Law 1314 of 2009 and 
reglamentary Decrees 3023 and 2784 of December 2013, 
Grupo Nutresa S. A. . is required to converge the accounting 
principles generally accepted in Colombia to the International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the Interna-
tional Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The Technical Board of Public Accountancy (the agency for 
the technical standardization of accounting standards, finan-
cial reporting and information assurance) classified companies 
into three (3) groups to make the transition.  Grupo Nutresa 
is in Group 1, whose mandatory transition period began on 
January 1, 2014; the first issue of the comparative financial 
statements under IFRS will be December 31, 2015.

In accordance with the External Circulars 038 of December 
3013 and June 14, 2014, in 2014, the Company presented the 
Statement of the Opening Financial Situation as of January 1, 
2014; it is a summary of the principal policies foreseen for the 
development of the statement of the opening financial situa-
tion, the exceptions and exemptions in implementing the regu-
latory technical framework, after prior approval from the Finan-
ce, Audit and Risk Committee and the Board of Directors itself.

For all legal effects, the preparation of the Financial Sta-
tement as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, will be the last 
financial statements in accordance with Decrees 2649 and 
2650 of 1993 and the accounting regulations valid on this 
date in Colombia.

 
4.2.24 RECLASSIFICATION 
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Certain reclassifications have been incorporated into the 2013 
financial statements to facilitate their comparison with the 
2014 financial statements.

NOTE 5 Capital and risk management

5.1 RISK MANAGEMENT
The activities of the Parent Company and its subordinated 
companies are exposed to different financial risks:  market 
risk (including foreign exchange–rate risk, interest–rate risk, 
and supply–price risk), counterparty credit risk and liquidity 
risk.  The Company’s Risk Management Policy is focused on 

the risks that impede or jeopardize the achievement of its 
financial objectives, seeking to minimize potential adverse 
effects on financial performance.  The Company employs 
derivative financial instruments to cover some of the risks 
previously described.
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5.1.1 FOREIGN EXCHANGE–RATE RISK
The Company operates internationally and, therefore, is expo-
sed to an exchange–rate risk on transactions involving foreign 
currencies, especially the U. S. Dollar.  The exchange–rate risk 
arises primarily from trade and liabilities; to mitigate this risk, 
derivative financial instruments are used.

Existing basic regulations allow free trading of foreign cu-
rrencies through banks and other financial institutions at free 
rates of exchange.  However, most foreign currency transac-
tions still require official approval.

Transactions and balances in foreign currencies are con-
verted at the representative market rate (Tasa de Cambio Re-
presentativo del Mercado, TRM), certified by the Colombian 

Financial Superintendent, at COP 2.392,46 and COP 1.926,83 
for USD 1, as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.  
For the conversion of the financial statements of the foreign 
subordinated companies, revenue, cost and expense opera-
tions are expressed in U. S. Dollars at the average annual rate 
of each country, and this money, to Colombian Pesos applying 
the average TRM for the year, which was COP 2.000,68 and 
COP 1.868,90 for USD 1 during 2014 and 2013, respectively.  
The conversion of the balance–sheet accounts is made at the 
corresponding closing rates.

The Parent Company and its subordinated companies had 
the following assets and liabilities in foreign currency, accoun-
ted for the equivalent in Pesos as of December 31.

2014 2013

US$ $ US$ $
Available 59.198.464 141.630 64.251.440 123.802
Debtor accounts 182.149.877 435.786 284.943.008 549.037
Inventories 140.833.464 336.938 153.989.846 296.712
Deferred assets and other assets 27.452.178 65.678 39.814.490 76.716
Property, plant and equipment 272.436.173 651.793 299.400.711 576.894
Intangible assets 559.364.914 1.338.258 669.999.175 1.290.975
Subtotal 1.241.435.070 2.970.083 1.512.398.670 2.914.136
Financial operations 152.884.522 365.770 233.516.393 449.946
Suppliers 48.155.871 115.211 96.612.995 186.157
Accounts payable 100.769.813 241.088 103.685.971 199.785
Taxes, levies and rates 6.572.994 15.726 21.079.997 40.618
Labor obligations 14.745.612 35.278 23.985.279 46.216
Estimated liabilities 23.664.400 56.616 15.427.976 29.727
Deferred liabilities and other liabilities 10.753.652 25.728 14.384.157 27.716
Subtotal 357.546.864 855.417 508.692.768 980.165

Active, net position 883.888.206 2.114.666 1.003.705.902 1.933.971
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Impact of the Conversion of the Financial Statements by Country:
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 Current assets (502)  22.287  15.892  5.767  1.215  10.089  4.598  9.601  1.102  10.367  9.706  170  2.246  (149.023)  (56.485)

 Non-current assets (82)  95.948  44.899  247  11  9.066  1.182  4.246  31  12.580  18.824  -  1.994  (142.660)  46.286 

 Total assets (584)  118.235  60.791  6.014  1.226  19.155  5.780  13.847  1.133  22.947  28.530  170  4.240  (291.683)  (10.199)

 Current liabilities 736  (22.808)  2.444  (4.597)  (1.072)  (5.240)  (3.766)  (3.397)  (1.464)  (21.059)  (1.425)  874  (2.231)  68.553  5.547 

 Non-current 
liabilities 0  (2.918)  (2)  (126)  -  (1.454)  (231)  (396)  -  -  (233)  -  (201)  222  (5.339)

 Total liabilities 736  (25.726)  2.442  (4.723)  (1.072)  (6.694)  (3.997)  (3.793)  (1.464)  (21.059)  (1.659)  874  (2.433)  68.776  209 

 Minority stake 0  (1.171) 0 0 0  (2) 0 0 0 0 0 0  (340) 0  (1.513)

Acquisition of 
companies 0  (18.866)  (111) 0 0  (287) 0  244  3  152  54 0  266 0  (18.545)

 Results of the 
conversion effect  (1.674)  (10)  6.328  316  (69)  2.796  278  26  (231)  1.616  355  (82)  357 0  10.004 
 Financial 
statement 
conversion effect  (1.522)  72.463  69.450  1.607  84  14.970  2.061  10.324  (559)  3.656  27.280  962  2.089 

 
(222.907)  (20.043)

Previous year 
cumulative con-
version effect  238  (86)  24.828  (36)  72  667  600  (723)  (93)  (6.464)  (2.616)

 
(387)  (306)

 
(189.239)

 
(173.546)

Year cumulative 
financial 
statement 
conversion effect  (1.285)  72.376  94.278  1.571  157  15.637  2.661  9.601  (652)  (2.808)  24.664  575  1.784 (412.146) (193.586)
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 Current assets 0 0  8.011  1.620  452  2.861  1.426  3.610  206  3.587  (305)  63  307  (35.090)  (13.252)

 Non-current assets 0 0  27.880  42  3  2.995  418  1.072  10  3.734  (720) 0  224  (34.069)  1.589 

 Total assets 0 0  35.891  1.662  455  5.856  1.844  4.682  216  7.321  (1.025)  63  531  (69.159)  (11.663)

 Current liabilities 0 0  592  (1.284)  (356)  (1.904)  (1.041)  (1.159)  (205)  (5.294)  75  324  (315)  11.013  446 

 Non-current 
liabilities 0 0  (38) 0  (454)  (146)  (173) 0 0  6 0  (17)  68  (755)

 Total liabilities 0 0  591  (1.322)  (356)  (2.358)  (1.187)  (1.332)  (205)  (5.294)  81  324  (332)  11.081  (309)

 Minority stake 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  (37) 0  (38)

 Results of the 
conversion effect  235  (86)  957  37  (17)  288  (29)  70  (14)  (178)  (9)  (10)  11 0  1.255 
 Financial state-
ment conversion 
effect  235  (86)  37.439  377  82  3.785  628  3.420  (3)  1.849  (953)  377  173  (58.078)  (10.755)

Previous year 
cumulative con-
version effect 3 (0) (12.611) (413) (10) (3.118) (28) (4.143) (90) (8.313) (1.663) (764) (479) (131.161) (162.791)

Year cumulative 
financial state-
ment conversion 
effect  238  (86)  24.828  (36)  72  667  600  (723)  (93)  (6.464)  (2.616) (387)  (306) (189.239) (173.546)
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5.1.2 INTEREST–RATE RISK
Changes in interest rates can affect the expense for inte-

rest on the financial liabilities tied to a variable interest rate; 
likewise, they can modify the reasonable value of the financial 
liabilities that have a fixed interest rate.

For the Company, the interest–rate risk is primarily from 
debt operations, including debt securities, awarding of bank 
credits and leasing.  These financings expose the interest rate 
to risk, primarily due to changes in the base rates (mostly CPI, 

BRI [Banking Reference Indicator], FTD [Fixed Time Deposits], 
TAB [Chile] and, to a lesser extent, the LIBOR and TIIE [Mexi-
co]), which are used to determine the interest rates applicable 
to bonds and loans.  The Company has $ 108.202 million in 
fixed–rate debt and $ 2.014.808 million in variable–rate debt 
as of December 31, 2014.

The following table shows, as of December 31, 2014 and 
2013, the financial risk structure referenced to a fixed–interest 
rate and a variable–interest rate:

Chart of Obligations

2014 2013

Debt with fixed–interest rate $       108.202       114.684

Debt with variable–interest rate    2.014.807    1.882.053

TOTAL $        2.123.009    1.996.737

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as 
swap contracts, to cover part of the debt service.

5.1.3 COUNTERPARTY CREDIT RISK
Liquid assets are invested primarily in savings accounts, CDs 
(Certificado de Depósitos a Término, CDTs), collective portfo-
lios, simultaneous operations and papers that meet the Com-
pany’s risk policy, both in amount and by user.  In addition, the 
Company performs counterparty credit–risk assessment on 
the financial institutions with which it has relations.

5.1.4 LIQUIDITY RISK
The Parent Company and its subordinated companies are able 
to fund its liquidity and capital–resource requirements through 
different sources, including:

•	 Cash generated from operations
•	 Short– and long–term credit lines
•	 Medium– and long–term debt issuance
•	 Issuance of treasury shares 

NOTE 6 Cash and cash equivalents

The balance as of December 31 included:

2014 2013

Cash, banks and savings 
and loan corporations $       332.723 302.451

Temporary investments 41.337 113.027

TOTAL $            374.060    415.478 

There are no restrictions on these values for their availability; the average return of these funds is 3,86%.
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NOTE 7 Net debtor accounts

The balance as of December 31 included:

2014 2013

Clients:
National $        421.405 $        334.493 
Abroad 280.660 348.083
Client Allowance (1)  (10.846)  (10.657)
Subtotal $        691.219 $        671.919 
Advance tax, contributions and credit balances 94.780 76.627
Income receivable 12.020 787
Advanced payments and advances, deposits 73.745 55.843
Accounts receivable from employees 19.544 12.003
Loans to individuals 5.396 219
Others 12.419 12.424

TOTAL DEBTOR ACCOUNTS (SHORT TERM) $        909.123 $        829.822 

Accounts receivable from employees 25.823 25.516
Loans to individuals  2.928 359
Others 2.107 1.602

TOTAL DEBTOR ACCOUNTS (LONG TERM) $          30.858 $          27.477 

(*) Accounts with maturities exceeding one (1) year, for sales of products, are sanctioned against the allowance.

The allowance movement of debtors–clients was the following:

2014 2013

Client allowance balance at the beginning of the year 10.657 8.421
Yearly portfolio allowance expense 7.049 7.261
Portfolio penalty (6.860)  (5.025)
Portfolio allowance balance at the end of the year $        10.846 $      10.657 

NOTE 8 Net inventories

The balance as of December 31 included:

2014 2013

Raw materials $        256.109 $        245.139 
Work in progress 66.302 54.608
Finished products 237.142 207.056
Goods not manufactured by the Company 77.050 43.833
Materials, parts, accessories and packaging 140.743 132.075
Inventories in transit 66.918 24.074
Livestock 24.000 22.827

Inventory - protection allowance  (2.697)  (4.289)

TOTAL $         865.567 $        725.323 



CONSOLIDATED Financial statements

196 Grupo Nutresa

The allowance movement of inventories was the following:

2014 2013

Initial balance $         4.289 $ 646 
Yearly inventory allowance expense  (1.096) 2.144
Inventory sanction  (496) 1.499
Year – end balance $         2.697 $         4.289 

The balance as of December 31 included:

2014 2013

Expenses paid in advance $         16.205 $         15.171 
Deferred charges 60.743 86.052
Rights in financial instruments (1) 0 594
Other assets 25.438 15.908

TOTAL $       102.386 $         117.725 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  (37.520)  (47.694)

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS $         64.866 $         70.031 

NOTE 9 Deferred assets and other assets  

(1) Derivative Financial Instruments 

The balances in assets and liabilities due to derivative finan-
cial instruments as of December 31, 2013, correspond to the 
market value of valid contracts pursuant to the rights and obli-
gations of the companies.  

For their derivative contracts, all profits and losses are ac-
knowledged in the fiscal year Profit and Loss Statement.  As 
of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the derivative instruments 

generated profits for $ 4.211 (2013 – $ 5.659) and losses for 
$ 7.255 (2013 – $ 4.047), respectively.

As of December 31, 2014, we did not have derivative ins-
truments.

The market value of the derivative instruments as of Decem-
ber 31, 2013, the interest rates and the exchange rates for 
these contracts are listed below:
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2013

Financial Insti-
tution

Initial 
Financial 

Obligatio-
nUSD

Financial 
Obligation 

Balance 
USD

Hedging 
value USD Initial Date Expiration Rights 

$
Obliga-
tions $

Non-realice 
Profits 

(Losses)  $

Initial 
Exchange 
Rate (2)

Future 
Exchange 
Rate (2)

Interest 
Rate on 
Right

Interest 
Rate on 
Obliga-

tion

OBLIGATIONS

Forwards

BANCOLOMBIA 307.980 307.980 26/12/2013 07/01/2014 (1) (1) 1.924,20 1.923,50

BANCOLOMBIA 933.828 933.828 30/12/2013 07/01/2014 (0) (0) 1.926,60 1.926,56

BANCOLOMBIA 609.584 609.584 26/12/2013 18/02/2014 (2) (2) 1.924,20 1.924,48

BANCOLOMBIA 270.250 270.250 26/12/2013 25/02/2014 (1) (1) 1.924,20 1.925,16

BANCOLOMBIA 1.000.000 1.000.000 01/08/2013 25/07/2014 (1) (1) 1.898,70 1.962,00

BANCOLOMBIA 373.500 373.500 01/08/2013 25/07/2014 (0) (0) 1.898,70 1.962,00

BANCOLOMBIA 1.000.000 1.000.000 01/08/2013 26/08/2014 (1) (1) 1.898,70 1.967,76

BANCOLOMBIA 373.500 373.500 01/08/2013 26/08/2014 (0) (0) 1.898,70 1.967,76

BANCOLOMBIA 1.000.000 1.000.000 01/08/2013 26/09/2014 (1) (1) 1.898,70 1.973,35

BANCOLOMBIA 792.250 792.250 01/08/2013 26/09/2014 (1) (1) 1.898,70 1.973,35

BANCOLOMBIA 1.000.000 1.000.000 01/08/2013 27/10/2014 (1) (1) 1.898,70 1.978,96

BANCOLOMBIA 507.500 507.500 01/08/2013 27/10/2014 (1) (1) 1.898,70 1.978,96

BANCOLOMBIA 1.000.000 1.000.000 01/08/2013 26/11/2014 (1) (1) 1.898,70 1.984,41

BANCOLOMBIA 507.500 507.500 01/08/2013 26/11/2014 (1) (1) 1.898,70 1.984,41

BANCOLOMBIA 1.000.000 1.000.000 01/08/2013 18/12/2014 (1) (1) 1.898,70 1.988,41

BANCOLOMBIA 1.000.000 1.000.000 01/08/2013 18/12/2014 (1) (1) 1.898,70 1.988,41

BANCOLOMBIA 227.750 227.750 01/08/2013 18/12/2014 (0) (0) 1898,70 1.988,41

TOTAL SHORT - TERM OBLIGATIONS   ($ 15) ($ 15)

TOTAL OBLIGATIONS         $ 0 ($ 15) ($ 15)        

RIGHTS

Swaps

BBVA 47.000.000 1.678.571 1.678.571 17/04/2008 14/02/2014 184 184    1.795
 Libor 3  

months + 
0,85

10,80% 
EA 

RBS 44.000.000 1.571.429 1.571.429 17/04/2008 14/02/2014 220 220    1.772
 Libor 3 

months + 
0,95 

10,80% 
EA

Forwards

BANCOLOMBIA 1.000.000 1.000.000 03/07/2013 27/01/2014 17 17 1.916,00 1.947,53

BANCOLOMBIA 389.114 389.114 03/07/2013 27/01/2014 6 6 1.916,00 1.947,53

BANCOLOMBIA 135.522 135.522 18/12/2013 28/01/2014 3 3 1.947,00 1.952,55

BANCOLOMBIA 582.030 582.030 20/12/2013 28/01/2014 5 5 1.935,00 1.934,79

BANCOLOMBIA 1.000.000 1.000.000 03/07/2013 25/02/2014 17 17 1.916,00 1.952,11

BANCOLOMBIA 389.114 389.114 03/07/2013 25/02/2014 7 7 1.916,00 1.952,11

BANCOLOMBIA 36.800 36.800 18/12/2013 25/02/2014 1 1 1.947,00 1.956,83

BANCOLOMBIA 1.000.000 1.000.000 03/07/2013 26/03/2014 17 17 1.916,00 1.956,70

BANCOLOMBIA 736.392 736.392 03/07/2013 26/03/2014 12 12 1.916,00 1.956,70

BANCOLOMBIA 1.000.000 1.000.000 03/07/2013 25/04/2014 17 17 1.916,00 1.961,46

BANCOLOMBIA 389.114 389.114 03/07/2013 25/04/2014 7 7 1.916,00 1.961,46

BANCOLOMBIA 1.000.000 1.000.000 03/07/2013 26/05/2014 17 17 1.916,00 1.966,39

BANCOLOMBIA 389.114 389.114 03/07/2013 26/05/2014 7 7 1.916,00 1.966,39

BANCOLOMBIA 694.557 694.557 03/07/2013 26/06/2014 12 12 1.916,00 1.971,33

BANCOLOMBIA 404.775 404.775 20/08/2013 15/01/2014 10 10 1.926,00 1.953,40

BANCOLOMBIA 269.850 269.850 20/08/2013 18/02/2014 6 6 1.926,00 1.959,30

BANCOLOMBIA 269.850 269.850 20/08/2013 17/03/2014 6 6 1.926,00 1.964,35

BANCOLOMBIA 269.850 269.850 20/08/2013 15/04/2014 6 6 1.926,00 1.969,75

BANCOLOMBIA 269.850 269.850 20/08/2013 15/05/2014 6 6 1.926,00 1.975,36

BANCOLOMBIA 269.850 269.850 20/08/2013 16/06/2014 6 6 1.926,00 1.981,36

BANCOLOMBIA 269.850 269.850 20/08/2013 15/07/2014 6 6 1.926,00 1.986,82

BANCOLOMBIA 269.850 269.850 20/08/2013 15/08/2014 6 6 1.926,00 1.992,66

BANCOLOMBIA 269.850 269.850 20/08/2013 15/09/2014 6 6 1.926,00 1.997,70

TOTAL SHORT - TERM RIGHTS       $ 609   $ 609        

TOTAL RIGHTS         $ 609 $ 0 $ 609        

GRAND TOTAL         $ 609 ($ 15) $ 594        

(2) Expressed in Colombian Pesos (COP)
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The value of the above–mentioned financial instruments inclu-
des the accrual of the contract interest and the effect of the diffe-
rence in the exchange rate.

The purpose of entering into hedging contracts is the following:
Forward contracts to purchase and sell foreign currencies cover 

the exposures to exchange–rate risks regarding accounts recei-
vable, accounts payable, loans, and firm future commitments in 
foreign currencies.  Substantially, all the contracts are in United 
States Dollars (USD).  In general, contract maturity coincides with 
the maturity of the hedged element or account.

All the previous contracts have been made with renowned finan-
cial institutions, which are expected to provide adequate com-
pliance.  Management continuously monitors its positions and the 
financial situation of the counterparties and does not anticipate 
losses in the execution of these contracts.

At the close of the 2014 fiscal period, Grupo Nutresa S. A. and 
its subordinated companies presented the following financial op-
tions to hedge its exposure to the exchange rate in 2015:

CLASS TYPE EXPIRATION EXERCISE USD AMOUNT STRIKE AVERAGE

Sale Put 2015 Europeo 32.400.000 1.893
Purchase Call 2015 Europeo 16.200.000 1.962
Sale Call 2015 Europeo 16.200.000 2.190

NOTE 10 Net permanent investments  

2014

COMPANY
Number 

of Shares 
Owned

Number of 
Outstanding 

Shares

Intrinsic or 
Market Value 

per Share

Date of 
Valuation

Share 
Percentage

Cost
 Allow-

ance
Total 
Cost

Valuat. 
(Devaluat.)

Divi-
dends 

Received

Grupo de Inversiones 
Suramericana S.A.

59.387.803 575.372.223 40.000,00 12/30/2014 10,32% 147.259 0 147.259 2.228.253 28.194

Grupo Argos S.A. 79.804.628 793.115.568 20.500,00 12/30/2014 10,06% 120.795 0 120.795 1.515.200 24.381

Bimbo de  
Colombia S.A.

2.324.630 5.811.576 33.121,00 11/30/2014 40,00% 52.986 (45) 52.941 24.053 0

Fondo Ganadero  
de Antioquia S.A.

1.547.021 60.926.639 2.123,95 11/30/2014 2,54% 3.077 0 3.077 209 0

Sociedad Central 
Ganadera S.A.

50.267 279.859 46.713,85 11/30/2014 17,96% 1.155 0 1.155 1.193 375

Sociedad Portuaria 
Regional de 
Buenaventura (2)

68.609 87.056.154 2.201,03 11/30/2014 0,08% 94 0 94 57 65

Trigonal S.A. 744 35.342 14.315,77 11/30/2014 2,11% 2 0 2 8 0

Dan Kaffe (Malaysia) 
Sdn. Bhd (2)

9.111.250 24.625.000 1.218,96 12/31/2014 37,00% 25.666 0 25.666  (14.559) 0

Estrella Andina S.A.S. 1.277.700 4.259.000 2.450,00 11/30/2014 30,00% 3.976 0 3.976  (845) 0

Oriental Coffee  
Alli (1)

758.284 1.516.568 2.637,84 12/31/2014 50,00% 2.184 0  2.184  (184) 0

Other companies 666 0 666 0 2
Subtotal 357.860 (45) 357.815 3.753.385 53.017

Mandatory and other 
investments (3)

22.975 22.975

TOTAL NET 
PERMANENT 
INVESTMENTS

380.835 (45) 380.790 3.753.385 53.017

(1) The Oriental Coffee Alliance AND (OCA) was constituted, in which Grupo Nutresa has a 50% stake.
(2) A total of 1.723.750 Dan Kaffe shares were sold.
(3) This includes the Grupo Nutresa Trust, the Cocoa Trust and investment in the Cuenca Verde Water Fund.
(4) The Antioquia Livestock Fund (Fondo Ganadero de Antioquia) was in liquidation at the close of December 2014.



CONSOLIDATED Financial statements

199 Integrated report 2014

Duly authorized by the Colombian Financial Superintendent, in August 2009 the Company, through the Grupo Nutresa 
S. A. Trust, issued 500.000.000 ordinary bonds at a par value of COP 1.000 per bond, which were placed in their enti-
rety on the market and have a “AAA” (Triple A) rating by Fitch Ratings Colombia S. A.  The bonds are endorsed 100% 
by the Company.

As of December 31, the bonds have been distributed, thus:

2013

COMPANY
Number 

of Shares 
Owned

Number of 
Outstanding 

Shares

Intrinsic or 
Market Value 

per Share

Date of 
Valuation

Share 
Percentage

Cost
 Allow-

ance
Total 
Cost

Valuat. 
(Devaluat.)

Divi-
dends 

Received

Grupo de Inversiones 
Suramericana S.A.

59.387.803 575.372.223 33.700,00 12/30/2013 10,32% 147.259 0 147.259 1.854.110 19.672

Grupo Argos S.A. 79.804.628 785.538.040 19.440,00 12/30/2013 10,16% 120.795 0 120.795 1.430.608 17.996

Bimbo de  
Colombia S.A.

2.324.630 5.811.576 30.822,69 11/30/2013 40,00% 52.986 (45) 52.941 18.710 1.279

Fondo Ganadero  
de Antioquia S.A.

1.547.021 60.926.639 1.596,86 9/30/2013 2,54% 3.077 0 3.077 (607) 0

Sociedad Central 
Ganadera S.A.

50.267 279.859 40.501,87 11/30/2013 17,96% 1.155 0 1.155 881 479

Promotora.(2) 0 0 0 0 0,00% 0 0 0 0 0

Sociedad Portuaria 
Regional de 
Buenaventura

68.609 87.056.154 2.232,99 11/30/2013 0,08% 93 0 93 59 69

Trigonal S. A. 744 35.342 8.401,53 8/31/2013 2,11% 2 0 2 4 0

Dan Kaffe (Malaysia) 
Sdn. Bhd (1)

10.835.000 24.625.000 1.210,38 12/31/2013 44,00% 26.178 0 26.178  (13.063) 0

Estrella Andina S.A.S (1) 999.000 3.330.000 1.006,00 11/30/2013 30,00% 999 0 999 6 0

Other companies 531 0 531 0 15
Subtotal 353.075 (45) 353.030 3.290.708 39.510

Mandatory and other 
investments (3)

4.800 4.800

TOTAL NET 
PERMANENT 
INVESTMENTS

357.875 (45) 357.830 3.290.708 39.510

(1) A total of 10.835.000 Dan Kaffe shares and 999.000 shares in Estrella Andina S. A. S. were acquired.
(2) A total od 398.038 Promotora shares were sold.
(3) This includes the Grupo Nutresa Trust and investment in the Cuenca Verde Water Fund.

SERIES CAPITAL CPI RATE + MODE

C7  131.815 4,9600% T.V

C10  135.482 5,3300% T.V

C12  134.162 5,5900% T.V

TOTAL  401.459 
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NOTE 11 Net property, plant and equipment

Real Estate
Construction 

and Assembly  
in Progress

Office  
Equipment

Production 
Equipment

Transport 
Equipment

TOTAL

As of January 1, 2013:
Cost  782.586  109.784  39.367  1.412.879  8.878  2.353.494 
Accrued depreciation  (298.238) 0  (28.273)  (946.084)  (7.662)  (1.280.257)
Flexible depreciation  24.295 0  208  49.017  (9)  73.511 
Allowance  (10.923) 0 0  (40) 0  (10.963)
Net value in books as of January 1, 2013 $ 497.720 $ 109.784 $ 11.302 $ 515.772 $ 1.207 $ 1.135.785 
Valuations $ 722.409 $ 0 $ 0 $ 456.290 $ 1.435 $ 1.180.134 
For the year ended on December 31, 2013:
Initial balance  497.720  109.784  11.302  515.772  1.207  1.135.785 
Conversion effect  (10.188)  (286)  162  (2.774)  188  (12.898)
Acquisitions  45.850 0  3.033  140.606  2.007  191.496 
Acquisitions of new companies 96.024 27.850  6.751  78.029  1.033  209.687 
Sales and withdrawals  (3.092) 0  (73)  (387)  (615)  (4.167)
Depreciations  (25.368) 0  (4.604)  (81.913)  (1.222)  (113.107)
Allowance recovery  7 0 0  (4.366) 0  (4.359)
Adjustments for inflation  35.063  3.933  49  14.789  31  53.865 
Transfers and reclassifications  (25.600)  100.907  4.992  (86.864)  6.337  (228)
Final balance as of December 31, 2013 $ 610.416 $ 242.188 $ 21.612 $ 572.892 $ 8.966 $ 1.456.075 
As of December 31, 2013
Cost  929.507  242.188  61.512  1.666.646  12.301  2.912.154 
Accrued depreciation  (330.495) 0  (40.029)  (1.144.075)  (3.328)  (1.517.927)
Flexible depreciation  22.320 0  129  54.727  (7)  77.169 
Allowance  (10.916) 0 0  (4.406) 0  (15.322)
Net value in books as of December 31, 2013 $ 610.416 $ 242.188 $ 21.612 $ 572.892 $ 8.966 $ 1.456.074 
Valuations $ 801.796 $ 0 $ 0 $ 516.212 $ 561 $ 1.318.569 
For the year ended on December 31, 2014:
Initial balance  610.416  242.188  21.612  572.892  8.966  1.456.074 
Conversion effect  (41.692)  (28.314)  (3.186)  9.297  (5.153)  (69.048)
Acquisitions  133.313 0  2.386  212.916  1.153  349.768 
Sales and withdrawals  (510) 0  (92)  (2.256)  (497)  (3.355)
Depreciations  (27.316) 0  (5.919)  (95.493)  (1.580)  (130.308)
Allowance recovery  3 0 0  (2.592) 0  (2.589)
Adjustments for inflation  14.839  211  152  9.894  21  25.117 
Transfers and reclassifications  (101.905)  94.026  3.320  3.278  1.281 0 
Final balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 587.148 $ 308.111 $ 18.273 $ 707.936 $ 4.191 $ 1.625.659 
As of December 31, 2014
Cost  934.493  308.111  66.682  1.886.819  14.068  3.210.173 
Accrued depreciation  (355.040) 0  (48.483)  (1.227.205)  (9.868)  (1.640.596)
Flexible depreciation  18.608 0  74  55.320  (9)  73.993 
Allowance  (10.913) 0 0  (6.998) 0  (17.911)
Net value in books as of December 31, 2014 $ 587.148 $ 308.111 $ 18.273 $ 707.936 $ 4.191 $ 1.625.659 
Valuations $ 823.527 $ 0 $ 0 $ 606.073 $ 718 $ 1.430.318 
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Levies
The property, plant and equipment are free of levies and, the-
refore, fully owned by the companies, except for:: 
•	 An industrial building, together with the lot of land on which 

it is built, with an area of 22.361,09 m2, with mortgage 
security number 51600000786, to guarantee open credits 
owned by Compañía Nacional de Chocolates S. A. S.

•	 Lot of land number 1 located in the Guayabal area, with an 
approximate area of 88.307,20 m2; it is owned by Com-
pañía de Galletas Noel S. A. S., with real–estate security 
number 100005157, in favor of Bancolombia.

•	 A lot of land located in the Los Llanos rural area, in the 
municipality of Yarumal, owned by Setas Colombianas S. 
A.  Real–estate Registration Folio Number 037–0009591, 
for an open mortgage for future credits, with real–estate 
security number 290001073, in favor of Bancolombia and 
Banco de Bogotá.

•	 A rural estate known as La Sopetrana, currently Alcalá, 
located in the Los Llanos rural area, in the municipality of 
Yarumal, owned by Setas Colombianas S. A.  Real–esta-
te Registration Folio Number 037–0009592, for an open 
mortgage for future credits, with real–estate security 
number 290001073, in favor of Bancolombia and Banco 
de Bogotá.

•	 A lot of land in the territorial community called Llanos de 
Cuivá, owned by Setas Colombianas S. A., located in the 

municipality of Yarumal.  Real–estate Registration Folio 
Number 037–0009593, for an open mortgage for future 
credits, with real–estate security number 290001073, in 
favor of Bancolombia and Banco de Bogotá.

•	 Property located in the municipality of Santa Rosa de 
Osos, the Provincial Department of Antioquia, in the area 
of La Sopetrana Aragón.  The property is distinguished 
with number 1382; it is owned by Setas Colombianas S. 
A.  Real–estate Registration Folio Number 025–0004324, 
for an open mortgage for future credits, with real–estate 
security number 290001073, in favor of Bancolombia and 
Banco de Bogotá.

•	 A pledge on 13.500.000 shares issued by Grupo Sura-
mericana S. A., in favor of Grupo Nutresa S. A., for the 
following companies:  Alimentos Cárnicos S.A.S., Tropical 
Coffee S.A.S., Industria Colombiana de Café S.A.S., Meals 
Mercadeo de Alimentos de Colombia S.A.S., La Recetta 
Soluciones Gastronómicas Integradas S.A.S., Pastas Coma-
rrico S.A.S., Productos Alimenticios Doria S.A.S., Servicios 
Nutresa S.A.S., Setas Colombianas S.A., Industrias Aliadas 
S.A.S., Industrias de Alimentos Zenú S.A.S., Litoempaques 
S.A.S., Molinos Santa Marta S.A.S., Novaventa S.A.S., 
Compañía de Galletas Noel S.A.S. and Compañía Nacional 
de Chocolates S.A.S.

The value posted to the Profit and Loss Statement for the de-
preciation of property, plant and equipment was $ 130.308; in 
2014, it was $ 113.107 in 2013.  See Note 30.



CONSOLIDATED Financial statements

202 Grupo Nutresa

NOTE 12 Intangibles assets

The value posted to the Profit and Loss Statement for the amortization of the intangible assets was $ 83.889 in 2014; 
it was $ 55.895 in 2013.  See Note 31.

Goodwill Brands
Leaded 
Assets

Trust Rights
Other 
Assets

TOTAL

As of January 1, 2013
Cost $    630.212 $  498.592 $    13.905 $    4.483 $ 38.728 $ 1.185.920 

Accrued amortization  (76.613)  (64.970)  (6.825) 0  (12.051)  (160.459)

Allowance 0 0 0  (20) 0  (20)
Net value in books as of January 1, 2013 $    553.599 $  433.622 $      7.080 $    4.463 $ 26.677 $ 1.025.441 
For the year ended on December 31, 20123
Initial balance  553.599  433.622  7.080  4.463  26.677  1.025.441 
Conversion effect  1.482  12.461  (7)  397  2.333  16.666 
Acquisitions 972.146 740  2.046 0  728  975.660 
Acquisitions of new companies 0 10.936  5.482 0 69.284  85.702 
Sales and withdrawals 0 0  (384) 0 0  (384)
Amortizations  (48.907)  (3.354)  (2.549) 0  (1.085)  (55.895)
Transfers and reclassifications  387  (3.155)  (1.008) 0  (5.082)  (8.858)
Final balance as of December 31, 2013 $ 1.478.707 $  451.250 $    10.660 $    4.860 $ 92.855 $ 2.038.332 
As of December 31, 2013
Cost  1.604.217  519.942  16.362  4.880  110.241  2.255.642 
Accrued amortization  (125.510)  (68.692)  (5.702) 0  (17.386)  (217.290)
Allowance 0 0 0  (20) 0  (20)
Net value in books as of December 31, 2013 $ 1.478.707 $  451.250 $    10.660 $    4.860 $ 92.855 $ 2.038.332 
For the year ended on December 31, 2014
Initial balance  1.478.707  451.250  10.660  4.860  92.855  2.038.332 
Conversion effect  76.786  23.473  5.930  (2.126) 143  104.206 
Acquisitions  183  716  57 0 403  1.359 
Sales and withdrawals 0 0  (5.309) 0 0  (5.309)
Amortizations  (78.657)  (3.160)  (1.842) 0  (230)  (83.889)
Transfers and reclassifications 0  69.137  (5.181) 0  (63.956)  0 
Final balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 1.477.019 $   541.416 $      4.315 $    2.734 $ 29.215 $ 2.054.699 
As of December 31, 2014
Cost  1.693.638  606.008  9.078  2.754  41.231  2.352.709 
Accrued amortization  (216.619)  (64.592)  (4.763) 0  (12.016)  (297.990)
Allowance 0 0 0  (20) 0  (20)
Net value in books as of December 31, 2014 $ 1.477.019 $   541.416 $      4.315 $    2.734 $ 29.215 $ 2.054.699 
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NOTE 13 Memorandum accounts

The balance as of December 31 included: 

2014 2013

Debtor Memorandum Accounts:
Contingent Rights
Assets and securities delivered as security $         575.240 $          487.526 
Assets and securities in possession of third parties 24.151 24.151
Litigations and lawsuits 12.500 10.084
Subtotal $         611.891 $              521.761 
Fiscal Debtor Memorandum Accounts  (7.834.759)  (6.885.140)

Debtor Control Memorandum Accounts:
Goods received in financial leasing $             1.157 $ 1.860 
Totally depreciated property, plant and equipment 534.087 571.222
Asset inflation adjustment 772.520 773.075
Other debtor control memorandum accounts 23.386 36.158
Subtotal $         1.331.150 $           1.382.315 

TOTAL DEBTOR MEMORANDUM ACCOUNTS $     (5.891.718) $      (4.981.064)

Creditor Memorandum Accounts:
Contingent responsibilities
Goods and securities received from third parties $ 151 $ 551 
Other contingent responsibilities 1.392.173 1.581.376
Subtotal $         1.392.324 $       1.581.927 

Fiscal Creditor Memorandum Accounts        (578.206)        (538.221)
Creditor control memorandum accounts ($ 2.133) ($ 1.223)
Inflation adjustments 878.605 878.605
Subtotal $         876.472 $ 877.382 

TOTAL CREDITOR MEMORANDUM ACCOUNTS $         1.690.590 $       1.921.088 
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NOTE 14 Financial obligations:

The balance as of December 31 included:

Entity
Balance Interest

Rate Security
Maturity

2014 2013 Accrued
Short 
Term

Long 
term 

National 
Banks

Bancolombia 764.000  764.000 49.604 DTF + 2,25% - IBR + 2,80% 
- IPC + 4,00% Acciones  -  764.000 

Banco de Bogotá 340.000  340.000 21.973 IBR + 2,85% - IPC + 2,60%  100.000  240.000 

BBVA Colombia  151.666  -  2.265 DTF + (-0,50% - +0,20%) - 
IPC + 2,60%  151.666  - 

Sobregiros  4.017  4.767  -  4.017  - 

Leasing Bancolombia  1.262  2.902 156 DTF + (3,25% - 3,7%)  814  448 

Interna-
tional 
Banks

BCI Chile  60.568  3.059 2.800 TAB + 0,75% - LIBOR + 
(0,89% - 0,95%) Aval  2.566  58.003 

Banco Chile  60.092  13.476 2.085 TAB + (0,11% - 0,88%) -  
LIBOR + (0,15% - 0,57%) Aval  19.333  40.758 

Banco ITAU  50.974  27.196 2.126 TAB + (0,09% - 0,80%) -  
LIBOR + (0,65% - 0,89%) Aval  17.815  33.159 

BBVA Chile  49.384  36.453 2.383 TAB + (0,03% - 0,47%) -  
LIBOR + (0,30% - 1,22%)  49.384  - 

Banco Penta  33.159  36.804 2.063 TAB + 0,80% Aval  -  33.159 

Scotiabank Chile  23.777  51.568 2.158 TAB + 0,11% - LIBOR + 
(1,00% - 1,38%)  23.777  - 

Rabobank  19.710  14.721 370 6,07% E.A. - TAB + 1,11%  19.710  - 

Banco Security  19.069  37.049 1.006 TAB + 0,24% - LIBOR + 
(0,77% - 1,34%)  19.069  - 

Banamex  12.986  4.658 850 TIIE +1,50%  12.986  - 

HSBC México  12.489  - 119 TIIE +1,50%  12.489  - 

Santander Chile  6.316  16.561 304 TAB - 0,01%  6.316  - 

Development Corporation 
of Abilene, Inc.  5.981  54  - 0,00% E,A,  -  5.981 

Banco Bice  5.138  16.463 369 TAB + 0,31% -  LIBOR + 
(0,64% -1,00%)  5.138  - 

Sobregiros 1.920  1.921  -  1.920  - 

Banco Macro  1.323  1.982 908 (33,84% - 37,18%) E.A.  1.323  - 

BBVA Provincial  1.196  - 89 19,56% E.A.  1.196  - 

Leasing Banco  
de Crédito Perú  852  982 51 5,50% E.A.  440  413 

Grupo Jorisa S.A.  82  54  - 0,00% E.A.  82  - 
Citibank Chile  13  -  - 0,00% E.A.  13  - 
Corpbanca Chile  2  2.224 13 0,00% E.A.  1  - 

Aurus Renta  
Inmobiliaria  -  75  -  -  - 

BBVA Argentina  -  1.330  160  -  - 

Banco Consorcio  -  18.401  -  -  - 

Scotiabank  -  6.262  9  -  - 

Santander Argentina  -  2.585  719  -  - 

Banco de Comercio  
de Guatemala  -  338  -  -  - 

Banco de Venezuela  -  9.175  19  -  - 

Others

Fideicomiso Grupo  
Nutresa S.A. 401.459  500.000 35.429 IPC + 4,19% - 5,59% Aval  -  401.459 

Bonos Perú (1) 94.834  81.677 7.513 8,84% E.A. Aval  -  94.834 

 740  -  -  740  - 

TOTAL $ 2.123.009  1.996.737 $ 135.541  450.795  1.672.214 

To be paid in 2015 450.795
To be paid in 2016 158.255

To be paid after 2017 1.513.959
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Emissions of Bonds

Duly authorized by the Compañía Nacional de Chocolates S. A. 
Assembly of Shareholders in July 2008, a bond issue was made 
in Peru through a private offer with the following characteristics:

•	 Type of instrument:  Guaranteed corporate bonds
•	 Characteristics:  Nominative, indivisible bonds that are 

tradable by holders
•	 Country of issue:  Peru
•	 Issue currency:  New Peruvian Soles
•	 Amount of issue:  118.520.000
•	 Destination of the issue:  Capitalization of Compañía 

Nacional de Chocolates de Perú S. A. in order to finan-

ce investment projects and debt replacement
•	 Interest Rate:  8,65625% EA (on New Peruvian Soles) 

payable semi–annually 
•	 Type of amortization:  Bullet
•	 Guarantor:  Grupo Nacional de Chocolates S. A.
•	 Structuring entity: Citibank del Perú S. A.
•	 Term:  10 years

During 2014, $ 7.515 (2013 – $ 7.099) was posted to the 
Profit and Loss Statement for interest on the issuance of the 
aforesaid bonds.

NOTE 15 Suppliers  

The balance as of December 31 included:

2014 2013

National Suppliers $       187.655 $       107.342 

Foreign Suppliers 110.367 191.794

TOTAL $       298.022 $       299.136 

NOTE 16 Accounts payable

The balance as of December 31 included:

2014 2013

Costs and expenses payable $      268.446 $      232.449 

Dividends payable 55.199 50.822

Withholdings and payroll contributions 29.302 27.053

Income tax 22.377 17.649

Others 18.508 11.764

TOTAL $      393.832 $      339.737 

TOTAL SHORT - TERM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 393.665 339.570

TOTAL LONG - TERM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $          167 $            167 
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NOTE 17 Taxes, levies and rates

generated from 2003 until 2006 may be offset and/or fis-
cally adjusted, with the ordinary income of the following 
eight years, without exceeding 25% of the value of the 
loss annually, without prejudice to the presumptive inco-
me for the fiscal period.  Losses originated as of tax year 
2007 may be offset and/or fiscally adjusted, without any 
limit on the percentage, at any time, with ordinary inco-
me without prejudice to the presumptive income of the 
fiscal period.  Company losses may not be transferred to 
the shareholders.  Fiscal losses originating in revenue that 
is neither income nor windfall earnings, and originated in 
costs and deductions that have no relation of causality with 
the generation of taxable income may not – under any cir-
cumstance – be offset with taxpayers’ net income.

f.	 As of December 31, 2014, the excesses of presumptive in-
come over ordinary income of the subordinated companies 
in Colombia pending offset amounted to $ 444 million.  
Pursuant to current tax regulations, the excesses of pre-
sumptive income over ordinary income may be offset and/
or fiscally readjusted with ordinary liquid income, within 
the following five (5) years.

The maturity of fiscal losses and the excesses of presumptive 
income is the following

Date of Maturity Fiscal losses
Excess presump-

tive income

No maturity date  3.927 0

2018 0 444

2014 14 0

 3.941 444

g.	 Beginning in 2004, income tax and complementary tax–
taxpayers that enter into operations with economically 
bound companies abroad are required to determine 
their ordinary and extraordinary income, their costs 
and deductions, their assets and liabilities, for the 
purpose of calculating their income tax and comple-
mentary taxes, considering the so–called market prices 
and profit margins that would be agreed upon with 
independent third parties for these operations.  To date, 
the management and advisors of the Company and its 
subordinated companies have not concluded the study 
corresponding to 2014; nevertheless, they consider 
that – based on the results of the study corresponding 
to 2013 – no additional income tax allowances derived 
from the analysis of prices for 2014 will not required 
which affect the results of the fiscal period.

h.	 No new concepts for windfall earnings, additional to 
those already defined as of December 31, 2013, have 
been established.

Liabilities for taxes, levies and rates are primarily comprised of 
income–tax taxation, calculated pursuant to regulations that 
apply in the domicile of the Parent Company and its subordi-
nated companies, namely:

Regarding income tax, Colombian tax regulations esta-
blish that:

a.	 Beginning January 1, 2013, fiscal income is taxed at a rate 
of 25% for the concept of income tax, except for those 
contributors that, by express disposition, handle special ra-
tes; and 10% of income from windfall earnings.

b.	 The taxable base to determine income tax cannot be less 
than 3% of the net worth of the shareholders’ equity on 
the last day of the immediately previous taxable fiscal pe-
riod.

The Colombian companies that settled the tax based on the 
presumptive income in 2014 were: Grupo Nutresa S. A., 
Tropical Coffee Company S. A. S., Molinos Santa Marta S. 
A. S., Litoempaques S. A. S. y La Recetta Soluciones Gastro-
nómicas Integradas S. A. S.

 The other subordinated companies settled the tax based on 
the ordinary income system.

c.	 Beginning in tax year 2007 and only for fiscal effects, ta-
xpayers may annually adjust the cost of the real and per-
sonal property held as fixed assets.  The percentage of the 
adjustment will be that established by the Office of the Na-
tional Director of Taxes and Customs, through a resolution.

d.	 Until tax year 2010, and for those taxpayers who had a 
legal stability contract signed until December 31, 2012, 
the special deduction is applicable for effective investments 
made in real productive fixed assets equivalent to 30% of 
the value of the investment and their use does not gene-
rate taxable earnings of partners or shareholders.  Taxpa-
yers who acquired depreciable fixed assets beginning on 
January 1, 2007 and use the deduction established herein 
may only depreciate those assets through the straight–line 
system and shall not have the right to the benefit of audit, 
although fulfilling the suppositions established in the tax 
regulations to access the benefit.  Regarding the deduction 
taken in previous years, if the asset object of the benefit 
is no longer used in the income–producing activity, if it is 
disposed of or if it is withdrawn before the end of its useful 
life, it must incorporate an income recuperation propor-
tional to the remaining useful life at the time of abandon-
ment or sale.  Law 1607 of 2012 repealed the regulation 
that allowed signing legal stability contracts as of fiscal year 
2013.

e.	 As of December 31, 2014, the fiscal losses of the subor-
dinated companies in Colombia amounted to $ 3.941 mi-
llion.  Pursuant to current tax regulations, the fiscal losses 
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Equity income tax – CREE 
The current fiscal dispositions state that:

a)	 As of January 1, 2013, Law 1607 of December 2012 created 
the equity income tax (impuesto sobre la renta para la equi-
dad, CREE) as a contribution with which legal entities and 
people and assimilated taxpayers who declare income and 
complementary tax benefit workers, generate employment 
and social investment.  Non–profit entities, natural persons 
and companies declared as free zones at the rate of 15% are 
not taxpayers liable for the equity income tax (CREE).

b)	 The base to determine the equity income tax (CREE) may 
not be less than three percent (3%) of its liquid equity on 
the last day of the immediately preceding fiscal year.

c)	  The tax on the equity income tax (CREE) has a nine percent 
(9%) rate applied, in accordance with Law 1739 of Decem-
ber 2014.

d)	 During 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018, Law 1729 of Decem-
ber 23, 2041, establishes a surcharge on the equity income 
tax (CREE) which is the responsibility of taxpayers of this 

tax, and apply to a taxable basis exceeding $800 million, at 
rates of 5%, 6%, 8% and 9% per year, respectively.

e)	 As indicated in Article 25 of Law 1607 of December 2012, 
as of July 1, 2013, legal entities and taxpayers of income 
tax and complementary taxes, corresponding to workers 
who earn, individually, up to ten (10) minimum monthly 
wages will be exempt from paying parafiscal contributions 
for SENA and ICBF.  This exemption does not apply to those 
contributors who are not subject to the CREE tax.

f)	 The taxable base of the equity income tax (CREE) shall be 
established by subtracting returns, rebates and discounts 
from the gross income likely to increase the equity made 
in the tax year; from this amount, the value corresponding 
to non–constituent income is subtracted established in the 
Tax Code.  From the net income thus obtained, the total of 
costs and deductions applicable to this tax shall be subtrac-
ted, in accordance with the provisions of Articles 107 and 
108 of the Tax Code.  To this, subtracting the exempted 
income that was exhaustively established by Article 22 of 
Law 1607 of 2012 will be permitted.

Wealth tax 
Through Law 1739 of 2014, a wealth tax was established, whose operative fact is the possession thereof as of January 1, 2015, 
2016 and 2017, by taxpayers who must pay income tax.  Therefore, those taxpayers with gross patrimony minus debts, whose 
value exceeds $1.000 million, must determine their tax under the following conditions:

Lower Limit Upper Limit 2015 Rate 2016 Rate 2017 Rate

>0 <2.000.000.000 (Taxable base)* 0,20% (Taxable base)* 0,15% (Taxable base)*0,05%

>=2.000.000.000 <3.000.000.000
(Taxable base- 
2.000.000.000) 
*0,35%+4.000.000

(Taxable base- 
2.000.000.000)* 0,25%+ 
3.000.000

(Taxable base- 
2.000.000.000) *0,10%+ 
1.000.000

>=3.000.000.000 <5.000.000.000
(Taxable base- 
3.000.000.000) *0,75%+ 
7.500.000

(Taxable base- 
3.000.000.000) *0,50%+ 
5.500.000

(Taxable base- 
3.000.000.000) *0,20%+ 
2.000.000

>=5.000.000.000 En adelante
(Taxable base- 
5.000.000.000) *1,15% + 
22.500.000

(Taxable base- 
5.000.000.000) *1,00%+ 
15.500.000

(Taxable base- 
5.000.000.000) *0,40%+ 
6.000.000

Complementary tax of tributary normalization 
to the wealth tax
Through Law 1739 of 2014, a complementary tax for tributary normali-
zation was established for 2015, 2016 and 2015, which will be paid by 
taxpayers of the wealth tax and the voluntary declarers of this tax who have 
omitted assets and/or non–existent liabilities as of January 1, 2015, 2016 
and 2017, respectively.  The tax rate will be the following:

YEAR RATE

2015 10,0%

2016 11,5%

2017 13,0%
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Regarding income tax:

Tax regulations in Mexico establish that:
During the 2014 fiscal period, the Mexican income tax was 
30%, which is applied on the fiscal result of the fiscal period.  
In addition, it established that the workers’ share of the fiscal 
profits is ten percent (10%).

Tax regulations in Costa Rica establish that:
Income tax is calculated based on the real basis of the profit 
of the fiscal period, with estimated advances during the year.  
The allowance for income taxes posted in the Profit and Loss 
Statement includes, in addition to the taxable income tax for 
the fiscal period, the tax effect applicable to the temporary 
differences between the accounting items and the fiscal items 
used to calculate the income tax.  The value of the tax on these 
differences is recorded in a deferred income–tax account.  The 
income–tax rate is 30%. 

Tax regulations in Panama establish that:
Income tax is determined based on the real basis of the profit 
of the fiscal period.  The income–tax rate is 25%.

Tax regulations in Ecuador establish that:
Pursuant to the Tax Policy Law, companies incorporated in 
Ecuador have fiscal application incentives for the investments 
that are made anywhere in the national territory, which con-
sists of the progressive reduction of percentage points on the 
income tax.  They are subject to a tax rate of 22% in 2013 and 
this will continue to be valid for 2014.

Tax regulations in Chile establish that:
In Chile, the law implemented separate systems for “capital 
income” and “income from work.”  The former are taxed with 
a First–Category Tax, which mainly affects companies.  This tax 
has a fixed rate of 20% for 2013 and 21% for 2014 on the tax 
base, which is calculated by effecting additions or reductions 
ordered by law.  The tax paid in this manner is attributable 
against the Complementary Global, which taxes all income of 
individuals residing in the country; or the Additional Global, 
which taxes income generated in Chile, for natural or legal 
persons residing outside the country, as applicable.

The balance of taxes, levies and rates as of December 31 included:

2014 2013

Income tax and complementary taxes $         51.491 $          55.895

Equity income tax – CREE 12.831 25.201

Tax on sales payable 58.268  55.399

Equity tax 0 18.988

Others 6.299 4.040

TOTALS $       128.889  $      159.523

The movement of the income–tax account during the year included the following:

2014 2013

Allowance posted to the Profit and Loss Statement of the year $       119.636 $       124.231

Allowance for current CREE tax 11.583 14.687

Deferred income tax 32.467 35.569

Minus: Advance payments, auto – retentions  
and withholdings practiced

(99.364) (94.231)

TOTAL INCOME TAX, COMPLEMENTARY TAXES, AND CREE 
TAX PAYABLE

$           64.322 $         80.256
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NOTE 18 Labor obligations

The balance as of December 31 included:

2014 2013

Salaries payable $           7.259 $         4.691 

Consolidated severance pay 32.712 28.562

Consolidated vacation pay 26.236 27.547

Bonuses and interest on severance pay 49.241 62.606

Others 16.169 14.972

TOTAL $       131.617 $        138.378 

TOTAL SHORT – TERM LABOR OBLIGATIONS 124.526 131.144

TOTAL LONG – TERM LABOR OBLIGATIONS $          7.091 $         7.234 

Employees who work directly for Grupo Nutresa S. A. (Parent Company) and its subordinated companies during the fiscal 
period (not audited):

2014

Direct Employment
Number of Persons by Gender

Salaries Benefits Total
Men Women Total

Top Management 123 28 151 50.971 38.379 89.350
Middle Management 6.246 3.662 9.908 334.764 212.581 547.345
Others 8.855 3.788 12.643 193.618 103.651 297.269

TOTAL 15.224 7.478 22.702 579.353 354.611 933.964

2013(*)

Direct Employment
Number of Persons by Gender

Salaries Benefits Total
Men Women Total

Top Management 152 40 192 42.222 27.552 69.774
Middle Management 5.707 3.382 9.089 292.541 214.991 507.532
Others 8.686 3.765 12.451 145.358 100.337 245.695

TOTAL 14.545 7.187 21.732 480.121 342.880 823.001

(*) Does not include information from TMLUC.

NOTE 19 Estimated liabilities and allowances

The balance as of December 31 included:

2014 2013

Labor obligations $           8.342 $           6.855 

Retirement pensions (*) 44.840 44.402

Others 4.241 2.927

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND ALLOWANCES $         57.423 $         54.184 

TOTAL SHORT – TERM LIABILITIES AND ALLOWANCES 9.516 8.241

TOTAL LONG – TERM LIABILITIES AND ALLOWANCES $         47.907 $         45.943 
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(*) Retirement pensions
The allowance for retirement pensions was posted based on the actuarial calculations as of December 31.

2014 2013

Actuarial calculation for retirement pensions $         44.850 $        44.667 
Retirement pensions to be amortized (Db) (10) (265)
TOTAL RETIREMENT PENSIONS $         44.840 $         44.402 

TOTAL CURRENT RETIREMENT PENSIONS 2.815 2.798
TOTAL LONG - TERM RETIREMENT PENSIONS $         42.025 $         41.604 

Due to decrease in the allowance (465) (469)

TOTAL (465) (469)

The benefits covered are monthly pensions, semester bonu-
ses, readjustments pursuant to legal regulations, survivorship 
annuities and their corresponding bonuses.  In addition, fu-
neral expenses were included for the direct–hire employees 
of the companies.

Colombian companies use the method of current value of 
split income due, readjusted in accordance with the parame-

ters established in Article 1 of Decree 2783, dated December 
20, 2001.  The balance of the actuarial liabilities to be amor-
tized as of December 31, 2010 correspond to 19 years, pur-
suant to Decree 4565, dated December 7, 2010.

The total number of persons covered by the actuarial cal-
culations is 309, as of December 2014 and 326 as of Decem-
ber 2013.

NOTE 20 Deferred liabilities and other liabilities

The balance as of December 31 included:

2014 2013

Deferred taxes $         71.346 $       159.573 

TOTAL DEFERRED LIABILITIES $          171.346 $       159.573 

Advance payments and advanced receivable 3.309 2.959

Income receivable from third parties 128 200

Other deferred liabilities 812 0

TOTAL OTHER LIABILITIES 4.249 3.159

TOTAL $              175.595 $       162.732 

TOTAL SHORT – TERM DEFERRED LIABILITIES AND OTHER LIABILITIES 4.249 3.159 

TOTAL LONG – TERM DEFERRED LIABILITIES AND OTHER LIABILITIES $              171.346 $       159.573 

NOTE 21 Reserves and equity revaluation 

•	Legal Reserve
Pursuant to Colombian commerce legislation, 10% of the net 
profits must be appropriated each year as a legal reserve, until 
the reserve balance reaches at least 50% of the subscribed 
capital.  This reserve cannot be distributed until the Company 
is liquidated, but it must be used to absorb losses.  The Assem-
bly of Shareholders may freely dispose of any excess above the 
minimum amount required by law.
•	Reserve for Flexible Depreciation:
Some of the subordinated companies have constituted a reser-
ve consisting of 70% of the highest depreciation value reques-
ted for fiscal effects. 

•	Reserve for Stock Buy Back
Some of the companies have constituted the reserve for 
stock buy–back, through the transfer of other reserves.  Pur-
suant to the provisions set forth in the Commerce Code, all 
rights inherent in stock buy–back are suspended and must be 
excluded when determining the intrinsic value of the issued 
stock.  The Company must maintain a reserve equal to the 
cost of the buy backs of its own stock.
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•	Other Reserves
This includes the value accrued through the holding method and the dividends received from subordina-
ted companies and other reserves that are substantially for free disposal by the Assembly of Shareholders.

The balance as of December 31 included:

2014 2013

Mandatory reserves $          216.508 $           212.480 

Occasional reserves 1.247.527 1.070.093

TOTAL RESERVES $       1.464.035 $        1.282.573 

Equity Revaluation
The adjustments for inflation corresponding to the balances of the equity accounts, until December 31, 
2006, were credited to this account and posted to the Profit and Loss Statement of the fiscal period.  
Pursuant to current Colombian regulations, this balance may be distributed when the Company is 
liquidated or capitalized.  This capitalization represents an income that is neither income nor windfall 
earnings for shareholders.  This item may be decreased with the equity tax.

NOTE 22 Valuation surplus

The balance as of December 31 included:

2014 2013

Securities $       3.753.385 $       3.290.708 

Property, plant and equipment 1.430.318 1.318.569

Others 4.047 3.160

TOTAL VALUATIONS 5.187.750 4.612.437

Minus minority stake  (2.026)  (1.751)

TOTAL VALUATION SURPLUS $      5.185.724 $      4.610.686 

NOTE 23 Operating income

the balance as of December 31 included:

2014 2013

Net domestic for sale of products $       4.204.067 $       3.872.450 

Exports and sales abroad 2.257.685 2.026.016

TOTAL $       6.461.752 $       5.898.466 
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A breakdown of the total operating income by country, re–expressed in Dollars, is provided next: 

2014 2013

Country $ US$ (2) Share % $ US$ (2) Share %

Colombia (1) 4.531.388 2.264.922 70,42% 4.203.261 2.249.056 71,45%

Costa Rica 249.188 124.552 3,87% 239.832 128.328 4,08%

Ecuador 70.595 35.286 1,10% 64.162 34.331 1,09%

The United States 197.467 98.700 3,07% 164.633 88.091 2,80%

Guatemala 62.661 31.320 0,97% 53.222 28.478 0,90%

Mexico 238.448 119.184 3,71% 137.919 73.797 2,34%

Nicaragua 23.630 11.811 0,37% 20.808 11.134 0,35%

Panama 99.075 49.521 1,54% 87.533 46.836 1,49%

Peru 150.860 75.405 2,34% 125.523 67.164 2,13%

Puerto Rico 0 0 0,00% 867 464 0,01%

El Salvador 23.316 11.654 0,36% 18.621 9.963 0,32%

Venezuela 162.186 67.790 2,11% 529.283 274.691 8,73%

Dominican Republic 49.507 24.745 0,77% 43.248 23.141 0,74%

Argentina 4.084 2.041 0,06% 6.161 3.297 0,10%

Chile 599.347 299.572 9,31% 203.393 108.830 3,46%

TOTAL 6.461.752 3.216.503 100,00% 5.898.466 3.147.602 100.00%

(1)Sales in Colombian companies were re–expressed at the Average Exchange Rate of $2.000,68, established by the Central Bank (Banco de la República).  (2013 – 
$1.868,90). 
(2) Figures in USD Thousands.

NOTE 24 Administration expenses

The balance as of December 31 included:

2014 2013

Personnel expenses $        187.830 $      151.771 

Amortizations 84.733 53.990

Professional fees 37.439 51.922

Services 32.735 35.802

Taxes, insurance and leasing 18.821 15.604

Travel expenses 13.580 9.696

Contributions and affiliations 5.005 4.717

Depreciations 5.174 3.293

Sundry Supplies 2.521 3.420

Taxis and buses 1.951 1.798

Office supplies and stationery 1.370 1.126

Legal expenses 1.103 1.430

Adjustment for inflation 585 1.931

Supplies for computer equipment and communications 147 177

Others 15.027 10.901

TOTAL $        408.021 $      347.578 



CONSOLIDATED Financial statements

213 Integrated report 2014

NOTE 25 Sales expenses

The balance as of December 31 included:

2014 2013

Personnel expenses $        468.193 $       444.687 

Services 689.416 586.348

Taxes, insurance and leasing 166.340 138.402

Publicity material 59.077 41.323

Depreciations 37.798 32.097

Comissions 34.880 21.565

Travel expenses 32.108 28.883

Professional fees 30.885 28.147

Sundry supplies 20.905 20.299

Containers and packaging 15.971 11.157

Fuel and lubricants 14.868 12.979

Commercial severance pay 10.384 8.783

Amortization 9.410 12.425

Portfolio allowance 7.049 7.261

Office supplies and stationery 4.994 3.965

Contributions and affiliations 3.670 3.925

Taxis and buses 3.669 2.757

Legal expenses 3.345 2.627

Adjustments for inflation 3.044 10.929

Casinos and restaurants 1.641 1.187

Tasting events and promotions 14 42

Others 86.173 85.378

TOTAL $      1.703.834 $      1.505.166 

NOTE 26 Production expenses

The balance as of December 31 included:

2014 2013

Services $          47.827 $         44.802 

Personnel expenses 20.643 27.833

Taxes, insurance and leasing 15.942 18.681

Construction and building maintenance 11.356 10.325

Taxis and buses 5.538 5.745

Professional fees 4.934 4.286

Depreciations 2.640 3.115

Travel expenses 2.606 2.280

Supplies, machinery and equipment 1.550 859

Cleaning and cafeteria expenses 1.324 2.854

Office supplies and stationery 1.412 1.337

Adjustments for inflation 1.181 6.062

Contributions and affiliations 876 1.734

Amortizations 310 342

Legal expenses 292 307

Fuel and spare parts 169 148

Checks and restaurant expenses 35 67

Others 944 3.750

TOTAL $          119.579 $       134.527 
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NOTE 27 Dividends and financial expenses

The balance as of December 31 included:

2014 2013

From other companies (Note 10 ) $           53.017 $         39.510 
Exchange – rate difference 66.051 23.653
Derivative valuation profit 4.211 5.659
Interest 12.633 11.514
Other financial income 576 1.129

TOTAL DIVIDENDS AND FINANCIAL INCOME $         136.488 $         81.465 

NOTE 28  Financial expenses

The balance as of December 31 included:

2014 2013

Interest (*) $        135.867 $        80.206 
Exchange – rate difference 37.435 16.532
Derivative valuation loss 7.255 4.047
Conditioned commercial discounts 78 48
Tax on financial movements 15.810 13.448
Others 6.190 7.408

TOTAL FINANCIAL EXPENSES $        202.635 $        121.689 

(*) Included the financial cost for the acquisition of TMLUC for a value of $70.909 (2013 – $17.550).

NOTE 29 Other net income and expenditures

The balance as of December 31 included:

2014 2013

Recoveries $         26.865 $         13.218 

Profit in sale of property, plant and equipment, and intangible 
assets

3.011 16.111 

Indemnifications – acknowledgements 2.859 1.478 
Leasings 0 57 
Services  448  29 
Loss on withdrawal of assets  (3.467)  (2.377)
Donations  (10.159)  (6.827)
Extraordinary expenses  (8.331)  (15.490)
Adjustments for inflation (*)  (9.122)  (52.397)
Net others  (30.629)  (8.667)

TOTAL NET OTHER INCOME AND OUTLAYS ($ 28.525) ($ 54.865)

(*) Corresponds to the inflation adjustment in Venezuela.  Inflation:  2014:  67,3% (2013:  56,20%)
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NOTE 30 Depreciations

The balance as of December 31 included:

2014 2013

Constructions and buildings $        27.316 $        25.368 

Office equipment  5.919  4.604 

Transport equipment  1.580  1.222 

Production equipment  95.493  81.913 

GENERAL TOTAL $      130.308 $       113.107 

NOTE 31 Amortization of intangibles, deferred charges and other assets

The balance as of December 31 included:

2014 2013

Goodwill (*) $        78.657 $       48.907 
Project Everest operation 4.954 3.707 
Improvements to property of others 2.989 4.523 
Intangible brands 3.160 3.354 
Leasing 1.842 2.549 
Distribution rights 11 337 
Licenses 219 748 
Software 1.750 2.505 
Other projects 577 117 
Building, machinery and equipment maintenance 1.406 2.158 
Others 44 587 

TOTAL AMORTIZATIONS $        95.609 $      69.492 

(*) Includes the amortization of goodwill originated through the acquisition of TMLUC for $46.032 (2013: $16.528).

NOTE 32 Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and other assets

During the year, the following assets were acquired:

2014 2013

Real estate $        133.313 $        45.850 
Office equipment  2.386  3.033 
Production equipment  212.916  140.606 
Transport equipment  1.153  2.007 

TOTAL OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT $        349.768 $        191.496 

NOTE 33 Dividends decreed and paid

In its ordinary meeting on March 28, 2014, the Parent Company General Shareholders’ Assembly decreed a monthly per–share 
dividend of COP 36, between April 2014 and March 2015 inclusive, on 460.123.458 outstanding shares.  Dividends in 2014 
were decreed in the amount of COP 198.773 (2013:  COP 182.617), including the minority shareholders.

During 2014, dividends in the amount of COP 194.062 (2013: COP 177.201) were paid
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NOTE 34 �Net profit on the sale of property, plant and equipment  
and investments

The balance as of December 31 included:

Income obtained in the transfer of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investments:

2014 2013

Machinery and equipment $            656 $           733 

Real estate  27  17.368 

Office equipment  11  11 

Fleet and transport equipment  1.188  239 

Intangible assets 3.901 0

Investments  5.350  405 

Others  2.220  743 

GENERAL TOTAL $         13.353 $         19.499 

Net profit on sale and withdrawal of property, plant and equipment, investments and intangible assets::

2014 2013

Real estate $             29 $        14.276 

Machinery and equipment  (111) 998 

Office equipment 863  (9)

Subtotal of the withdrawal of property, plant and equipment 781 15.265 

Intangible assets  (1.100)  (3)

Investments 1.110 107 

Other assets 2.220 742 

Subtotal of the profit on the sale of intangible assets, investments and others 2.230 846 

TOTAL OF THE PROFIT ON THE SALE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, 
INVESTMENTS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS $3.011 $16.111 

Net withdrawal on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Real estate $          2.002 $652 

Machinery and equipment 180 370 

Office equipment 72 59 

Subtotal of the withdrawal of property, plant and equipment 2.254 1.081 

Intangible assets 308 381 

Investments 0 43 

Subtotal on the withdrawal on intangible assets, investments and others 308 424 

TOTAL ON THE WITHDRAWAL OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INVEST-
MENTS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2.562 1.505 

Net profit on sale and withdrawal of property, plant and equipment,  
investments, intangible assets, and other assets $             449 $        14.606 

(*) Corresponds to the adjustment for inflation in Venezuela: 2014 – 67,3% (2013 - 56,20%)
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NOTE 35 Subsequent events

On November 27, 2014, Grupo Nutresa S. A. agreed to acqui-
re 100% of the shares of Aldage, Inc., a company domiciled 
in Panama, the proprietor of the Colombian companies that 
make up Grupo El Corral.

Under the agreement, the amount payable of COP 743.401 
million was established.

On February 3, 2015, the Office of the Superintendent of In-
dustry and Commerce made a favorable ruling to that acquisition.

Grupo El Corral is the leader in consumer foods in Colom-
bia, with a total of 345 points of sale, in the fast casual seg-

ments in the area of hamburgers with its El Corral brand, and 
in casual dining with its restaurants El Corral Gourmet, Leños 
y Carbón and Leños Gourmet.  In addition to operating the-
se chains, Grupo El Corral also operates leading international 
brands, such as Papa John’s (pizza), Yogen Früz (frozen yogurt) 
and Krispy Kreme (doughnuts).  Additionally, it operates throu-
gh franchises in Panama, Ecuador, Chile and the United States.

NOTE 36 Consolidated financial ratios (not audited)

2014 2013

Liquidity ratio (Current assets / Current liabilities) 1,55 1,50

Indicates the Company’s capability to attend its short–term obligations,  
using current assets as endorsement.

Debt ratio (Total liabilities / Total assets) 28,69% 29,78%
Indicates the part of the Company’s assets that are financed with third–party resources.

Asset turnover ratio (Operating income / Total assets) 0,56 0,56

Profit margin ratio (Net profit / Operating income) 5,84% 6,45%

Profitability ratio
(Net profit / Equity) 4,61% 5,13%
(Net profit (Total assets) 3,28% 3,59%

Consolidated EBITDA, adjusted
Operating profit 638.340 650.227
Depreciations 130.308 113.107

Amortizations and other adjustments 95.609 69.492

TOTAL CONSOLIDATED EBITDA, ADJUSTED $         864.257 $        832.827 

EBITDA over total equity 10,54% 11,23%

Multi–national indicators	
Share of assets abroad 

(Assets abroad / Total assets) 26,5% 26,86%

Share of sales abroad

(Sales abroad / Total sales) 29,87% 34,34%

Number of direct employees abroad 
/ Total number of direct employees

41,79% 41,35%
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NOTE 37 Financial information by country (not audited)

Below is a breakdown of the operations by country, expressed in COP, converted at an average TRM of COP 2.000,68 (2013:  COP 1.868,90):

Sales  Total assets Net profit
Administration 

Expenses
Sales Expenses

Production 
Expenses

 Country 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Colombia 4.531.385 4.203.261 8.469.746 7.738.643  315.638  320.559 263.847 252.097 1.254.002 1.173.492 84.614 74.681 

Costa Rica 249.188 239.832 454.013 351.716  33.431  36.766 13.039 11.192 85.074 74.220 10.033 9.776 

Ecuador 70.595 64.162 36.771 24.886  1.616  1.182 0 0 16.187 14.090 0 0 

El Salvador 23.316 18.621 8.954 5.073  (354)  (548) 0 0 5.940 4.840 0 0 

The United 
States

197.467 164.633 159.513 79.266  13.837  9.279 4.178 3.567 24.433 20.306 2.951 3.102 

Guatemala 62.661 53.222 28.828 20.519  1.277  (871) 1.429 1.166 16.332 18.854 0 0 

Mexico 238.449 137.919 243.882 137.097  827  9.600 15.936 15.598 71.129 21.942 3.151 2.934 

Nicaragua 23.631 20.808 7.326 6.209  (1.377)  (2.075) 0 0 5.765 5.159 0 0 

Panama 99.075 87.533 113.522 94.956  8.268  (5.735) 4.544 4.270 21.371 18.692 1.088 2.125 

Peru 150.861 125.523 214.776 179.911  2.598  4.107 9.014 8.979 29.677 26.235 5.411 5.207 

Puerto Rico 0 867 4.881 704  (421)  (334) 0 0 453 498 0 0 

Venezuela 162.186 529.283 149.792 345.780  15.877  2.328 3.932 14.524 18.308 73.311 9.894 34.914 

Dominican 
Republic

49.507 43.248 27.823 21.462  1.983  1.576 3.890 3.775 15.338 14.255 268 236 

Argentina 4.084 6.161 2.942 10.884  (12.419)  (1.776) 1.345 2.134 1.392 912 0 0 

Chile 599.347 203.393 1.608.123 1.563.392  (3.210)  6.177 86.867 30.276 138.433 38.360 2.169 1.552 

TOTAL 6.461.751 5.898.466 11.530.892 10.580.498 377.571 380.235 408.021 347.578 1.703.834 1.505.166 119.579 134.527 
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NOTE 38 Balances and transactions among related parties

Operations of Grupo Nutresa S. A. (Parent Company) or its subordinated companies with companies in which the members of 
the Board of Directors, Legal Representatives, Chief Officers or Shareholders of Grupo Nutresa S. A. own more than a 10% share.

COMPANY
Value of Operations 

2014
Value of Operations 

2013

BANCOLOMBIA S.A.   
Commissions $              397 $                0
Professional fees                  84                 173 
Purchase of services                 148              3.142 
Interest paid            54.765            17.921 
Interest received              4.116              1.686 
Sale of goods                 823                 255 
Sale of services                 545                 664 
Commissions                 403 0
Balance receivable                 416                 240 
Balance payable 4.235 4.911
   

CONSULTORÍA EN GESTIÓN DE RIESGOS  
SURAMERICANA S.A.

  

Professional fees 106 97
Other expenses 38 0
Balance payable 19 0
   
EPS MEDICINA PREPAGADA SURAMERICANA S.A.   
Sale of goods 5 3
Sale of services 11 7
Balance receivable 11 18
   
GRUPO DE INVERSIONES SURAMERICANA S. A.
Dividends received 28.194 19.672
Dividends paid 68.444 62.555

INVERSIONES ARGOS S. A.   
Dividends received 24.380 17.996
Dividends paid 16.180 14.801
Sale of services 55 63
Sale of goods 64 13
Balance receivable 45 180
Sale of services 55 63
Sale of goods 64 13

Balance receivable 45 180
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COMPANY
Value of Operations 

2014
Value of Operations 

2013

SERVICIOS DE SALUD IPS SURAMERICANA S. A.   
Purchase of goods 370 0
Purchase of services 0 2
Professional fees 0 6
Sale of services 3 0
Sale of goods 10 8
Balance receivable 17 3
Balance payable 50 48
   
PROTECCIÓN S. A.   
Sale of goods 52 47
Sale of services 46 68
Balance receivable 45 5
Balance payable 402 0
   
SEGUROS DE VIDA SURAMERICANA S. A.   
Purchase of insurance 3.052              1.077 
Purchase of services 23              2.331 
Sale of services 70                   35 
Balance payable              3.019              2.577 
Balance receivable                  52                   15 
   
SODEXHO PASS DE COLOMBIA S. A.   
Commissions 40 30
Purchase of services 4.667 2.249
Balance receivable 3 13
Balance payable 648 0

SODEXO COLOMBIA S. A.   

Purchase of services 31.960 29

Commissions 0 7
Professional fees 3 3
Leases paid 38 0
Other expenses 164 0
Sale of goods 8.153 6
Sale of services 0 2
Balance receivable 1.388 2.325
Balance payable 3.166 0
   
SURAMERICANA SEGUROS S. A.   
Purchase of insurance 2.340 6.477
Purchase of services 81 83
Sale of goods 92 62
Sale of services 151 27
Balance receivable 529 0

Professional fees 0 1

Balance payable 1.208 873
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COMPANY
Value of Operations 

2014
Value of Operations 

2013

COMPUREDES S.A.   
Purchase of services 54 20
Professional fees 567 522
Balance payable 63 0
   
SURATEP S.A.   
Sale of services 11 7
Sale of goods 36 23
Balance receivable 19 10
   
CELSIA S.A. E.S.P   
Sale of services 5 0
Sale of goods 15 0
Balance receivable 1 0
   
BRINKS DE COLOMBIA S.A.   
Purchase of services 662 509
Balance payable 105 0

DINÁMICA IPS S.A.   

Purchase of services 158 0

Sale of services 1 2
Sale of goods 4 0
Balance receivable 4 2
   
SURAMERICANA S.A.   
Sale of services 8 9
Balance receivable 4 10

SERVICIOS GENERALES SURAMERICANA S.A.S.
Sale of goods 42 47
Balance receivable 0 2

Balance payable 0 3

Note:  All of the above operations were executed at normal market prices under normal market conditions.
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Grupo Nutresa S. A. 
Shareholders’ Assembly 
February 26, 2015

I have audited the Balance Sheets of Grupo Nutresa S. A. as of 
December 31, 2014, and the corresponding Statements of Profits 
and Losses, Changes in Shareholders’ Equity, Changes in the Fi-
nancial Situation, and Cash Flows for the years ended on this date 
and the summary of the principal accounting policies indicated 
in Note 2 and other explanatory notes.  The Grupo Nutresa S. 
A. financial statements as of December 31, 2013, were audited 
by another public accountant, employed by PricewaterhouseCoo-
pers, who, in his report on February 28, 2014, expressed an un-
qualified opinion thereon.

Management is responsible for the proper preparation and pre-
sentation of these financial statements pursuant to the accoun-
ting principles generally accepted in Colombia and provisions 
issued by the Colombian Financial Superintendent.  This responsi-
bility includes designing, implementing and maintaining relevant 
internal control so that these financial statements are free of re-
latively important errors due to fraud or error; selecting and appl-
ying appropriate accounting policies, as well as establishing the 
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

My responsibility consists of expressing an opinion on these fi-
nancial statements based on my audits.  I have obtained the in-
formation necessary to perform my fiscal–auditing duties and I 
conducted my work in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in Colombia.  These principles require that I 
plan and conduct an audit to obtain reasonable certainty that the 
financial statements are free of relatively important errors.

The financial–statement audit includes, among other things, con-
ducting procedures to obtain auditing evidence on the values and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s discretion, including the assessment of 
the risk of relatively important errors in the financial statements.  
In assessing these risks, the fiscal auditor considers the entity’s 
relevant internal control to prepare and reasonably present the 
financial statements, in order to design auditing procedures that 
are appropriate under the circumstances.  An audit also includes 
assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and 
of the accounting estimations made by the entity’s management, 
as well as assessing the presentation of the financial statements 
as a whole.  I consider that the auditing evidence that I have ob-
tained provides a reasonable basis for me to support the opinion 
that I state below.

In my opinion, the above–mentioned financial statements that I 
have audited, which were faithfully taken from the ledgers, rea-
sonably present, in all significant aspects, the financial situation of 

Fiscal auditor’s report

Bibiana Moreno Vásquez
Fiscal Auditor
Professional Card No. 167200–T
Member of PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltda.

Grupo Nutresa S. A. as of December 31, 2014, and its operating 
results, the changes in its financial situation and its cash flows for 
the year ended on this date, pursuant to accounting principles 
generally accepted in Colombia and the provisions issued by the 
Financial Superintendent, which were applied on a uniform basis 
with that of the previous year.

Based on the results of my auditing tests, in my opinion:
a)	 The Company accounting has been conducted pursuant to 

legal standards and the accounting technique.
b)	 The operations recorded in the books and the actions of ma-

nagement meet the Bylaws and the decisions of the Assembly.
c)	 The correspondence, accounting vouchers and Books of Minu-

tes and Share Registration are kept and preserved properly.
d)	 There are adequate internal–control measures for the conser-

vation and custody of the assets of the Company and those of 
third parties that are in its power.

e)	 The regulations established in External Circular 062 of 2007, 
through which the Financial Superintendent established the 
obligation to implement mechanisms to prevent and control 
money laundering and the financing of terrorism from illicit 
activities through the market, have been met.

f)	 There is agreement between the financial statements that ac-
company this opinion and the management report prepared 
by the administrators.  The administrators provided evidence 
in this management report that they did not hinder the free 
circulation of the invoices issued by vendors or suppliers.

g)	 The information contained in the statements of liquidation 
of the contributions to the Comprehensive Social Securi-
ty System, in particular concerning the affiliates and their 
income as a contribution base, has been taken from the 
accounting records and supports.  The Company is not in 
arrears for the concept of contributions to the Comprehen-
sive Social Security System.
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Certification of the Financial Statements

The undersigned Legal Representative and the General Accountant of the Grupo Nutresa S. A.

HEREBY CERTIFY:

February 26, 2015

That we have previously verified the statements contained in the financial statements of the com-
pany, as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, pursuant to regulations, and they have been faithfully 
taken from the financial statements of the Parent Company and its duly certified and audited 
subsidiary companies.

In accordance with the above, regarding the aforementioned financial statements, we state the 
following:

1.	 The assets and liabilities of Grupo Nutresa S.A. do exist and the transactions recorded were 
made during the corresponding years.

2.	 All economic transactions performed have been acknowledged.

3.	 The assets represent the rights and the liabilities obtained by, or under the responsibility of, 
the Companies.

4.	 All elements have been acknowledged in the appropriate amounts, in accordance with gene-
rally accepted accounting principles.

5.	 The economic transactions that affect the companies have been correctly classified, described 
and disclosed.

6.	 The financial statements and their notes do not contain defects, errors or material inaccura-
cies that affect the financial situation, shareholders’ equity and operations of the Company. 
Likewise, adequate procedures and financial information disclosure and control systems have 
been established and maintained, for the adequate presentation to third–party users of such 
information.

Carlos Ignacio Gallego Palacio	  	  		  Jaime León Montoya Vásquez
CEO			                                   General Accountant  - Professional Card 45056-T
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Carlos Ignacio Gallego Palacio
CEO	

Shareholders
Grupo Nutresa S. A.
Medellín

The undersigned Legal Representative of Grupo Nutresa S. A.

CERTIFIES:

February 26, 2015

That the consolidated financial statements and operations of the Company as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 do 
not contain defects, inaccuracies or errors that prevent knowing their true financial situation.

This is stated to comply with Article 46 of Law 964 of 2005. 

In witness whereof signed on the 26th day of the month of February, 2015. 

Certification of the Financial Statements Law 964 of 2005
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Jaime León Montoya Vásquez
General Accountant - Professional Card No. 45056-T

(See attached certification)

Bibiana Moreno Vásquez 
Fiscal Auditor - Professional Card No. 167200-T

Member of PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltda.

Carlos Ignacio Gallego Palacio
President

(See attached certification)

As of December 31
(Values expressed in COP Million)Balance sheet

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements

NOTES 2014 2013
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (3) $ 70 $ 58 
Debtor accounts (4) 24.498 17.798 
Expenses paid in advance 42 60 
Total current assets $ 24.610 $ 17.916 

 
Non-current assets
Net permanent investments (5) 4.453.792 4.126.523 
Debtor accounts (4) 391 393 
Intangibles 4.204 4.434 
Other assets 118 118 
Valuations (5) 3.802.056 3.357.714 
Total non-current assets $ 8.260.561 $ 7.489.182
TOTAL ASSETS $ 8.285.171 $ 7.507.098

LIABILTIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable (7) $ 69.037 $ 70.544 
Taxes, levies and rates (8) 918 2.299 
Labor obligations 1.164 932 
Deferred revenue (9) 0 9.622 
Total current liabilities $ 71.119 $ 83.397 

Non-current liabilities
Accounts payable (7) 157 157 
Total non-current liability 157 157 
Total liabilities $ 71.276 $ 83.554 

EQUITY
Company stock (10) 2.301 2.301 
Capital surplus 1.710.134 1.542.805 
Reserve (11) 1.671.478 1.490.355 
Equity revaluation (12) 650.473 650.473 
Fiscal period results 377.453 379.896 
Valuation surplus 3.802.056 3.357.714 
Total equity (5) $ 8.213.895 $ 7.423.544 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 8.285.171 $ 7.507.098 
Memorandum accounts (6)
Debtor memorandum accounts $  (4.709.126) $  (3.995.132)
Credit memorandum accounts 1.711.526 1.929.579 
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Profit and loss statement From January 1 to December 31
(Values expressed in COP Million)

Jaime León Montoya Vásquez
General Accountant - Professional Card No. 45056-T

(See attached certification)

Bibiana Moreno Vásquez 
Fiscal Auditor - Professional Card No. 167200-T

Member of PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltda.

Carlos Ignacio Gallego Palacio
President

(See attached certification)

NOTAS 2014 2013

Income equity method (1) (5) $        323.884 $         344.939 
Food equity method 508.615 466.608 
Financial expenses interest (135.867) (80.206)
Goodwill amortization (78.657) (48.737)
Exchange difference 28.616 7.121 
Investment costs 1.110 69 
Dividends 67 84 

Profit (loss) on investments (14) 640 (176)
Investment costs  1.081 88 
Third party investment costs (441) (264)
Dividends (5) 52.950 39.426 

Other operating income 17.097 14.465 

Administration operating expenses (18.583) (13.551)
Administration expenses (13) (18.583) (13.551)
Operating profit 375.988 385.103 
Other income and expenses 1.686 (2.771)
Total non-operating income and expenses 1.686 (2.771)

Income before provision for income tax 377.674 382.332 
Provision for income tax and CREE (8)
Current (169) (1.632)
CREE (52) (804)
Net profit $        377.453 $        379.896 
Net profit per share (2) 820,33 825,64 

(1) The items that make up the income from equity method are included in the financial statements of the companies where the Grupo Nutresa 
S.A. registers the participation method.

(2) Expressed in Colombian pesos.

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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From January 1 to December 31
(Values expressed in COP Million)

Jaime León Montoya Vásquez
General Accountant - Professional Card No. 45056-T

(See attached certification)

Bibiana Moreno Vásquez 
Fiscal Auditor - Professional Card No. 167200-T

Member of PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltda.

Carlos Ignacio Gallego Palacio
President

(See attached certification)

Statement of changes 
in shareholders’ equity
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Balances as of 
December 31, 
2012

Notas 2.301 546.831 816.261 2.711 1.076 82.400 158.457 862.332 220.104 1.327.080 650.473 345.484 3.733.696 7.422.126

Dividends decreed (15) (182.209) (182.209)

Transfer to profits 
and reserves 383.203 (219.928) 163.275 (163.275) 0

Adjustment for 
valuation and 
other concepts

(375.982) (375.982)

Application of 
equity method (5) 179.713 179.713 

Net profit in 2013 379.896 379.896

Balances as of 
December 31, 
2013

2.301 546.831 995.974 2.711 1.076 82.400 158.457 1.245.535 176 1.490.355 650.473 379.896 3.357.714 7.423.544

Dividends decreed (15) (198.773) (198.773)

Transfer to profits 
and reserves 181.123 181.123 (181.123) 0

Adjustment for 
valuation and 
other concepts

444.342 444.342 

Application of 
equity method (5) 167.329 167.329 

Net profit in 2014 377.453 377.453

Balances as of 
December 31, 
2014

2.301 546.831 1.163.303 2.711 1.076 82.400 158.457 1.426.658 176 1.671.478 650.473 377.453 3.802.056 8.213.895

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Statement of changes 
in the Financial Statement

From January 1 to December 31
(Values expressed in COP Million)

Jaime León Montoya Vásquez
General Accountant - Professional Card No. 45056-T

(See attached certification)

Bibiana Moreno Vásquez 
Fiscal Auditor - Professional Card No. 167200-T

Member of PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltda.

Carlos Ignacio Gallego Palacio
President

(See attached certification)

NOTES 2014 2013
FINANCIAL RESOURCES PROVIDED FROM:
NET PROFIT $ 377.453 $ 379.896 

Plus (minus) debits (credits) to operations that do not affect the 
working capital:

Amortization of goodwill 230 170 
Recuperation of the investment and other assets allowance (17) (34)
Profits from applying the equity method (5) (323.884) (344.632)
Recuperation of allowance from applying the equity method (5) 0 (307)

FINANCIAL RESOURCES PROVIDED FROM OPERATIONS 53.782 35.093 
Plus:
Dividends from branches and subsidiaries (5) 167.204 158.476
Decrease in long-term debtors 2 0
RESOURCES DIFFERENT FROM OPERATION 167.206 158.476
TOTAL FINANCIAL RESOURCES PROVIDED FROM $ 220.988 $ 193.569

FINANCIAL RESOURCES USED FOR:
Dividends declared (15) 198.773 182.209
Increase on long-term debtors 0 393
Decrease in tax payable 0 168
Acquisition of investments in shares and other investments  3.243 11.968
Increase in goodwill 0 4.604
TOTAL FINANCIAL RESOURCES USED $ 202.016 $ 199.342

Increase (decrease) in working capital $ 18.972 $ (5.773)

Analysis of Changes in Working Capital

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $   12 $ (17)
Debtor accounts 6.700 2.876
Expenses paid in advance (18) 60
TOTAL INCREASE IN CURRENT ASSET $ 6.694 $ 2.919

(INCREASE) DECREASE IN CURRENT LIABILITIES

Financial obligations 0 7
Accounts payable 1.507 (5.619)
Taxes, levies and rates 1.381 (1.810)
Labor obligations (232) (451)
Deferred income 9.622 (819)
TOTAL DECREASE (INCREASE) IN CURRENT LIABILITIES $ 12.278 $ (8.692)

INCREASE (REDUCTION) IN WORKING CAPITAL $ 18.972 $ (5.773)

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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From January 1 to December 31
(Values expressed in COP Million)

Jaime León Montoya Vásquez
General Accountant - Professional Card No. 45056-T

(See attached certification)

Bibiana Moreno Vásquez 
Fiscal Auditor - Professional Card No. 167200-T

Member of PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltda.

Carlos Ignacio Gallego Palacio
President

(See attached certification)

Cash flow statement

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements

NOTAS 2014 2013
CASH FLOW PROVIDED FROM OPERATIONS
NET PROFIT $ 377.453 $ 379.896 
Plus (minus) debits (credits) for operations that  
do not affect the cash:
Amortization of goodwill 230 170
Recovery of allowance from other assets (17) (34)
Profits from applying the equity method (5) (323.884) (344.632)
Recuperation of allowance from applying the equity method (5) 0 (307)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Dividends received from affiliates and subsidiaries (5) 167.204 158.476
Debtor accounts (6.698) (3.269)
Expenses paid in advance 18 (60)
Account payable (6.218) 548
Taxes, levies and rates (1.213) 1.810
Equity tax payment (168) (168)
Labor obligations 232 451
Deferred liabilities (9.622) 819
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATIONS $ 197.317 $ 193.700

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED FROM  
INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of investments in shares and other investments  (3.243) (11.968)
Acquisition of goodwill 0 (4.604)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES $ (3.243) $ (16.572)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payment of dividends (15) (194.062) (177.138)
Paid financial obligations 0 (7)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ (194.062) $ (177.145)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 12 (17)
Cash and cash equivalents at year opening 58 75
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT YEAR CLOSE $ 70 $ 58
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Financial Statements Notes
Years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
(Amounts expressed in millions of Colombian pesos, except the values in US dollars, exchange rate and number of shares).

NOTE 1 Economic entity 

Grupo Nutresa S. A. Parent Company
Grupo Nutresa S. A. is a Colombian stock company (Sociedad 
Anónima, S. A.) incorporated on April 12, 1920, with its main 
domicile in the city of Medellín; its term expires on April 12, 
2050.

The Parent Company’s corporate purpose consists of inves-
ting in or applying resources or funds to companies organized 
in any form provided by law, either at home or abroad, and 
whose business purpose is aimed at the exploitation of any 
legal economic activity, or in tangible or intangible assets for 
the purpose of safeguarding its capital.

In 2014 no new companies were acquired.

ACQUISITIONS 2013
Tresmontes Lucchetti
On July 18, 2013, Grupo Nutresa S. A. signed an agreement 
to acquire 100% of the shares in the Chilean company Tres-
montes Lucchetti S. A. In accordance with the agreement, the 
value to be paid for the company was set at USD 758 million, 
equivalent to 12.6 times the 2012 EBITDA.

After the agreed – upon adjustments, the product of the 
confirming due diligence, the Enterprise Value (EV) reached 
was USD 739.3 million, which equals an EV/EBITDA of 12.3. 
After discounting the TMLUC financial debt of USD 126 mi-
llion, the amount paid was USD 605.3 million, subject to the 
final adjustments for the working capital and the financial 
debt after the close.

Tresmontes Lucchetti is a Chilean food company with 120 
years of tradition. In Chile, it participates in the categories of 
cold instant beverages, tea, juices, coffee, pastas, snacks, edi-
ble oils, soups and desserts. Additionally, its cold instant beve-
rage business has significant international presence in Mexico, 
the United States, Central America and South America.

In Chile, Tresmontes Lucchetti is the leader in the cold ins-
tant beverage category with the brands Zuko and Livean. It is 
second in the pasta category (Lucchetti and Talliani) and co-
ffee (Gold and Monterrey), and an important player in snacks 
(Kryzpo), edible oils (Miraflores), juices (Yuz and Livean), soups 
(Naturezza), desserts (Livean) and tea (Zuko and Livean).

Its presence throughout the Mexican territory is highlighted, 
where it has a wide distribution network, which has positioned 
it as the second player in the category of cold instant beverages. 

The transaction included the following companies:
1.	 Tresmontes Lucchetti S. A.
2.	 Tresmontes Lucchetti Agroindustrial S. A.
3.	 Tresmontes Lucchetti Internacional S. A.
4.	 Tresmontes Lucchetti Servicios S. A.
5.	 Tresmontes S. A.
6.	 Deshidratados S. A.
7.	 Inmobiliaria Tresmontes Lucchetti S. A.
8.	 Inversiones Agroindustrial Ltda.
9.	 Inversiones y Servicios Tresmontes Ltda.
10.	�Lucchetti Chile S. A.
11.	�Sociedad Colectiva Civil Inmobiliaria  

y Rentas Tresmontes Lucchetti
12.	Envasadora de Aceites S. A.
13.	�Novaceites S. A.
14.	Comercializadora TMLUC S. A. de C. V.
15.	Servicios Tresmontes Lucchetti S. A. de C. V.
16.	Tresmontes Lucchetti México S. A. de C. V.
17.	TMLUC Perú S. A. C.
18.	�Promociones y Publicidad Las Américas S. A.
19.	TMLUC Argentina S. A.

Dan Kaffe (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. 
On December 11, 2012, Grupo Nutresa S. A., through its 
subsidiary industry Colombiana de Café S. A. S. (Colcafé), 
entered into an agreement by which it acquired a 44% stake 
of the Malaysian company Dan Kaffe (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. 
(“DKM”). The other shareholders of this company are: Mitsu-
bishi Corporation, the Japanese multinational company and 
one of the largest and most recognized conglomerates of 
said country, with a 30% stake; and Takasago International 
Corporation, one of the world leaders in flavors and aromas, 
with a 26% stake.

Founded in 1994, DKM is one of the largest Malaysian com-
panies dedicated to the production of instant coffee and co-
ffee extracts. Its plant is located in Johor Bahru, 25 kilometers 
from the port of Singapore, the business hub of Southeast 
Asia. This country is an important platform to do business in as 
it has access to competitive raw materials, good international 
business logistics chains, qualified labor, political stability and 
an attractive legal system to do business.

The agreement was completed on February 15, 2013, when 
the payment of USD 14.4 million and the respective transfer 
of shares were made.
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For the preparation of the financial statements and the ac-
counting records, the Company observes generally accepted 
accounting principles, which are prescribed by law and by the 
Financial Superintent of Colombia. 

The following describes the main accounting policies and 
practices implemented in the Company in accordance with 
the above:

2.1 CONSOLIDATION
Companies in Colombia must prepare basic general purpose 
financial statements, which are presented to the Shareholders’ 
Assembly and serve as the basis for distribution of dividends 
and other appropriations. Additionally, the Code of Commer-
ce requires the preparation of general purpose consolidated 
financial statements, which are also submitted to the Share-
holders’ Meeting for approval, but they are not used as basis 
for the distribution and appropriation of profits. The accom-
panying financial statements do not consolidate the assets, 
liabilities, equity or results of the subsidiary companies. The 
investment in these companies is recorded by the equity me-
thod, as shown below.

2.2 FOREIGN CURRENCY ACCOUNTS
Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the rates of 
exchange in effect on the respective dates. For the conver-
sion from US dollars to Colombian pesos, at the end of each 
accounting period the accounts receivable or payable are ad-
justed to fit the representative exchange rate published by the 
official market entity in charge of certifying said information. 
With regard to accounts receivable in other currencies (in ter-
ms of functional currency) the exchange differences are expen-
sed as financial income. Only exchange differences that are 
not attributable to asset acquisition costs are included in the 
results for accounts payable. Exchange differences that occu-
rred while the assets are under construction or being installed 
and until they are ready for use, are charged to the cost of 
acquiring assets.

In accordance with Regulatory Decree 4918 of December 
26, 2007, the exchange difference from equity investments in 
foreign subsidiaries must be restated into the functional cu-
rrency using the current exchange rate certified by the Finan-
cial Superintendency of Colombia and must be recorded in the 
surplus equity method account with a higher or lower equity 
value, as appropriate.

When the investment has been properly carried out, the 
adjustments for exchange differences that were recorded in 
equity will affect earnings.

The rights and obligations in financial derivatives conducted 
for purposes of hedging assets or liabilities in foreign curren-
cies are shown in balance sheet accounts and conform to the 
representative market rate credited or charged to income. The 
premiums or discounts on options and futures contracts are 
charged or credited to the fiscal year results, as applicable.

2.3 NEGOCIABLE AND PERMANENT INVESTMENTS  
The provisions of the Colombian Financial Superintendency, ac-
cording to External Circular Letter No. 11 of 1998, requires that 
all investments held by the Company be classified according to 
the intention of their implementation by management as trada-
ble investments, if it intends to keep them for less than three (3) 
years, and permanent investments, if it intends to keep them for 
more than three (3) years. They are also classified in accordance 
with the returns they generate in fixed–income investments and 
variable–income investments. Once classified, the investments 
are recorded and they appreciate as follows:

Fixed–income investments (debt rights), regardless of their 
classification as tradable or permanent, are initially recorded 
at their acquisition cost and are appreciated monthly at their 
realization value. The resulting adjustment is reflected in the 
Profit and Loss Statement.

Variable–income investments in shares or capital holdings, in 
entities that are not controlled by the Company, are recorded 
at cost and appreciate at their realization value. For permanent 
investments, the resulting adjustment, whether it is positive or 
negative, is recorded in the item valuation in the assets account 
with a credit or debit to the valuation surplus in Changes in the 
Shareholders’ Equity Statement, as the case may be. For tradable 
investments, the resulting adjustment, whether it is positive or 
negative, affects the last cost recorded for the investment; the 
income or expense generated is registered in the Profit and Loss 
Statement. For shares listed in the stock market, the market value 
is determined thus: for high marketability shares, based on the 
average of the last ten (10) days of quotations; for average mar-
ketability shares, based on the average of the last ninety (90) days 
of quotations; and for low marketability shares or shares that are 
not listed in the stock market, on their intrinsic value.

Pursuant to Joint Circulars 006 and 11 of 2005, issued by the 
Colombian Superintendent of Societies and the Financial Su-
perintendent, respectively, investments in subsidiary companies 
in which more than 50% of the capital belongs to the Parent 
Company, either directly or through an intermediary or with the 
assistance of its subsidiary companies, among other criteria, are 
posted using the equity holding method applied forward as of 
January 1, 1994. Using this method, investments are initially re-
corded at cost and later adjusted, with a credit or debit to the 
Profit and Loss Statement, as the case may be, to acknowledge 
the holdings in the profits or losses in the subsidiary companies as 
of January 1, 1994, after eliminating unrealized profits between 
the subsidiary companies and the Parent Company. The cash 
distribution of the profits of these companies, obtained before 
December 31, 1993, is recorded as income and, after that date, it 
is recorded as a lesser value of the investment. In addition to the 
above, the proportional holdings are also recorded as a greater or 
lesser value of the investments posted in variations in other equity 
accounts of the subsidiary companies other than the Profit and 
Loss Statement of the fiscal period, with a credit or debit to the 
surplus account through the holding method in the equity.

NOTE 2 Basis of presentation and summary of significant 
accounting policies and practices
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2.4 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Commercial Credits
Intangibles include commercial credits generated by the acqui-
sition of permanent investments. These costs are amortized in 
the lesser period of time between the estimated time of their 
exploitation and the duration of their legal or contractual term.

 
2.5 TAXES, FEES AND CHARGES
Covers the value of general compulsory levies in favor of the 
State which is charged to the company, by way of private pay-
ments that are calculated on the tax bases of the fiscal period.

Income tax is determined based on estimates.

2.6 RECOGNITION OF REVENUES, COSTS 
AND EXPENSES
Income from the equity method is recognized quarterly, based 
on the results of the subsidiary companies.

Overall, the revenues, costs and expenses are expensed by 
the accrual system..

2.7 LABOR OBLIGATIONS
Labor obligations are adjusted at the end of each fiscal year, 
based on the work contracts and on current legal regulations.

2.8 DEBTOR AND CREDIT ACCOUNTS
2.8.1 DEBTOR MEMORANDUM ACCOUNTS
Facts or circumstances which may create rights affecting the fi-
nancial structure of the company, and accounts for the purpo-
ses of internal control of assets are registered in debt accounts. 
Accounts used to reconcile differences between the accoun-
ting records of active nature and tax returns are also included.

2.8.2 CREDITORS
Commitments or contracts that relate to possible obligations 
that may affect the financial structure of the Company are 
recorded in credit account. Accounts used for internal control 
purposes of liabilities and equity, and to reconcile the differen-
ces between the credit accounting records and tax returns are 
also included.

2.9 NET PROFIT PER SHARE
The net profit per share is calculated on 460.123.458 outs-
tanding shares.

2.10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
In preparing the cash flow statement, simultaneous operations 
(funding), as they have a maturity of less than three months 
are considered cash equivalents.

2.11 RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OR MATERIALITY
The financial statements and notes reveal comprehensively the 
economic events in the years ended December 31, 2014 and 
2013 that affected the financial position of the Company, its 
results and cash flows, as well as changes in the financial po-
sition and equity of its shareholders. There are no undisclosed 
events of this nature that would alter the economic decisions 
of users of said information.

The relative importance for purposes of revelations was de-
termined on the basis of 5% of current and non-current as-
sets, current and non-current liabilities, assets, results of fiscal 
year operations and each account at a generally higher level 
considered individually.

2.12 CONVERGENCE WITH INTERNATIONAL STAN-
DARDS OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION-IFRS: 
In accordance with the provisions of Law 1314, 2009 and the 
regulatory decrees 3023 and 2784 of December 2012, Grupo 
Nutresa S.A., is forced to converge from the generally accepted 
accounting principles in Colombia to the International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS or IFRS for its acronym in English) as 
issued by the board of International Accounting Standards.

The Technical Board of Public Accountancy (agency for tech-
nical standardization of accounting standards, financial repor-
ting and assurance of information) classified the companies in 
Colombia classified into three groups to make the transition. 
Groupo Nutresa S.A., belonging to Group 1, with a mandatory 
transition period began on January 1, 2014, the issuing of the 
first comparative Financial Statements under IFRS will be at the 
close on December 31, 2015.

In 2014 the Company presented to the Financial Superin-
tendency in accordance with the External Circulars 038 of De-
cember 2013 and June 14, 2014, the Statement of Financial 
Position of Opening at January 1, 2014, a summary of major 
policy proposals for the development of the statement of finan-
cial position at the open, the exceptions and exemptions in im-
plementing the regulatory technical framework, prior approval 
of the Finance, Audit and Risk committee and the Board itself.

For all legal purposes, the preparation of the Financial Sta-
tements at December 31, 2014 and 2013 will be last financial 
statements in conformity with the decrees 2649 and 2650 of 
1993 and the applicable accounting standards in Colombia to 
this date.

2.13 COMPARABILITY
Certain reclassifications have been incorporated in the finan-
cial statements of 2013 to facilitate comparison with the 2014 
financial statements. 
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NOTE 3 Cash and equivalents available

The balance at December 31 included:

2014 2013

Cash $ 37 $ 10 

Banks and savings accounts 33 47

Others 0 1

TOTAL $ 70 $ 58 

There are no restrictions on these values for their availability.

The balance of these operations, except for cash, was placed at an average rate of 3,34%E. A. in 2014 
and 2,99% E. A. in 2013.

NOTE 4 Debtor Accounts  

The balance as of December 31 included:

2014 2013

Economically bound companies (Note 19) $          8.834 $ 3.850 

Dividends receivable (1) 10.738 9.622

Advances and advanced payments 2 34

Net advances of tax payments (2) 4.805 4.204

Accounts receivable from employees 119 88

TOTAL DEBT (SHORT TERM) $        24.498 $ 17.798 

Advances and advanced payments 45 45

Accounts receivable from employees 346 348

TOTAL DEBT (LONG TERM) $           391 $ 393 

(1)	� Corresponds to the outstanding dividends declared receivable from investments in companies unsubordinated to Decem-
ber 31, 2014 and 2013, maturing between January 2015 and March 2014 respectively.

(2)	� Includes credit balance of income tax and CREE worth $ 4.645 (2013 - $ 3.176). See Note 8.
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NOTE 5 Total permanent investments

The balance as of December 31 included: 

Costs 
2014

Costs 
2013

Valuations  
2014

Investments in associated companies  $    4.084.726  $    3.760.458  $       76.262 

Investments in other companies  368.342  365.365  3.725.794 

Fiduciary rights (*)  943  936 0

Other investments  520  520 0

Provision for investments  (739)  (756) 0

TOTAL PERMANENT INVESTMENTS  $    4.453.792  $    4.126.523  $    3.802.056 

(*) Corresponds to the Grupo Nutresa fiduciary trust

Duly authorized by the Colombian Financial Superintendency, in August 2009 through the fiduciary trust Grupo Nutresa S. 
A., issued 500.000.000 ordinary bonds at a par value of ONE THOUSAND PESOS ($ 1.000) per bond, which were placed 
in their entirety on the market and have a “AAA” (Triple A) rating by Fitch Ratings Colombia S. A., reaffirmed in 2014 and 
2013. The bonds are endorsed 100% by the Company.

As of December 31, 2014 the bonds are distributed as follows:

Series Capital CPI RATE + FORM

C7 131.815 4,96% T.V

C10 135.482 5,33% T.V

C12 134.162 5,59% T.V

TOTAL 401.459
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Investment in Economically bound companies

COMPANY          
Number 

of ordinary 
shares

Stake %
Cost  
2014

Cost  
2013

Valuation  
2014

Dividends 
received 2014

Compañía Nacional de Chocolates S.A.S. 496.886 100% 856.306 777.968 11.405 18.385
Compañía de Galletas Noel S.A.S. 119.000.000 100% 989.321 928.982 430 34.034
Tropical Coffee Company S.A.S. 1.000.000 100% 24.821 27.298 0 0
Industria de Alimentos Zenú S.A.S. 2.496.089 100% 256.956 295.231 0 31.650
Industria Colombiana de Café S.A.S. 2.947.415 100% 584.205 551.814 0 24.257
Litoempaques S.A.S. 400.000 100% 23.823 22.532 8 0
Molino Santa Marta S.A.S. 30.316.584 100% 70.169 62.071 20.869 0
Novaventa S.A.S. 1.479.701.695 92,50% 86.625 52.315 0 0
Pastas Comarrico S.A.S. 400.000 100% 25.022 22.634 3.559 0
Productos Alimenticios Doria S.A.S. 68.634.332 100% 143.370 127.793 6.594 0
Alimentos Cárnicos S.A.S. 4.736.893.458 100% 529.653 453.442 0 33.158

Meals Mercadeo de Alimentos de 
Colombia S.A.S.

227.000.000 100% 313.633 274.324 5.115 20.884

Compañía Nacional de Chocolates  
de Perú S.A.

6.870 0,00% 6 5 1 0

La Recetta Soluciones Gastrónomicas 
Integradas  S.A.S.

350.000 70% 1.279 1.246 929 0

Servicios Nutresa S.A.S. 10.000 100% 1.604 1.201 94 0
Setas Colombianas S.A. 1.133.798.248 94,00% 42.436 40.116 14.181 4.819
Alimentos Cárnicos  Zona Franca S.A.S. 10.000 100% 263 206 5.294 0
Gestion Cargo Zona Franca S.A.S. 5.000 100% 35.053 26.705 0 0
Comercial Nutresa S.A.S. 2.724.624 100% 42.797 43.564 0 0
Industrias Aliadas S.A.S. 2.225.850 83,33% 56.680 51.011 7.783 17
Opperar Colombia S.A.S. 1.000.000 100% 704 0 0 0
TOTAL INVESTMENTS $ 4.084.726 $ 3.760.458 $ 76.262 $ 167.204 

A summary of the effect of applying the holding method in the structure of the Grupo Nutresa S. A. 
financial statements appears below:

2014 2013 2013

Increase in assets:
Investments
Participation method  $ 491.213 $  524.652
Dividends received (167.204) (158.476)
Movement in investments 324.009 366.176
Valuation (19.225) 2.353 
TOTAL INCREASE IN ASSETS    $ 304.784 $  368.529

Increase in equity
Results  $ 323.884  $ 344.939
  Profit participation method 323.884 344.632
  Net investment allowance recovery 0 307
Surplus capital 167.329 179.713
Surplus for revaluation (19.225) 2.353 
TOTAL INCREASE IN EQUITY    $ 471.988 $  527.005
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The corporate purpose of the subsidiary copanies is as follows:

Industria Colombiana de Café S. A. S. (Colcafé)
This Colombian company was incorporated on June 1, 1950, 
as a stock company (Sociedad Anónima) and unanimously 
transformed by the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified 
Joint Stock Company (Sociedad por Acciones Simplificada, S. 
A. S.) on March 18, 2009. It has an indefinite term and its 
main domicile is in Medellín, Antioquia.

Its corporate purpose is to assemble and exploit coffee industry 
and food industry activities in general, and those of directly related 
businesses, as well as conduct any other legal economic activity.

 
Compañía Nacional de Chocolates S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on October 8, 
2002, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock 
Company on March 18, 2009. It has an indefinite term and its 
main domicile in in Medellín, Antioquia. 

Its corporate purpose is to exploit food industry activities in 
general, and, in particular, to produce chocolate and its derivati-
ves, as well as to conduct business related to these industries; to 
distribute, sell and market the products described above, produ-
ced by the company and by other manufacturers, and the raw 
materials, materials or supplies utilized in the food production 
industry and in the production of popular consumption foods 
susceptible to being distributed through the same channels. The 
business purpose also includes investing in or applying resour-
ces or having holdings under any associative form authorized by 
law, and carrying out any other legal activity.

Tropical Coffee Company S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on March 31, 
1950, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock 
Company on March 18, 2009. It has an indefinite term and its 
main domicile is in Medellín, Antioquia.

Its corporate purpose is to assemble and exploit coffee in-
dustry and food industry activities in general, and to conduct 
directly related business activities. In addition, it can conduct 
any other legal economic activity.

Productos Alimenticios Doria S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on November 18, 
1966, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock 
Company on March 13, 2009. It has an indefinite term and its 
main domicile is in Mosquera, Cundinamarca. 

Its corporate purpose is to exploit food industry activities in 
general and, in particular, flours and prepared foods made from 
cereals and their derivatives, pastas among others, and conduct 
businesses directly related to this industry. It may also distribute 
and, in general, market food products, raw materials and ele-
ments used in the food industry and the manufacture of flours 
and preparations made from cereals and their derivatives. It may 
also invest in or apply resources or have holdings under any legal 
associative form, and conduct any other legal economic activity.

Industria de Alimentos Zenú S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on August 20, 
2002, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by the 
Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock Com-
pany on March 17, 2009. It has an indefinite term and its main 
domicile is in Medellín, Antioquia. 

Its corporate purpose is to conduct food industry activities 
in general, as well as for those substances used as ingre-
dients in foods and, in particular, meat, including the proces-
sing and utilization of by–products from beef, pork, sheep, 
fish and other animal species; the slaughter and preparation 
of large or small livestock and the purchase, sale, transport, 
distribution, import and export of meat. It may also process 
meat and prepare sausages, soups, extracts, fats, canned 
meat, spices, condiments, dairy products, cottage cheese, 
eggs and food substances for animals; the distribution, sale, 
importation, exportation and marketing in general of the ele-
ments mentioned above in their natural state or industrially 
prepared by the company or by others. In addition, it may 
distribute, sell and trade in general products for popular con-
sumption susceptible to being distributed through the same 
channels. It may also invest in or apply resources or have 
holdings under any associative forms authorized by law and 
conduct any other legal economic activity.

 
Compañía de Galletas Noel S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on August 13, 
1998, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock

Company on March 17, 2009. It has an indefinite term and 
its main domicile is in Medellín, Antioquia.

Its corporate purpose is to exploit food industry activities in 
general and, in particular, the production or manufacture of 
those foods for human consumption and the substances used 
as ingredients in food, such as prepared cereals, flours, star-
ches, tea, coffee, sago, chocolate, sugar, salt, honey, bakery 
products, cookie and cracker products and pastry products. 
It may also distribute, sell and trade in general the products 
mentioned in the previous sentence produced by the company 
or other manufacturers, and the raw materials, materials or 
supplies used in the food production industry, as well as distri-
bute, sell and trade in general products for popular consump-
tion susceptible to being distributed through the same chan-
nels. It may also invest in or apply resources or have holdings 
under any associative forms authorized by law and conduct 
any other legal economic activity.

Comercial Nutresa S. A. S. 
This Colombian company was incorporated through a private 
document on February 12, 2010; it was registered in the Me-
dellín Chamber of Commerce on February 17, 2010. It has an 
indefinite term and its main domicile is in Medellín, Antioquia. 

Its corporate purpose is to conduct any legal activity.
On March 31, 2011, the memorandum, in which the name 

of the company was changed from Cordialsa Colombia S. A. 
S. to Comercial Nutresa S. A. S., was registered in the Medellín 
Chamber of Commerce.
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Gestión Cargo Zona Franca S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on October 10, 
2008, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock 
Company on March 16, 2009. It has an indefinite term and its 
main domicile is in Cartagena, Bolívar.

The company is an industrial user of free–trade zone goods 
and services; its business purpose is, principally, to develop the 
following activities in the free–trade zone: provide manage-
ment services to purchase, import and export food products 
and raw materials used in the food industry in general, for 
third parties. Likewise, it may reprocess, repack, assemble, la-
bel, pack, assemble for third parties, classify, control quality, 
inspect, reclassify, clean, freeze and thaw the mentioned ar-
ticles. It may also provide coordination and logistics control 
services of imported products and raw materials for third par-
ties, classify food and raw material products, control inven-
tories and customs processes, along with loading, unloading 
and picking the products and raw materials indicated. It may 
do laboratory tests and analyses on food products and raw 
materials for food, as well as interpret said results.

Alimentos Cárnicos Zona Franca Santafé S. A. S. 
This Colombian company was incorporated on October 10, 
2008, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock

Company on March 16, 2009. It has an indefinite term and 
its main domicile is in Cota, Cundinamarca.

The company is an industrial user of free–trade zone goods 
and services; its business purpose is, principally, to develop the 
following activities in the free–trade zone: the processing, ma-
nufacture, purchase and sale of food products and the sale 
of by–products and waste derived from the manufacturing 
processes; to provide manufacturing services of food products 
to third parties; to provide management services to purchase 
supplies and raw materials used in the food manufacturing 
industry; to provide services to reprocess, repack, assemble, 
label, pack, assemble for third parties, classify, control quali-
ty, inspect, reclassify, clean, freeze and thaw the mentioned 
articles. It may also execute coordination and logistics control 
services of food product inventories and raw materials for third 
parties, classify food products and raw materials, load, unload 
and pick the products and raw materials indicated. It may 
contract third–party transportation services for itself and for 
others, as well as provide invoicing and food–product dispatch 
services, and conduct any other legal economic activity.

Alimentos Cárnicos S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on August 20, 1968, 
as a stock company and unanimously transformed by the Assem-
bly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock Company on 
March 17, 2009. It has an indefinite term and its main domicile is 
in Yumbo, Valle del Cauca.

Its business purpose is to exploit the food industry in gene-
ral and/or the substances used as ingredients for food and, in 

particular, meat and/or farm livestock and produce, including 
the processing and utilization of animal and agricultural by–
products to prepare food; to exploit farm produce and large 
and small livestock and the businesses directly related to the-
se activities, particularly by cattle breeding, raising, fattening 
up and their later slaughtering or live disposal; the purchase, 
sale, transport, distribution, import, export and trade in ge-
neral of its own food and that of other manufacturers. In 
addition, it may invest in or apply resources or have holdings 
under any associative form authorized by law, the purpose of 
which is the exploitation of any legal economic activity, even 
if it is not directly related to food production or marketing, 
and to conduct any other legal economic activity in Colombia 
and abroad.

Molinos Santa Marta S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on April 18, 1980, 
as a stock company and unanimously transformed by the As-
sembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock Company 
on March 18, 2009. It has an indefinite term and its main 
domicile is in Medellín, Antioquia.

Its business purpose is to mill grain, as well as develop the 
businesses and activities that are directly related to the milling 
industry and conduct any other legal economic activity. 

Litoempaques S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on March 16, 
1995, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock 
Company on March 18, 2009. It has an indefinite term and its 
main domicile is in Medellín, Antioquia.

Its business purpose is to exploit the metallurgical and pac-
king industry activities in general and, in particular, to produ-
ce or manufacture and/or assemble, and/or market bottles, 
lids and packaging made of any material and for any use. It 
may also do lithography work in metal or in any other ma-
terial for all kinds of industries; to sell, distribute, import, 
export and trade all of the above elements in general, whe-
ther produced by the company or by other manufacturers, as 
well as the raw materials or supplies used in the metallurgical 
industry and packing industry. It may also conduct any other 
legal economic activity.

Pastas Comarrico S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on November 30, 
2004, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock 
Company on March 18, 2009. It has an indefinite term and its 
main domicile is in Barranquilla, Atlántico.

Its business purpose is to conduct food industry activities 
in general and, in particular, to manufacture and/or commer-
cialize flours, pastas, prepared food made from cereals and 
their derivatives, as well as conduct business activities directly 
related to this industry; and to conduct any other legal eco-
nomic activity.



BASIC Financial statements

238 Grupo Nutresa

Novaventa S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on October 3, 
2000, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock 
Company on March 17, 2009. It has an indefinite term and its 
main domicile is in Medellín, Antioquia.

Its business purpose is to commercialize and distribute food 
products, raw materials and elements used in the food indus-
tries and manage specialized channels to commercialize the-
se products and other articles that are susceptible to being 
distributed through the same channels. It may also provide 
maintenance services for equipment used to commercialize 
the items mentioned above, and conduct any other legal eco-
nomic activity.

Meals Mercadeo de Alimentos de Colombia S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on January 29, 
1964, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock 
Company on March 17, 2009. It has an indefinite term and its 
main domicile is in Bogotá, Cundinamarca.

Its business purpose is to exploit the food industry in ge-
neral and, in particular, ice cream, dairy beverages, desserts, 
yoghurts, juices, refreshments, and fruit–based prepared food; 
to conduct business activities directly related to this industry.

In general, it may distribute, sell and trade the products 
mentioned above, produced by the company or by other ma-
nufacturers, as well as the raw materials, materials or supplies 
used in the industry to produce food, as well as distribute, 
sell and trade in general popular products that are susceptible 
to being distributed through the same channels. It may also 
invest in or apply resources or have holdings under any of the 
associative forms authorized by law, and conduct any other 
legal economic activity. 

Servicios Nutresa S. A. S. 
This Colombian company was incorporated on April 21, 2006, 
as a stock company and unanimously transformed by the As-
sembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock Company 
on March 17, 2009. It has an indefinite term and its main 
domicile is in Medellín, Antioquia.

Its business purpose is to provide in Colombia and/or abroad 
specialized business services in areas such as risk management 
and insurance; legal, auditing and control assistance, accoun-
ting, taxes, negotiation in purchases, financial planning, hu-
man–resource support and development processes, adminis-
trative services, informational technology, treasury matters 
and any other service that can create value for its clients. In 
addition, it may invest in or apply resources or have holdings 
under any of the associative forms authorized by law, and con-
duct any other legal economic activity.

On April 1, 2011, the statutory reform, in which the name 
of the company was changed from Servicios Nacional de Cho-

colates S. A. S. to Servicios Nutresa S. A. S., was registered in 
the Medellín Chamber of Commerce.

La Recetta Soluciones Gastronómicas Integradas S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on April 11, 
2008, as a stock company and unanimously transformed by 
the Assembly of Shareholders into a Simplified Joint Stock 
Company on March 25, 2010. The company term will expire 
on December 31, 2050, and its main domicile is in Cota, 
Cundinamarca.

Its business purpose is to distribute products of any nature 
through the institutional channel on its own behalf or for third 
parties; these products include mass–consumption foods and 
products, with its own brands or with third–party brands, as 
well as packaging and packing the products.

Compañía Nacional de Chocolates de Perú S. A. 
This Peruvian company was incorporated on November 13, 
2006; it has an indefinite term. Its main domicile is in Lima, Peru.

The business purpose of the company is the industrial and 
agricultural activity to manufacture and market all kinds of 
beverages and foods, as well as all kinds of farm exploita-
tion. It may also engage in selling, marketing, distributing, 
exporting and importing activities for goods in general. It is 
especially dedicated to the industry of biscuits, chocolates 
and other sweets.

On December 1, 2010, the short fusion was effected whe-
reby Compañía Nacional de Chocolates de Perú S. A. absorbed 
Compañía de Cacao del Perú S. A. C.

Industrias Aliadas S. A. S.
This Colombian company was incorporated on September 21, 
1988, through Public Deed Number 4349, registered in the 
Office of the Second Notary Public of Ibagué. Its term is until 
September 21, 2038, and its main domicile is in Ibagué, Tolima.

On April 28, 2011, Memorandum Number 29, whereby the 
company was transformed in a Simplified Joint Stock Company, 
was registered in the Ibagué Chamber of Commerce.

Its business purpose is to purchase, sell, dry, sort and export 
coffee. In general, the company conducts all activities related to 
the coffee industry.

Setas Colombianas S. A.
This Colombian company was incorporated on December 16, 
1991. Its term is until December 16, 2041, and its main domi-
cile is in Medellín, Antioquia.

Its business purpose is to exploit, cultivate, produce, pro-
cess, distribute and commercialize mushrooms and, in gene-
ral, food industry products for human consumption and food 
for animals, and conduct business activities directly related to 
the food industry. It may also invest in livestock, farming and 
industrial units or businesses to process, exploit or distribute 
products for human consumption and food for animals.
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Opperar Colombia S.A.S.
Colombian company established in Medellín, incorporated on 
June 18, 2014, with indefinite duration.

Its object is the provision of freight, in any form, to proprie-
tary or third party equipment, both nationally and internatio-
nally, and performing general logistics operations and related 
activities.

The figures presented below have been taken from the fi-
nancial statements of the subsidiary companies as of Decem-
ber 31; they have been certified and audited subject to the 
prescribed legal norms:

2014

COMPANY
Social 
Capital 

Capital 
Surplus

 Reserves
Equity 
Reval.

Profit 
(Loss)

Previous  
Yr. Loss

Valuation 
Surplus

 Total  
Equity 

Industria Colombiana  
de Café S.A.S.

22 151.547 141.915 3.135 61.913 0 225.489 584.021 

Compañía Nacional  
de Chocolates S.A.S.

25 234.813 295.783 11.020 38.128 0 295.727 875.496 

Compañía de Galletas  
Noel S.A.S.

119.000 313.872 218.961 0 93.806 0 244.111 989.750 

Industria  de Alimentos  
Zenú S.A.S.  

250 (14.946) 67.407 64.726 13.394 (2.877) 128.544 256.498 

Productos Alimenticios  
Doria S.A.S.

6.853 0 36.382 24.668 12.695 0 69.366 149.964 

Molino  Santa Marta S.A.S. 30 6.721 29.192 18.911 1.840 0 34.343 91.037 

Alimentos Cárnicos S.A.S. 47.376 84.862 258.153 0 49.459 0 89.843 529.693 

Tropical Coffee  
Company S.A.S.

4.891 0 3.398 21 (828) 0 17.340 24.822 

Litoempaques S.A.S. 4.000 0 2.291 6.141 1.081 (73) 10.392 23.832 

Pastas Comarrico S.A.S. 400 6.951 5.600 0 1.931 0 13.699 28.581 

Novaventa S.A.S. 1.600 3.588 23.027 6.576 23.759 0 35.100 93.650 

Compañía Nacional  
de Chocolates del Perú S.A. 

187.959 0 6.624 0 7.520 107.143 0 309.246 

La Recetta Soluciones  
Gastronómicas  
Integradas S.A.S.

500 1.820 1.327 0 49 (1.568) 1.025 3.153 

Meals Mercadeo  
de Alimentos  
de Colombia S.A.S.

22.700 127.597 44.931 0 17.130 0 106.390 318.748 

Servicios Nutresa S.A.S. 100 0 1.152 2 402 0 42 1.697 

Setas Colombianas S.A. 7.237 3.800 6.457 31.656 4.522 (29.906) 36.917 60.681 

Alimentos Cárnicos  Zona 
Franca Santafé  S.A.S.

10 795 0 0 57 (1.363) 6.058 5.557 

Gestión Cargo Zona  
Franca  S.A.S.

5 0 26.700 0 8.344 0 4 35.053 

Comercial Nutresa S.A.S. 2.725 23.785 16.689 0 (707) 0 343 42.835 

Industrias Aliadas S.A.S. 13.959 1.362 17.109 6.506 5.061 3.743 29.616 77.356 

Opperar Colombia S.A.S. 10 690 0 0 4 0 0 704 
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2013

COMPANY
Social 
Capital 

Capital 
Surplus

 Reserves
Equity 
Reval.

Profit 
(Loss)

Previous  
Yr. Loss

Valuation 
Surplus

 Total  
Equity 

Industria Colombiana  
de Café S.A.S.

22 135.844 104.048 3.135 62.124 0 246.616 551.789 

Compañía Nacional  
de Chocolates S.A.S.

25 203.442 247.467 11.020 66.701 0 266.425 795.080 

Compañía de Galletas  
Noel S.A.S.

119.000 318.087 182.963 0 70.032 0 260.853 950.935 

Industria  de Alimentos  
Zenú S.A.S.   

250 1.105 99.058 64.726 (2.877) 0 132.387 294.649 

Productos Alimenticios  
Doria S.A.S.

6.853 0 23.449 24.668 12.933 0 66.468 134.371 

Molino  Santa Marta S.A.S. 30 6.721 23.353 18.911 5.839 0 28.030 82.884 

Alimentos Cárnicos S.A.S. 47.376 32.956 222.333 0 68.978 0 81.797 453.441 

Tropical Coffee  
Company S.A.S.

4.891 0 3.363 21 208 (173) 19.483 27.792 

Litoempaques S.A.S. 4.000 0 2.291 6.141 (73) 0 10.179 22.538 

Pastas Comarrico S.A.S. 400 6.951 4.244 0 1.356 0 13.243 26.194 

Novaventa S.A.S. 1.600 3.588 12.215 6.576 10.812 0 21.776 56.567 

Compañía Nacional de 
Chocolates del Perú S.A. 

161.879 4.136 0 0 7.476 85.492 0 258.983 

La Recetta Soluciones  
Gastronómicas  
Integradas S.A.S.

500 1.820 1.327 0 (1.568) 0 1.149 3.229 

Meals Mercadeo  
de Alimentos de  
Colombia S.A.S.

22.700 127.597 42.230 0 23.584 0 63.341 279.452 

Servicios Nutresa S.A.S. 100 0 666 2 486 0 42 1.295 

Setas Colombianas S.A. 7.237 3.800 6.433 31.656 5.150 (29.906) 32.622 56.990 

Alimentos Cárnicos  Zona 
Franca Santa Fé  S.A.S.

10 795 0 0 (594) (769) 6.058 5.500 

Gestion Cargo Zona 
Franca  S.A.S.

5 0 17.989 0 8.711 0 0 26.705 

Comercial Nutresa S.A.S. 2.725 23.785 10.710 0 5.979 0 364 43.564 

Industrias Aliadas S.A.S. 13.959 1.362 7.901 6.506 9.228 3.743 27.855 70.554 
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Economically bound companies in which Grupo Nutresa S.A. has no direct participation.
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Alimentos Cárnicos  
de Panamá S.A. 100,00% Producer

Cordialsa Noel  
Venezuela S.A. 85,73% 14,27% Merchandising

Industrias Alimenticias 
Hermo de Venezuela 85,77% 14,23% Producer

Corp. Distrib. de  
Alimentos S.A. (Cordialsa) 50,00% 50,00% Merchandising

Cordialsa Boricua  
Empaque, Inc. 100,00% Merchandising

Cordialsa USA, Inc. 10,28% 74,66% 15,06% Merchandising

Compañía Nacional  
de Chocolates DCR, S.A. 100,00% Exploitation of the 

food industry

Comercial Pozuelo  
Guatemala S.A.   0,0004% 99,9996% Merchandising

Comercial Pozuelo  
El Salvador S.A. de C.V. 0,003% 99,997% Merchandising

Compañía de Galletas 
Pozuelo DCR S.A.  26,65% 72,30% 1,05% Exploitation of the 

food industry

Compañía de Galletas 
Pozuelo de Panamá S.A. 100,00% Producer

Comercial Pozuelo  
Nicaragua S.A. 0,03% 99,97% Merchandising

Nutresa S.A. de  C.V. 10,22% 40,13% 14,00% 35,65% Producer

Serer S.A. de C.V. 44,70% 15,59% 39,71% Producer

Abimar Foods Inc. 100,00% Producer

Compañía de Galletas 
Pozuelo de Republica  
Dominicana S.A.

100,00% Merchandising

Helados Bon 81,18%  Producer

COMPANY 
SHARE-
HOLDER
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Economically bound companies in which Grupo Nutresa S.A. has no direct participation.
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American Franchising 
Corp. (AFC) 100% Investments

Industrias Lácteas  
de Costa Rica S.A. 100% Producer

Cía Americana  
de Helados S.A. 100% Merchandising

Fransouno S.A. 100% Merchandising

Helados H.D. S.A. 100% Merchandising

Americana de  
Alimentos Ameral S.A. 100% Merchandising

Inmobiliaria Nevada S.A. 100% Real estate

Heladera  
Guatemalteca S.A. 100% Producer

Distribuidora POPS S.A. 100% Merchandising

Nevada  
Guatemalteca S.A. 100% Real estate

Guate-Pops S.A. 100% Producer

Industrias Lácteas  
Nicaragua S.A. 100% Merchandising

Americana de  
Alimentos S.A. de C.V. 100% Merchandising

POPS One LLC 98% Merchandising

POPS Two LLC 98% Merchandising

Costa Rica´s  
Creamery LLC. 100% Merchandising

Tresmontes Lucchetti S.A. 0,01% 99,99% Services

Nutresa Chile S.A. 15,30% 18,50% 15,30% 50,90% Investments

Tresmontes Lucchetti 
Agroindustrial S.A.   0,000% 100,0% Producer

COMPANY 
SHARE-
HOLDER
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Tresmontes Lucchetti 
Internacional S.A. 0,002% 99,998% Merchandising

Tresmontes Lucchetti 
Servicios S.A. 0,002% 99,998% Services

Tresmontes S.A. 99,999%  0,0014% Producer

Inmobiliaria Tresmontes 
Lucchetti S.A. 99,999%  0,001% Investments

Lucchetti Chile S.A. 99,999% 0,001% Producer

Novaceites S.A. 50,00% Merchandising

Comercializadora 
TMLUC S.A. de C.V. 0,000% 100,000% Merchandising

Servicios Tresmontes 
Lucchetti S.A. de C.V. 0,002% 99,998% Services

Tresmontes Luchetti 
México S.A. de C.V. 100,000% 0,000% Producer

TMLUC Perú S.A. 0,003% 99,997% Merchandising

Promociones y  
Publicidad Las  
Américas S.A.

99,00% 1,00% Services

TMLUC Argentina S.A. 0,83% 99,17% Producer

Inmobiliaria y Rentas 
Tresmontes Lucchetti 4,452% 26,753% 68,794% Real estate

TMLUC Servicios 
 Industriales, S.A. de C.V. 99,998% 0,002% Services

COMPANY 
SHARE-
HOLDER
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INVESTMENTS IN OTHER COMPANIES
The balance as of December 31 Included:

(1) In 2014, 278.700 shares in Estrella Andina S. A. S. were acquired.
(2)  The Antioquia Livestock Fund (Fondo Ganadero de Antioquia) was in liquidation at the close of December 2014.

(1)In 2013. 999.000 shares in Estrella Andina S. A. S. were acquired.
(2)The total of the shares in Promotora de Proyectos S.A. were sold

2013

COMPANY
Number of 
Common 

Stock

Number of 
Outstading 

Shares

Intrinsic 
Value or 
Market 

Value per 
Share

Valuation 
date

Percentage 
stake

Cost Allowance
Valuation / 
Devaluation

Dividends 
Received

Grupo de Inversiones 
Suramericana S.A.

59.387.803 575.372,223 33.700,00 12/30/2013 10,32% 161.433 0 1.839.935 19.672

Grupo Argos S.A. 79.804.628 785.813.601 19.440,00 12/30/2013 10,16% 148.703 0 1.402.699 17.996

Bimbo  
de Colombia S.A.

2.324.630 5.811.576 30.822,69 11/30/2013 40,00% 52.986 (45) 18.710 1.279

Fondo Ganadero  
de Antioquia S.A.

52.526 43.321.254 1.596,86 9/30/2013 0,12% 88 0 (4) 0

Sociedad Central 
Ganadera S.A.

50.267 279.859 40.501,87 11/30/2013 17,96% 1.155 0 881 479

Estrella  
Andina S.A.S. (1)

999.000 3.330.000 1.006,00 11/30/2013 30,00% 999 0 6 0

Promotora de  
Proyectos S.A. (2)

0 0 0 0,00% 1 (1) 0

TOTAL NET  
PERMANENT 
INVESTMENTS

365.365 (46) 3.262.227 39.426

2014

COMPANY
Number of 
Common 

Stock

Number of 
Outstading 

Shares

Intrinsic 
Value or 
Market 

Value per 
Share

Valuation 
date

Percentage 
stake

Cost Allowance
Valuation / 
Devaluation

Dividends 
Received

Grupo de Inversiones  
Suramericana S.A.

59.387.803 575.372.223 40.000,00 12/30/2014 10,32% 161.433 0 2.214.078 28.194

Grupo Argos S.A. 79.804.628 793.115.568 20.500,00 12/30/2014 10,06% 148.703 0 1.487.292 24.381

Bimbo de  
Colombia S.A.

2.324.630 5.811.576 33.121,00 11/30/2014 40,00% 52.986 (45) 24.053 0

Fondo Ganadero  
de Antioquia S.A. (2)

52.526 60.926.639 2.123,95 11/30/2014 2,54% 88 0 23 0

Sociedad Central  
Ganadera S.A.

50.267 279.859 46.713,85 11/30/2014 17,96% 1.155 0 1.193 375

Estrella  
Andina S.A.S. (1)

1.277.700 4.259.000 2.450,00 11/30/2014 30,00% 3.977 0 (845) 0

TOTAL NET  
PERMANENT 
INVESTMENTS

368.342 (45) 3.725.794 52.950
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NOTE 6 Memorandum accounts

The balance as of December 31 included:

2014 2013

Debtor Memorandum Accounts:

Contingent Rights

Assets and securities pledged as collateral  $         518.400  $         433.350 

Subtotal  $ 518.400  $ 433.350 

Fiscal Debtor Memorandum Accounts

Investments  $ (5.800.313)  $      (5.031.189)

Intangible assets (4.138) (4.358)

Debtor Memorandum Accounts (10.738) 0 

Other assets 37 37 

Expenses (3.414) (11.656)

Fiscal losses to be compensated 82 8 

Fiscal losses compensated 0 8.666 

Excess presumptive revenue 101 0 

Subtotal  $     (5.818.383)  $    (5.038.492)

Other Control Debtor Memorandum Accounts

Assets and securities in trust  $ (21.290)  $          (2.136)

PP&E completely depreciated 168 168

Adjustment for inflation of assets 611.979 611.978

Subtotal 590.857 610.010

TOTAL DEBTOR MEMORANDUM ACCOUNTS  $     (4.709.126)  $       (3.995.132)

Creditor Memorandum Accounts:

Contingent Responsibilities

Assets and securities received as collateral  $           (607)  $           (607)

Litigations and/or lawsuits 78 0

Credits 1.287.171 1.507.508

Labor 945 1.020

Other contingent responsibilities 723 723

Subtotal 1.288.310 1.508.644

Fiscal Creditor Memorandum Accounts

Operating income  $             (380.586)  $           (382.867)

Control Creditor Memorandum Accounts

Equity inflation adjustments  $               803.802  $         803.802 

TOTAL CREDITOR MEMORANDUM ACCOUNTS  $           1.711.526  $         1.929.579 
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NOTE 7 Accounts payable

The balance as of December 31 included: 

2014 2013

Economically bound companies (Note 19)  $        13.192 $       19.111 

Costs and expenses payable 309 312

Dividends payable 55.162 50.451

Payroll withholdings 57 52

Withholdings at the source 306 606

Others 11 12

TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (SHORT TERM)  $        69.037  $        70.544 

Others(*) 157 157

TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (LONG TERM)  $           157  $          157 

(1 ) The balance is expected to be paid in 2021.

NOTE 8 Taxes, levies and rates

As of December 31, the taxes, levies and rates included:

2014 2013

Equity income tax — CREE 0 739

Sales tax payable 918 1.392

Equity tax 0 168

 918 2.299

INCOME TAX AND COMPLEMENTARY 
WINDFALL TAXES  
The current tax regulations applicable to Grupo Nutresa S.A. 
stipulate that:

a) Beginning on January 1, 2013, fiscal income is taxed at a 
rate of 25% for the concept of income tax and complemen-
tary tax, except for those contributors that, by express dis-
position, handle special rates and at 10% for income from 
windfalls. 

b) The taxable base to determine income tax cannot be less 
than 3% of their net worth of the shareholders’ equity on 
the last day of the immediately previous taxable fiscal pe-
riod.

c)	As of tax year 2007 and solely for tax purposes, taxpayers 
may annually adjust the cost of real estate and personal pro-
perty that have the nature of fixed assets. The Colombian 
National Tax and Customs Directorate will set the adjust-
ment percentage through a resolution.

d)	Up to tax year 2010, and for those taxpayers who had a 
legal stability contract signed until December 31, 2012, the 
special deduction for investments made in productive real 
fixed assets equal to 30% of the value of the investment 
was applicable; its use did not generate income taxes taxed 
on partners or shareholders. Taxpayers who had acquired 
depreciable fixed assets beginning on January 1, 2007, and 
who used the deduction established here, could only de-
preciate those assets through the straight – line system and 
would have no right to the benefit of audit, even fulfilling 
the budgets established in the tax regulations to access it. 
Regarding the deduction taken in previous years, if the pro-
perty object of the benefit is no longer used in the income–
producing activity or if it is disposed of or withdrawn befo-
re the end of its useful life, it must incorporate an income 
through proportional recovery of the useful life remaining at 
the time of its abandonment or sale. Law 1607 of 2012 re-
pealed the rule that allowed the signing of the legal stability 
contracts, as of the 2013 tax year.
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e)	As of December 31, 2014, the Company presented fiscal 
losses, which originated during 2008, to be compensated 
in the amount of $82 million. Pursuant to current tax re-
gulations, the fiscal losses generated from 2003 to 2006 
may be offset and/or fiscally adjusted, with the ordinary in-
come of the following eight years, without exceeding 25% 
of the value of the loss annually, without prejudice to the 
presumptive income for the fiscal period. Losses originated 
as of tax year 2007 may be offset and/or fiscally adjusted, 
without any limit on the percentage, at any time, with or-
dinary income without prejudice to the presumptive income 
of the fiscal period. Company losses may not be transferred 
to the shareholders. Fiscal losses originating in revenue that 
do not constitute income or windfall earnings, and origina-
ted in costs and deductions that have no relation of causality 
with the generation of taxable income may not–under any 
circumstance–be offset with taxpayers’ net income.

As of December 31, 2014 the Company has excess pre-
sumptive income on ordinary income of $101 million gene-
rated during 2013. According to current tax regulations, ex-
cess presumptive income over ordinary income can be offset 
against ordinary net income, within five years, adjusted for 
tax purposes.

f)	 It is important to mention that the compensation of tax los-
ses or excess presumptive income may only be applied to the 
basic income tax and not to the equity income tax “CREE,” 
as established in Tax Reform, Law 1607 of December 2012.

The maturity of the fiscal losses and the excess presump-
tive income is as follows:

Date of Maturity Fiscal losses
Excess presump-

tive income

No maturity date 68 0

2018 0 101

2014 14 0

82 101

g)	No new additional concepts of windfall earnings have been 
established in addition to those already defined as of De-
cember 31, 2013.

Below is the breakdown of the reconciliation between befo-
re–tax profits and remittance and the taxable income for the 
years ended on December 31:
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2014 2013

Profit before allowance for Income tax $        377.674 $        382.332
Plus:
Non-deductible expenses for taxes 1.132 978
Non-deductible expenses for various 310 242
Costs and expenses from previous fiscal periods 14 2.931
Dividends received from affiliates and subsidiaries 167.204 158.476
Levy on financial movements 2 3
Cost of sale of investments 161 264
TOTAL ITEMS THAT INCREASE THE NET TAXABLE INCOME $        168.823 $        162.894

Minus:
Untaxed income 1.640 25
Repayment of allowances 16 50
Income using holding method 323.884 344.939
Dividends that do not constitute income 209.399 191.438
Non-payable dividends 10.738 0
Investment sales cost 562 88
TOTAL ITEMS THAT DECREASE THE NET TAXABLE INCOME $        546.239 $        536.540

Net income 258 8.686
(-) Compensation for presumptive income losses and excesses 0 8.686
Presumptive income 574 6.526
Net taxable income (The greatest) 574 6.526
Tax rate 25% 25%
Allowance for tax on current income (1) $              143 $           1.632
Income for windfall earnings 562 88
Costs and expenses for windfall earnings 304 88
Taxable windfall earnings $258 0
Tax rate 10% 10%
Allowance for tax on windfall earning (2) 26 0
TOTAL ALLOWANCE FOR TAX ON INCOME AND WINDFALL EARNINGS (1+2) $                169 $            1.632

RECONCILIATION BETWEEN ACCOUNTING NET WORTH AND FISCAL NET WORTH
Below is the reconciliation between the accounting net worth and the fiscal net worth for the years ending as of December 31: 

2014 2013

Accounting net worth $      8.213.895 $      7.423.544

Allowance to protect investments and other assets 775 793

Fiduciary rights (677) (693)

Other investments (376) 0

Pending goodwill amortization (4.138) (4.358)

Valuation of investments (3.802.056) (3.357.714)

Fiscal cost of investments (1.997.943) (1.673.538)

Income to cover dividends (10.738) 0

FISCAL NET WORTH $       2.398.742 $      2.388.034

The tax returns for income taxes and complementary taxes for the 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2013 tax years are subject to review 
and acceptance by the tax authorities. The Company Administrators and its legal advisors consider that the amounts posted as liabili-
ties for tax payable are sufficient to attend any requirement that may be set forth regarding those years. The income and complemen-
tary tax declaration for the 2012 tax year is closed to revision, since the Company received the audit benefit dealt with in Article 689 
– 1 of the Tributary Statute. The income and complementary tax declaration for tax year 2008, is subject to review due to the special 
requirement notification in 2014.
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EQUITY INCOME TAX - CREE
The current fiscal provisions applicable to Grupo Nutresa S. A. 
stipulate that:
a) As of January 1, 2013, Law 1607 of December 2012 crea-

tes the equity income tax (impuesto sobre la renta para la 
equidad, CREE) as the contribution with which assimilated 
companies, legal entities and taxpayers reporting income 
and complementary tax to benefit workers, employment 
generation and social investment. Non – profit entities, in-
dividuals and companies declared as free-trade zones at the 
rate of 15% are not subject to the liabilities of the equity 
income tax – CREE.

b) The base to determine the equity income tax – CREE may 
not be less than 3% of the liquid assets on the last day of 
the immediately anterior taxable fiscal period.

c) In accordance with Law 1739 of December 2014, the equity 
income tax “CREE” has a 9% rate applicable. 

d) During 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018, a surtax on equity 
income tax - CREE, which is the responsibility of the tax-
payers of this tax and will apply to a tax base of over COP 
800million, with the rates of 5%, 6%, 8% and 9% per year, 
respectively.

e) As indicated in Article 25 of Law 1607 of December 2012, 
as of July 1, 2013, legal entities and taxpayers of income 
tax and complementary taxes, corresponding to workers 

who earn, individually, up to ten (10) minimum monthly 
wages will be exempt from paying extra-legal contributions 
for SENA and ICBF. This exemption does not apply to those 
contributors who are not subject to the CREE tax.

f) The tax base of the equity income tax CREE will be establi-
shed by subtracting from the gross income susceptible to 
increasing the equity made in the tax year, the returns, re-
bates and discounts and from the result obtained everything 
corresponding to revenue that does not constitute income 
in the Tributary Statute is subtracted. From the net revenues 
thus obtained, the total of the costs and deductions appli-
cable to this tax will be deducted, in accordance with the 
provisions of Articles 107 and 108 of the Tributary Statutes. 
Exempt income which was exhaustively established by Ar-
ticle 22 of Law 1607 of 2012 is allowed to be subtracted 
from the previous amount.

g) From 2015 in accordance with the provisions of the Law 
1739 of December 2014, the tax losses and excesses of the 
minimum base may be offset against future earnings on the 
equity income tax CREE, considering the same rules provi-
ded for income and complementary tax.

Below is the reconciliation between the profit before the equi-
ty income tax – CREE and the taxable income for the years 
ending as of December 31st:

2014 2013

Profit before allowance for Income tax $        377.674 $       382.332

Plus:

Non-deductible expenses for taxes 1.132 978

Non-deductible expenses for various 310 242 

Costs and expenses from previous fiscal periods 14 2.931

Dividends received due to holding method 167.204  158.436

Levy on financial movements 2 3 
Cost of sale of investments 161 264

Special deductions (Donations) 174 249

Contributions to mutual investment funds 3 3
TOTAL ITEMS THAT INCREASE THE NET TAXABLE INCOME $        169.000 $       163.146 

Minus:
Untaxed income 1.640 25

Repayment of allowances 16 50

Income using holding method 323.884 344.939

Dividends that do not constitute income 209.399 191.438

Non – callable dividends 10.738 0

Sale of investments 562 88
TOTAL ITEMS THAT DECREASE THE NET TAXABLE INCOME $          546.239 $       536.540

Net income 435 8.938
Presumptive income 574 6.526

Net taxable income 574 8.938

Tax rate 9% 9%
ALLOWANCE FOR TAX ON EQUITY INCOME $              52 $           804
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Composition of the expenditure and liabilities (credit balance) of the income and com-
plementary windfall earnings tax and equity income tax – CREE as of December 31.

The income and complementary tax charge and the equity income tax – CREE include:

2014 2013

Allowance for current Income and windfall earnings tax                                     169 1.632

Allowance for current CREE tax                                      52 804
ALLOWANCE FOR TAX ON INCOME AND CREE 221    2.436

The balance payable (credit) of tax on income and complementary windfall earnings and CREE as of 
December 31, was determined in the following manner:

2014 2013

Allowance for current Income and windfall earnings tax 169       1.632

Allowance for current CREE tax 52 804

Minus:

INCOME withholding tax 1.884 2.884

CREE auto — retentions 139 66

Credit balance without compensation 2.843 2.662

CREDIT BALANCE INCOME AND CREE TAX (SEE NOTE 4) (4.645)     (3.176)

WEALTH TAX   
Law 1739 of 2014 estbalished a wealth tax whose operative event is on January 1st of 2015, 2016 and 
2017, and paid by taxpayers income. Therefore, taxpayers with gross assets minus the debts whose 
value exceeds $ 1.000 million, should determine their tax category under the following conditions:

Lower limit Top limit 2015 Rate 2016 Rate 2017 Rate

>0 <2.000.000.000 (Taxable Base)* 0,20%  (Taxable Base)* 0,15% (Taxable Base)*0,05%

>=2.000.000.000 <3.000.000.000
(Taxable Base - 
2.000.000.000) 
*0,35%+4.000.000

(Taxable Base - 
2.000.000.000)* 0.25%+ 
3.000.000

(Taxable Base - 
2.000.000.000) *0,10%+ 
1.000.000

>=3.000.000.000 <5.000.000.000
(Taxable Base - 
3.000.000.000) *0,75%+ 
7.500.000

(Taxable Base - 
3.000.000.000) *0,50%+ 
5.500.000

(Taxable Base - 
3.000.000.000) *0,20%+ 
2.000.000

>=5.000.000.000 Onward
(Taxable Base - 
5.000.000.000) *1,15% + 
22.500.000

(Taxable Base- 
5.000.000.000) *1,00%+ 
15.500.000

(Taxable Base - 
5.000.000.000) *0,40%+ 
6.000.000
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ADDITIONAL TAX IMPOSED ON THE WEALTH TAX
Through Law 1739 of 2014, the complementary tax for tributary  normalization was established for the years 2015, 2016 
and 2017 that will be paid by taxpayer of the wealth and volunteer declarers of said tax, who have assets omitted and/or 
nonexistent equity to January 1, 2015, 2016 and 2017, respectively. The tax rate is as follows:

YEAR RATE

2015 10,0%

2016 11,5%

2017 13,0%

NOTE 9 Deferred Revenue

This corresponds to the value of the unenforceable dividends decreed by companies in which the Company is not the 
controlling shareholder.

The balance as of December 31, 2013 included: 

Names 2013

Grupo Argos S. A. $          4.589 

Grupo de Inversiones Suramericana S. A. 5.033 

TOTAL $          9.622 

NOTE 10 Capital stock

The balance as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 included:

Authorized capital 480.000.000 of shares, with a nominal value 

of COP 5 each. $       2.400 

Unissued shares 19.876.542 (99)

SUBSCRIBED AND PAID CAPITAL $      2.301 

NOTE 11 Reserves

Legal reserve
Pursuant to Colombian commerce legislation, 10% of the net 
profits must be appropriated each year as a legal reserve, until 
the reserve balance reaches at least 50% of the subscribed 
capital. In accordance with its bylaws, the Company keeps its 
legal reserve at 100% of the subscribed capital. This reserve 
cannot be distributed until the Company is liquidated, but it 
must be used to absorb losses. The Assembly of Shareholders 
may freely dispose of any excess above the minimum amount 
required by law.

Reserve for Stock Buy Back
Pursuant to the provisions set forth in the Commerce Code, 
all rights inherent in stock buyback are suspended and 
must be excluded when determining the intrinsic value of 
the issued stock. The Company must maintain a reserve 
equal to the cost of the buy backs of its own stock.

Other reserves
This includes other reserves that are substantially for free dis-
posal by the Assembly of Shareholders.
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NOTE 12 Equity RevaluationT

Adjustments for inflation on the balances of the equity accounts made from January 1, 1992 until De-
cember 31, 2006, were credited to this account and charged to the Profit and Loss Statement of the 
fiscal period, except for the valuation surplus. This item is decreased with the equity tax and may not 
be distributed as a profit until the Company is liquidated or capitalized, pursuant to legal provisions. 

NOTE 13 Administration Operating Expenses

The balance as of December 31 included: 

2014 2013

Personnel expenses $        11.365 $        5.734 

Taxes 1.220 1.137

Travel expenses 1.427 1.928

Professional fees 1.851 924

Contributions and affiliations 1.017 1.009

Services 574 537

Miscellaneous and other expenses 1.129 2.282

TOTAL $          18.583 $      13.551 

NOTE 14 Net Profit on Sale and Liquidation of Investments 

2014

Name Cost
Sale price or value 

received
Profit

Sale of investments

Setas Colombianas S. A.    441    1.081 640

TOTAL $       441    1.081 640

2013

Name Cost
Sale price or value 

received
Loss

Sale of investments

Promotora de Proyectos S. A.   264 88 (176)

TOTAL $       264 88 (176)

NOTE 15 Dividends Decreed 

In the ordinary Assembly of Shareholders held on March 28, 2014, a monthly per–share dividend of COP 
36 was decreed, between April 2014 and March 2015 inclusive, on 460.123.458 outstanding shares. 
Dividends were decreed for 2014 for the amount of $ 198.773 (2013:$ 182.209).

During 2014, dividends were paid for an amount of $ 194.062 (2013: $ 177.138).
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The Company entered into a contract with Deceval, by virtue 
of which the latter is in charge of providing comprehensive 
deposit and administration services for Company stock, begin-
ning on June 1, 2011.

The main contractual commitments are as follows:
• Custody of and update the Shareholders’ Registry Ledger
• Make notations in the trading account and custody
• Update and correct data
• Oversee assemblies

NOTE 17 Subsequent Events 

On November 27, 2014, Grupo Nutresa SA agreed to ac-
quire 100% shares of Aldage, Inc., a company domiciled in 
Panama, which owns Colombian companies that make up 
the Grupo El Corral (El Corral Group).

Under the agreement, an amount payable of COP 
743.401 million was established.

On February 3, 2015, the Superintendency of Industry 
and Commerce made a ruling favorable to said acquisition.

The El Corral Group is the FMCG food leader in Colombia, 
with a total of 345 outlets in the fast casual segment in the 
area of burgers with its brand El Corral, and casual dining with 
its restaurants El Corral Gourmet, Leños y Carbón and Leños 
Gourmet. In addition to operating these chains, the El Corral 
Group also operates international brands like Papa John’s 
(pizza), Yogen Früz (frozen yogurt), and Krispy Kreme (dou-
ghnuts). Additionally, it operates through franchises in Pana-
ma, Ecuador, Chile and the United States.

• Serve shareholders
• Serve third parties
• Attend off–exchange operations
• Administer subscriptions
• Administer risks
• Liquidate and control dividends
• Maintain documents/files
• Provide reports and consultations
• Provide legal support
• Provide other services

NOTE 16 Administration of Stocks and Dividends 

NOTE 18 Financial Ratios (Not audited)

2014 2013

Liquidity Ratio   
(Current assets / Current liabilities) 0,35 veces 0,21 veces

Indicates the capability that the Company has to attend its short-term 
obligations, using current assets as endorsement.

Debt Ratio
(Total Liabilities / Total Assets)
Indicates the part of the Company’s assets that are financed with third-
party resources. 0,86% 1,11%
Profitability Ratio: 

•	(Net profit / Net worth) 4,60% 5,12%

Percentage of net worth that represents the net profit.

•	(Net profit / Total assets) 4,56% 5,06%

Percentage of the total assets that represents the net profit.

Percentage of the total assets that represents the net profit.

Stock Information 2014 2013
Number of outstanding shares 460.123.458 460.123.458

Nominal value (*) 5 5
Commercial value (*) 28.600 26.440
Intrinsic Value (*) 17.852 16.134
Number of shareholders 15.093 15.093
Average price in the stock market (*) 27.048 26.055
Maximum price in the stock market (*) 29.500 28.500
Minimum price in the stock market (*) 23.400 22.900

(*) Values expressed in Colombian Pesos (COP)
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COMPANY 2014 2013
Effect on results 

2014

% of share in 
Income (Operating 

Expenses) 2014

COMPAÑÍA DE GALLETAS NOEL S.A.S.

Fees and services 3.239 2.945 3.239 0,82%
Dividends received 34.034 29.512 
Agency service 1.209 0 (1.209) 0,31%
Balance receivable 1.708 691 

INDUSTRIAS ALIMENTICIAS ZENU S.A.S.

Dividends received 31.650 28.550   
Sale of property, plant, and equipment 1.082 0 1.082 0,27%
  
COMPAÑÍA  NACIONAL DE CHOCOLATES S.A.S.
Fees and services 3.068 2.667 3.068 0,78%
Dividends received 18.385 37.068  
Agency service 1.346 0 (1.346) 0,34%
Balance receivable 2.060 840 

Balance payable (5) (5)   

PRODUCTOS ALIMENTICIOS DORIA S.A.S.

Fees and services 704 468 704 0,18%
Agency service 267 0 (267) 0,07%
Balance receivable 107 42 

ALIMENTOS CARNICOS S.A.S.

Fees and services 5.526 5.215 5.526 1,40%
Dividends received 33.158 29.653 
Agency service 2.074 0 (2.074) 0,53%
Balance receivable 3.238 1.641 
    
INDUSTRIA COLOMBIANA DE CAFÉ S.A.S.
Fees and services 2.720 2.328 2.720 0,69%
Dividends received 24.257 19.692 
Agency service 1.014 0 (1.014) 0,26%
Balance receivable 1.434 560 
     
MEALS DE COLOMBIA S.A.S.
Fees and services 1.833 842 1.833 0,46%
Dividends received 20.884 0 
Agency service 592 0 (592) 0,15%
Balance receivable 288 76 

SERVICIOS NUTRESA S.A.S.

Fees and services 12 12 12 0,003%

Balance payable (13.187) (19.073)

NOTE 19 Balances and Transactions Among Economically Bound Companies

(Articles 29 and 47 of Law 222 of 1995, and Circular Letter 002 of 1998 from the Colombian Financial Superintendency).
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COMPANY 2014 2013
Effect on results 

2014

% of share in 
Income (Operating 

Expenses) 2014

 
NOVAVENTA S.A.S.
Dividends received 0 4.927 

SETAS COLOMBIANAS S.A.
Dividends received 4.819 7.431 

LA RECETTA SOLUCIONES GASTRONÓMICAS
INTEGRADAS S.A.S.
Dividends received 0 1.626 

INDUSTRIAS ALIADAS S.A.S
Dividends received 17 17 

LITOEMPAQUES S.A.S.
Investment purchase 0 999 
Paid services 2 3 (2) 0,013%

Balance payable 0 (33)

Operations with companies in which members of the Grupo Nutresa S. A. Board of Directors, its legal representatives and chief 
officers have a share greater than 10%:

Operating 
value 2014

Operating value 
2013

Effect on results 2014
% of share in Income 
(Operating Expenses) 

2014

Grupo de Inversiones Suramericana S.A.  
Dividends received 28.194 19.672 28.194 7,15%
Dividends paid 68.444 62.554

Grupo Argos S.A.
Dividends received 24.381 17.996 24.381 6,18%

Dividends paid 16.178 14.801
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Self – diagnosis of the incorporation of the
principles and elements of the Integrated Report

Self – diagnosis of the incorporation of the principles and ele-
ments of the Integrated Report

It is Grupo Nutresa’s aim that this Report follow the principles 
and guidelines of the content of the International Integrated 
Reporting Framework (IIRF), considering that is the clearest and 
most accurate manner to present to its stakeholders how the 
management of the financial and non – financial aspects are 
connected to the strategy and purpose of creating long – term 
value.

Against the reporting exercises conducted in previous years, 
this Report stands out for having a structure oriented by the ma-
terial issues of the Company; for each one, we have described 
the milestones, challenges, progress and future vision.  Also, 
the issues are connected and provide feedback to each other, 
and their progress in management are reported in the different 
stages of the value chain in which the impacts occur.

The main advances of the Integrated Report 2014 is detailed 
next, following the principles and elements of the content of 
the reporting framework:

Strategic focus and future direction:

The 2014 Report provides greater emphasis in the strategy and 
future vision of the Organization, focusing on the management 
of the aspects with a greater capacity to affect it positively and 
negatively throughout the value chain and derived from the ma-
teriality analysis conducted. 

Thus, in the beginning of the Report, in the Chapter “Cor-
porate Model,” we have presented the long – term strategy of 
the Organization and the Mega 2020, derived from this strategy.  
This general vision is complemented with the strategic objectives 
presented in the same section, and which allow Grupo Nutresa to 
focus its processes toward increased value generation.  The main 
risks of the business and its integral management are also presen-
ted in this Chapter and will guide the focus of management of 
the material aspects presented in the Report.

Also, throughout each chapter, the application of this prin-
ciple is intensified.  This is done by incorporating sections of 
challenges, progress and future vision.  The section “Challen-
ges” relates each material aspect to the risks and opportunities 

of the business; “Progress” presents the management mecha-
nisms and the performance of Grupo Nutresa in relation to its 
strategic objectives.  Finally, “Future Vision” summarizes the ini-
tiatives to be implemented in the short, medium and long term 
to fulfill the strategic objectives.

Connectivity:

The Report has a thread around the Grupo Nutresa strategy, 
the material issues, the integral management of risks, and how 
each one of these topics is relevant throughout the value chain.  
In each chapter we present the relevance of each issue to gene-
rate value, how the management of the issues affects capitals 
and we identify the risks and opportunities of an integral ma-
nagement for the process of generating value.  For example, 
in the subchapter “Corporate Governance,” we highlight that 
good governance positively impacts the corporate capital and 
reputation by attracting and maintaining national and foreign 
investors, fundamental for increasing generation of value.

Another example of the principle of connectivity is the link be-
tween the Grupo Nutresa performance indicators and the long 
– term strategic objective.  Thus, in the subchapter “Corporate 
Citizenship,” we measure the performance in terms of the num-
ber of projects to build capacity in relation to the objective esta-
blished in the Mega 2020.  This practice occurs in all the chapters 
dealing with the relevant issues.

Stakeholders:

The Report seeks to generate information for stakeholders on 
how Grupo Nutresa responds to their expectations.  To start, the 
introduction of the Report presents the model of relationship 
of the Organization with its stakeholders.  Then, each chapter 
identifies how the management of the material issues responds 
to the interests and expectations of each group:  shareholders 
employees, clients and consumers, suppliers, communities and 
the State.

On the other hand, to respond to all stakeholders and focusing 
on more precise content for their requirements for information, 
Grupo Nutresa generated additional contents published on the 
Webpage http://informe2014.gruponutresa.com, in order to inclu-
de only the most relevant information in this Report. 



Informe integrado 2014

Materiality:

The Report was structured so that each chapter responds to the 
strategic sustainability priorities that include business matters.  
These priorities encompass the 13 most relevant issues in the 
Materiality Matrix.  Each chapter presents how the relevant is-
sue is transversally addressed to the performance of the Organi-
zation, linking its management to the competitive environment 
in the region of operation, and responding to the expectations 
of its stakeholders.  Also, in the section “Challenges” in each 
chapter, we relate each material issue to the risks and opportu-
nities of the busines.

It is worth noting that one of the material issues developed in 
the Report refers to the business matter “Market Performance.”  
The chapter that develops this issue presents the scene, perfor-
mance, risks and opportunities of the Grupo Nutresa commer-
cial system, brand and network management, client satisfaction 
and international expansion, among others.

Conciseness: 

The contents of the Integrated Report have been organized to 
be aligned with the principle of conciseness.  All of the contents 
of the Report are found on the Web, where visitors can down-
load:  a concise version of the Report in PDF; a summarized ver-
sion that was printed and distributed at the Shareholders’ As-
sembly; and a pocket version, which includes the most relevant 
indicators of the Report.  Additionally, the reader may navigate 
throughout the contents of the Report on the Web.

On the other hand, the 2014 Report has incorporated a 
chapter entitled “Performance of the Businesses,” in which an 
inphographic presents a summary of the most relevant figures 
of each business, the 2014 environment and the strategic cha-
llenges, allowing the reader to have an overview of the present 
and future of each Grupo Nutresa business.

Reliability and integrity:

The process of managing the information in the Report begins 
with the designation of a person responsible for each material 
topic, by business and country where the Organization opera-
tes. This person provides the information to a person who has 
been generally designated by topic; this person consolidates and 
delivers the data for review by the Directorate of Sustainability. 
The Director, together with the Grupo Nutresa Vice President of 
Sustainability, validates the information reported to then receive 
endorsement from the Grupo Nutresa CEO.

On the other hand, the financial data of Grupo Nutresa and 
its subsidiary companies, which observe the generally accepted 
accounting principles, was audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers 
(PWC).  The non – financial information was verified by KPMG 
Advisory Services Ltda., with a limited level of assurance, fo-
llowing the guidelines of International Standard for Assurance 
Engagements (ISAE) 3000. 

In terms of the integrity of the Report, it is important to men-
tion that the subchapter “Integral Risk Management and the 
Principle Risks of the Business” shows how possible negative 
impacts associated with the operation of Grupo Nutresa were 
taken into account.  Also, in each chapter of the material as-
pect, we identified the main risks and associated opportunities.  
For example, the subchapter “Water Use and Conservation” 
mentions that strategic countries for the Organization, such as 
Chile, Mexico and the Dominican Republic, face high or very 
high water risks, which has led the Organization to use the re-
source sustainably throughout its value chain.

Comparability and consistency:

In order to facilitate comparability and consistency, the Integra-
ted Report 2014 was prepared in accordance with the compre-
hensive option of the Global Reporting Initiative – GRI G4 – gui-
delines for preparing sustainability reports, and the supplement 
for the food sector.  The scope and coverage of the GRI indica-
tors address the 13 Grupo Nutresa material issues and reflect 
the performance of the Organization in the social, economic 
and environmental dimensions.

To facilitate the comparability of Grupo Nutresa’s progress with 
its peers, global and sector trends were taken into account in the 
materiality analysis.  In addition, the Report presents the progress 
of the indicators for several years and, in some specific cases, this 
progress is contrasted against the target established by the Or-
ganization.  For example, in the Chapter “Effective Innovation,” 
we have contrasted the 2014 result of innovation sales against 
the 2020 target.  Finally, the Chapter “About this Integrated 
Report” indicates the re – expression of figures to smparability.
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Elements of the content of the Integrated Reporting Framework:

Content element Aspects included Chapters – Subchapter / Section

Organizational vision
and operational context

Company Mission and Vision In Corporate Model – Strategy for Our 
First Century

Organizational structure In Corporate Model – Grupo Empresarial 
Nutresa Structure

Shareholding structure Gatefold

Activities the Company conducts In Corporate Model – Value Chain

Market characteristics where Grupo 
Nutresa operates

En Desempeño de los Negocios

Governance

Corporate governance structure In Corporate Governance – Progress

The culture and ethical values of the 
Organization

In Corporate Model – Strategy for Our 
First Century

Best corporate governance practices 
implemented

In Corporate Governance – Progress

Remuneration of the Board of Directors 
and employees, linked to the short–, me-
dium– and long–term creation of value

In Corporate Governance – Progress

Opportunities 
and risks

Opportunities derived from future pers-
pectives in the economic and regulatory 
environments

In Corporate Model – Integral Risk 
Management and Principal Risks of the 
Business

In each Chapter, in the first definition 
of the material issue and in the section 
“Challenges”

Evaluation of the risks associated with 
future perspectives

In each Chapter of the Material Aspect, 
in the first definition of the material 
issue and in the sections “Challenges” 
and “Future Vision”

Strategy
and resources

Strategic plan of the Company Corporate Model – Strategy for Our First 
Century and Strategic Objectives

En cada Capítulo de Aspecto Material

Resources to use to obtain the expected 
results

In each Chapter of Material Aspect
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Content element Aspects included Chapters – Subchapter / Section

Business model

How Grupo Nutresa creates value from 
some resources and its business proces-
ses

In Corporate Model – Strategic Objecti-
ves for 2020, Value Chain

In each Chapter of Material Aspect

Performance and results

Key indicators of the Company’s perfor-
mance

Gatefold
In Corporate Model – Strategic Objecti-
ves for 2020
In Performance of the Businesses
In each Chapter of Material
Aspect

Performance in the different manage-
ment environments, measured through 
indicators

In each Chapter of Material Aspect

Results of the annual consultations with 
stakeholders, who indicate the degree of 
compliance of their needs, expectations 
and interests

In each Chapter of Material Aspect

Future vision

Opportunities, challenges and uncer-
tainties that the Organization could 
encounter to achieve its strategy

In each Chapter of Material
Aspect – Future Vision

Risks associated to the business and 
compliance of the strategy

In Corporate Model – Integral Risk 
Management and Principal Risks of the 
Business
In each Chapter of Material
Aspect

Bases for the preparation
and presentation

Process of materiality analysis In Materiality Analysis

Scope of the information reported In “About this Integrated Report”

General principles
of information reporting

Material issues In Materiality Analysis

Key quantitative indicators Gatefold

Information on capital In Corporate Model – Value Chain
In each Chapter of Material
Aspect 

Reporting period and level of informa-
tion aggregation

In “About this Integrated Report”




